

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                    
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                   TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 23, 2017                                                                                        EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
SANTA CRUZ COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL AVENUE, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 


 


 
AGENDA 


 
 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Board of Directors 23rd Aug 2017 - Page 1 of 7 


 Item Purpose / Support 


  Agenda   


   


1. Convene Closed Session Inter District 
Transfer Appeals 


5:00 p.m. 


1.1. Roll Call  


   


2. Inter District Transfer Appeals Hearings Format: Parent/Guardian/Advocate will have 5 minutes to 
present the case for the appeal.  District will have 5 minutes 
to present the case for denial of appeal.  The Trustees will 
ask clarifying questions.  Trustees will vote in Open Session 
immediately following the Pledge of Allegiance and Report 
of Actions in Closed Session. 


2.1. Inter District Transfer Appeal Hearing: 
Student #1 


Follow format 


2.2. Inter District Transfer Appeal Hearing: 
Student #2 


Follow format 


2.3. Inter District Transfer Appeal Hearing: 
Student #3 


Follow format 


2.4. Inter District Transfer Appeal Hearing: 
Student #4 


Follow format 


   


2.4.1. Convene Regular Closed Session 5:30 p.m. 


2.4.1.1. Roll Call  


2.4.1.2. Public Comments prior to Closed Session Members of the public may comment on items that ARE 
listed on the Closed Session Agenda. 


2.4.1.3. Public Employee 
Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Complaint 
(Govt. Code Section 54957) 


Information 


2.4.1.4. Real Property Negotiations (Govt. Code 
54956.8) 


Information and Direction 


2.4.1.5. Certificated/Classified/Management 
Leaves, Retirements, Resignations & 
Appointments 


Approval 


2.4.1.6. Superintendent's Annual Goals Information 


1 of 428







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                    
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                   TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 23, 2017                                                                                        EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
SANTA CRUZ COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL AVENUE, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 


 


 
AGENDA 


 
 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Board of Directors 23rd Aug 2017 - Page 2 of 7 


 Item Purpose / Support 


   


3. Convene Open Session 6:30 p.m. 


3.1. Welcome and Pledge of Allegiance  


3.2. Vote on Inter District Transfer Appeal: 
Student #1 


 


3.3. Vote on Inter District Transfer Appeal: 
Student #2 


 


3.4. Vote on Inter District Transfer Appeal: 
Student #3 


 


3.5. Vote on Inter District Transfer Appeal: 
Student #4 


 


3.6. Agenda changes, additions or deletions  


   


4. Public Comments 
For presentations of matters not on the Agenda. 
3 minutes for individuals; 15 minutes per subject. 


Note to Members of the Public:  Thank you for taking 
the time to attend this meeting.  Santa Cruz City School 
Board Members appreciate your presence and your 
comments regarding items not on the agenda are 
valued.  Per Santa Cruz City Schools Board Bylaw 
protocols, Trustees will not comment on Public 
Comments during this time. 


   


5. Superintendent's Report  


5.1. Superintendent's Report  


5.2. Presentation of Plaque to Outgoing Board 
Member Thompson 


 


   


6. Board Members' Reports  


6.1. Board Members' Reports  


6.2. Board President's Report  


   


7. Approval of Minutes  


2 of 428







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                    
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                   TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 23, 2017                                                                                        EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
SANTA CRUZ COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL AVENUE, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 


 


 
AGENDA 


 
 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Board of Directors 23rd Aug 2017 - Page 3 of 7 


 Item Purpose / Support 


7.1. Approval of the Minutes of the Meeting on 
June 28, 2017 


Approval 


   


8. General Public Business  


   


8.1. Consent Agenda: These matters may be 
passed by one roll call motion.  


A Board Member may pull an item for separate discussion 
and vote. 


8.1.1. Personnel Actions - Certificated  


8.1.2. Personnel Actions - Classified  


8.1.3. Purchase Orders, Quotes and Bids  


8.1.4. Warrant Register  


8.1.5. Budget Transfers  


8.1.6. Williams Complaint Report - 4th Quarter 
FY 2016-17 


 


8.1.7. Disposition of Surplus Property  


8.1.8. Change Order  


8.1.9. Revised Salary Schedules for Licensed 
Professionals 


 


8.1.10. Contracts and Agreements  


8.1.10.1. Contracts and Agreements: Business 
Services 


 


8.1.10.1.1. Agreement: SCCS/COE-portables @ 255 
and 313 Swift Street, Santa Cruz, CA 


 


8.1.10.1.2. Contract: Wenger Associates-Illuminate 
Support 


 


8.1.10.1.3. Contract: Blackboard-Illuminate Support  


8.1.10.1.4. Agreement Amendment: Bartos Architects-
Santa Cruz HS 


 


8.1.10.1.5. Contract: Colbi-Bond Monitoring Software  


3 of 428







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                    
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                   TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 23, 2017                                                                                        EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
SANTA CRUZ COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL AVENUE, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 


 


 
AGENDA 


 
 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Board of Directors 23rd Aug 2017 - Page 4 of 7 


 Item Purpose / Support 


8.1.10.1.6. Contract: Crowe Horwath LLP-audit for 
bond projects, Measure A 


 


8.1.10.1.7. Consultant Service Agreement: Jerene 
Lacey-help with closing books 2016-17 


 


8.1.10.1.8. Contract: MBS-Gas valves seismic 
evaluation and safety upgrades-all sites 


 


8.1.10.1.9. Contract: Bowman & Williams topographic 
map-Harbor HS 


 


8.1.10.1.10
. 


Contract: MACRO, 133 Mission Street, SC-
extension of lease month to month 


 


8.1.10.1.11
. 


Agreement: Senderos-Facilities Use 
Agreement-1 yr. extension 


 


8.1.10.2. Agreements: Educational Services/Student 
Services 


 


8.1.10.2.1. Consultant Service Agreement: 
Conservation West Hearing-hearing testing 


 


8.1.10.2.2. Consultant Service Agreement: Margaret 
Lacey-Vision and Hearing Screening 


 


8.1.10.3. Contracts and Agreements: Educational 
Services/Special Education 


 


8.1.10.3.1. Contract: Non-Public Agency-ABRITE, 
Org. 


 


8.1.10.3.2. Contract: Non-Public School: The Bay 
School 


 


8.1.10.3.3. Contract: Non-Public School: The Bridge 
School 


 


8.1.10.3.4. Contract: Non-Public School: The Heritage 
School 


 


8.1.10.3.5. Contract: Non-Public Agency: The May 
Institute 


 


8.1.10.3.6. Contract: Non-Public Agency: Pediatric 
Therapy Center 


 


4 of 428







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                    
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                   TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 23, 2017                                                                                        EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
SANTA CRUZ COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL AVENUE, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 


 


 
AGENDA 


 
 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Board of Directors 23rd Aug 2017 - Page 5 of 7 


 Item Purpose / Support 


8.1.10.3.7. Contract: Non-Public Agency/Non-Public 
School: Rebekah Children's 
Services/Phoenix School 


 


8.1.10.3.8. Contract: Non-Public Agency: Trumpet 
Behavioral Services 


 


8.1.10.3.9. Agreement for Professional Services: 
Maria Ballard, PT 


 


8.1.10.3.10
. 


Agreement for Professional Services: 
SpeechRighter 


 


8.1.10.3.11
. 


Contract: Medical Billing Technologies, Inc. 
- Medi-Cal Billing 


 


   


8.2. Report of Closed Session Actions  


8.2.1. Report of Actions Taken in Closed Session  


   


8.3. Items to Be Transacted and/or 
Discussed 


 


8.3.1. Staff Report: Student Centered Master 
Scheduling 


Staff will provide an overview of how a student centered 
schedule is developed.   


 


8.3.2. Staff Report: Bond Projects Update Staff will present updated information on facilities projects 
funded with bonds revenues. 


8.3.3. Staff Report: Transportation Update 
 
Staff will present a report on the status of the Transportation 
Department’s operations and vehicles. Recommendations 
will be brought back to the Board at a future meeting for 
action. 


8.3.4. New Business: Parcel Tax Oversight 
Committee Bylaw Revisions-First and/or 
Final Reading 


 
Recommendation: Approve the recommended modifications 
to the Parcel Tax Oversight Committee Bylaws. 


8.3.5. Board Policies: First and/or Final Reading 
for CSBA Revisions & Updates 


Recommendation: Approve the revised policy and one new 
policy for first and/or final reading. 


5 of 428







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                    
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                   TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 23, 2017                                                                                        EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
SANTA CRUZ COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL AVENUE, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 


 


 
AGENDA 


 
 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Board of Directors 23rd Aug 2017 - Page 6 of 7 


 Item Purpose / Support 


8.3.6. New Business: Lease-Leaseback 
Contracts for Harbor HS Track and Fields 
Project and Harbor and Soquel HS Pools 
Project 


Recommendation: Recommendation: Approve lease-
leaseback contracts with XL Construction Corporation for 
preconstruction services for the Harbor High Track and 
Fields Project and for the Harbor and Soquel High Pools 
Project. Authorize staff to pursue lease-leaseback contracts 
with XL Construction Corporation for construction services 
regarding these projects. These will be brought back to the 
Board in the future for approval. 


   


9. Adjournment  


   


10. Return to Closed Session (if necessary)  


   


11. Closed Session Action Report (if 
necessary) 


 


   


12. Adjournment  


The board book for this meeting, including this agenda and back-up materials, may be viewed or downloaded online: 
http://www.sccs.santacruz.k12.ca.us/board-of-education/agendas-&-minutes.html or may be viewed at the District 
Office, Superintendent’s Office, Room 303, 405 Old San Jose Road, Soquel, CA.    
 
Public Participation: 
All persons are encouraged to attend and, when appropriate, to participate in meetings of the Santa Cruz City Schools 
Board of Education. If you wish to speak to an item on the agenda, please be present at the beginning of the meeting 
as any item, upon motion, may be moved to the beginning of the agenda.  Consideration of all matters is conducted in 
open session except those relating to litigation, personnel and employee negotiations, which, by law, may be 
considered in closed session. 
 
Translation Requests: 
Spanish language translation is available on an as-needed basis.  Please make advance arrangements with Nancy 
Lentz by telephone at (831) 429-3410 extension 220. 
 
Las Solicitudes de Traducción: 
Traducciones del inglés al español y del español al inglés están disponibles en las sesiones de la mesa directiva.  Por 
favor haga arreglos por anticipado con Nancy Lentz por teléfono al numero (831) 429-3410 x220. 
 


Board Meeting Information 
1. The Regular Meeting on September 13, 2017, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of 


Education Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 
2. The Regular Meeting on September 27, 2017, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of 


Education Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


6 of 428



http://www.sccs.santacruz.k12.ca.us/board-of-education/agendas-&-minutes.html





SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                    
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                   TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 23, 2017                                                                                        EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
SANTA CRUZ COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL AVENUE, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 


 


 
AGENDA 


 
 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Board of Directors 23rd Aug 2017 - Page 7 of 7 


3. The Regular Meeting on October 18, 2017, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


4. The Regular Meeting/Board Study Session: Student Discipline on November 1, 2017, 6:00 p.m., will 
be held in the Harbor High School Library, 300 La Fonda Avenue, Santa Cruz, CA. 


5. The Regular Meeting on November 8, 2017, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of 
Education Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


6. The Regular Meeting/Board Study Session: Budget Development on December 6, 2017, 6:00 p.m., 
will be held in the Harbor High School Library, 300 La Fonda Avenue, Santa Cruz, CA. 


7. The Regular Meeting on December 13, 2017, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of 
Education Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


8. The Regular Meeting on January 17, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


9. The Regular Meeting/Board Study Session: District Goals, Resources & Alignment on January 31, 
2018, 6:00 p.m., will be held in the Harbor High School Library, 300 La Fonda Avenue, Santa Cruz, 
CA. 


10. The Regular Meeting on February 14, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


11. The Regular Meeting on February 28, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


12. The Regular Meeting on March 7, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


13. The Regular Meeting on March 28, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


14. The Regular Meeting on April 18, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


15. The Regular Meeting on April 25, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


16. The Regular Meeting on May 9, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


17. The Regular Meeting/Board Self-Evaluation/Study Session for the Budget: May Revise on May 23, 
2018, 6:00 p.m., will be held in the Harbor High School Library, 300 La Fonda Avenue, Santa Cruz, 
CA. 


18. The Regular Meeting on June 13, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


19. The Regular Meeting on June 20, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


 
 


7 of 428







 


 


    MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION 


FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 
June 28, 2017 


 
 
 
Convene Closed Session for Inter District Transfer Appeals 
Board President Tracy-Proulx called this Closed Session Meeting for Inter District Transfer Appeals Hearings to 
order at 5:08 p.m. in the County Office of Education Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 
 
Attendance for Inter-District Transfer Appeal Hearings 
Board President Tracy-Proulx 
Board Member Shonick 
Board Member Perez-Granados 
Board Member Threet (participated in hearing for Student #2 only) 
Board Member Vestal (participated in hearing for Student #1 only) 
 
Absent: Board Member Coonerty 
Absent: Board Member Thompson 
 
Superintendent Kris Munro 
Patrick Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources 
Student Services Director Brown 
Student Services Administrative Secretary Luna 
 
Family – Student #1 
Family – Student #2 
 
Inter-District Transfer Appeal Hearings – Presentations of Cases 
Format: Each of the families was escorted separately to meet with the Trustees.  Parent/Guardian Advocate 
had five minutes to present the case for the appeal of the denial.  Ms. Brown had five minutes to present the 
case for the denial of the transfer.  The Trustees had 10 minutes to ask clarifying questions.  After the 
presentation of each case, the family was excused and the next family proceeded into the room for an 
opportunity to address the Board Members.  At the conclusion of the presentations, all parties returned to the 
board room. 
 
IDT Appeal Hearing Student #1 
IDT Appeal Hearing Student #2 
 
Convene Full Board Closed Session 
Board President Tracy-Proulx called this Regular Meeting/Study Session Full Board Closed Session to order at 
5:40 p.m. in the Santa Cruz County Office of Education Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 
 
Public Comments for Closed Session Agenda Items 
None 


8 of 428







 


 


 
 
Convene Open Session 
Board President Tracy-Proulx called this Regular Meeting/Study Session Open Session to order at 6:32 p.m. in 
the County Office of Education Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 
 
Attendance at Meeting 
Sheila Coonerty Deedee Perez-Granados Jeremy Shonick    
Patty Threet  Deb Tracy-Proulx  Claudia Vestal  Alisun Thompson – teleconference 
 
Kris Munro, Superintendent 
Patrick Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources 
Members of the Audience 
 
Welcome and Format 
Board President Tracy-Proulx welcomed those in attendance and explained the format used for this Regular 
Meeting of the Board of Education.  
 
Vote on Inter-District Transfer Appeals 
Board President Tracy-Proulx thanked each family for their presence at the hearing and for sharing their 
personal story.  The Board of Education reviews each hearing packet with respect and gives serious 
consideration to each situation. 


1. MSP (Perez-Granados/Vestal) 4-0-1-2, the Board of Education upheld the denial of the Inter-District 
Transfer for Student #1.  Ms. Threet recused herself from this vote as she had previously met the Parent 
of Student #1 and was aware of the student/situation.  Board Members Coonerty and Thompson 
abstained from this vote as they were not present for the Appeal Hearing of Student #1.   


2. MSP (Perez-Granados/Shonick) 4-0-3, the Board of Education upheld the denial of the Inter-District 
Transfer for Student #2.  Board Members Coonerty, Thompson and Vestal abstained from this vote as 
they were not present for the Appeal Hearing for Student #2. 
 


Agenda Changes 
Board Recording Secretary Lentz provided revised agendas to: 1) list the Expulsions that are being reported on 
in Closed Session as numbers 29-16-17 and 30-16-17; 2) delete Item 8.1.7.3.7. Contract: Gateway School – 255 
Swift Street, Santa Cruz, CA.  This items were previously corrected for the electronic agenda and board book, 
but were missed in the edits of the hard copy items.  MSP (Perez-Granados/Threet) 7-0, the Board of 
Education approved moving Item 8.3.2. Staff Report: Bond Update – Soquel and Harbor High School Pool 
Projects and Harbor High School Field Project to immediately follow Item 8.2.2.2. Vote on Expulsion 30-16-17. 
 


PUBLIC COMMENTS 
Community supporter Dr. Logsdon had the opportunity to befriend many folks at Dominican Hospital during 
his recent stay and heard many appreciative comments regarding Santa Cruz City Schools.  The district has a 
great deal of support in the community.  Outgoing GSCFT President Kirschen commented that tonight marks 
his final Board Meeting in an official capacity.  As he retires, Mr. Kirschen expressed his appreciation for forty 
amazing, engaging and rewarding years of service in one capacity or another at Santa Cruz City Schools.  Mr. 
Kirschen expressed particular admiration and gratitude for this board and administration, his colleagues and 
all the students who have touched his life. 


9 of 428







 


 


 
SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT 


Superintendent Munro  
BOARD MEMBERS’ REPORTS 


Board Members’ Reports 
Board Member Shonick is pleased to learn that Santa Cruz City Schools will receive one-time funds in the 
approximate amount of $1 million which might be used to provide curriculum development for Common Core 
subjects.  In the future, Trustee Shonick hopes to discuss possible expenditures for the development of 
curriculum of History and Social Science. 
 
Board Member Threet had the pleasure of attending the ceremony for the renaming of the Soquel High School 
Softball Field to the JR Blinkenberg Memorial Field.  It was a heartwarming ceremony attended by 
approximately 85 people. 
 
Board Member Coonerty passed on a recommendation made by a community member to have a recognition 
ceremony for the many outstanding scholarships received by our graduating seniors each year.  Dr. Coonerty 
expressed concern that the Santa Cruz City Council meeting yesterday evening only focused on the difficulties 
of low-income families to find affordable housing in our community.  Dr. Coonerty feels that middle-income 
wage earners are also experiencing great difficulty finding a place to reside in our area.  Dr. Coonerty 
expressed her great satisfaction that Santa Cruz City Schools is making significant progress in improvements 
for under-served student populations with the limited funds this district receives through the Local Control 
Funding Formula (LCFF).  Dr. Coonerty would also like to explore using one-time funds to develop curriculum 
for Common Core History and Social Studies.  
 
Board President’s Report 
Board President Tracy-Proulx expressed her appreciation to outgoing GSCFT President Kirschen and thanked 
him for his service to our students, employees and community. 
 


APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
1. MSP (Coonerty/Threet) 7-0, the Board of Education approved the Minutes of the Regular Meeting on 


June 14, 2017, including an addition to the minutes to reflect Dr. Coonerty’s request to Superintendent 
Munro to provide information on how the determination is made to use an outside consultant vs. 
district personnel to provide an Individual Education Evaluation for Special Education students.  
(Consent Agenda) 


 
Consent Agenda 
Board Members Shonick, Coonerty and Threet had questions regarding the quote from vendor OnPoint for 
demonstration classroom furniture contained in Item 8.1.3. Purchase Orders, Quotes and Bids.   GSCFT Vice 
President Ballaban also had questions regarding this item.  Mr. Gaffney, Mr. Miller and Superintendent Munro 
provided the requested information.  Mr. Shonick expressed his interest in leasing the furniture instead of 
purchasing the furniture.  Board Member Vestal moved approval of the Consent Agenda, consisting of: Item 
8.1.1. Personnel Actions – Certificated; Item 8.1.2. Personnel Actions – Classified; Item 8.1.3. Purchase Orders, 
Quotes and Bids; Item 8.1.4. Warrant Register; Item 8.1.5. Budget Transfers; Item 8.1.6. Disposition of Surplus 
Property; Item 8.1.7.1. Agreement Renewal: Soquel High School Resource Officer Contract for 2017-18; Item 
8.1.7.2.1. Contract: Educational Services/Special Education-Balance for Kids; Item 8.1.7.2.2. Contract: 
Educational Services/Special Education-Easter Seals; Item 8.1.7.2.3. Agreement for Professional Services: 
Educational Services/Special Education-Rachel M. Haven, Independent Education Evaluation; Item 8.1.7.3.1. 


10 of 428







 


 


Agreement Amendment: Business Services-Belli Architects Group: Branciforte MS Special Education Portable; 
Item 8.1.7.3.2. Agreement Amendment: Business Services-Bridges to Kinder; Item 8.1.7.3.3. Contract: Business 
Services-Applied Materials & Engineering: Water Intrusion Analysis @ 536 Palm Street, Santa Cruz, CA; Item 
8.1.7.3.4. Consultant Service Agreement: Business Services-Jerene Lacey: assistance with Finance Office 
operations; Item 8.1.7.3.5. Contract: Business Services-Palace Business Solutions: Piggyback contract for 
office/classroom supplies; Item 8.1.7.3.6. Contract: Business Services-California Premier Restoration: Harbor 
HS Poolhouse abatement work; Item 8.1.8. Change Order: DeLaveaga Shade Structure; Item 8.1.9. Board 
Policy 1312.3 Uniform Complaint Policy.  Board Member Threet seconded the motion.  The motion was passed 
by roll call vote, as follows: 
Roll Call Vote: Coonerty – Yes Perez-Granados – Yes  Shonick – Yes  Thompson – Yes 
  Threet – Yes  Tracy-Proulx – Yes  Vestal – Yes 
 
8.2 Closed Session Actions 


1. The Board of Education conferred regarding the properties at 255 Swift Street and 133 Mission 
Street in Santa Cruz, CA. 


2. The Board of Trustees heard an update regarding Public Employee 
Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Complaint. 


3. The Board of Trustees heard information on Expulsions 29-16-17 and 30-16-17 to prepare for a 
vote on these matters later this evening in Open Session. 


4. The Board of Trustees took action on Certificated, Classified, and Management leaves, 
retirements, resignations, and appointments. 


 
 Vote on Expulsions 


1. MSP (Coonerty/Perez-Granados) 6-0-1, the Board of Education approved Expulsion 29-16-17 as 
submitted.  Dr. Thompson abstained from this vote. 


2. MSP (Coonerty/Perez-Granados) 5-1-1, the Board of Education approved Expulsion 30-16-17 as 
submitted.  Ms. Threet voted no.  Dr. Thompson abstained from this vote. 


 
ITEMS of BUSINESS to be TRANSACTED and/or DISCUSSED 


8.3.2. Staff Report/New Business: Bond Update – Soquel and Harbor HS Pool Projects; Harbor HS Field 
 Mr. Gaffney introduced Mr. Stu Isaac of the Isaac Sports Group to report to the Trustees on this 


matter.  Mr. Isaac conducted research in the community during the dates of June 6 through June 8, 
2017.  His report included: the goals of the study; the process for gathering information; community 
needs, goals and opportunities; 40 meter pool designs and configurations; 50 meter pool designs and 
configurations; facility amenities and support spaces for 40 meter vs. 50 meter pools at both Soquel 
and Harbor High Schools; costing process; construction cost estimates; cost reductions and project 
support options; next steps.  Board Members asked questions, made comments and discussed the 
presentation with Mr. Isaac.   


 
Superintendent Munro thanked Mr. Isaac for this comprehensive report.  The Superintendent reported 
that, after careful consideration, her recommendation to the Trustees is to proceed with the 
construction of two new 40 meter pools – one at Harbor High School and one at Soquel High School.  
The Superintendent feels that the construction of a 50 meter pool and a teaching pool exceed the 
budgets that have been set aside for these projects, and rely on projections from outside agencies for 
revenue commitments.  Superintendent Munro is not comfortable taking chances with the resources 
that must provide for all facility needs for our students.  The district has identified facility needs of over 
$300 million and the bonds proceeds will provide just over $200 million.  There are many projects to be 


11 of 428







 


 


considered.  The 40 meter pools are larger than the district originally anticipated building and will 
create opportunities for both our students and our community.  Superintendent Munro shared that 
professional workshops/organizations are encouraging school districts to prepare for another 
recession, and Santa Cruz City Schools is experiencing declining enrollment.   Board President Tracy-
Proulx noted that although this report originally was noted as a staff report, action could be taken by 
the Trustees tonight since the Superintendent has made a recommendation. 


 
 Public Comments: 
 Harbor High School Principal Runeare advocated for 40 meter pools at both Soquel and Harbor High 


Schools.  As the principal of a high school in an open enrollment district, Ms. Runeare is concerned that 
building a 50 meter pool at one location sends a message to the public.  The 50 meter pool will better 
serve private organizations, but a 40 meter pool at both sites will more than serve the needs of 
students at both sites, and will more equitably serve our community.  A member of a private swim club 
program advocated for two 40 meter pools.  These facilities will serve the needs of students, which is 
the first priority of the district, and will also better serve the private clubs in the area.  The 50 meter 
pool is not necessary for this community.  Another Harbor High School parent noted that many families 
of grade eight students discuss the pros and cons of each available high school program – and families 
expect equitable athletic facilities at each site.   A parent expressed concern about declining 
enrollment and encouraged the Trustees to act swiftly to address the pool and field projects at Harbor 
High School to retain students at local public schools.  Harbor High School Athletic Director Hollis 
O’Brien expressed support for Superintendent Munro’s recommendation of two 40 meter pools.  Santa 
Cruz City Schools needs to plan for equity for all – Mr. O’Brien does not feel that Harbor High School 
athletes are interested in a 50 meter pool.  Soquel High School does not have a theater and many other 
facility needs.  Mr. O’Brien also expressed concern with the revenue projections in Mr. Isaac’s 
presentation and encouraged caution with expenditures.  Educator Jason Robertson advocated for two 
40 meter pools and equity of facilities at both high schools.  Soquel High School Atlansky advocated for 
two 40 meter pools at both Soquel and Harbor High Schools.  Soquel High School is the only 
comprehensive high school in the district without a theater, and we want to have funds for this project 
as well.  A private Santa Cruz Swimming Club Coach said he looks forward to the development of two 
40 meter pools at both sites and feels this will best serve both students and the community.  The 
Coach expressed concern that the deck space presented in the report tonight is not large enough to 
host swim meets and should be larger to adequately accommodate the equipment and the people 
needed to host a meet.  A warm water therapy pool will not fit well into a public school space.  PVUSD 
Nurse Kathleen Kilpatrick feels that the therapy pool is important and will provide value to the district.  
Examine your program and needs before making a decision about the warm water therapy pool.  
Superintendent Munro shared that our students who require the warm water pool currently have 
access at the local 24 Hour Fitness facility in Santa Cruz. 


 
 Following further discussion by the Board Members, Ms. Vestal moved approval of the construction of 


a 40 meter pool at Soquel High School and a 40 meter pool at Harbor High School.  Dr. Perez-Granados 
seconded the motion.  Ms. Threet made a friendly amendment to proceed with the 40 meter pool at 
Soquel High School and provide a 6 month timeline for the district to explore the possibility of 
community funding for either a 50 meter pool or a warm water therapy pool at Harbor High School.  
The amendment was not accepted by motion maker Vestal.  The Board of Trustees approved the 
construction of a 40 meter pool at each site with a vote of 5-2.  Ms. Threet and Dr. Perez-Granados 
voted no. 


 


12 of 428







 


 


 Recess:  Board President Tracy-Proulx called for a short recess at 9:22 p.m. 
 Reconvene: Board President Tracy Proulx reconvened this meeting at 9:26 p.m. 
 Note: Dr. Alisun exited the meeting via teleconference at 9:26 p.m. 
 
 Mr. Miller reported on the Harbor High School Field projects.  The projected estimated total cost of the 


renovation of the Track and Field Stadium, the Volleyball Courts and East Track Event Plaza, the 
Softball Fields and improvements to the Baseball Fields at $9,877,934.01.   Mr. Miller provided a 
schematic drawing showing the preferred concept for these renovations/improvements.  The 
projected timeline to complete the projects is December 2018.   Following Trustee comments, 
questions and discussion, the Board of Education thanked Mr. Miller for the information.  No actions 
were taken by the Board of Education regarding this matter. 


 
8.3.1. Staff Report: Facilities Services – Groundskeeping Update 
 Mr. Miller reported to the Board of Education.  The district consists of approximately 170 acres.  


Currently the district employs five (5) groundskeepers to maintain our sites.  Maintenance is focused 
on improving site curb appeal and playfields.  Pest management strategy revolves around prevention 
through sanitation and mechanical and physical controls.  Pesticides that pose the least possible hazard 
are used as a last line of defense to protect health and safety.  The district uses a five (5) layer 
approach to the control of weeds: biological (goats); physical (weed pulling and mowing); cultural 
(modifying irrigation, tolerating non-harmful weeds, aerating, etc.); chemical exempt (clove oil, 
vinegar); chemical non-exempt (3 gallons of diluted chemical a year over our 170 acres of property).  


 
 Public Comments: Project Pollinate Director Glover feels that the presentation by Mr. Miller is a great 


start for the district, but hopes the district will work towards the elimination of chemicals on school 
properties in order to protect both students and employees.  Project Pollinate would be excited to 
work with the district to provide alternate solutions.  Project Pollinate Member Goss also advocated 
for the elimination of chemicals at Santa Cruz City Schools and offered to utilize his education and 
experience to help the district work towards this end.  Another speaker shared the story of the ban of 
glyphosate in Pajaro Valley Unified School District, and urged Santa Cruz City Schools Trustees to seek 
ways to eliminate the use of this product.  PVUSD School Nurse Kathleen Kilpatrick encouraged the 
Trustees to continue to seek data and explore alternative solutions.  


 
 Following Trustee questions, comments and discussion, the Board of Education thanked Mr. Miller for 


this information.  This report was informational in nature, and no actions were taken by the Board of 
Education regarding this matter. 


 
8.3.3. New Business: Belli Architectural Group – Amendment Agreement for Soquel & Harbor HS Pool 


Projects 
 Based on the Board’s approval earlier in the meeting of a 40 meter pool at Soquel High School and a 40 


meter pool at Harbor High School, Mr. Gaffney recommends amending the agreement to specify the 
construction of 40 meter pools.  MSP (Shonick/Perez-Granados) 6-0, the Board of Education approved 
the agreement amendment. 


  
8.3.4. New Business: Approve Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) 2017-18 
 Superintendent Munro provided information on the Local Control Accountability Plan and 


recommended approval for the 2017-18 LCAP.  Following Board Members questions, comments and 
discussion, MSP (Vestal/Coonerty) 6-0, the Board of Education approved the 2017-18 LCAP.  


13 of 428







 


 


 
 
 
8.3.5. New Business: Adopt Santa Cruz City Schools Budget 2017-18 
 Mr. Gaffney and his team made some adjustments to the budget documents based on comments from 


the Board at the previous meeting in order to make the budget easier to read and understand.   Mr. 
Gaffney also made modifications to deferred maintenance funds, building funds, and cafeteria funds.  
Per Trustee request, Mr. Gaffney has received data from School Services of California regarding the 
Santa Cruz City Schools contribution to the cafeteria funds as compared to approximately 25 other 
districts in California.  The Business Services team will study this data and provide information to the 
Board of Education at a later date.  Mr. Gaffney recommends approval of the SCCS 2017-18 Budget.  
MSP (Perez-Granados/Coonerty) 6-0, the Board of Education approved the SCCS 2017-18 Budget. 


 
9. Adjournment of Meeting 


As there was no further business for the Open Session Meeting, Board President Tracy-Proulx 
adjourned this meeting at 10:48 p.m. 


 
Board Meeting Schedule Information 


1. The Regular Meeting on August 23, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 
 


 
 
 
 


 


* For more details about this meeting, please visit our district website and listen to the meeting 
recording: 


 
 http://www.sccs.santacruz.k12.ca.us/about-us/board-of-education/agendas-a-minutes.html  
 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Kris Munro, Superintendent     Deb Tracy-Proulx, President 
Santa Cruz City Schools     Board of Education 


14 of 428



http://www.sccs.santacruz.k12.ca.us/about-us/board-of-education/agendas-a-minutes.html

http://www.sccs.santacruz.k12.ca.us/about-us/board-of-education/agendas-a-minutes.html





AGENDA ITEM:   8.1.1 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 


  


  


  


AGENDA ITEM:                    Certificated Personnel Actions 


  


DATE:                                   August 23, 2017 


  


FROM:                                  Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources 


  


THROUGH:                          Kris Munro, Superintendent 


  


  


  


  


RECOMMENDATION: 


We recommend the Board of Trustees approve the certificated personnel actions as 


submitted. 


  


  


BACKGROUND: 


The attached certificated personnel actions are submitted in accordance with District policy, 


California Education Code, and the negotiated contract.  


  


  


  


  


  


  


  


  


  


  


  


  


  


  


  


  


15 of 428







AGENDA ITEM:   8.1.1 


 


2017-2018 APPOINTMENTS: 


  


Certificated: 


  


Antonia Astone, 1.0 English Teacher at Harbor High.  Antonia’s educational background 


includes a BA in English from UC Santa Barbara.  Antonia holds a Clear Single Subject 


Teaching Credential for English and Introductory General Science and a BCLAD 


Authorization for Spanish.  Her status is Probationary 1 and she has twenty-two years of 


teaching experience. 


  


Lori Blair, 1.0 Resource Specialist at Santa Cruz High.  Lori’s educational background 


includes a BA in Liberal Studies and French from Fresno State University.  Lori holds a 


Preliminary Education Specialist Instruction Credential for Mild to Moderate Disabilities, an 


Autism Spectrum Disorder Authorization and an English Learners Authorization.  Her status 


is Probationary 1 and she has one year of teaching experience. 


  


Kathleen Burke, 1.0 Newcomer Teacher at Gault Elementary and Branciforte Middle.  


Kathleen’s educational background includes a BS in Education of the Hearing Impaired from 


Trenton State College (New Jersey) and an MA in Teaching English to Speakers of Other 


Languages from the Monterey Institute of International Studies.  Kathleen holds a Clear 


Single Subject Teaching Credential for Spanish and an English Learners Authorization.  Her 


status is Probationary 1 and she has twenty years of teaching experience. 


  


Lauren Crosser, .80 Core Teacher at Branciforte Middle.  Lauren’s educational background 


includes a BA in Sociology from UC Santa Barbara and an MA in Education from UC Santa 


Cruz.  Lauren holds a Preliminary Single Subject Teaching Credential for Social Science and 


an English Learners Authorization.  Her status is Temporary and she completed her student 


teaching at Harbor High. 


  


John Daniels, 1.0 Resource Specialist at Branciforte Middle.  John’s educational background 


includes a BA in Psychology from Burlington College (Vermont).  John holds a Level II 


Education Specialist Instruction Credential for Mild to Moderate Disabilities, an Autism 


Spectrum Disorder Authorization and a CLAD Authorization.  His status is Probationary 1 


and he has eighteen years of teaching experience. 


  


Faith Delgado, 1.0 3rd Grade Teacher at DeLaveaga Elementary.  Faith’s educational 


background includes a BA in Modern Literature and an MA in Education from UC Santa Cruz.  


Faith holds a Preliminary Multiple Subject Teaching Credential, a Child Development Site 


16 of 428







AGENDA ITEM:   8.1.1 


Supervisor Permit and an English Learners Authorization.  Her status is Temporary and she 


has one year teaching experience. 


 


2017-2018 APPOINTMENTS: 


  


Certificated (continued): 


 


Casey Jacobson, 1.0 Math Teacher at Soquel High.  Casey’s educational background includes 


a BS in Mathematics from Montana State University.  Casey holds a Preliminary Single 


Subject Teaching Credential for Mathematics and an Emergency CLAD Authorization.  His 


status is Probationary 1 and he completed his student teaching at Washington Middle 


School (Missoula, MT). 


 


Patrick Marks, 1.0 Special Day Class Teacher at Soquel High.  Patrick’s educational 


background includes a BA in Psychology from CSU Channel Islands.  Patrick will hold a Short 


Term Staff Permit for an Education Specialist for Mild to Moderate Disabilities and an 


English Learners Authorization.  His status is Probationary 0 and he will be enrolling in an 


intern program January 2018. 


  


Molly Moyer, 1.0 Kindergarten/1st Grade Teacher at Gault Elementary.  Molly’s educational 


background includes a BA in Peace, Justice and Conflict Studies from Goshen College 


(Indiana).  Molly holds a Clear Multiple Subject Teaching Credential and English Learners 


Authorization.  Her status is Temporary and she has six years of teaching experience. 


 


Larisa Owechko, 1.0 English/Leadership Teacher at Santa Cruz High.  Larisa’s educational 


background includes a BA in English Literature from Reed College (Oregon) and an MA in 


Education from UC Santa Barbara.  Larisa holds a Preliminary Single Subject Teaching 


Credential for English and an English Learners Authorization.  Her status is Probationary 1 


and she completed her student teaching at Santa Barbara High School. 


 


Benjamin Rubin, 1.0 5th Grade Teacher at Westlake Elementary.  Benjamin’s educational 


background includes a BS in Psychology from UC San Diego and an MA in Education from 


CSU San Marcos.  Benjamin holds a Preliminary Multiple Subject Teaching Credential and an 


English Learners Authorization.  His status is Temporary and he completed his student 


teaching at Woodland Park Middle School (San Marcos). 


 


Ziesel Saunders, .40 1st Grade Teacher at Gault Elementary.  Ziesel’s educational 


background includes a BA in Women’s Studies from UC Santa Cruz and an MA in Business 


Administration from SJSU.  Ziesel holds a Clear Multiple Subject Teaching Credential and an 


17 of 428







AGENDA ITEM:   8.1.1 


English Learners Authorization.  Her status is Temporary and she has twelve years of 


teaching experience. 


 


 


 


2017-2018 APPOINTMENTS: 


  


Certificated (continued): 


 


Stella Schmitt, 1.0 2nd Grade Teacher at Gault Elementary.  Stella’s educational background 


includes a BA in Business Management Economics from UC Santa Cruz.  Stella holds a Clear 


Multiple Subject Teaching Credential and an English Learners Authorization.  Her status is 


Temporary and she has seven years of teaching experience. 


 


Karin Wanless, 1.0 RTI Coordinator at Branciforte Middle.  Karin’s educational background 


includes a BA in Latin American Studies and an MA in Education from UC Santa Cruz.  Karin 


holds a Clear  Multiple Subject Teaching Credential and a BCLAD Authorization for Spanish.  


Her status is Probationary 1 and she has six years of teaching experience. 


 


 


Athletic Coaches: 


 


Alfredo Barrientos, Spirit Advisor, Harbor High School, year round season. 


 


Douglas Chase, Cross Country Coach, Soquel High School, fall season. 


 


Sarladine Connally, JV Football Coach, Harbor High School, fall season. 


 


Christopher Iniquez, Boys’ Varsity Water Polo, Harbor High School, fall season. 


 


Dustin Leffew, JV Football Assistant Coach, Harbor High School, fall season. 


 


Tyanna Newman, Varsity Football Assistant Coach, Harbor High School, fall season. 


 


Hollis O’Brien, Girls’ Varsity Tennis Coach, Harbor High School, fall season. 


 


Jake Soares, Girls’ Varsity Water Polo Coach, Harbor High School, fall season. 


 


Jerry Woodward, Girls’ Freshman Volleyball Coach, Santa Cruz High School, fall season. 


 


18 of 428







 


AGENDA ITEM 8.1.2 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT           


 


AGENDA ITEM:        Classified Personnel Actions 


  


MEETING DATE:      August 23, 2017 


 


FROM:                   Molly Parks, Asst. Superintendent, Human Resources 


  


THROUGH:            Kris Munro, Superintendent   


  


  


RECOMMENDATION: 


To approve the classified personnel actions as submitted. 


  


  
BACKGROUND: 


The attached lists of classified personnel actions are submitted in accordance with the District, 


SCCCE Agreement and the Merit Rules. 


  
  
  
  


  


  


  


  


  


  
  
  
  


  


  


  


   
  


 


19 of 428







 


AGENDA ITEM 8.1.2 


CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEE ACTIONS 


  


Reviewed by Classified Personnel: Kenee Houser 8/16/17 


 


 •Employment Actions Concerning Regular Assignments• 


Probationary (New Hires or Temporary Employees Made Regular): 


Bennett, Jacqueline, School Health Clerk - DL, 3hrs/9mos, effective 8/22/17 


Franks, Dorothy, School Health Clerk - BV, 3hrs/9mos, effective 8/22/17 


Garcia, Joanna, Secretary III - HH, 8 hrs/11 mos effective 8/14/17 


Gonzalez Espinoza, Fatima, Clerical Assistant - DL, 8hrs/9mos, effective 8/22/17 


Keenan, Mia, Translator/Interpreter - DO, 6hrs/9mos, effective 8/22/17 


Lazo, Irwing, Attendance Technician - BSS, 6hrs/9mos, effective 8/22/17 


Lazo, Irwing, School Health Clerk - BSS, 2hrs/9mos, effective 8/22/17 


Soto, MariaLouise, Campus Supervisor - BMS, 8hrs/9mos, effective 8/22/17 


Promotion: 


Lara, Christopher, from Custodian - SC, 8 hrs/12 mos to Sr. Custodian - MH, 8hrs/12 mos, 


effective 7/24/17 


Ruvalcaba, Braulio, from Custodian - SHS 8 hrs/12 mos to Head Custodian - HH, 8hrs/12mos, 


effective 7/24/17 


Slakey, Peggy, from School Health Clerk 3 hrs/9 mos to Secretary II, 6 hrs/10 mos, MH, effective 


8/16/17 


Wells, Jon, from Education Technology Specialist 8 hrs/11 mos to Lead Technology Specialist - IT 


- 8hrs/12mos, effective 8/1/17 


Voluntary Demotion:   


None 


Increase/Reduction in FTE - Months/Hours of Service: 


None 


Additional FTE/Position:  


None 


39-Mo Reinstatement: 


None 


39-Mo Reinstatement w/Increase in FTE:  


None 


20 of 428







 


AGENDA ITEM 8.1.2 


63-Mo Reinstatement: 


None 


Transfer / Reinstate:  


Olander-Tompkins, Katherine - from School Community Coordinator 8hrs/9mos to Attendance 


Technician 4hrs/9mos, School Health Clerk 3hrs/9mos, and School Community Coordinator 


1hr/9mos, BMS, effective 8/22/17 


Transfer W/Increase FTE: 


DeMarco, Roxana, from Instructional Technician-Elementary Intervention 3 hrs/9 mos to 


Instructional Technician 5 hrs/9 mos, WL, effective 8/22/17 


Gonzales, Elisa, School Community Coordinator from 4 hrs/10 mo - CIA to 6 hrs/9 mos BV, 


effective 8/22/17 


Hernandez, Madeline, Instructional Technician from MH 1.6 hrs/9 mos to SHS 5 hrs/9 mos 


Provisional Assignments (not to exceed 90 working days):  


None 


Leave of Absence:  


None 


Separation from Service: 


Barrientos, Luz, Translator/Interpreter - DO, 30hrs/9mo, Resignation, effective 8/15/17 


Ellis IV, Cassius, Instructional Specialist, Bank - SC, 4.5hrs/9mo, Resignation, effective 8/8/17 


Garcia, Karina, Learning Assistant - BM, 19hrs/9mos, Resignation, effective 7/31/17 


Kimble, Taylor, Instructional Tech IE & Yard Duty - WL, 15hrs/9mos, Resignation, effective 


8/15/17 


Valencia, Natalie, Secretary III - HH, 8hrs/10mo, Resignation, effective 8/1/17  


Wetzel, Dawn, Instructional Technician/PBS - HH, 5.2hrs/9mo, Resignation, effective 6/30/17  


Wolcott, Lauren, Instructional Technician/ASES - MH, 10hrs/9mo, Resignation, effective 8/2/17 


Retirement: 


Tuthill-Lewis, Carol, Food Service Worker - FS, 30hrs/9mo, effective 8/22/17 


Zamora, Beatris, Site Program Coordinator - CIA, 8hrs/12mo, effective 8/11/170 


 


•Limited Term Project (not to exceed 126 days)/Substitutes: • 


New EWA/Hourly Employees: 


Arevalo, Delmy, Temporary Sub Custodian - Site varies, eff 7/14/17 


Arrazola, Ashley, Temporary Learning Ass’t - DL, effective 4/19/17 


21 of 428







 


AGENDA ITEM 8.1.2 


Lei, Patrick, Temporary Substitute - Site varies, effective 7/21/17 


Nunez Lara, Luis, Temporary Sub Custodian - Site varies, eff  7/6/17 


Existing EWA/Hourly Employees:  


Barrientos, Vickie, School Community Coordinator - CIA, not to exceed  70hrs, 8/1/17 to 


8/31/17 


Beatton, Sheri, School Health Clerk - SS, not to exceed 15hrs, 8/7/17 to 9/30/17 


Bennett, Sarah, Career Development Specialist - TR, not to exceed 84hrs, 7/1/17 to 8/20/17 


Blyston, Jason, Grounds I - MO, not to exceed 24hrs, 6/22/17 to 6/30/17 


Blyston, Jason, Grounds I - MO, not to exceed 200hrs, 7/5/17 to 6/30/18 


Castaneda, Frances, School Bus Driver - TR, not to exceed 8hrs, 7/23/17 


Chen, Christine, School Health Clerk - SS, not to exceed 15hrs, 8/8/17 to 9/30/17 


Chisholm, James, System Support Specialist - IT, not to exceed 450hrs, 7/5/17 to 9/30/17 


Cross, Patricia, Student Data Technician - SPED, not to exceed 28hrs, 6/22/17 - 6/30/17 


Day-Smith, Jan, School Bus Driver - TR, not to exceed 9hrs, 6/14/17 to 6/19/17 


DeMarco, Roxana, Clerical Assistant - DL, not to exceed 3hrs, 6/6/17 


Fennell-Tortoledo, Alex, Senior Custodian - MO, not to exceed 40hrs, 7/22/17 


Flippo, Belynda, System Support Analyst-OT - IT, not to exceed 25hrs, 6/1/17 to 6/30/17 


Flippo, Belynda, System Support Analyst-OT - IT, not to exceed 50hrs, 7/1/17 to 10/31/17 


Gaona, Mireya, Learning Assistant-KRA - CIA, not to exceed 65hrs, 6/12/17 to 6/30/17 


Gonzales, Elisa, School Community Coordinator-CELDT phone calls - CIA, not to exceed 80hrs, 


8/1/17 to 8/31/17 


Jackson, Dwayne, School Bus Driver - TR, not to exceed 8hrs, 7/23/17 


Kianpour, Jacqueline, Clerical Assistant - DL, not to exceed 9hrs, 6/1/17 to 6/2/17 


Kianpour, Jacqueline, Clerical Assistant - HR, not to exceed 200hrs, 7/5/17 to 9/1/17 


Kianpour, Jacqueline, Clerical Assistant - PC, not to exceed 140hrs, 8/23/17 to 6/8/18  


Kinley, Diane, Teacher - Aug CELDT Testing - CIA, not to exceed 15hrs, 8/1/17 to 8/31/17 


Ledesma, Shane, Clerical Assistant - HR, not to exceed 200hrs, 7/5/17 to 9/1/17 


Linneman, Devon, Career Development Specialist - TR, not to exceed 60hrs, 7/1/17 to 8/20/17 


Mena, David, Custodian - BM, not to exceed 8hrs, 5/21/17 


Morris, Donald, System Support Specialist - IT, not to exceed 120hrs, 6/12/17 to 6/30/17  


Morris, Donald, System Support Specialist - IT, not to exceed 350hrs, 7/1/17 to 9/1/17 


Pizzica, Jessica, Student Data Technician - SE, not to exceed 10hrs, 6/22/17 to 6/30/17 


Sihler, Kris, School Bus Driver - TR, not to exceed 8hrs, 7/23/17  


22 of 428







 


AGENDA ITEM 8.1.2 


Silva-Robles, Fe, Translator, BM, not to exceed 15hrs, 5/1/17 to 6/15/17 


Silva-Robles, Fe, Translator, BM, not to exceed 10hrs, 5/1/17 to 6/15/17 


Smith, Jennifer, Accounting Technician - AC, not exceed 100hrs, 7/10/17 to 8/20/17 


Limited Term Retiree (not to exceed 960 hours per Government Code 21153): 


Cross, Patricia, Classified Substitute/Variable - Site and Dept. to vary, effective 6/22/17 


Peregrin, Sharon, Clerical Assistant - DL, not to exceed 8hrs, 6/7/17 to 6/8/17 


Phillipps, William, Warehouse Person - MO, not to exceed 17hrs, 6/23/17 to 6/30/17 


Routh, Patricia, Secretary II - BMS, not to exceed 40hrs, 6/2/17 to 6/30/17 


Out of Class: 


None 


Summer School:  


Alley, Mary, Food Service Worker, Summer Meal Program - FS, not to exceed 35hrs, 7/1/17 to 


8/11/17 


Ericksen, Cynthia, Food Service Worker, Summer Meal Program - FS, not to exceed 70hrs, 


7/1/17 to 8/11/17 


Guzman, Georgiana,  Food Service Worker, Summer Meal Program - FS, not to exceed 70hrs, 


7/1/17 to 8/11/17 


Hebert, Juliette,  Food Service Worker, Summer Meal Program - FS, not to exceed 90hrs, 7/1/17 


to 8/11/17 


Hubert, Fabrice, Instructional Tech Summer School - CIA, not to exceed 90hrs, 7/3/17 to 


8/14/17 


Jorgensen, Kimberly,  Food Service Worker, Summer Meal Program - FS, not to exceed 45hrs, 


7/1/17 to 8/11/17 


McCombie-Murray, Paula, ESY Instructional Technician, SPED, not to exceed 90hrs, 7/17/17 to 


8/11/17 


Medlen, Kristi, Instructional Technician/EI - CIA, not to exceed 110hrs, 7/3/17 to 8/11/17  


Medina, Hanna, Program Assistant, Summer School - CIA, not to exceed 130hrs, 7/3/17 to 


8/11/17 


Mitchell, Marjorie, ESY Instructional Technician, SPED, not to exceed 90hrs, 7/17/17 to 8/11/17 


Nganga-Edelson, Davin, Custodian, Summer School - CIA, not to exceed 132hrs, 7/3/17 to 


8/11/17 


Novak, Theresa, Instructional Technician-Intervention - CIA, not to exceed 120hrs, 7/3/17 to 


8/11/17  


23 of 428







 


AGENDA ITEM 8.1.2 


Robles Vazquez, Nereyda, Program Assistant, Summer School - CIA, not to exceed 150hrs, 


7/3/17 to 8/11/17 


Stocker, Christina, ESY Instructional Technician, SPED, not to exceed 90hrs, 7/17/17 to 8/11/17 


Tolentino, Angelica, ESY Instructional Technician, SPED, not to exceed 90hrs, 7/17/17 to 


8/11/17 


White, Christopher, Education Tech. Specialist - CIA, not to exceed 10hrs, 7/3/17 to 7/31/17 


 


•Employment Actions Concerning Exempt Assignments from the Classified Service• 


Stipend: 


None  


Playground Recess Coach, Yard Duty, Child Care: 


Carmichael, Catherine, Yard Duty - WL, not to exceed 30hrs, 5/15/17 to 6/8/17 


Jarosz, Amanda, Playground Recess Coach - WL, effective 8/22/17 


 


•Eligibility Lists Established• 


Attendance Technician 


Campus Supervisor 


Clerical Assistant  


Instructional Technician 


Instructional Technician- Life Lab 


Instructional Technician – PBS 


Lead Account Technician 


Library Media Services Assistant 


School Health Clerk 


Secretary II  


Secretary III  


Sr. Custodian 


Student Data Technician- SPED 


Translator/Interpreter 


 


 


 


 


 


 


24 of 428







POs over $2500 cover7 


AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.3 


    
 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Purchase Orders, Quotes and Bids  
 
MEETING DATE: August 23, 2017 
 
FROM:   Patrick Gaffney, Asst. Supt., Business Services 
 
THROUGH:    Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Board of Education approve the purchase orders, quotes and bids 
as submitted. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
A detailed report is attached, listing purchase orders, quotes and bids that require Board 
approval prior to release to vendors.  The following definitions are provided to clarify the 
differences between purchase orders, quotes and bids: 
 


Purchase Orders: For purchases routine in nature and over $2,500 but under the amount 
required for a quote. 


 
Quotes:  When purchases will be $6,500 to $15,000 for contracted work or 


$12,000 to $88,300 for materials/supplies, several vendors are 
contacted for written quotations.  This process, though not as rigorous 
as a bid, insures that the District has involved more than one vendor 
and will secure a competitive price. 


 
Bids:  A formal process including advertising to notify prospective bidders, 


distribution of written specification regarding the work or materials, 
and compliance with legal guidelines for bidding, must be followed for 
contracted work projected to cost $15,000 and over, or for materials 
and supplies in the sum of $88,300 or over.  Bids are solicited from a 
wide pool of prospective vendors, thus assuring that when the award is 
made to the lowest responsible bidder, the District receives the best 
price available. 


25 of 428







BOARD OF EDUCATION  
 


August 23, 2017 
 


PURCHASE ORDERS OVER $2500 


 
C:\USERS\BSSEC\DESKTOP\BOARDPAD 082317\POS OVER $2500 LIST.DOC  


Approved by:         Approval Date:  
 


    
PO/REQ 


NO. SITE 
DOLLAR 


AMOUNT VENDOR MATERIALS, SERVICES, ETC. 


17-00265 Transportation $7,800.00 Dieselworks Change Order to cover 
service/repairs to buses.  
Transportation – Home to 
School. 


17-00467 Special Ed $7,500.00 The Bay School Change Order to cover additional 
Aide assignment.  Special 
Education. 


17-01726 Special Ed $17,000.00 Settlement Change Order – Increase in 
identified parental 
reimbursements.  Special 
Education. 


17-05313 Transportation $5,934.00 Blue Water Sedans Change Order for Transportation 
services of Special Ed students – 
Insurance. 


17-05576 Ed Services $6,000.00 AVID Center Confirming for Payment – 
District Leadership professional 
development for Ann Mekis.  
Unrestricted. 


17-05620 CIA $13,904.00 ID Tech CSA for summer Computer 
Science camp.  Title I. 


17-05622 Superintendent $5,434.00 Fagen Friedman & 
Fulfrost 


Confirming for Payment – May 
invoice for Legal services.  
Unrestricted. 


17-05637 Westlake $26,934.00 SCCOE Outdoor Science camp.  
Donations. 


17-05638 Transportation $8,680.00 A-Z Bus Sales Confirming for Payment – Bus 21 
Lease payment for 4 months.  
Transportation – Special Ed. 


17-05639 Transportation $8,680.00 A-Z Bus Sales Confirming for Payment – Bus 22 
Lease payment for 4 months.  
Transportation – Home to 
School. 


17-05642 DeLaveaga $13,321.03 Kleinfelder Confirming for Payment – 
Consulting services on the Shade 
Structure project.  Elem. Bond. 


26 of 428







BOARD OF EDUCATION  
 


August 23, 2017 
 


PURCHASE ORDERS OVER $2500 


 
C:\USERS\BSSEC\DESKTOP\BOARDPAD 082317\POS OVER $2500 LIST.DOC  


Approved by:         Approval Date:  
 


PO/REQ 
NO. SITE 


DOLLAR 
AMOUNT VENDOR MATERIALS, SERVICES, ETC. 


17-05992 Harbor High $11,500.00 Ifland Engineers Confirming for Payment -
Surveying and Mapping services. 
Bond Measure A. 


17-05993 Soquel High $20,285.00 Ifland Engineers Confirming for Payment - 
Surveying and Mapping services. 
Bond Measure A. 


17-05998 Gault $13,194.45 Bartos Architecture Confirming for Payment -
Architect services – General.  
Bond Measure B. 


17-05999 Mission Hill $9,661.54 Bartos Architecture Confirming for Payment -
Architect services – General.  
Bond Measure A. 


17-05660 District Office $6,273.00 SCCOE Confirming for Payment – S4C 
Membership fees.  Unrestricted. 


17-06002 Santa Cruz High $29,350.00 Ifland Engineers Surveying and Mapping services. 
Bond Measure A. 


18-00060 Harbor High $8,451.57 AV Now Confirming for Payment - MPR 
Sound System.  Facility Use Fees. 


18-00072 Various $15,703.50 Great Minds Eureka Math.  Math Adoption. 
18-00073 Human Resources $10,000.00 Palace Business Open Order for Safety 


purchases.  Workers 
Comp/Safety Grant. 


18-00074 Human Resources $15,000.00 CA Dept of Justice Open Order for Fingerprinting 
processing.  Unrestricted. 


18-00075 Various $28,530.00 Curriculum Associates i-Ready Software licenses.  
Unrestricted. 


18-00076 Santa Cruz High $5,183.45 Coastal Enterprises PE Uniforms.  Facility Use Fees. 
18-00086 Harbor & Soquel 


High 
$14,897.92 Convergeone Change Order to cover extended 


computer warranties.  CTEIG. 
18-00099 Soquel High $2,797.03 Follett Pre-calculus math.  Lottery. 
18-00100 Curriculum $2,584.30 Follett Government textbooks.  Lottery. 
18-00115 Soquel High $6,030.05 Follett History textbooks.  Lottery. 
18-00132 Food Services $3,000.00 Farmer Bros. Open Order for drink supplies.  


Cafeteria Fund. 


     


27 of 428







BOARD OF EDUCATION  
 


August 23, 2017 
 


PURCHASE ORDERS OVER $2500 


 
C:\USERS\BSSEC\DESKTOP\BOARDPAD 082317\POS OVER $2500 LIST.DOC  


Approved by:         Approval Date:  
 


PO/REQ 
NO. SITE 


DOLLAR 
AMOUNT VENDOR MATERIALS, SERVICES, ETC. 


18-00141 Curriculum $84,445.00 Northwest Evaluation Web based program for Progress 
and Assessment reporting.  
Unrestricted. 


18-00153 Various $3,000.00 Dilbeck & Sons Misc. repairs as required.  
Ongoing and Major Maint. 


18-00159 Warehouse $6,454.71 Surtec Floor sealer, wax, cleaner.  
Unrestricted. 


18-00165 Various $20,000.00 Kone Elevator maintenance.  Ongoing 
& Major Maint. 


18-00168 Soquel High $10,396.35 Follett Calculus textbooks for AP 
students. Lottery. 


18-00169 Santa Cruz High $11,577.63 Follett Calculus textbooks for AP 
students.  Lottery 


18-00170 Curriculum $11,055.00 Houghton Mifflin Web Hosting fees – Reading and 
Phonics.  Unrestricted. 


18-00175 B40 SS $2,959.04 Palmer Hamilton Convert benches and linking 
mechanisms.  Capital Facilities 
Funds. 


18-00176 Santa Cruz High $5,084.93 Sundog Quality Products Fiberglass floating goals for 
water polo.  Insurance. 


18-00180 Various $12,300.00 Animal Damage 
Management 


Open Order for Rodent/Gopher 
control.  Unrestricted. 


18-00192 Ed Services $5,025.00 Document Tracking 
Services 


School Accountability Report 
card publishing and hosting.  
Unrestricted. 


18-00194 Facilities $10,000.00 Ewing Irrigation Open Order for Parts/Supplies.  
Unrestricted. 


18-00208 District Office $2,900.86 MailFinance Inc First year of a 60 month lease 
term for a Neopost Postage 
meter.  Unrestricted – Core 
Budget. 


18-00212 High Schools $12,880.00 Hart Floor Co. Refinish Gym floors.  Facility Use 
Fees. 


28 of 428







BOARD OF EDUCATION  
 


August 23, 2017 
 


PURCHASE ORDERS OVER $2500 


 
C:\USERS\BSSEC\DESKTOP\BOARDPAD 082317\POS OVER $2500 LIST.DOC  


Approved by:         Approval Date:  
 


PO/REQ 
NO. SITE 


DOLLAR 
AMOUNT VENDOR MATERIALS, SERVICES, ETC. 


18-00231 Facilities $4,695.00 Civic Permits Confirming for Payment – 
Annual Renewal fee for Permits 
program.  Ongoing and Major 
Maint. 


18-00232 Facilities $4,841.55 Schooldude.com Confirming for Payment – 
Annual Renewal fee for the 
Work Order system.  Ongoing 
and Major Maint. 


18-00245 Superintendent $6,273.00 SCCOE Membership fees S4C.  
Unrestricted. 


18-00246 Soquel High $5,484.18 Convergeone Equipment for Coding class.  
CTEIG. 


18-00247 Harbor High $5,484.18 Convergeone Equipment for Coding class.  
CTEIG. 


18-00248   
    


Harbor High $32,442.76 Convergeone Computers, Charge cart for 
Coding class.  CTEIG. 


18-00253 Superintendent $40,000.00 Lozano Smith Prepay to Trust for discounted 
Legal services.  Unrestricted. 


18-00254 High Schools $7,964.21 Isaac Sports Group CSA for Planning services for 
Swimming Pools.  Bond Measure 
A. 


18-00263 Finance $470,355.00 So. Peninsula Region 
Insurance 


Confirming for Payment – 
Liability Insurance Premium.  
Unrestricted - Core Budget. 


18-00265 Middle Schools $3,738.81 Hillyard Floor care products.  Facility Use 
Fees. 


18-00276 Transportation $4,340.00 A-Z Bus Sales Lease of Bus #22 – Remaining 
two (2) months of a six (6)month 
lease. Transportation – Home to 
School. 


18-00295 Superintendent $14,061.00 CSBA Confirming for Payment - Annual 
Membership.  Unrestricted. 


18-00296 Superintendent $6,045.00 CSBA Confirming for Payment - 
Manual Maintenance and 
GAMUT Online.  Unrestricted. 


29 of 428







BOARD OF EDUCATION  
 


August 23, 2017 
 


PURCHASE ORDERS OVER $2500 


 
C:\USERS\BSSEC\DESKTOP\BOARDPAD 082317\POS OVER $2500 LIST.DOC  


Approved by:         Approval Date:  
 


PO/REQ 
NO. SITE 


DOLLAR 
AMOUNT VENDOR MATERIALS, SERVICES, ETC. 


18-00297 Facilities $10,525.00 Colbi Technologies Confirming for Payment – Bond 
Project multi-yr accounting 
software.  Bond Measures A & B. 


18-00298 Finance $10,000.00 Jerene Lacey CSA for Financial consulting.  
Unrestricted – Core Budget. 


18-00302 Facilities $6,197.90 Staples Business 
Advantage 


Floor Cleaner and Extractor.  
Ongoing and Major Maint. 


18-00314 Soquel High $22,750.95 Stewart Signs Color LED display, DSA Drawing 
& Welding inspection.  
Donations. 


18-00315 Finance $60,386.00 Mission Hill Bldg Owners 
Assoc. 


Quarterly Association dues.  Core 
Budget – 133 Mission. 


18-00316 Finance $16,500.00 School Innovations Confirming for Payment – 
Program Advisory services.  
Unrestricted – Core Budget. 


18-00317 District Wide $6,800.00 Ray Morgan Co. Open Order to cover the cost of 
staples for the copiers.  
Unrestricted – Core Budget. 


18-00320 Facilities $3,967.24 Kubota Leasing Lease payments for 17/18 for 
the Kubota tractor.  Ongoing and 
Major Maint. 


18-00323 Delaveaga, Gault $21,959.25 Santa Cruz Restaurant 
Equipment 


2 Crescor Rethermolizing ovens 
for Food Service.  Building Fund 
– Elementary. 


18-00347 District Wide $11,987.45 Blackboard Inc. Implementation and Data 
migration for District Mass 
Notification system.  
Unrestricted. 


18-00353 B40 SS $3,887.00 Dilbeck and Sons Installation of new Vinyl Tack 
Board in one room.  Building 
Fund. 


18-00354 Bay View $9,753.00 Dilbeck and Sons Frame and add 8 x 8 office walls. 
18-00355 Santa Cruz High $4,337.87 Albert’s Plumbing Repair of water line in Boiler 


room.  Ongoing and Major 
Maint. 


30 of 428







BOARD OF EDUCATION  
 


August 23, 2017 
 


PURCHASE ORDERS OVER $2500 


 
C:\USERS\BSSEC\DESKTOP\BOARDPAD 082317\POS OVER $2500 LIST.DOC  


Approved by:         Approval Date:  
 


PO/REQ 
NO. SITE 


DOLLAR 
AMOUNT VENDOR MATERIALS, SERVICES, ETC. 


18-00356 District Office $9,580.00 Dilbeck and Sons New wall installed in room 312.  
Building Fund. 


18-00360 DeLaveaga $3,000.00 Palace Business Open Order for Instructional 
supplies.  LCFF. 


18-00368 Harbor High $4,754.90 BFW Publishers AP Statistics textbooks.  Lottery. 
18-00369 District Wide $6,000.00 Illuminate Education Illuminate ISI training.  


Unrestricted – Core Budget. 
18-00375 District Wide $90,000.00 AT&T Open Order to cover Gigaman 


Fiber Optic Network.  
Unrestricted – Core Budget. 


18-00385 Various $42,000.00 Sycamore Farms Goats for Weed Abatement.  
Ongoing and Major Maint. 


18-00388 B40 Middle $4,407.00 Grade Break Engineering Asphalt overlay work.  Deferred 
Maint. 


18-00405 Mission Hill $10,000.00 Palace Business Open Order for Instructional 
supplies.  Unrestricted. 


18-00406 Finance $15,000.00 So. Peninsula Region 
Insurance 


Liability Insurance deductibles.  
Unrestricted – Core Budget. 


18-00407 District Wide $12,500.00 Wenger & Associates Consulting services regarding the 
new Student Information 
system.  Unrestricted. 


18-00408 Adult Ed $76,480.00 American Modular DSA approved Modular 
classroom.  Insurance. 


18-00421 CIA $11,500.00 Rosetta Stone License renewal for online 
access, Language lessons.  Title I.  


18-00422 District Wide $25,120.00 AT& T Mobility Cell phone service.  Unrestricted, 
Cafeteria Fund, Transportation, 
Ongoing and Major Maint., Title 
I. 


18-00449 Finance $9,875.00 DecisionInsite Enrollment Projections.  Capital 
Facilities Fund. 


18-00451 Harbor High $12,637.39 BSN Sports Football uniforms.  Measure O. 
18-00453 Mission Hill $2,801.00 Virco Student chairs.  Facility Use Fees. 


31 of 428







BOARD OF EDUCATION  
 


August 23, 2017 
 


PURCHASE ORDERS OVER $2500 


 
C:\USERS\BSSEC\DESKTOP\BOARDPAD 082317\POS OVER $2500 LIST.DOC  


Approved by:         Approval Date:  
 


PO/REQ 
NO. SITE 


DOLLAR 
AMOUNT VENDOR MATERIALS, SERVICES, ETC. 


18-00457 District Office $6,207.15 Convergeone Seven new Computers and 
Monitors for District office 
employees. Unrestricted.  


18-00460 Curriculum $4,045.09 CDWG Server, hard drives, memory.  
Unrestricted. 


18-00474 High Schools $16,284.00 Vintage Contractors Estimated cost for Tennis Court 
repairs.  Deferred Maint. 


18-00486 B40 SS $19,075.11 Enterprise For the purchase of a 2014 
Express Passenger Van.  MAA. 


     
     
     
     
     
     
     


 


32 of 428







BOARD OF EDUCATION  
 


AUGUST 23, 2017 
 


PURCHASE ORDERS OVER $2500 
 


 


 
C:\USERS\BSSEC\DESKTOP\BOARDPAD 082317\POS OVER $2500 LIST ADDENDUM.DOC  


Approved by:         Approval Date:  
 


 
PO/REQ 


NO. SITE 
DOLLAR 


AMOUNT VENDOR MATERIALS, SERVICES, ETC. 


41959 Special Ed $977,207.00 The ABRITE Organization NPA for specialized one-to-one 
aides, behavior intervention 
/supervision, consultation, 
training and assessment services 
to 22 students during the 2017-
2018 school year.  Special Ed. 


41960 Special Ed. $6,960.00 Maria E.A. Ballard, MPT APS to provide direct and/or 
collaborative physical therapy 
services to a student during the 
2017-18 school year. Special Ed. 


41961 Special Ed. $375,500.00 The Bay School NPS for specialized support 
services and basic education  
programs to 4 students during 
the 2017-18 school yr. Special Ed 


41962 Special Ed. $68,550.00 The Bridge School NPS for specialized support 
services and a basic educational 
program for a student during the 
2017-2018 school yr.  Special Ed. 


41963 Special Ed. $127,225.00 Heritage Schools, Inc. Out-of-State NPS for basic ed, 
mental health counseling and 
residential placement services 
for a student during the 2017-18 
school year. Special Education. 


41964 Special Ed. $114,753.33 The May Institute, Inc. NPA to provide intensive 
individual and behavior 
intervention services to a 
student during the 2017-2018 
school year.  Special Education. 


41965 Special Ed. $50,000.00 Medical Billing 
Technologies 


Private Corp. Contract renewal 
for SCCS Medi-Cal billing services 
during the 2017-18 school year.  
Medi-Cal Grant Funds. 


33 of 428







BOARD OF EDUCATION  
 


AUGUST 23, 2017 
 


PURCHASE ORDERS OVER $2500 
 


 


 
C:\USERS\BSSEC\DESKTOP\BOARDPAD 082317\POS OVER $2500 LIST ADDENDUM.DOC  


Approved by:         Approval Date:  
 


PO/REQ 
NO. SITE 


DOLLAR 
AMOUNT VENDOR MATERIALS, SERVICES, ETC. 


41966 Special Ed. $2,500.00 Pediatric Therapy Center  NPA for an OT IEE and physical 
therapy/consultation services for 
2 students who requires these 
services during the 2017-2018 
school year. Special Education 


41967 Special Ed. $46,620.00 Rebekah Children’s 
Services / Phoenix School 


NPS for basic education services 
to a student during the 2017-
2018 school year.   Special Ed. 


41968 Special Ed. $190,638.00 Trumpet Behavioral 
Health 


NPA for a specialized one-to-one 
aide, behavior intervention 
/supervision and consultation 
services for two students during 
the 2017-2018 school year.  
Special Education. 


41970 Special Ed. $7,850.00 SpeechRighter Plus APS to provide direct physical & 
occupational therapy services to 
22 students during the 2017-18 
ESY / Summer Prgm.  Special Ed. 


 


34 of 428







BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 


MEETING OF AUGUST 23, 2017 
 


BID REQUIRING APPROVAL 
 


 
Approval Date: _________________  Approved By:____________________________________  


CAMPUS RE-ROOFING AT BAY VIEW ELEMENTARY PROJECT  
 


BID NUMBER 2017-03, OPENED JUNE 7TH 2017 
 


(Note:  This bid was originally sent to the Board on 6/14/17 for approval.  However, the low 
bidder, Waterproofing Associates, withdrew their bid due to a clerical error in their 
computations.  The bid was awarded to Stronger Building Services, the second lowest bidder.) 
 
Project Description: 
To remove and replace approximately 24,000 sq ft of flat roofing and associated 
components. Work period from August 21th through November 11th 2017 


 
A request for bids was sent out to all contractors on our Uniform Construction Cost 
Accounting Construction Application list, noticed to the builders plan rooms and 
advertised in the local newspapers.  Four bids were received. Waterproofing Associates 
Inc. was the successful low bidder. 


 
BID SUMMARY 


 
CONTRACTOR CITY BASE BID  
Waterproofing Assoc Inc. Mountainview $341,161.00  *Bid withdrawn 
Stronger Building Services San Leandro $517,000.00  
Western Roofing Service San Leandro $533,765.00  
Best Contracting Services Gardena $632,685.00  
LOWEST COMPLETE BID Stronger Building Services $517,000.00  


 
       
Waterproofing Associates Inc., withdrew their bid due to a clerical error. 
Staff recommends that the Bid be awarded to Stronger Building Services, the 
lowest responsive and responsible bidder.  


 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
This project will be funded by Measure ‘B’ bond funds. 
 
Prepared by: Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services  


35 of 428







AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.4 
 
warrants cover 


 
 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Warrant Register 
 
MEETING DATE:  August 23, 2017 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the warrants on the Board Payment Report.  The report covers vendor warrants 
issued from 6/16/17–8/11/17.  Hard copies of the report are available for public review at the 
Board Meeting.  
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


36 of 428







37 of 428







38 of 428







39 of 428







40 of 428







41 of 428







42 of 428







43 of 428







44 of 428







45 of 428







46 of 428







47 of 428







48 of 428







49 of 428







50 of 428







51 of 428







52 of 428







53 of 428







54 of 428







55 of 428







56 of 428







57 of 428







58 of 428







59 of 428







60 of 428







61 of 428







62 of 428







63 of 428







64 of 428







65 of 428







66 of 428







67 of 428







68 of 428







69 of 428







70 of 428







71 of 428







72 of 428







73 of 428







74 of 428







75 of 428







                          
                      
  AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.5  
C:\Users\bssec\Desktop\Boardpad 082317\Budget Transfers cover.docx 


 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Approval of Budget Transfers  
 
MEETING DATE:   August 23, 2017 
  
FROM:               Patrick Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent of Business 
 
THROUGH:  Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Board of Education approve 2017-2018 budget transfers dated 
from 7/1/17 through 7/31/17, BE#120189– 121680.  The report follows.  Hard copy of the 
report is available for public review at the Board Meeting. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Ed Code 42600 requires that the Board approve budget transfers that are made between major 
expense object codes, or from reserves. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None. 
  


76 of 428







77 of 428







78 of 428







 AGENDA ITEM:  8.1.6 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Williams Uniform Complaint - 4th Quarterly Report 
 
MEETING DATE: July 27, 2016 
 
FROM: Frank Wells, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the 4th Quarterly Williams Report as submitted. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
According to Education Code and the District’s Administrative Regulation on the Williams 
Uniform Complaint Policy, school districts must submit quarterly reports to the County Office of 
Education of all complaints filed in the areas of insufficient instructional materials, teacher 
vacancy or misassignment, and inadequate facilities. 
 
The district received one complaint of a leaking roof at Bay View Elementary.  Facilities Director 
Trevor Miller reports that the entire area has been reroofed, and the walls are dry. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
None. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 


development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse community. 
 


79 of 428







QUARTERLY DISTRICT STATUS REPORT OF UNIFORM COMPLAINTS 


TO THE COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS 


QUARTER ENDED JULY 31, 2017 
 
 


DISTRICT:  Santa Cruz City Schools Date Reported to District Governing Board:  August 23, 2017 


 
I. INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS 


A) Insufficient text books or instructional materials in classroom: 
 


# of Complaints 


0 


# of Complaints Resolved # of Complaints Unresolved* 


0 
 


*Explanation:   


 
B) Insufficient textbooks or instructional materials to take home: 


 


# of Complaints 


0 


# of Complaints Resolved # of Complaints Unresolved* 


0 
 


*Explanation:   


 
C) Textbooks or instructional materials in poor or unusable condition: 


 


# of Complaints 


0 


# of Complaints Resolved # of Complaints Unresolved* 


0 
 


*Explanation:   


 
II. TEACHER VACANCY OR MISASSIGNMENT 


A) No assigned certified teacher at beginning of semester: 
 


# of Complaints 


0 


# of Complaints Resolved # of Complaints Unresolved* 


0 
 


*Explanation:   


 
B) Teacher lacking credentials or training to teach English Language Learners (ELL) with  


      More than 20% ELL in class: 
 


# of Complaints 


0 


# of Complaints Resolved # of Complaints Unresolved* 


0 
 


*Explanation:   
 


C) Teacher instructing class lacking subject matter competency: 
 


# of Complaints 


0 


# of Complaints Resolved # of Complaints Unresolved* 


0 
 


*Explanation:   
 


III. FACILITIES 


A) Conditions posing an emergency or urgent threat to the health or safety of students/staff: 
 


# of Complaints 


1 


# of Complaints Resolved 


1 


# of Complaints Unresolved* 


0 
 


*Explanation:     
   


80 of 428







      AGENDA ITEM:  8.1.7 
C:\USERS\BSSEC\DESKTOP\BOARDPAD 082317\SURPLUS COVER.DOC 


 
 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Disposition of Surplus Property  
 
MEETING DATE:  August 23, 2017  
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:     Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Board of Education authorize the Assistant Superintendent, Business 
Services, or his designee, to sell or dispose of the surplus property on the attached list(s) in 
accordance with Board Policy 3270 and Administrative Regulation 3270A. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Education Code Section 17545(a) provides that the Board of Education may sell for cash any 
personal property belonging to the District if the property is not required for school purposes, or if 
it should be disposed of for the purpose of replacement, or if it is unsatisfactory or not suitable for 
school use. (b) The governing board may choose to conduct any sale of personal property 
authorized under this section by means of a public auction conducted by employees of the district 
or other public agencies, or by contract with a private auction firm. The board may delegate to the 
district employee responsible for conducting the auction the authority to transfer the personal 
property to the highest responsible bidder upon completion of the auction and after payment has 
been received by the district.  
 
Section 17546(a) If the governing board, by a unanimous vote of those members present, finds 
that the property, whether one or more items, does not exceed in value the sum of two thousand 
five hundred dollars ($2,500), it may be sold at private sale without advertising, by any employee 
of the district empowered for that purpose by the board. (b) Any item or items of property having 
previously been offered for sale pursuant to Section 17545, but for which no qualified bid was 
received, may be sold at private sale without advertising by any employee of the district 
empowered for that purpose by the board.  (c) If the board, by a unanimous vote of those 
members present, finds that the property is of insufficient value to defray the costs of arranging a 
sale, the property may be donated to a charitable organization deemed appropriate by the board, 
or it may be disposed of in the local public dump on order of any employee of the district 
empowered for that purpose by the board. 
 
Per Ed Code 60530(b), instructional materials may be destroyed by any economical means, 
provided that no instructional material shall be destroyed until 30 days after the governing board 
has given notice to all persons who have filed a request for such notice. 
 


81 of 428







SCCS BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 


MEETING OF AUGUST 23, 2017 
 


SURPLUS PROPERTY LIST 
 


Approval Date: _________________  Approved By:______________________________________________  


                 
SITE:   SOQUEL HIGH SCHOOL/INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 


        
 Property Description Asset #  Year/Age Condition Value 


 
1. HP Compaq dc7700 14126  2006 Nonfunctional $0 
2. HP Compaq dc 5850 15447  2009 Nonfunctional $0 
3. HP Compaq dc7800 15353  2007 Nonfunctional $0 
4. HP Compaq dc5850 15454  2009 Nonfunctional $0 
       
       
       
     Total $0 


  
It is recommended that the Board of Education authorize the Assistant Superintendent, Business 
Services, or his designee, to sell or dispose of the surplus property in accordance with Board Policy 3270 
and Administrative Regulation 3270A. 
       


82 of 428







change order 1 Stronger Building Svces BV roofing 


 AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.8 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT 


 


AGENDA ITEM:  Change Orders for Construction Contract 


MEETING DATE:  August 23, 2017 


FROM:    Patrick Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 


THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 


 


RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Change Order #1 for Campus re-roofing at Bayview Elementary 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This project was started this summer and involves removal and replacement of existing flat 
roofing in all areas on the campus. The change order is for roof damage discovered after 
removal of existing roofing and to replace sections of sub framing that have rotted due to leaks 
over the years. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
Original Contract: $517,000.00 
 
Change order #1            $51,107.74 
 
Total                              $568,107.74 
 
This project is funded by Measure B Bond Funds. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


83 of 428







84 of 428







8/10/2017   


Title Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5 Step 6


Occupational Therapist 56,812            59,805         62,952         66,272         69,764         73,238         
Mental Health Specialist 56,812            59,805         62,952         66,272         69,764         73,238         
Per Day 264.24                 278.16              292.80              308.24              324.48              340.64              
Per Hour 33.03                   34.77                36.60                38.53                40.56                42.58                


Longevity increment:
Beginning  7th year 3% of current salary
Beginning 11th year 3% of current salary for a total of 6%
Beginning  16th year 3% of current salary for a total of 9%
Beginning 21st  year 3% of current salary for a total of 12%


Effective 7/1/2017 - Increase annual work days to 215 (Full year earned service credit)


The 215 Day Work Year includes: 190 work days, 15 holidays and 10 vacation days


Kris Munro, Superintendent


Santa Cruz City Schools
2017-2018 Licensed Professionals  Salary Schedule


Effective 7/1/2017


190 days


Licensed Professionals Annual Salary Work Year is based on 215 paid days at 8 hours per day for full-time service


85 of 428







  AGENDA ITEM:  8.1.10 
contracts cover 


 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Contracts and Consultant Services Agreements 
 
MEETING DATE: August 23, 2017  
 
FROM:   Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:  Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Ratify contracts and consultant services agreements executed pursuant to Board Policy 3300. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
On February 23, 2011, the Board of Education delegated authority to enter into contracts on 
behalf of Santa Cruz City Schools and to purchase supplies, materials, apparatus, equipment 
and services up to the amounts specified in Public Contract Code 20111 and Education Code 
Section 17605 to the Superintendent of Schools or designees, and required that the Board of 
Trustees ratify contracts within sixty (60) days of incurring the expense. 
 
The following contracts are presented for ratification: 


1. Agreements & Contracts/Business Services  
1. Santa Cruz County Office of Education – Facility Use agreement for use of 


portables at 255 and 313 Swift Street 
2. Wenger Associates – contract for staff support on implementation of 


Illuminate Student Information System  
3. Blackboard – Contract for school community messaging software 
4. Bartos Architects – Agreement Amendment for design & construction 


services for SCHS improvements 
5. Colbi Technologies – AccountAbility software for multi-year bond project 


tracking 
6. Crowe Horwath – Agreement for financial audit services regarding 


Measures A & bond projects for fiscal years 2016-17, 2017-18 & 2018-19 
7. Jerene Lacey – CSA for assistance with Finance Office projects 
8. MBS – contract for gas valves seismic evaluation and safety upgrades at 


sites 
9. Bowman and Williams – contract for topographic mapping of Harbor 


High 
10. MACRO – Agreement for month to month lease of office space at 133 


Mission St. 
11. Senderos – Facility Use Agreement – 1 year extension for use of Adult Ed 


facility 
2. Agreements – Educational Services/Student Services 


1. Hearing Conservation West – Consultant Services Agreement  for hearing 
testing of students 


2. Margaret Lacey – Consultant Services Agreement for vision and hearing 
testing of students.  
 


86 of 428







  AGENDA ITEM:  8.1.10 
contracts cover 


3. Non Public Agency Contracts & Agreements – Educational Services/Special 
Education 
1. ABRIGHT Organization – Nonpublic agency contract for one-to-one aide, 


behavior intervention/supervision, consultation, training and assessment 
services for 22 Special Ed students as mandated in each student’s IEP. 


2. The Bay School – Nonpublic school contract for basic educational 
programs and specialized support services for four Special Ed students, 
as mandated in each student’s IEP. 


3. The Bridge School – Nonpublic School contract for basic educational 
program and specialized support services for a Special Ed student, as 
mandated in the student’s IEP. 


4. Heritage School – Nonpublic School contract for basic education, 
individual/family counseling and residential placement services for a 
Special Ed student, as mandated in the student’s IEP.  


5. The May Institute – Nonpublic Agency contract for intensive individual 
services and behavior intervention/supervision and consultation services 
for a Special Ed student as mandated in the student’s IEP. 


6. Pediatric Therapy Center – Nonpublic Agency contract for independent 
educational evaluation in the area of occupational therapy and 
direct/consultation physical therapy services for two Special Ed students, 
as mandated in each student’s IEP. 


7. Rebekah Children’s Services/Phoenix School – Nonpublic school contract 
for basic education services for a Special Ed student, as mandated in the 
student’s IEP. 


8. Trumpet Behavioral Services – Nonpublic Agency contract for one-to-one 
aide, behavior intervention/supervision and consultation services for two 
Special Ed students, as mandated in each student’s IEP. 


9. Maria Ballard, PT – Agreement for Professional Services for physical 
therapy for a Special Ed student as mandated in the student’s IEP. 


10. SpeechRighter – Agreement for Professional Services for Speech-
Language & Occupational therapy services for up to 22 Special Ed 
students, as mandated in each student’s IEP. 


11. Medical Billing Technologies – Contract for Medi-Cal billing services 


87 of 428







88 of 428







89 of 428







90 of 428







91 of 428







92 of 428







93 of 428







94 of 428







95 of 428







96
 o


f 4
28







97
 o


f 4
28







98
 o


f 4
28







99
 o


f 4
28







10
0 


of
 4


28







Program Management Software and Related Services 


Proposal for Web-Enabled Account-Ability Page 1 of 3 


12821 Newport Avenue  •  Tustin, CA 92780 
P: (714) 505-9544  •  F: (714) 838-8113  •  colbitech.com 


#170131 


Santa Cruz City Schools 


July 11, 2017 


It is our pleasure to provide this proposal summarizing the 
Account-Ability™ product and services Colbi Technologies would be 
providing to Santa Cruz City Schools for management of their school 
building program. This proposal is valid for 90-days. 


Account-Ability™ 
Implementation 


$40,000 


Account-Ability™ software will be customized for the District and 
made available via the web by Colbi Technologies. Customization of 
the program will specifically incorporate the district’s account code 
structure and internal control processes for project budgeting 
development, contract award, modification, and payments.  


In addition to the customization and installation staffing, 
Colbi Technologies will provide four days of management consulting 
and/or training as desired by the district to facilitate a smooth transition 
to the new system. Typical training includes a half-day interactive 
workshop flowcharting the district’s contracting and payment 
processes, followed by three days of hands-on training in the district’s 
computer lab. A half-day of follow up is provided four to six weeks later, 
to assure that the primary software users have adopted best practices. 
Reimbursement for reasonable travel and lodging costs incurred to 
provide on-site services apply. 


Annual Software 
Services Fee 


$30,000 


The Annual Software Services fee covers the License to use 
Account-Ability™ software, Annual Support Services, and Annual 
Web Services. There is no restriction on the dollar amount of contracts 
managed or projects planned in the software. There is no restriction 
on the number of users the District authorizes to use the software; 
however, the number of concurrent users is restricted based on the 
Web Services as described below. The fee is an allowable OPSC, 
Developer Fee, or General Obligation Bond expenditure for program 
management. 


Annual Support 
Services 


Colbi Technologies will provide support including phone support, 
online support, Colbi Technologies spring and fall workshops, Best 
Practice Advisories and Alerts, application updates, six hours of 
training, and eight hours of consulting services per year. 
Reimbursement for reasonable travel and lodging costs incurred to 
provide on-site services apply. 


101 of 428



http://www.colbitech.com/





Program Management Software and Related Services 


Proposal for Web-Enabled Account-Ability Page 2 of 3 


12821 Newport Avenue  •  Tustin, CA 92780 
P: (714) 505-9544  •  F: (714) 838-8113  •  colbitech.com 


#170131 


Annual Web Services 
— Five Users 


Colbi Technologies will provide the software via the web to any 
computer meeting the required specifications for a maximum of five 
concurrent authorized users when security login requirements are 
met. Additional users may be added at $525 per user per year. 


The Web Server fee includes access to the software via the web 
and data maintenance on a Colbi Technologies server with daily 
backups. 


Archival Exit Plan — 
Advanced Purchase 


$5,000 


At the end of the district building program, the district will be provided 
permanent web access, via a single secure login, to 
Account-Ability™ for read-only access to the Transaction module. 
This enables the district to view all data and print reports. In addition, 
read-write access is provided to the Budget Development module, 
which provides full access to the financial planning tools for future 
building programs.  


This option may be purchased at the end of the building program for 
the regularly published price, which is currently $15,000. 


Import of Historical 
Data 


Price to be Determined 


Colbi Technologies can import historical expenditure data from 
digital files – this provides for full reporting of work completed prior 
to implementation of Account-Ability along with on-going and future 
projects. In addition, this historical data is easily mined for use in 
building budgets for future projects based on actual expenditure 
profiles experienced by the District.  


Cost will vary based on the integrity and amount of data. 
Colbi Technologies will provide a not-to-exceed estimate after 
review of sample data. After acceptance of completed work, the 
District will be billed for actual cost, but not more than the agreed to 
not-to-exceed cost.  


102 of 428



http://www.colbitech.com/





Program Management Software and Related Services 


Proposal for Web-Enabled Account-Ability Page 3 of 3 


12821 Newport Avenue  •  Tustin, CA 92780 
P: (714) 505-9544  •  F: (714) 838-8113  •  colbitech.com 


#170131 


Colbi Docs™ 


Annual Fee 


$10,000 


with concurrent purchase 


of Account-Ability 


Colbi Docs is a separate software system that provides on-line 
routing, tracking, processing and storage of project documents. 
Template workflows and forms for a typical project team are 
included for construction: material submittals, requests for 
information, change requests, requests for proposal, notices 
to proceed, change orders, and inspector deficiency notices.  


One day of initial training will be provided in facilities provided by 
the District; reimbursement for reasonable travel and lodging 
costs incurred to provide on-site services apply. Phone support 
during normal business hours will be provided for 2 
Colbi Docs Administrative Users as authorized by the District. 


The annual fee provides for storage up to 100 gigabytes, additional 
storage capacity is available for $300 per year for each additional 
10 gigabytes. 


There is no limit on the number of projects or document processes 
that the District configures Colbi Docs to handle. There is no limit 
on the number of Colbi Docs users authorized by the District.   


We appreciate this opportunity to be of service to the Santa 
Cruz City Schools.  


Date:  July 11, 2017 


 Signed: 


Larry Goshorn 


President, Colbi Technologies 


103 of 428



http://www.colbitech.com/





10
4 


of
 4


28







10
5 


of
 4


28







10
6 


of
 4


28







10
7 


of
 4


28







10
8 


of
 4


28







10
9 


of
 4


28







11
0 


of
 4


28







11
1 


of
 4


28







11
2 


of
 4


28







11
3 


of
 4


28







114 of 428







115 of 428







116 of 428







117 of 428







118 of 428







119 of 428







120 of 428







121 of 428







122 of 428







123 of 428







124 of 428







125 of 428







126 of 428







127 of 428







128 of 428







129 of 428







130 of 428







131 of 428







Page 1 of 2 
 


BOWMAN & WILLIAMS 
CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEERS 


A CALIFORNIA CORPORATION 


                                      1011 CEDAR    PO BOX 1621    SANTA CRUZ, CA 95061-1621 
                        PHONE (831) 426-3560   FAX (831) 426-9182 


                           bryan@bowmanandwilliams.com 
 


August 8, 2017 
 
Trevor Miller, Director of Facilities 
Santa Cruz City Schools 
536 Palm Street, Santa Cruz, CA 95060 
 
Via:  David Peartree 


Belli Architectural Group 
 
Re: Topographic Mapping of a portion of Harbor High School.  Our File 26994.01 
 
Dear Trevor, 
 
At your request, we have prepared this proposal for topographic mapping within 
the survey limits shown on the enclosed sketch labeled “Limits of Survey Map-
Exhibit B”, for the above mentioned project. The basic services for which we will 
be responsible include the following tasks hereinafter set forth as follows: 
 
1.0 Surveying and Mapping Services  
 
1.1 Use existing topographic maps as a base map for the topographic map. 
  
1.2  Field reconnaissance and traverse. Tie out found survey control and set  
 random control points for survey. 
 
1.3 Perform a topographic survey within the survey limits. The map will include 


locating surface features including drainage channel, culverts and 
Improvements and trees greater than 6” in diameter.   


 
1.4 Locate any utilities including electric, storm drainage, sewer, that can be 


located by surface features. Obtain pipe sizes and invert elevations for 
any sewer or  storm drainage.   


 
1.5 Prepare a topographic map in AutoCAD® Release 2012 format at a scale 


of 1 in.= 10 feet with 1 foot contour intervals, and spot elevations.  
 
1.6 Provide electronic and hardcopies of the completed map. 
 
 
 
 
 


132 of 428







Page 2 of 2 
 


2.0 Estimated fees:  
 
2.1  Field 8.0 hrs.  Field Crew     = $ 1,920.00  
 
2.2  Office   12.0 hrs. Technical draftsman   = $ 1,260.00 
 
2.3                      3.0 hrs. Licensed land surveyor   = $    540.00 


           
       Total fees     = $ 3,720.00 


 


3.0 Additional Services   
 
 We provide our professional services on a time and materials basis. We 
initially budget a particular amount of Engineer and Staff time for each of the 
tasks outlined. Unforeseen  tasks may arise during the work that may cause us to 
exceed those estimates. That budget will be reviewed for adequacy at each 
appropriate phase, and you will be kept appraised of the design budget status.  
Services not included in the above described scope of work, including some 
work that we normally do, are Additional Services.  
 
 
4.0 Deliverables 
 
4.1 2- signed wet stamped originals of the Topographic Map. 
 
4.2 1-Electronic AutoCAD Release 2017 format of the Topographic map.   


 
We hope this letter serves your current needs.  Please contact us if you have any 
questions or comments.  We look forward to working with you, and thank you for this 
opportunity to participate with you in this project.  The topographic map will be 
completed in approximately 10-15 working days after completion of the fieldwork. . 
 
Sincerely, 
Bowman & Williams 
 
 
 
 
Joel F. Ricca, R.C.E. 53588      
Principal Engineer       
 
 
Attachment:  Limit of Survey Map 
  Hourly Charge Rates 


133 of 428







134 of 428



david

Cloud







BOWMAN & WILLIAMS 
C O N S U L T I N G  C I V I L  E N G I N E E R S  &  L A N D  S U R V E Y O R S  


 
ESTABLISHED IN 1908, A CALIFORNIA CORPORATION SINCE 1974 


1011 CEDAR    PO BOX 1621    SANTA CRUZ, CA 95061-1621 


PHONE (831) 426-3560   FAX (831) 426-9182   www.bowmanandwilliams.com 


 


Final 08.11.16  


 


EXHIBIT C 


 NEW HOURLY CHARGE RATES 
 Effective August 11, 2016 


 


 


OFFICE AND PROFESSIONAL 


 


Court Appearance & Preparation $375.00 


Principal Engineer (licensed) $185.00 


Associate Engineer (licensed) $170.00 


Assistant Engineer II $155.00 


Assistant Engineer I $140.00 


Engineering Assistant $125.00 


Licensed Surveyor $185.00 


Surveyor LSIT $150.00 


Survey Coordinator LSIT2 $160.00 


Pavement Management Technician $130.00 


Construction Manager $120.00 


Technical Drafter $110.00 


Administrative Assistant $90.00 


 


 


FIELD SURVEY CREW: Construction Survey’s 4 hour min. 


 (One Man) Robotic Instrument or GPS & Operator $220.00 


Survey Crew (Prevailing Wage Rate) $240.00 


Three man Survey Crew $285.00 


 


25% Surcharge is applied to hourly rates for overtime to meet Clients Schedule or Saturday work. 


33% Surcharge is applied to hourly rates for Sunday and Holiday work. 


 


EXPENSES 


Sub-Consultant Charges x 1.15 


Fees advance on behalf of Client x 1.25 


Survey equipment, vehicle, stakes and mileage (within 50 miles) included in hourly rate 


 


 


MISCELLANEOUS 


Vellum or Bond Copy CADD Plot for counter requests 24 x 36 $8.00ea 


Vellum or Bond Copy CADD Plot for Active Projects 24 x 36 $4.00ea 


Mylar Copy CADD Plot 24 x 36 $15.00ea 


Color Copy CADD Plot 24 x 36 $30.00ea 


CD/DVD $25.00 


 


ELECTRONIC FILE CHARGES AT COST 


File Conversion   At cost 


Email CADD File At cost 


Research Archive Files At cost 


Electronic File Transfer At cost 


 


*All electronic files will need to have a “Agreement & Release of Liability” signed and pre-paid before files can be 


released for, for clients without a current agreement. 


135 of 428







EXTENSION OF LEASE
(C.A.R. Form EL 11/11)


The following terms and conditions are hereby incorporated in and made a part of the Residential Lease or
 other  (“Lease”),


dated  , on property known as
 (“Premises”),


in which  is referred to as (“Tenant”)
and  is referred to as (“Landlord”).


The terms of the tenancy are changed as follows. Unless otherwise provided, the change shall take effect on the date
the Lease was scheduled to terminate.


1. EXTENSION OF TERM: The scheduled termination date is extended to  (Date).


2. Rent shall be $ per month.


3. Security deposit shall be increased by $ .


4. ADDITIONAL TERMS:


By signing below, Tenant and Landlord acknowledge that each has read, understands, and received a copy of
and agrees to the terms of this Extension of Lease.


Tenant Date


Tenant Date


Landlord Date


Landlord Date


The copyright laws of the United States (Title 17 U.S. Code) forbid the unauthorized reproduction of this form, or any portion thereof, by photocopy machine or any other means,
including facsimile or computerized formats. Copyright © 2011, CALIFORNIA ASSOCIATION OF REALTORS®, INC. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED.
THIS FORM HAS BEEN APPROVED BY THE CALIFORNIA ASSOCIATION OF REALTORS® (C.A.R.). NO REPRESENTATION IS MADE AS TO THE LEGAL VALIDITY OR
ADEQUACY OF ANY PROVISION IN ANY SPECIFIC TRANSACTION. A REAL ESTATE BROKER IS THE PERSON QUALIFIED TO ADVISE ON REAL ESTATE
TRANSACTIONS. IF YOU DESIRE LEGAL OR TAX ADVICE, CONSULT AN APPROPRIATE PROFESSIONAL.
This form is available for use by the entire real estate industry. It is not intended to identify the user as a REALTOR®. REALTOR® is a registered collective membership mark
which may be used only by members of the NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF REALTORS® who subscribe to its Code of Ethics.


Published and Distributed by:
REAL ESTATE BUSINESS SERVICES, INC.
a subsidiary of the California Association of REALTORS®
525 South Virgil Avenue, Los Angeles, California 90020


Reviewed by  Date
EL 11/11 (PAGE 1 OF 1)


EXTENSION OF LEASE (EL PAGE 1 OF 1)
  Phone:   Fax:    


     Produced with zipForm® by zipLogix  18070 Fifteen Mile Road, Fraser, Michigan 48026    www.zipLogix.com


X Commercial Lease Agreement
06/25/2014 133 Mission Street Suite 103


Santa Cruz, CA  95060
MACRO Consulting, Inc.


Santa Cruz City School District


month to month


2,236.86


This Lease shall be renewed as a month to month tenancy.  If this extension continues
past August 31, 2018, the next rental rate shall be increased by 2%.  This 2% increase will continue annually
should this Tenancy continue.


MACRO Consulting, Inc.


Santa Cruz City School District


Anderson Christie, Inc., 129 Bulkhead St. Santa Cruz, CA 95060 (831)239-5516 Macro
Sue Ellen Gales


136 of 428







137 of 428







138 of 428







139 of 428







140 of 428







141 of 428







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Special Education Contract  – Nonpublic Agency 
 
MEETING DATE: August 23, 2017 
 
FROM: Frank Wells, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the attached Nonpublic Agency contract for new and continuing services through the 
2017-2018 summer and regular school year.  Due to the confidentiality regulations that protect 
the identity of disabled pupils, the student names have been omitted.  Copies of the contract have 
been provided under separate cover for Board review. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Authorized request for:  One-To-One Aide, Behavior Intervention/Supervision, Consultation, 
Training and Assessment Services for 22 students in Special Education who require these 
services.  They are provided through The ABRITE Organization and are mandated in each 
student’s IEP.  Service Period:  July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2018. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics. 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
 
Fiscal Impact:  $977,207.00 
Fund:  Special Education  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Prepared by Stacy O’Farrell, Director of Special Education 
 


142 of 428







143 of 428







144 of 428







145 of 428







146 of 428







      SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Special Education Contract – Nonpublic School 
 
MEETING DATE: August 23, 2017 
 
FROM: Frank Wells, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the attached Nonpublic School contract for continuing services through the 2017-2018 
summer and regular school year.  Due to the confidentiality regulations that protect the identity 
of disabled pupils, the student names have been omitted.  Copies of the contract have been 
provided under separate cover for Board review. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Authorized request for:  Basic Educational Programs and Specialized Support Services for 4 
students in Special Education who require these services.  They are provided through The Bay 
School and are mandated in each student’s IEP.  Service Period:  July 1, 2017 through June 30, 
2018. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics. 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
 
Fiscal Impact:  $375,500.00 
Fund:  Special Education  
 
 
 
 
 


 
Prepared by Stacy O’Farrell, Director of Special Education 


 
 


147 of 428







148 of 428







149 of 428







150 of 428







151 of 428







 
SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 


 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Special Education Contract – Nonpublic School 
 
MEETING DATE: August 23, 2017 
 
FROM: Frank Wells, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the attached Nonpublic School contract for continuing services through the 2017-2018 
school year.  Due to the confidentiality regulations that protect the identity of disabled pupils, 
the student’s name has been omitted.  Copies of the contract have been provided under separate 
cover for Board review. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Authorized request for:  Basic Educational Program and Specialized Support Services for a 
student in Special Education who requires these services.  They are provided through The 
Bridge School and are mandated in the student’s IEP.  Service Period:  July 1, 2017 through  
June 30, 2018. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics. 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
 
Fiscal Impact:  $68,550.00 
Fund:  Special Education  
 
 
 
 
 


 
Prepared by Stacy O’Farrell, Director of Special Education 


 


152 of 428







153 of 428







154 of 428







155 of 428







156 of 428







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Special Education Contract  –  Nonpublic School 
 
MEETING DATE: August 23, 2017 
 
FROM: Frank Wells, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the attached out-of-state Nonpublic School contract for continuing services through 
the 2017-2018 summer and regular school year.  Due to the confidentiality regulations that 
protect the identity of disabled pupils, the student’s name has been omitted.  Copies of the 
contract have been provided under separate cover for Board review. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Authorized request for:  Basic Education ($24,650.00), Individual/Family Counseling 
($16,800.00) and Residential Placement Services ($85,775.00) for a student in Special 
Education who requires these services.  They are provided through Heritage Schools, Inc. and 
are mandated in the student’s IEP.  Service Period:  July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2018. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics. 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
 
Fiscal Impact:  $127,225.00 
Fund:  Special Education  
 
 
 
 
 


 
Prepared by Stacy O’Farrell, Director of Special Education 


 


157 of 428







158 of 428







159 of 428







160 of 428







161 of 428







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Special Education Contract – Nonpublic Agency  
 
MEETING DATE: August 23, 2017 
 
FROM: Frank Wells, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the attached Nonpublic Agency contract for continuing services through the 2017-
2018 summer and regular school year.  Due to the confidentiality regulations that protect the 
identity of disabled pupils, the student’s name has been omitted.  Copies of the contract have 
been provided under separate cover for Board review. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Authorized request for:  Intensive Individual Services and Behavior Intervention/Supervision 
and Consultation Services for a student in Special Education who requires these services.  They 
are provided through The May Institute, Inc. and are mandated in the student’s IEP.  Service 
Period:  July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2018. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics. 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
 
Fiscal Impact:  $114,753.33 
Fund:  Special Education  
 
 
 
 
 


 
Prepared by Stacy O’Farrell, Director of Special Education 


162 of 428







163 of 428







164 of 428







165 of 428







166 of 428







167 of 428







168 of 428







169 of 428







170 of 428







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Special Education Contract  –  Nonpublic Agency 
 
MEETING DATE: August 23, 2017 
 
FROM: Frank Wells, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the attached Nonpublic Agency contract for new and continuing services through the 
2017-2018 summer and regular school year.  Due to the confidentiality regulations that protect 
the identity of disabled pupils, the student names have been omitted.  Copies of the contract have 
been provided under separate cover for Board review. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Authorized request for an:  Independent Educational Evaluation in the area of Occupational 
Therapy and Direct/Consultation Physical Therapy Services for 2 students in Special Education 
who require these services.  They are provided through Pediatric Therapy Center and are 
mandated through the process of mediation and in the second student’s IEP.  Service Period:  
July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2018. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics. 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
 
Fiscal Impact:  $2,500.00 
Fund:  Special Education  
 
 
 
 
 


 
Prepared by Stacy O’Farrell, Director of Special Education 


 


171 of 428







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Special Education Contract – Nonpublic School 
 
MEETING DATE: August 23, 2017 
 
FROM: Frank Wells, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the attached Nonpublic School contract for continuing services through the 2017-2018 
summer and regular school year.  Due to the confidentiality regulations that protect the identity 
of disabled pupils, the student’s name has been omitted.  Copies of the contract have been 
provided under separate cover for Board review. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Authorized request for:  Basic Education Services for a student in Special Education who 
requires these services.  They are provided through Rebekah Children’s Services / Phoenix 
Nonpublic School and are mandated in the student’s IEP.  Service Period:  July 1, 2017 through 
June 30, 2018. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics. 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
 
Fiscal Impact:  $46,620.00 
Fund:  Special Education  
 
 
 
 
 


 
Prepared by Stacy O’Farrell, Director of Special Education 


 
 


172 of 428







173 of 428







174 of 428







175 of 428







176 of 428







       SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Special Education Contract – Nonpublic Agency 
 
MEETING DATE: August 23, 2017 
 
FROM: Frank Wells, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the attached Nonpublic Agency contract for continuing services through the 2017-
2018 summer and regular school year.  Due to the confidentiality regulations that protect the 
identity of disabled pupils, the student names have been omitted.  Copies of the contract have 
been provided under separate cover for Board review. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Authorized request for:  One-To-One Aide, Behavior Intervention/Supervision and 
Consultation Services for 2 students in Special Education who require these services.  They are 
provided through Trumpet Behavioral Health and are mandated in each student’s IEP.  Service 
Period:  July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2018. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics. 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
 
Fiscal Impact:  $190,638.00 
Fund:  Special Education  
 
 
 
 
 


 
Prepared by Stacy O’Farrell, Director of Special Education 


 
 


177 of 428







178 of 428







179 of 428







180 of 428







181 of 428







 
SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 


 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Agreement For Professional Services – Special Education 
 
MEETING DATE: August 23, 2017 
 
FROM: Frank Wells, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the attached Agreement for Professional Services through the 2017-2018 summer and 
regular school year.  Due to the confidentiality regulations that protect the identity of disabled 
pupils, the student’s name has been omitted.  Copies of the agreement have been provided under 
separate cover for Board review. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Authorized request for:  Physical Therapy Services for a student in Special Education who 
require these services.  They are provided through Maria E.A. Ballard, a licensed MPT and are 
mandated in the student’s IEP.  Service Period:  July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2018. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics. 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
 
Fiscal Impact:  $6,960.00 
Fund:  Special Education  
 
 
 
 
 


 
Prepared by Stacy O’Farrell, Director of Special Education 


 
 


182 of 428







183 of 428







184 of 428







185 of 428







186 of 428







187 of 428







188 of 428







189 of 428







190 of 428







191 of 428







192 of 428







193 of 428







194 of 428







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Agreement For Professional Services – Special Education 
 
MEETING DATE: August 23, 2017 
 
FROM: Frank Wells, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the attached Agreement for Professional Services for new services through the 
Extended School Year 2017.   Due to the confidentiality regulations that protect the identity of 
disabled pupils, the student names have been omitted.  Copies of the agreement have been 
provided under separate cover for Board review 
  
 
BACKGROUND: 
Authorized request for:  Speech-Language Therapy and Occupational Therapy Services for up 
to 22 identified students enrolled in the Special Education ESY program who require these 
services.  They are provided through SpeechRighter Plus and are mandated in each student’s 
IEP.  Service Period:  July 10, 2017 through August 18, 2017. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics. 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
 
Fiscal Impact:  $7,850.00 
Fund:  Special Education  
 
 
 
 
 


 
Prepared by Stacy O’Farrell, Director of Special Education 


 
 


195 of 428







196 of 428







197 of 428







198 of 428







199 of 428







200 of 428







201 of 428







202 of 428







203 of 428







204 of 428







205 of 428







206 of 428







207 of 428







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Special Education Contract – Private Corporation  
 
MEETING DATE: August 23, 2017 
 
FROM: Frank Wells, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the attached Private Corporation contract for continuing services through the 2017-
2018 school year.  Copies of the contract have been provided under separate cover for Board 
review. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Authorized request for:  Contracted Billing Services provided to Santa Cruz City Schools.  MBT 
assists the Special Education Department in complying with the Medi-Cal Grant Program 
requirements and also helps incorporate best practices, district-wide, to optimize 
reimbursement opportunities.  Services are provided by Medical Billing Technologies, Inc. 
(MBT).  Contract Period:  July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2018 (“Renewal Date”). 
 
Contract Duration/Termination:  On each anniversary of the Renewal Date, hereafter, this 
contract shall automatically renew for an additional period of 12 months unless either party has 
submitted written notice of cancellation not less than 90 days prior to the Renewal Date. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics. 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
 
Fiscal Impact:  $50,000.00 
Fund:  Medi-Cal Grant  
 
 
 
 
 


 
Prepared by Stacy O’Farrell, Director of Special Education 


208 of 428







209 of 428







210 of 428







211 of 428







212 of 428







213 of 428







214 of 428







215 of 428







216 of 428







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.1.  


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  Student Centered Master Scheduling 
      
MEETING DATE:  August 23, 2017 
 
FROM:    Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 


 
BACKGROUND: 
Each year, administration and counseling teams collaborate to build student centered master 
schedules at each of our secondary schools.  This evening, school leaders will provide an 
overview of how a student centered schedule is developed.   
 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following district goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and 
career opportunities. 
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gap the currently exists between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse 
community. 


217 of 428







21
8 


of
 4


28







21
9 


of
 4


28







22
0 


of
 4


28







22
1 


of
 4


28







Bond Projects Update cover 


AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.2 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Staff Report: Update on Measures A and B Bond Projects 
 
MEETING DATE: August 23, 2017 


 
FROM: Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 


 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 


 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Facility Services Director Trevor Miller and Ralph le Roux, President of MADI Architecture, will 
present an update on the District’s summer bond projects. 


 
This work is in direct support of the following district goal and its corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
 
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 


 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
 
Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management.  


 
 


222 of 428







223 of 428







224 of 428







225 of 428







226 of 428







227 of 428







228 of 428







229 of 428







230 of 428







231 of 428







232 of 428







233 of 428







234 of 428







235 of 428







236 of 428







237 of 428







238 of 428







239 of 428







240 of 428







241 of 428







242 of 428







243 of 428







244 of 428







245 of 428







246 of 428







247 of 428







Transportation Update cover 


 AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.3 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Staff Report: Transportation Update 
 
MEETING DATE: August 23, 2017 


 
FROM: Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 


 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 


 
 
BACKGROUND: 


  Staff will present a report on the status of the Transportation Department’s operations and 
vehicles.  Recommendations will be brought back to the Board at a future meeting for action. 


 
This work is in direct support of the following district goal and its corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management.  
 
 


248 of 428







Transportation 


Where we are 
  


What’s next 


249 of 428







Overview of Services 
SCCS transports students in three programs daily: 
 
• Special Needs students: 


 106 Special Needs students have transportation in their I.E.P.’s; 80 are transported 
daily to 13 school sites in and around Santa Cruz County.  Half of the students attend 
Santa Cruz C.O.E. programs. 


 Transportation uses 8 small buses, 4 with wheelchair lifts, to meet service. 
 


• DeLaveaga Elementary School has +150 students, K -5th grade eligible for shuttle:  
 Daily shuttle to/from Grant Street, using one 84 passenger bus averaging 45 students 


in morning and 65 students in the afternoon. 
 


• Athletic & Activity transportation for SCCS schools: 
  2014-15 school year, 51 Athletic and Activity Trips were booked. 
  2015-16 school year, 66 Athletic and Activity Trips were booked, a 29% increase.  
  2016-17 school year, 106 Athletic and Activity Trips were booked, a 107% increase. 


250 of 428







Special Needs Fleet Size 


8 2 


3 


Special Need Bus Information 


Bus # 
$ Repairs 


since 04/15 
Last year 


repair costs Notes Age Mileage Special Needs 
19 $15,403 $10,043 Good Condition 21 109,147 1 
16 $10,749 $6,312 Electrical 17 170,610 2 
15 $24,439 12,857  Bad Engine 12 87,592 3 
7 $30,597  16,566 Bad Engine 12 93,795 4 
2 $13,368 $4,772 Electrical  15 123,385 5 
1 $10,471 $6,272 Transmission 20 146,135 6 


23 $1,024 $1,024 Excellent Condition 1 8,778 7 
24 $127 $127 Excellent Condition 1 9,783 8 
21 $1,695 $772 Excellent Condition 2 12,327 
22 $876 $692 Excellent Condition 1 13,887 
6 $15,796 $7,413 PCM, Transmission 18 174,267 


11 $17,756 $5,807 Ele shorts in body 18 180,256 
10 $24,879 $6,407 Differential, engine 12 80,355   


          
Min Need 8, 


 +3 Spares = 11 


Key 


8   Working  
2   Month to Month Lease 
3   Not Working, repairable 


251 of 428







Grant Availability 
Public school bus fleets are eligible to apply for rebates to replace school buses with engine model years 
of 2006 or older. EPA will accept applications from September 28 to October 30, 2017 under the, 
 


DIESEL EMISSIONS REDUCTION ACT OF 2010 
 
This program provides down payment type funds to purchase new buses to replace old, high-
emitting public school buses, thereby significantly reducing toxic emissions.   
 
Buses qualify if they are:  
 → Are used 3 out of 5 days a week 
 → Current and continuous in their C.H.P. certification 
 
The funding cap is $25,000.00 per vehicle.  
We have possibly 5 at $15k and 1 at $25k for a possible total of $100k towards to purchase of 5 
small busses and one large bus. 


252 of 428







General Education Fleet – Years of Service 


To reduce the cost of operation the need is for  8 new small 
buses and 2 large passenger buses. 
 
The positive news is that we have 5 small buses  and 1 large bus 
that will qualify for EPA grants should we be successful in our 
application. 
 
The number of applications received determines our odds in the 
lottery to receive these grants. 


253 of 428







Recommended Action 
1) Formally submit a grant proposal for 1 new large bus for 


immediate replacement (#12 or #8) and 5 small buses.  
2) Purchase / lease 8 small wheelchair buses immediately  


with a projected cost of $650,000. 
3) Purchase / lease 1 large Bus with a projected cost of 


$177,000. 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


254 of 428







Thank you! 


 
 
 


255 of 428







PTOC Bylaws Revision cover 


 AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.4 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Parcel Tax Oversight Committee Bylaws Revision – First Reading and/or 
Final Reading 


 
MEETING DATE: August 23, 2017 


 
FROM: Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 


 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 


 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is the recommendation of the Superintendent that the Board of Trustees approve the 
recommended modifications to the Parcel Tax Oversight Committee Bylaws.     
 
BACKGROUND: 
Revisions to sections 3.0 “Committee Composition,” and 3.1 “Eligibility”, and 5.0 “Meetings” 
have been presented for the Board’s consideration and action.  The District reviewed examples 
of bylaws of several districts’ Citizen’s Oversight Committees, and have presented information 
to the Board. 
 
The modification to section 5.0 articulates that each meeting must have a public comment 
section at the beginning of the meeting designed to enable individuals within our community 
to share their feedback and questions pertaining to parcel tax expenditures. 
 
After discussion, the Board may take action and approve the recommendation.  


 
This work is in direct support of the following district goal and its corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management.  
 
 


256 of 428







1 
PTOC Bylaws SCCS  - Rev 082317 


Santa Cruz City School District  
Parcel Tax Oversight Committee 


 


Bylaws 


Revised 12/14/16 8/23/17 


1.0 Preamble 


In accordance with the ballot language of the Santa Cruz City School District (“District”) parcel tax 
measures passed by the voters, the Board of Education (“Board”) has established a Parcel Tax Oversight 
Committee (“Committee”) which shall have the duties and rights set forth in these Bylaws. 


2.0 Name, Purpose, and Duties 


2.1 Name 


The name of this organization shall be the "Parcel Tax Oversight Committee” hereinafter referred to as 
the "Committee." 


2.2 Purpose 


The Board established the Committee to inform the public concerning the expenditure and uses of 
revenues from parcel tax measures passed by the voters for the purpose of supporting District programs 
and services.  The Committee’s charge is to review and report on the expenditure of parcel tax revenues 
and to ensure said revenue is expended in accordance with the stated purposes of each parcel tax 
measure, including but not limited to: 


• Measure I: Supports Grades 9-12 Library & Counseling services 


• Measure J: Supports Grades K-8 Art & Music programs, Library programs & Counseling 
services  


• Measure O: Funds middle and high school student career technical education, STEM 
(science, technology, engineering and math) programs, visual and performing arts and job-
training instructional programs; and  after-school athletic and enrichment programs in middle 
and high schools to protect student safety, health and well-being. 


• Measure P: Supports Grades K-3 Class Size Reduction, lowered Class Sizes in Grades 4-6, 
Library services, Art supplies, Life Lab, and other K-6 programs. 


At the discretion of the Board, the Committee’s obligations as set forth in these Bylaws may also be 
extended to future voter-approved parcel taxes supporting District programs and services. 
 
2.3 Duties 


Committee members shall be expected to attend its regularly scheduled meetings, review all pertinent 
information provided to the Committee, and abide by the provisions of the Ralph M. Brown Act (the 
“Brown Act”) (Gov. Code § 54950 et seq.) and all rules of conduct established in these Bylaws. In 
furtherance of its purpose the Committee will engage in the following activities: 


A. Receive and review expenditure reports produced by the District to ensure that parcel tax 
revenue was expended in accordance with the purposes set forth in the ballot language of each 
parcel tax measure as approved by the voters. 


B.   Receive and renew annual training regarding the requirements of the Brown  Act. 


257 of 428







2 
PTOC Bylaws SCCS  - Rev 082317 


C. Prepare and present to the Board, in open session, an annual written report (“Annual 
Report”) which will include:  


• A statement indicating whether the District’s parcel tax revenue expenditures for the 
preceding year were made in accordance with the stated purposes of each parcel tax 
measure. 


• A summary of the Committee’s proceedings for the preceding year. 


3.0 Committee Composition  


A. The Committee shall consist of up to twenty-four members, including representatives from 
each of the following stakeholder groups: 


• 7 representatives, one appointed by each Trustee (“Board-appointed seats”) 


• 9 representatives, one from each District elementary school, middle school, high school, 


•  1 representative from the four “Small Schools” (AFE, Ark, Costanoa, and Monarch) 


• 1 representative from the District English Learner Advisory Committee (“ELAC”) 


• 1 representative from the Classified Bargaining Unit 


• 1 representative from the Certificated Bargaining Unit 


• 1 representative from the Library Media Teachers 


• 1 representative from the SCCS Certificated Counselors 


• 1 representative from the Visual and Performing Arts Task Force 


• 1 representative from Life Lab/Elementary Science 


 


B. Except for Board-appointed seats, the names of candidates for Committee membership 
selected by each of the above stakeholder groups shall be forwarded to the Board for its 
consideration.  The Board shall have sole discretion to select and appoint Committee members 
and to determine its final size. 
 
C. The Board shall solicit applications from the public at large to fill Board-appointed seats.  
Vacancies and information concerning the application process shall be announced on the District 
website and in local media. 
 
D. A single individual may be appointed as a representative of more than one of the above 
categories, if applicable, but will only have one vote. 
The Committee shall consist of a minimum of five members (and a maximum of seven), including 
the following community representation:  


A. One member shall, at the time of appointment, be active in a business organization 
representing the business community of the District;  


B. One member shall, at the time of appointment, be a member of the community at large; 
active in a senior citizens organization;  


C. One member shall, at the time of the appointment, be a member of a Senior Citizen’s 
Organization,   


D. One member shall, at the time of appointment, be a parent or guardian of a child enrolled 
in the District;  


E. One member shall, at the time of appointment, be a parent or guardian of a child enrolled 
in the District and active in a parent-teacher organization, such as the Home & School Club, 
Parent Teacher School Organization or school site council.  


A single individual may be appointed as a representative of more than one of the above 
categories, if applicable.  


258 of 428







3 
PTOC Bylaws SCCS  - Rev 082317 


 
 
3.1 Eligibility 


The Committee shall be comprised of individuals who are at least 18 years of age and who either 
live or work within the boundaries of the District. 


A. The Committee shall be comprised of individuals who are at least 18 years of age and who 
either live or work within the boundaries of the District.  


B. No employee, official, vendor, contractor, or consultant of the District shall be appointed to 
the Committee.  


C. Committee members shall be subject to prohibitions regarding incompatibility of office 
pursuant to Government Code sections 1125-1129 and financial interest in contracts 
pursuant to Government Code sections 1090-1099. 


 


3.2 Term of Service 


A. Committee members serve without compensation and for no more than two consecutive 
terms. 


B. Appointed Committee members shall be seated for a 4 year term in July of each year, except 
those appointed to replace vacancies.   


3.3 Replacing a Committee Member 


A. If a Committee position becomes vacant, the Committee Chair shall request that the Board 
appoint a replacement in accordance with the process set forth in these Bylaws at Section 3.  


B. Unless failure to act results in the inability to meet a Committee quorum, if six months or less 
remain of the unexpired four-year term, the Board may choose to leave that position vacant for 
the remainder of the term. 


C. A replacement Committee member may be appointed by the Board if one or more of the 
following events occur: 


The Committee member submits a written resignation to the Board, with a copy to the Committee Chair; 


The Committee approves a motion to remove a member for cause, including non-attendance at meetings 
(ref: Section 5.8 below), violating these Bylaws, and/or violating the District’s adopted norms. A motion to 
remove a member shall be approved by an affirmative vote of not less than two-thirds of the members 
present at a Committee meeting, a quorum being present. The motion and its result shall be 
communicated in writing to the member under consideration and to the Board President within one week 
after the meeting that the motion was approved. Removal shall be effective immediately upon passing the 
motion. If the motion fails, the member under consideration shall not be subject to double jeopardy. 


D. Committee members appointed to fill vacant, unexpired terms may apply and shall be eligible 
for reappointment to a succeeding full four-year term. 


4.0 Committee Officers 


Officers of the Committee shall be a Chair, and a Vice-Chair.  


4.1 Elections 


At the September meeting each year, the Committee shall place into nomination and elect a Chair and a 
Vice-Chair.  


259 of 428







4 
PTOC Bylaws SCCS  - Rev 082317 


4.2 Term of Office 


Officers shall be elected for a one-year term and shall not be term-limited except for the limit on the terms 
of Committee members set forth in Section 3.2 above. 


4.3 Duties of the Chair 


A. The Chair shall call Committee meetings (ref: Section 5.0 below). 


B. The Chair shall, in consultation with District staff and with input from the Committee, establish 
the agenda for each Committee meeting. (ref: Section 5.1 below) 


C. The Chair shall preside over each Committee meeting, following the adopted Rules of 
Procedure (ref: Section 5.4 below). 


D. The Chair or his/her Committee-approved designee shall serve as spokesperson for the 
Committee in all representations of the Committee to the public, the Board, and the media (ref: 
Section 6.0.A and 6.0.B below). 


E. The Chair may appoint a Parliamentarian to assist in complying with Robert’s Rules of Order 
during Committee meetings (ref: Section 5.4 below). 


4.4 Duties of the Vice-Chair 


The Vice-Chair shall perform each of the duties of the Chair as necessary in the absence of the Chair. 


4.5 Duties of the District-Designated Secretary 


A. Subject to review by the Chair before publishing, the District-designated Secretary shall 
provide oversight in the preparation, recording, and distribution by District-provided support of the 
following documents in accordance with the Brown Act: 


Committee meeting agendas; 


All reports, materials, and meeting packets as required by or addressed to the Committee; 


The minutes of Committee meetings (ref: Section 5.8 below); 


All written material submitted by the public during Committee meetings; 


All official correspondence addressed to the Committee; 


Reports adopted by the Committee; 


Committee attendance records (ref: Section 5.8, below). 


B. The District-designated Secretary shall take and record roll at the beginning of each 
Committee meeting to determine the existence of a quorum. If a quorum ceases to exist during a 
meeting, the District-designated Secretary shall immediately inform the Chair. 


4.6 Succession 


The Vice-Chair will accede to Chair when a vacancy occurs in that office. In the event of a vacancy in the 
office of Vice-Chair, the position will be filled by election, agendized at its next regular Committee 
meeting. 


5.0 Meetings 


A. All Committee meetings subject to the Brown Act will be held in a fully-accessible District 
facility. 


B. The Committee shall meet at least quarterly. 


260 of 428







5 
PTOC Bylaws SCCS  - Rev 082317 


C. Committee members shall be available to attend Board of Education meetings when reports 
relating to parcel tax measures are presented. 


5.1 Agendas 


   
A. The Committee will take public comment at the beginning of each meeting. 


A.B. Agendas for regular Committee meetings will be prepared by its Chair, in consultation 
with District staff and with input from the committee (ref: Section 4.3.B above).  All documents 
applicable to agenda items shall be distributed in advance of meetings. 


B.C. Any member of the Committee may submit a request for placing an item on a future 
agenda. 


C.D. Agendas may include a consent calendar for routine, non-controversial items. These 
items must be clearly identified on published agendas. Any member of the Committee or public 
may request at the meeting that an item be added to the consent calendar or be pulled for 
discussion. 


D.E. After roll-call and the establishment of a quorum, meetings will begin with a consent 
calendar if appropriate. 


5.2 Quorum 


Actions may be undertaken at a meeting only if half-plus-one of Committee members in office are 
present. 


5.3 Committee Voting 


Unless otherwise specified in these Bylaws (ref: Sections 3.3.C.2 and 6.0.B), an agendized action item 
may be approved by a simple majority of Committee members in attendance, a quorum being present 
(ref: Section 5.2).  Members must be present to vote. 


5.4 Rules of Procedure 


Meetings shall be conducted with courtesy and decorum and in accordance with Robert's Rules of Order. 


5.5 California's Open Meeting Law 


All meetings of the Committee shall be open to the public and shall be noticed and conducted in strict 
compliance with the Brown Act. 


5.6 Public Participation 


Any member of the public present at a meeting may address the Committee during the period designated 
for public comment. The Chair may, at his/her discretion, choose in advance to place an equal time limit 
on all speakers. 


5.7 Minutes 


Minutes of Committee proceedings and all documents received and reports issued shall be a matter of 
public record, and to the extent practicable, the District shall make them available on the District’s 
website. The District shall provide secretarial/clerical services to assist the Committee Chair in 
preparation, distribution, and posting of minutes for all Committee meetings (ref: Section 4.5 above). 
Minutes published before adoption by the Committee shall always be labeled "Draft Minutes." 


261 of 428







6 
PTOC Bylaws SCCS  - Rev 082317 


5.8 Attendance 


Regular attendance at Committee meetings is a fundamental obligation of every member of the 
Committee. Absences are disruptive to Committee activity and representation. Failure to attend two 
consecutive meetings without acceptable reason announced in advance shall constitute due cause for 
member removal (ref: Section 3.3.). 


A. Members anticipating an absence must call or email the Committee Chair or District-
designated Secretary no later than 24 hours before the scheduled meeting. 


B. Committee attendance reports will be distributed annually and upon request by the Chair. 


6.0 Committee Reports 


A. The Committee shall prepare regular reports on its activities. A report shall be issued at least 
once each year. 


B. Any such reports, written and/or oral, that represent the Committee’s position must proceed 
from Committee review, be duly approved as to substance by an affirmative vote of not less than 
two-thirds of the members present at a Committee meeting, a quorum being present, and be 
faithfully articulated to the public only by the Committee Chair or an approved designee. 


C. Reports of minority viewpoints will be allowed. All such reports, written and/or oral, that 
represent the minority’s position must be reviewed, be duly approved as to substance without 
prejudice by a vote of the Committee, and be faithfully articulated to the public only by a 
designated minority spokesperson.  To avoid the need for minority reports, and to maximize the 
working relationships on and public confidence in the Committee, all due diligence should be 
pursued to resolve divisive issues during the review process, thereby attaining fullest possible 
Committee support for the content of public reports. 


D. Any member of the Committee may speak as an individual on parcel tax issues but must 
clearly state for the record that such statements are their own personal views which do not 
necessarily represent those of the Committee or the District. 


 


 


 


262 of 428







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.5.  


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  Board Policy Updates 
      
MEETING DATE:  August 23, 2017 
 
FROM:    Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the revised/new policies as submitted for and/or final reading.   


 
BACKGROUND: 
New and revised policies are submitted through the GAMUT online board policy book updating 
process, which sends policies for review to participating districts approximately six times per 
year.  These recommendations reflect recent changes in education code and/or case law.  The 
policies have been reviewed by staff to ensure that any required customization for Santa Cruz 
City Schools has been included.  These policies were provided to the Trustees on August 18 for 
review. 
 
The Policy Guidesheet provides a basic overview of the policy changes.  Proposed revised 
policies precede our current policies for your review.  If the policy is new to our district, there is 
no current policy for review. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following district goal and its corresponding metrics: 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and 
career opportunities. 
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gap the currently exists between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse 
community. 


263 of 428







POLICY GUIDE SHEET 


May 2017 


Page 1 of 2 
 


 


Note: Descriptions below identify revisions made in CSBA's sample board policies, administrative regulations, 


board bylaws, and/or exhibits. Editorial changes have also been made. Districts should review the sample materials 


and modify their own policies accordingly. 


 
BP 1340 - Access to District Records 


(BP revised) 


Policy updated to reflect NEW COURT DECISION (City of San Jose v. Superior Court) which held that 


using a personal account or device to send or receive communications regarding public business does not 


categorically exclude those records from disclosure in response to a request under the California Public 


Records Act and that public agencies are obliged to disclose applicable records that they can locate with 


reasonable effort. 


 


BP 2121 - Superintendent's Contract 


(BP revised) 


Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 1436, 2016) which requires the board, prior to taking final action 


on the superintendent's salary or benefits, to orally report a summary of the recommended action during open 


session of a board meeting. Updated policy also clarifies that deliberations regarding the superintendent's 


salary or other compensation cannot be held during a special meeting of the board. 


 


BP 4127/4227/4327 - Temporary Athletic Team Coaches 


(BP revised) 


Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 1639, 2016) which requires coaches, beginning July 1, 2017, to 


complete a training course related to the nature and warning signs of sudden cardiac arrest and to retake such 


a course every two years thereafter. Policy also allows a coach to submit either the Activity Supervisor 


Clearance Certificate or the Department of Justice and Federal Bureau of Investigation criminal background 


check. Material regarding certification of coaches' qualifications to the board and the State Board of 


Education moved from AR to BP. 


 


BP 4312.1 - Contracts 


(BP revised) 


Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 1436, 2016) which requires the board, prior to taking final action 


on the salary or benefits of employees whose position within the district is established through an 


employment contract, to orally report a summary of the recommended action during open session of a board 


meeting. Updated policy also clarifies the limited circumstances under which salary and benefits may be 


discussed in closed session and the prohibition against discussing salary or other compensation during a 


special meeting of the board. 


 


BP 6145 - Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities 


(BP revised) 


Policy updated to reflect law which provides that a homeless student must be immediately deemed to meet 


all residency requirements for participation in extracurricular activities. Legal cites added for the prohibition 


against student fees and the requirement to annually review the policy. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


264 of 428







POLICY GUIDE SHEET 


May 2017 


Page 2 of 2 


 
 


 


BP 6145.2 - Athletic Competition 


(BP revised) 


Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 1639, 2016) which requires (1) distribution to student athletes and 


parents/guardians of information on the nature and warning signs of sudden cardiac arrest, (2) training of 


coaches and athletic directors on the nature and warning signs of sudden cardiac arrest, and (3) removal of a 


student from an athletic activity if he/she passes out or faints, until clearance is obtained from a health care 


provider. Policy also updated to reflect the prohibition against the use of a racially derogatory or 


discriminatory athletic team name, mascot, or nickname. Policy reflects law which provides that a homeless 


student must be immediately deemed to meet all residency requirements for participation in interscholastic 


athletic activities.  


 


BP 7214 - General Obligation Bonds 


(BP revised) 


Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 1029, 2016) which requires the board to adopt a debt management 


policy prior to issuing any debt, including a general obligation bond, and to certify to the California Debt and 


Investment Advisory Commission that any proposed issuance of debt is consistent with the district's policy. 


Policy also reflects NEW LAW (AB 2116, 2016) which requires the board to obtain reasonable and informed 


projections of assessed valuations that take into consideration projections of assessed property valuations 


made by the county assessor, and NEW LAW (AB 2738, 2016) which prohibits districts from withdrawing 


proceeds from bond sales at any time for the purpose of making investments outside the county treasury. 


Policy also adds caution that some uses of bond proceeds that are specified in the Education Code for bond 


elections with a 66.67 percent threshold may be inconsistent with the California Constitution and encourages 


consultation with legal counsel. 


 


BB 9012 - Board Member Electronic Communications 


(BB revised) 


Bylaw updated to reflect NEW COURT DECISION (City of San Jose v. Superior Court) which held that 


using a personal account or device to send or receive communications regarding public business does not 


categorically exclude those records from disclosure in response to a request under the California Public 


Records Act and that public agencies are obliged to disclose applicable records that they can locate with 


reasonable effort. 


 


265 of 428







POLICY GUIDE SHEET 


March 2017 


Page 1 of 2 
 


 


Note: Descriptions below identify revisions made in CSBA's sample board policies, administrative regulations, 


board bylaws, and/or exhibits. Editorial changes have also been made. Districts should review the sample materials 


and modify their own policies accordingly. 


 
BP 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan 


(BP revised) 


Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (Proposition 58, 2016) which requires the local control and 


accountability plan (LCAP) development process to include solicitation of parent/guardian and community 


input on effective and appropriate instructional methods, including language acquisition programs. Policy 


also reflects the State Board of Education's (SBE) adoption of evaluation rubrics (the "California School 


Dashboard") that will assist districts in evaluating progress toward their LCAP goals. 


 


BP 3260 - Fees and Charges 


(BP revised) 


Policy reorganized and updated to reflect a California Department of Education (CDE) management advisory 


regarding the prohibition against requiring parent/guardian volunteer hours or payment as a condition of the 


student's enrollment or participation in educational activities.  


 


BP 5111 - Admission 


(BP revised) 


Policy updated and released on GAMUT in February, in conjunction with new CSBA Legal Guidance, to 


clarify that, under state compulsory education laws and the U.S. Supreme Court decision in Plyler v. Doe, 


students cannot be denied a free public education on the basis of their citizenship or immigration status, 


including their status as undocumented children. Policy includes direction not to inquire into a student's 


citizenship or immigration status nor deny enrollment on the basis of citizenship or immigration status. Policy 


also reflects NEW LAW (AB 2308, 2016) which extends the requirement that the district's enrollment forms 


include an informational item about affordable health care options and available enrollment assistance 


through the 2020-21 school year. 


 


BP 5111.1 - District Residency 


(BP revised) 


Policy updated and released on GAMUT in February, in conjunction with new CSBA Legal Guidance, to 


clarify that, under state compulsory education laws and the U.S. Supreme Court decision in Plyler v. Doe, 


districts cannot deny enrollment on the basis of citizenship or immigration status and therefore should not 


request visas, passports, or other documentation that would discourage undocumented children from 


enrolling in school. 


 


BP 5113 - Absences and Excuses 


(BP revised) 


Policy updated to reflect the requirement for a board resolution approving reasonable methods by which 


students can verify absences due to illness or quarantine. Policy also deletes section on "Effect of Absence 


on Grades/Credits," as that material is covered in BP/AR 5121 - Grades/Evaluation of Student Achievement 


and BP 6154 - Homework/Makeup Work.  


 


 


 


 


 


 


266 of 428







POLICY GUIDE SHEET 


March 2017 


Page 2 of 2 
 
 


BP 5148.2 - Before/After School Programs 


(BP revised) 


Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 2615, 2016) which permits districts to charge a family fee for 


participation in an ASES, 21st CCLC, or ASSETs program, as long as the fee is waived or reduced for low-


income families and, effective July 1, 2017, the fee is not charged for a homeless or foster youth. Policy also 


links program content with goals in the district's LCAP, and includes material formerly in AR related to 


priorities for establishing district programs consistent with state and federal priorities for funding programs.  


 


BP 6111 - School Calendar 


(BP new to SCCS) 


Policy updated to clarify that a district must offer a minimum of 175 instructional days per school year until 


it meets or exceeds its funding target under the local control funding formula, at which time the minimum 


required number of instructional days is 180. Policy also adds reference to the requirement for a minimum 


of 163 instructional days per year for multitrack year-round schools. 


 


BP 6144 - Controversial Issues 


(BP revised) 


Policy updated to provide that parents/guardians may be given an opportunity to opt out of instruction on 


controversial issues only when required by law, not at the discretion of a teacher or administrator. Policy also 


clarifies the district's right to limit teacher expressions of personal opinion when teachers are in the classroom 


and therefore acting on behalf of the district. 


 


BP 6174 - Education for English Learners 


(BP revised) 


Policy substantially revised to reflect NEW LAW (Proposition 58) which  authorizes parents/guardians to 


select a language acquisition program that best suits their child and eliminates the requirement for 


parents/guardians to request a waiver from the district if they want to enroll their child in a program other 


than a structured English immersion program. Policy reflects provisions of Proposition 58 that require 


districts to (1) offer, at a minimum, a structured English immersion program; (2) seek parent/guardian and 


community input on language acquisition programs during development of the district's LCAP; and (3) to 


the extent possible, offer a language acquisition program requested by parents/guardians of 30 or more 


students at a school or 20 or more students in any grade level at the school. Policy also reflects revisions in 


Title III English learner programs, including renumbering of accountability requirements and changes in the 


required parental notification, pursuant to the Every Student Succeeds Act. Title of policy updated to reflect 


current terminology. 


 


BP 6176 - Weekend/Saturday Classes 


(BP revised) 


Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 2659, 2016) which authorizes makeup classes for any type of 


absence, including excused absences, to be offered during the weekend. Policy also adds material regarding 


the circumstances under which teachers cannot be assigned to work on a weekend. 


267 of 428







 


 


Board Bylaws BB 9012(a) 


 


BOARD MEMBER ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATIONS 
 


 


The Governing Board recognizes that electronic communication is an efficient and convenient 


way for Board members to communicate and expedite the exchange of information within the 


district and with members of the public. Board members shall exercise caution so as to ensure 


that electronic communications are not used as a means for the Board to deliberate outside of 


an agendized Board meeting nor to circumvent the public's right to access records regarding 


district business. 


 
(cf. 1100 - Communication with the Public) 


(cf. 9000 - Role of the Board) 


(cf. 9322 - Agenda/Meeting Materials) 


 


A majority of the Board shall not, outside of an authorized meeting, use a series of electronic 


communications of any kind, directly or through intermediaries, to discuss, deliberate, or take 


action on any item that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board.  (Government 


Code 54952.2) 


 
(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Notices) 


 


Examples of permissible electronic communications concerning district business include, but 


are not limited to, dissemination of Board meeting agendas and agenda packets, reports of 


activities from the Superintendent, and reminders regarding meeting times, dates, and places. 


 


In addition, Board members may use electronic communications to discuss matters that do not 


pertain to district business, regardless of the number of Board members participating in the 


discussion. 


 


Board members shall make every effort to ensure that their electronic communications 


conform to the same standards and protocols established for other forms of communication.  A 


Board member may respond, as appropriate, to an electronic communication received from a 


member of the community and should make clear that his/her response does not necessarily 


reflect the views of the Board as a whole. Any complaint or request for information should be 


forwarded to the Superintendent in accordance with Board bylaws and protocols so that the 


issue may receive proper consideration and be handled through the appropriate district process.  


As appropriate, communication received from the media shall be forwarded to the 


Superintendent and Board President . 


 
(cf. 1112 - Media Relations) 


(cf. 1312.1 - Complaints Concerning District Employees) 


(cf. 1312.2 - Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials) 


(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures) 


(cf. 1312.4 - Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures) 


(cf. 3320 - Claims and Actions Against the District) 


(cf. 9005 - Governance Standards) 


(cf. 9121 - President) 


(cf. 9200 - Limits of Board Member Authority) 


268 of 428







 


 


 


 BB 9012(b) 


 


 


BOARD MEMBER ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATIONS  (continued) 


 


 


To the extent possible, electronic communications regarding any district-related business shall 


be transmitted through a district-provided device or account. When any such communication 


is transmitted through a Board member's personal device or account, he/she shall copy the 


communication to a district electronic storage device for easy retrieval. 


 
(cf. 1340 - Access to District Records) 


(cf. 3580 - District Records) 
 


 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


35140  Time and place of meetings 


35145  Public meetings 


35145.5  Agenda; public participation; regulations 


35147  Open meeting law exceptions and applications 


GOVERNMENT CODE 


6250-6270 California Public Records Act 


11135  State programs and activities, discrimination 


54950-54963  The Ralph M. Brown Act, especially: 


54952.2  Meeting, defined 


54953  Meetings to be open and public; attendance 


54954.2  Agenda posting requirements, board actions 


COURT DECISIONS 


City of San Jose v. Superior Court (2017) 2 Cal.5th 608 
 


Management Resources: 


CSBA PUBLICATIONS 


Legal Alert: Tips for Governing Boards in Response to Public Records Act Ruling on Electronic 


Communications, March 2017 


The Brown Act: School Boards and Open Meeting Laws, rev. 2014 


ATTORNEY GENERAL PUBLICATIONS 


The Brown Act: Open Meetings for Legislative Bodies, 2003 


WEB SITES 


CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 


CSBA, Agenda Online: https://www.csba.org/ProductsAndServices/AllServices/AgendaOnline.aspx 


California Attorney General's Office:  https://oag.ca.gov 


 


 


 


Bylaw SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:  February  23, 2011 Soquel, California 


revised:   September 13, 2017 


 


 


 


 


269 of 428







 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools 


Board Bylaw 


Board Member Electronic Communications 
 


BB 9012  


Board Bylaws 
 


 


The Governing Board recognizes that electronic communication among Board members and 


between Board members, district administration, and members of the public is an efficient and 


convenient way to communicate and expedite the exchange of information and to help keep the 


community informed about the goals, programs, and achievements of the district and its schools.  


Board members shall exercise caution so as to ensure that electronic communications are not 


used as a means for the Board to deliberate outside of an agendized Board meeting. 


 


(cf. 1100 - Communication with the Public) 


(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement) 


(cf. 9000 - Role of the Board) 


(cf. 9322 - Agenda/Meeting Materials) 


 


A majority of the Board shall not, outside of an authorized meeting, use a series of electronic 


communications of any kind, directly or through intermediaries, to discuss, deliberate, or take 


action on any item that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board.  (Government 


Code 54952.2) 


 


(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Notices) 


 


Examples of permissible electronic communications concerning district business include, but are 


not limited to, dissemination of Board meeting agendas and agenda packets, reports of activities 


from the Superintendent, and reminders regarding meeting times, dates, and places. 


 


Board members shall make every effort to ensure that their electronic communications conform 


to the same standards and protocols established for other forms of communication.  A Board 


member may respond, as appropriate, to an electronic communication received from a member 


of the community and should make clear that his/her response does not necessarily reflect the 


views of the Board as a whole. 


 


(cf. 1112 - Media Relations) 


(cf. 1312.1 - Complaints Concerning District Employees) 


(cf. 1312.2 - Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials) 


(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures) 


(cf. 1312.4 - Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures) 


(cf. 3320 - Claims and Actions Against the District) 


(cf. 9005 - Governance Standards) 


(cf. 9121 - Board President 


270 of 428







 


 


(cf. 9200 - Limits of Board Member Authority) 


(cf. 9270 - Conflict of Interest) 


 


In order to minimize the risk of improper disclosure, Board members shall avoid reference to 


confidential information and information acquired during closed session. 


 


(cf. 4112.6/4212.6/4312.6 - Personnel Files) 


(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 


(cf. 9011 - Disclosure of Confidential/Privileged Information) 


(cf. 9321 - Closed Session Purposes and Agendas) 


 


Like other writings concerning district business, a Board member's electronic communication 


may be subject to disclosure under the California Public Records Act. 


 


(cf. 1340 - Access to District Records) 


 


 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


35140  Time and place of meetings 


35145  Public meetings 


35145.5  Agenda; public participation; regulations 


35147  Open meeting law exceptions and applications 


GOVERNMENT CODE 


11135  State programs and activities, discrimination 


54950-54963  The Ralph M. Brown Act, especially: 


54952.2  Meeting, defined 


54953  Meetings to be open and public; attendance 


54954.2  Agenda posting requirements, board actions 


 


Management Resources: 


CSBA PUBLICATIONS 


The Brown Act: School Boards and Open Meeting Laws, rev. 2006 


ATTORNEY GENERAL PUBLICATIONS 


The Brown Act: Open Meetings for Legislative Bodies, 2003 


LEAGUE OF CALIFORNIA CITIES PUBLICATIONS 


Open and Public IV: A Guide to the Ralph M. Brown Act, rev. 2007 


WEB SITES 


CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 


CSBA, Agenda Online: 


http://www.csba.org/Services/Services/GovernanceTechnology/AgendaOnline.aspx 


Institute for Local Government:  http://www.cacities.org/index.jsp?zone=ilsg 


 


 


 


271 of 428







 


 


Bylaw SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:  February  23, 2011 Soquel, California 


272 of 428







 


 


Philosophy, Goals, Objectives, and Comprehensive Plans BP 0460(a) 


 


LOCAL CONTROL AND ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN 


 


 


The Governing Board desires to ensure the most effective use of available funding to improve 


outcomes for all students. A community-based, comprehensive, data-driven planning process 


shall be used to identify annual goals and specific actions and to facilitate continuous 


improvement of district practices. 


 
(cf. 0000 - Vision) 


(cf. 0200 - Goals for the School District) 


 


The Board shall adopt a districtwide local control and accountability plan (LCAP), following 


the template provided in 5 CCR 15497.5, that addresses the state priorities in Education Code 


52060 and any local priorities adopted by the Board. The LCAP shall be updated on or before 


July 1 of each year and, like the district budget, shall cover the next fiscal year and subsequent 


two fiscal years.  (Education Code 52060; 5 CCR 15497.5) 


 
(cf. 3100 - Budget) 


 


The LCAP shall focus on improving outcomes for all students, particularly those who are 


"unduplicated students" and other underperforming students. 


 


Unduplicated students include students who are eligible for free or reduced-price meals, 


English learners, and foster youth and are counted only once for purposes of the local control 


funding formula.  (Education Code 42238.02) 
 


(cf. 3553 - Free and Reduced Price Meals) 


(cf. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth) 


(cf. 6174 - Education for English Language Learners) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall review the single plan for student achievement (SPSA) 


submitted by each district school pursuant to Education Code 64001 to ensure that the specific 


actions included in the LCAP are consistent with strategies included in the SPSA.  (Education 


Code 52062) 


 
(cf. 0420 - School Plans/Site Councils) 


 


The LCAP shall also be aligned with other district and school plans to the extent possible in 


order to minimize duplication of effort and provide clear direction for program 


implementation. 
 


(cf. 0400 - Comprehensive Plans) 


(cf. 0440 - District Technology Plan) 


(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan) 


(cf. 5030 - Student Wellness) 


(cf. 6171 - Title I Programs) 


(cf. 7110 - Facilities Master Plan) 


 


 


273 of 428







 


 


 


 BP 0460(b) 


 


 


LOCAL CONTROL AND ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN  (continued) 


 


 


Any complaint that the district has not complied with legal requirements pertaining to the 


LCAP may be filed pursuant to AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures.  (Education Code 


52075) 
 


(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures) 
 


Plan Development 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall gather data and information needed for effective and 


meaningful plan development and present it to the Board and community. Such data and 


information shall include, but not be limited to, data regarding the number of students in 


student subgroups, disaggregated data on student achievement levels, and information about 


current programs and expenditures. 


 


The Board shall consult with teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel, 


employee bargaining units, parents/guardians, and students in developing the LCAP. 


Consultation with students shall enable unduplicated students and other numerically significant 


student subgroups to review and comment on LCAP development and may include surveys of 


students, student forums, student advisory committees, and/or meetings with student 


government bodies or other groups representing students. (Education Code 52060; 5 CCR 


15495) 


 
(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees) 


(cf. 4140/4240/4340 - Bargaining Units) 


(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement) 


 


Public Review and Input 


 


The Board shall establish a parent advisory committee to review and comment on the LCAP. 


The committee shall be composed of a majority of parents/guardians and shall include at least 


one parent/guardian of an unduplicated student as defined above. (Education Code 52063; 5 


CCR 15495) 


 


Whenever district enrollment includes at least 15 percent English learners, with at least 50 


students who are English learners, the Board shall establish an English learner parent advisory 


committee composed of a majority of parents/guardians of English learners. (Education Code 


52063; 5 CCR 15495) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall present the LCAP to the committee(s) before it is 


submitted to the Board for adoption, and shall respond in writing to comments received from 


the committee(s).  (Education Code 52062) 


 


274 of 428







 


 


 BP 0460(c) 


 


LOCAL CONTROL AND ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN  (continued) 


 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall notify members of the public of the opportunity to submit 


written comments regarding the specific actions and expenditures proposed to be included in 


the LCAP.  The notification shall be provided using the most efficient method of notification 


possible, which may not necessarily include producing printed notices or sending notices by 


mail.  All written notifications related to the LCAP shall be provided in the primary language 


of parents/guardians when required by Education Code 48985.  (Education Code 52062) 


 
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 


 


As part of the parent and community engagement process, the district shall solicit input on 


effective and appropriate instructional methods, including, but not limited to, establishing 


language acquisition programs to enable all students, including English learners and native 


English speakers, to have access to the core academic content standards and to become 


proficient in English.  (Education Code 305-306) 


 


The Board shall hold at least one public hearing to solicit the recommendations and comments 


of members of the public regarding the specific actions and expenditures proposed to be 


included in the LCAP. The public hearing shall be held at the same meeting as the budget 


hearing required pursuant to Education Code 42127 and AR 3100 - Budget. (Education Code 


42127, 52062) 


 
(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Notices) 


 


Adoption of the Plan 


 


The Board shall adopt the LCAP prior to adopting the district budget, but at the same public 


meeting. This meeting shall be held after the public hearing described above, but not on the 


same day as the hearing.  


 


The Board may adopt revisions to the LCAP at any time during the period in which the plan is 


in effect, provided the Board follows the process to adopt the LCAP pursuant to Education 


Code 52062 and the revisions are adopted in a public meeting.  (Education Code 52062) 


 


Submission of Plan to County Superintendent of Schools 


 


Not later than five days after adoption of the LCAP, the Board shall file the LCAP with the 


County Superintendent of Schools.  (Education Code 52070) 


 


If the County Superintendent sends, by August 15, a written request for clarification of the 


contents of the LCAP, the Board shall respond in writing within 15 days of the request.  If the 


County Superintendent then submits recommendations for amendments to the LCAP  


 


  


275 of 428







 


 


 BP 0460(d) 


 


 


LOCAL CONTROL AND ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN  (continued) 


 


 


within 15 days of receiving the Board's response, the Board shall consider those 


recommendations in a public meeting within 15 days of receiving the recommendations.  


(Education Code 52070) 


 


Monitoring Progress 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall report to the Board, at least annually in accordance with 


the timeline and indicators established by him/her and the Board, regarding the district's 


progress toward attaining each goal identified in the LCAP.  Evaluation shall include, but not 


be limited to, an assessment of district and school performance based on evaluation rubrics 


adopted by the State Board of Education pursuant to Education Code 52064.5. Evaluation data 


shall be used to recommend any necessary revisions to the LCAP. 


 
(cf. 0500 - Accountability) 


 


Technical Assistance/Intervention 


 


When it is in the best interest of the district, the Board may submit a request to the County 


Superintendent for technical assistance, including, but not limited to:  (Education Code 52071) 


 


1. Assistance in the identification of district strengths and weaknesses in regard to state 


priorities and review of effective, evidence-based programs that apply to the district's 


goals 


 


2. Assistance from an academic expert, team of academic experts, or another district in 


the county in identifying and implementing effective programs to improve the 


outcomes for student subgroups 


 


3. Advice and assistance from the California Collaborative for Educational Excellence 


established pursuant to Education Code 52074 


 


In the event that the County Superintendent requires the district to receive technical assistance 


pursuant to Education Code 52071, the Board shall review all recommendations received from 


the County Superintendent or other advisor and shall consider revisions to the LCAP as 


appropriate in accordance with the process specified in Education Code 52062. 


 


If the Superintendent of Public Instruction (SPI) identifies the district as needing intervention 


pursuant to Education Code 52072, the district shall cooperate with any action taken by the 


SPI or any academic advisor appointed by the SPI, which may include one or more of the 


following: 


 


1. Revision of the district's LCAP 


276 of 428







 


 


 BP 0460(e) 


 


 


LOCAL CONTROL AND ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN  (continued) 


 


 


2. Revision of the district's budget in accordance with changes in the LCAP 


 


3. A determination to stay or rescind any district action that would prevent the district 


from improving outcomes for all student subgroups, provided that action is not required 


by a collective bargaining agreement 


 


 


 
Legal Reference:  


EDUCATION CODE 


305-306  English language education 


17002  State School Building Lease-Purchase Law, including definition of good repair 


33430-33436  Learning Communities for School Success Program; grants for LCAP implementation 


41020  Audits 


42127  Public hearing on budget adoption 


42238.01-42238.07  Local control funding formula 


44258.9  County superintendent review of teacher assignment 


48985  Parental notices in languages other than English 


51210  Course of study for grades 1-6 


51220  Course of study for grades 7-12 


52052  Academic Performance Index; numerically significant student subgroups 


52060-52077  Local control and accountability plan 


52302  Regional occupational centers and programs 


52372.5  Linked learning pilot program 


54692  Partnership academies 


60119  Sufficiency of textbooks and instructional materials; hearing and resolution 


60605.8  California Assessment of Academic Achievement; Academic Content Standards Commission 


60811.3  Assessment of language development 


64001  Single plan for student achievement 


99300-99301  Early Assessment Program 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 


15494-15497.5  Local control and accountability plan and spending requirements 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 


6312  Local educational agency plan 


6826 Title III funds, local plans 


 


 


 
Management Resources: (see next page) 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


277 of 428







 


 


 


 BP 0460(f) 


 


 


LOCAL CONTROL AND ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN  (continued) 


 


 


 
Management Resources: 


CSBA PUBLICATIONS 


Promising Practices for Developing and Implementing LCAPs, Governance Brief, November 2016 


LCFF Rubrics, Issue 1: What Boards Need to Know About the New Rubrics, Governance Brief, rev. 


October 2016 


CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 


California School Accounting Manual 


Every Student Succeeds Act - Update #6, January 18, 2017 


LCFF Frequently Asked Questions 


WEB SITES 


CSBA: http://www.csba.org 


California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:  December 11, 2013 Soquel, California 


revised: September 13, 2017 


278 of 428







 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools 


Board Policy 


Local Control And Accountability Plan 
 


BP 0460  


Philosophy, Goals, Objectives and Comprehensive Plans 
 


 


The Governing Board desires to ensure the most effective use of available state funding to 


improve outcomes for all students. A community-based, comprehensive, data-driven planning 


process shall be used to identify annual goals and specific actions aligned with state and local 


priorities and to facilitate continuous improvement of district practices. 


 


(cf. 0000 - Vision) 


(cf. 0200 - Goals for the School District) 


 


The Board shall adopt a districtwide local control and accountability plan (LCAP), using the 


template provided by the State Board of Education, which addresses the state priorities specified 


in Education Code 52060.  The LCAP shall be effective for three years and shall be updated on 


or before July 1 of each year.  (Education Code 52060) 


 


In addition, the LCAP shall address any local priorities adopted by the Board. 


 


The LCAP shall focus on improving outcomes for all students, particularly those who are 


"unduplicated students" and other underperforming students. 


 


Unduplicated students include students who are eligible for free or reduced-price meals, English 


learners, and foster youth and are counted only once for purposes of the local control funding 


formula.  (Education Code 42238.02) 


 


(cf. 3553 - Free and Reduced Price Meals) 


(cf. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth) 


(cf. 6174 - Education for English Language Learners) 


 


To minimize duplication of effort and provide clear direction for program implementation, the 


LCAP and other district and school plans shall be aligned to the extent possible. 


 


(cf. 0400 - Comprehensive Plans) 


(cf. 0440 - District Technology Plan) 


(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan) 


(cf. 5030 - Student Wellness) 


(cf. 6171 - Title I Programs) 


(cf. 7110 - Facilities Master Plan) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall review the single plan for student achievement (SPSA) 


279 of 428







 


 


submitted by each district school pursuant to Education Code 64001 to ensure that the specific 


actions included in the LCAP or the annual update are consistent with strategies included in the 


SPSA.  (Education Code 52062) 


 


(cf. 0420 - School Plans/Site Councils) 


 


Any complaint that the district has not complied with legal requirements pertaining to the LCAP 


may be filed pursuant to AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures.  (Education Code 52075) 


 


(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures) 


 


Plan Development 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall gather data and information needed for effective and 


meaningful plan development and present it to the Board and community.  Such data and 


information shall include, but not be limited to, data regarding the numbers of students in various 


student subgroups, disaggregated data on student achievement levels, and information about 


current programs and expenditures. 


 


The Board shall consult with teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel, 


employee bargaining units, parents/guardians, and students in developing the LCAP.  


(Education Code 52060) 


 


(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees) 


(cf. 4140/4240/4340 - Bargaining Units) 


(cf. 4143/4243 - Negotiations/Consultation) 


(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement) 


 


Public Review and Input 


 


The Board shall establish the following committee(s) to review and comment on the LCAP: 


(Education Code 52063) 


 


1. A parent advisory committee including at least one parent/guardian of unduplicated 


students as defined above 


 


2. An English learner parent advisory committee whenever district enrollment includes at 


least 15 percent English learners and at least 50 students who are English learners 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall present the LCAP or the annual update to the committee(s) 


before it is submitted to the Board for adoption, and shall respond in writing to comments 


received from the committee(s).  (Education Code 52062) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall notify members of the public of the opportunity to submit 


written comments regarding the specific actions and expenditures proposed to be included in the 


LCAP or the annual update to the LCAP.  The notification shall be provided  


280 of 428







 


 


using the most efficient method of notification possible, which may not necessarily include 


producing printed notices or sending notices by mail.  All written notifications related to the 


LCAP or the annual update shall be provided in the primary language of parents/guardians when 


required by Education Code 48985.  (Education Code 52062) 


 


The Board shall hold at least one public hearing to solicit the recommendations and comments of 


members of the public regarding the specific actions and expenditures proposed to be included in 


the LCAP or the annual update.  The public hearing shall be held at the same meeting as the 


public hearing required prior to the adoption of the district budget in accordance with Education 


Code 42127 and AR 3100 - Budget.  (Education Code 42127, 52062) 


 


(cf. 3100 - Budget) 


(cf. 3460 - Financial Reports and Accountability) 


(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Notices) 


 


Adoption of the Plan 


 


Prior to adopting the district budget, but at the same public meeting, the Board shall adopt the 


LCAP or the annual update.  This meeting shall be held after the public hearing described 


above, but not on the same day as the hearing.  (Education Code 52062) 


 


The Board may adopt revisions to the LCAP at any time during the period in which the plan is in 


effect, provided the Board follows the process to adopt the LCAP pursuant to Education Code 


52062 and the revisions are adopted in a public meeting.  (Education Code 52062) 


 


Submission of Plan to County Superintendent of Schools 


 


Not later than five days after adoption of the LCAP or the annual update to the LCAP, the Board 


shall file the LCAP or the annual update with the County Superintendent of Schools.  


(Education Code 52070) 


 


If the County Superintendent sends, by August 15, a written request for clarification of the 


contents of the LCAP or the annual update, the Board shall respond in writing within 15 days of 


the request.  If the County Superintendent then submits recommendations for amendments to the 


LCAP within 15 days of receiving the Board's response, the Board shall consider those 


recommendations in a public meeting within 15 days of receiving the recommendations.  


(Education Code 52070) 


 


Monitoring Progress 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall report to the Board, at least annually in accordance with the 


timeline and indicators established by him/her and the Board, regarding the district's progress 


toward attaining each goal identified in the LCAP.  Evaluation data shall be used to recommend 


any necessary revisions to the LCAP. 


 


(cf. 0500 - Accountability) 


281 of 428







 


 


 


Technical Assistance/Intervention 


 


When it is in the best interest of the district, the Board may submit a request to the County 


Superintendent for technical assistance, including, but not limited to:  (Education Code 52071) 


 


1. Assistance in the identification of district strengths and weaknesses in regard to state 


priorities and review of effective, evidence-based programs that apply to the district's goals 


 


2. Assistance from an academic expert, team of academic experts, or another district in the 


county in identifying and implementing effective programs to improve the outcomes for student 


subgroups 


 


3. Advice and assistance from the California Collaborative for Educational Excellence 


established pursuant to Education Code 52074 


 


In the event that the County Superintendent requires the district to receive technical assistance 


pursuant to Education Code 52071, the Board shall review all recommendations received from 


the County Superintendent or other advisor and shall consider revisions to the LCAP as 


appropriate in accordance with the process specified in Education Code 52062. 


 


If the Superintendent of Public Instruction (SPI) identifies the district as needing intervention 


pursuant to Education Code 52072, the district shall cooperate with any action taken by the SPI 


or any academic advisor appointed by the SPI, which may include one or more of the following: 


 


1. Revision of the district's LCAP 


 


2. Revision of the district's budget in accordance with changes in the LCAP 


 


3. A determination to stay or rescind any district action that would prevent the district from 


improving outcomes for all student subgroups, provided that action is not required by a 


collective bargaining agreement 


 


 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


17002  State School Building Lease-Purchase Law, including definition of good repair 


41020  Audits 


42127  Public hearing on budget adoption 


42238.01-42238.07  Local control funding formula 


44258.9  County superintendent review of teacher assignment 


48985  Parental notices in languages other than English 


51210  Course of study for grades 1-6 


51220  Course of study for grades 7-12 


52052  Academic Performance Index; numerically significant student subgroups 


282 of 428







 


 


52060-52077  Local control and accountability plan 


52302  Regional occupational centers and programs 


52372.5  Linked learning pilot program 


54692  Partnership academies 


60119  Sufficiency of textbooks and instructional materials; hearing and resolution 


60605.8  California Assessment of Academic Achievement; Academic Content Standards 


Commission 


60811.3  Assessment of language development 


64001  Single plan for student achievement 


99300-99301  Early Assessment Program 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 


6312  Local educational agency plan 


6826 Title III funds, local plans 


 


Management Resources: 


CSBA PUBLICATIONS 


Impact of Local Control Funding Formula on Board Policies, November 2013 


Local Control Funding Formula 2013, Governance Brief, August 2013 


State Priorities for Funding: The Need for Local Control and Accountability Plans, Fact Sheet, 


August 2013 


CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 


California School Accounting Manual 


WEB SITES 


CSBA: http://www.csba.org 


California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov 


 


 


 


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:  December 11, 2013 Soquel, California 


283 of 428







 


 


Community Relations BP 1340(a) 


 


ACCESS TO DISTRICT RECORDS 


 


 


The Governing Board recognizes the right of citizens to have access to public records of the 


district. The Board intends the district to provide any person reasonable access to the public 


records of the schools and district during normal business hours and within the requirements 


of law. Public access shall not be given to records listed as exempt from public disclosure in 


the California Public Records Act and other state or federal law. 


 
(cf. 3553 - Free and Reduced Price Meals) 


(cf. 3580 - District Records) 


(cf. 4112.5/4212.5/4312.5 - Criminal Record Check) 


(cf. 4112.6/4212.6/4312.6 - Personnel Files) 


(cf. 4119.23/4219.23/4319.23 - Unauthorized Release of Confidential/Privileged Information) 


(cf. 5020 - Parent Rights and Responsibilities) 


(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 


(cf. 5125.1 - Release of Directory Information) 


(cf. 6162.5 - Student Assessment) 


(cf. 9011 - Disclosure of Confidential/Privileged Information) 


(cf. 9321 - Closed Session Purposes and Agendas) 


 


In response to a public records request, the Superintendent or designee shall make reasonable 


efforts to locate the requested records, including, but not limited to, any electronic 


communication substantively related to the records, such as email, text messages, instant 


messages, and other electronic communications, regardless of whether they are transmitted 


through a district-provided device or account or through an employee's or Board member's 


personal device or account. 


 
(cf. 4040 - Employee Use of Technology) 


(cf. 9012 - Board Member Electronic Communications) 
 


The district may charge for copies of public records or other materials requested by individuals 


or groups.  The charge shall be based on actual costs of duplication, as determined by the 


Superintendent or designee and as specified in administrative regulation. 
 


In order to help maintain the security of district records, members of the public granted access 


shall examine records in the presence of a district staff member. 


 


 


 
Legal Reference:  (see next page) 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


284 of 428







 


 


 BP 1340(b) 


 


 


ACCESS TO DISTRICT RECORDS  (continued) 


 


 


 
Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


35145  Public meetings 


35170  Authority to secure copyrights 


35250  Duty to keep certain records and reports 


41020  Requirement for annual audit 


42103  Publication of proposed budget; hearing 


44031  Personnel file contents and inspections 


44839  Medical certificates; periodic medical examination 


49060-49079  Student records 


49091.10  Parental review of curriculum and instruction 


GOVERNMENT CODE 


3547  Proposals relating to representation 


6250-6270  California Public Records Act 


6275-6276.48  Other exemptions from disclosure 


53262  Employment contracts 


54957.2  Minute book record of closed sessions 


54957.5  Agendas and other writings distributed for discussion or consideration 


81008  Political Reform Act, public records; inspection and reproduction 


CALIFORNIA CONSTITUTION 


Article 1, Section 3  Right of access to governmental information 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 


430-438  Individual student records 


COURT DECISIONS 


City of San Jose v. Superior Court (2017) 2 Cal.5th 608 


Los Angeles County Board of Supervisors v. Superior Court (2016) 2 Cal.5th 282 


International Federation of Professional and Technical Engineers v. The Superior Court of Alameda 


County, (2007) 42 Cal.4th 319 


Los Angeles Times v. Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority, (2001) 88 Cal.App.4th 1381 


Kleitman v. Superior Court, (1999) 74 Cal.App. 4th 324 


Fairley v. Superior Court, (1998) 66 Cal.App. 4th 1414 


North County Parents Organization for Children with Special Needs v. Department of Education, 


(1994) 23 Cal.App. 4th 144 


ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS 


71 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 235 (1988) 


64 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 186 (1981) 


 


 


 
Legal Reference:  (see next page) 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


285 of 428







 


 


 BP 1340(c) 


 


 


ACCESS TO DISTRICT RECORDS  (continued) 


 


 


 
Management Resources: 


CSBA PUBLICATIONS 


Legal Alert: Tips for Governing Boards in Response to Public Records Act Ruling on Electronic 


Communications, March 2017 


ATTORNEY GENERAL PUBLICATIONS 


Summary of the California Public Records Act, 2004 


LEAGUE OF CALIFORNIA CITIES PUBLICATIONS 


The People's Business: A Guide to the California Public Records Act, 2008 


WEB SITES 


CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 


California Attorney General's Office:  https://oag.ca.gov 


Institute for Local Government:  http://www.cacities.org 


State Bar of California: http://www.calbar.ca.gov 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:  February 23, 2011 Soquel, California 


revised:   September 13, 2017  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


286 of 428







 


 


 


287 of 428







 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools 


Board Policy 


Access To District Records 
 


BP 1340  


Community Relations 
 


 


The Governing Board recognizes the right of citizens to have access to public records of the 


district.  The Board intends the district to provide any person reasonable access to the public 


records of the schools and district during normal business hours and within the requirements of 


law.  Public access shall not be given to records listed as exempt from public disclosure in the 


California Public Records Act and other state or federal law. 


 


(cf. 3553 - Free and Reduced Price Meals) 


(cf. 3580 - District Records) 


(cf. 4112.6/4212.6/4312.6 - Personnel Files) 


(cf. 4112.62/4212.62/4312.62 - Maintenance of Criminal Offender Records) 


(cf. 4119.23/4219.23/4319.23 - Unauthorized Release of Confidential/Privileged Information) 


(cf. 5020 - Parent Rights and Responsibilities) 


(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 


(cf. 5125.1 - Release of Directory Information) 


(cf. 6162.5 - Student Assessment) 


(cf. 9011 - Disclosure of Confidential/Privileged Information) 


(cf. 9321 - Closed Session Purposes and Agendas) 


 


The district may charge for copies of public records or other materials requested by individuals 


or groups.  The charge shall be based on actual costs of duplication, as determined by the 


Superintendent or designee and as specified in administrative regulation. 


 


In order to help maintain the security of district records, members of the public granted access 


shall examine records in the presence of a district staff member. 


 


 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


35145  Public meetings 


35170  Authority to secure copyrights 


35250  Duty to keep certain records and reports 


41020  Requirement for annual audit 


42103  Publication of proposed budget; hearing 


44031  Personnel file contents and inspections 


44839  Medical certificates; periodic medical examination 


49060-49079  Pupil records 


288 of 428







 


 


49091.10  Parental review of curriculum and instruction 


52850  Applicability of article (School-Based Program Coordination Plan availability) 


GOVERNMENT CODE 


3547  Proposals relating to representation 


6250-6270  California Public Records Act 


6275-6276.48  Other exemptions from disclosure 


53262  Employment contracts 


54957.2  Minute book record of closed sessions 


54957.5  Agendas and other writings distributed for discussion or consideration 


81008  Political Reform Act, public records; inspection and reproduction 


CALIFORNIA CONSTITUTION 


Article 1, Section 3  Right of access to governmental information 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 


430-438  Individual pupil records 


COURT DECISIONS 


International Federation of Professional and Technical Engineers v. The Superior Court of 


Alameda County, (2007) 42 Cal.4th 319 


Los Angeles Times v. Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority, (2001) 88 Cal.App.4th 1381 


Kleitman v. Superior Court, (1999) 74 Cal.App. 4th 324 


Fairley v. Superior Court, (1998) 66 Cal.App. 4th 1414 


North County Parents Organization for Children with Special Needs v. Department of Education, 


(1994) 23 Cal.App. 4th 144 


ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS 


71 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 235 (1988) 


64 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 186 (1981) 


 


Management Resources: 


ATTORNEY GENERAL PUBLICATIONS 


Summary of the California Public Records Act, 2004 


LEAGUE OF CALIFORNIA CITIES PUBLICATIONS 


The People's Business:  A Guide to the California Public Records Act, 2008 


WEB SITES 


CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 


California Attorney General's Office:  http://www.caag.state.ca.us 


Institute for Local Government:  http://www.cacities.org/index.jsp?zone=ilsg 


State Bar of California: http://www.calbar.ca.gov 


 


 


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:  February 23, 2011 Soquel, California 


289 of 428







 


 


Administration BP 2121(a) 


 


SUPERINTENDENT'S CONTRACT 


 


 


The Governing Board believes that the Superintendent's employment contract should outline 


the framework through which the Board and Superintendent are to work together to achieve 


district goals and objectives. When approving the Superintendent's employment contract, the 


Board shall consider the need for stability in district administration and shall ensure the best 


use of district resources. 


 
(cf. 0200 - Goals for the School District) 


(cf. 2120 - Superintendent Recruitment and Selection) 


(cf. 4312.1 - Contracts) 


(cf. 9000 - Role of the Board) 


 


The contract shall be reviewed by the district's legal counsel and may include the following: 


 


1. Term of the contract, which shall be for no more than four years pursuant to Education 


Code 35031 


 


2. Length of the work year and hours of work 


 


3. Salary, health and welfare benefits, and other compensation for the position 


 
(cf. 4154/4254/4354 - Health and Welfare Benefits) 


 


4. Reimbursement of work-related expenses, including mileage reimbursement, 


consistent with Board policies, regulations, and guidelines applicable to other 


professional administrative staff 


 
(cf. 3350 - Travel Expenses) 


 


The contract may also address payment for professional dues and activities, the 


district's provision of cell phones or other technological devices, and the 


Superintendent's use of his/her personal vehicle. 


 
(cf. 4040 - Employee Use of Technology) 


 


5. Vacation, illness and injury leave, and personal leaves 


 
(cf. 4161/4261/4361 - Leaves) 


(cf. 4161.1/4361.1 - Personal Illness/Injury Leave) 


(cf. 4161.2/4261.2/4361.2 - Personal Leaves) 


(cf. 4161.5/4261.5/4361.5 - Military Leave) 


(cf. 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8 - Family Care and Medical Leave) 


 


6. General duties and responsibilities of the position 


 
(cf. 2110 - Superintendent Responsibilities and Duties) 


290 of 428







 


 


 BP 2121(b) 


 


 


SUPERINTENDENT'S CONTRACT  (continued) 


 


 


7. Criteria, process, and procedure for annual evaluation of the Superintendent 


 
(cf. 2140 - Evaluation of the Superintendent) 


 


8. A statement that any subsequent increase in the Superintendent's salary shall be at the 


sole discretion of the Board 


 


9. A statement that there shall be no automatic renewal or extension of the contract, 


although the Board can enter into a new contract with the Superintendent prior to the 


expiration of the existing contract 


 


10. Timeline for providing written notice to the Superintendent if the Board does not wish 


to enter into a new contract, which shall be at least 45 calendar days in advance of the 


expiration of the term of the contract pursuant to Education Code 35031, and the 


responsibility of the Superintendent to remind the Board in writing and in a timely 


manner of the requirement to give notice 


 
(cf. 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications) 


 


11. Conditions and process for termination of the contract, including the maximum cash 


settlement that the Superintendent may receive if the contract is terminated prior to its 


expiration date 


 


12. Matters related to liability and indemnification against demands, claims, suits, actions, 


and legal proceedings brought against the Superintendent in his/her official capacity in 


the performance of duties related to his/her employment 


 


The Board may deliberate about terms of the contract in closed session at a regular meeting.  


However, discussions regarding the salary, salary schedule, or other compensation may occur 


in the closed session of a regular meeting only between the Board and its designated 


representative(s), as permitted under Government Code 54957.6 (the "labor exception"), for 


the purpose of reviewing the Board's position and/or instructing the designated 


representative(s) prior to or during bona fide negotiations with the current or prospective 


Superintendent. Such deliberations shall not be held during a special meeting. (Government 


Code 54956, 54957, 54957.6) 
 


The Board may consult with district legal counsel prior to holding a closed session with the 


designated representative(s) to discuss compensation to be paid to the current or prospective 


Superintendent. 


 
(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Notices) 


(cf. 9321 - Closed Session Purposes and Agendas) 


(cf. 9321.1 - Closed Session Actions and Reports) 


291 of 428







 


 


 


 BP 2121(c) 


 


 


SUPERINTENDENT'S CONTRACT  (continued) 


 


 


Terms of the contract shall remain confidential until the ratification process commences. 


 
(cf. 9011 - Disclosure of Confidential/Privileged Information) 


 


The Board shall take final action on the Superintendent's contract during an open session of a 


regularly scheduled Board meeting, and that action shall be reflected in the Board's minutes. 


At that meeting, prior to taking action, the Board shall orally report a summary of the 


recommendation for the final action on the Superintendent's salary or compensation in the form 


of fringe benefits. (Government Code 3511.1, 53262, 54953) 
 


Copies of the contract and other public records created or received in the process of developing 


the recommendation related to the Superintendent's salary, benefits, and other compensation 


shall be available to the public upon request.  (Government Code 53262, 54953, 54957.6) 


 
(cf. 1340 - Access to District Records) 


(cf. 3580 - District Records) 


 


Termination of Contract 


 


Prior to the expiration of the contract, the Board may terminate the Superintendent's 


employment contract in accordance with law and applicable contract provisions. 


 
(cf. 4117.5/4217.5/4317.5 - Termination Agreements) 
 


In such an event, any cash settlement that the Superintendent may receive upon termination of 


the contract shall not exceed his/her monthly salary multiplied by the number of months left 


on the contract or, if the unexpired term of the contract is more than 18 months and the contract 


was executed prior to January 1, 2016, no greater than the Superintendent's monthly salary 


multiplied by 18. For any contract executed on or after January 1, 2016, any cash settlement 


shall not exceed the Superintendent's monthly salary multiplied by 12.  (Government Code 


53260) 


 


The cash settlement shall not include any noncash items other than health benefits, which may 


be continued for the same duration of time as covered in the settlement or until the 


Superintendent finds other employment, whichever occurs first.  (Government Code 53260, 


53261) 


 


However, when the termination of the Superintendent's contract is based upon the Board's 


belief and subsequent confirmation through an independent audit that the Superintendent has 


engaged in fraud, misappropriation of funds, or other illegal fiscal practices, no cash or noncash 


settlement of any amount shall be provided.  (Government Code 53260) 


 


292 of 428







 


 


  


 BP 2121(d) 


 


SUPERINTENDENT'S CONTRACT  (continued) 


 


In addition, if the Superintendent is convicted of a crime involving an abuse of his/her office 


or position, he/she shall reimburse the district for payments he/she receives as paid leave salary 


pending investigation or as cash settlement upon his/her termination, and for any funds 


expended by the district in his/her defense against a crime involving his/her office or position.  


(Government Code 53243-53243.4, 53260) 


 


 


 
Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


35031  Term of employment 


41325-41329.3  Conditions of emergency apportionment 


GOVERNMENT CODE 


3511.1-3511.2  Local agency executives 


6250-6270  California Public Records Act 


53243-53243.4  Abuse of office 


53260-53264  Employment contracts 


54953  Oral summary of recommended salary and benefits of superintendent 


54954  Time and place of regular meetings 


54956  Special meetings 


54957  Closed session personnel matters 


54957.1  Closed session, public report of action taken 


54957.6  Closed sessions regarding employee matters 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 26 


105  Self-insured medical reimbursement plan; definition of highly compensated individual 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 


300gg-16  Group health plan; nondiscrimination in favor of highly compensated individuals 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS 


1.105-11 Self-insured medical reimbursement plan 


COURT DECISIONS 


San Diego Union v. City Council, (1983) 146 Cal.App.3d 947 


ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS 


57 Ops. Cal. Atty. Gen. 209 (1974) 


 
Management Resources: 


CSBA PUBLICATIONS 


Superintendent Contract Template, 2015 


ATTORNEY GENERAL PUBLICATIONS 


The Brown Act: Open Meetings for Local Legislative Bodies, 2003 


WEB SITES 


CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 


Association of California School Administrators: http://www.acsa.org 


California Office of the Attorney General: https://oag.ca.gov 


 


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:  February 23, 2011 Soquel, California 


revised:  February 10, 2016 


revised:  August 17, 2016 


revised:  September 13, 2017 


293 of 428







 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools 


Board Policy 


Superintendent's Contract 
 


BP 2121  


Administration 
 


 


The Governing Board believes that the Superintendent's employment contract should outline the 


framework through which the Board and Superintendent are to work together to achieve district 


goals and objectives. When approving the Superintendent's employment contract, the Board shall 


consider the need for stability in district administration and shall ensure the best use of district 


resources. 


 


(cf. 0200 - Goals for the School District) 


(cf. 2120 - Superintendent Recruitment and Selection) 


(cf. 4312.1 - Contracts) 


(cf. 9000 - Role of the Board) 


 


The contract shall be reviewed by the district's legal counsel and may include the following: 


 


1. Term of the contract, which shall be for no more than four years pursuant to Education 


Code 35031 


 


2. Length of the work year and hours of work 


 


3. Salary, health and welfare benefits, and other compensation for the position 


 


(cf. 4154/4254/4354 - Health and Welfare Benefits) 


 


4. Reimbursement of work-related expenses, including mileage reimbursement, consistent 


with Board policies, regulations, and guidelines applicable to other professional administrative 


staff 


 


(cf. 3350 - Travel Expenses) 


 


The contract may also address payment for professional dues and activities, the district's 


provision of cell phones or other technological devices, and the Superintendent's use of his/her 


personal vehicle. 


 


(cf. 4040 - Employee Use of Technology) 


 


5. Vacation, illness and injury leave, and personal leaves 


 


(cf. 4161/4261/4361 - Leaves) 


294 of 428







 


 


(cf. 4161.1/4361.1 - Personal Illness/Injury Leave) 


(cf. 4161.2/4261.2/4361.2 - Personal Leaves) 


(cf. 4161.5/4261.5/4361.5 - Military Leave) 


(cf. 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8 - Family Care and Medical Leave) 


 


6. General duties and responsibilities of the position 


 


(cf. 2110 - Superintendent Responsibilities and Duties) 


 


7. Criteria, process, and procedure for annual evaluation of the Superintendent 


 


(cf. 2140 - Evaluation of the Superintendent) 


 


8. A statement that any subsequent increase in the Superintendent's salary shall be at the 


sole discretion of the Board 


 


9. A statement that there shall be no automatic renewal or extension of the contract, 


although the Board can enter into a new contract with the Superintendent prior to the expiration 


of the existing contract 


 


10. Timeline for providing written notice to the Superintendent if the Board does not wish to 


enter into a new contract, which shall be at least 45 days in advance of the expiration of the term 


of the contract pursuant to Education Code 35031, and the responsibility of the Superintendent to 


remind the Board in a timely manner of the requirement to give notice 


 


(cf. 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications) 


 


11. Conditions and process for termination of the contract, including the maximum cash 


settlement that the Superintendent may receive if the contract is terminated prior to its expiration 


date 


 


12. Matters related to liability and indemnification against demands, claims, suits, actions, 


and legal proceedings brought against the Superintendent in his/her official capacity in the 


performance of duties related to his/her employment 


 


The Board may deliberate about terms of the contract in closed session at a regular 


meeting.Â  Discussions regarding the salary, salary schedule, or other compensation may occur 


in closed session only as permitted under Government Code 54957.6 between the Board and its 


designated representative(s) (the "labor exception"), for the purpose of reviewing the Board's 


position or instructing the designated representative(s) prior to or during bona fide negotiations 


with the current or prospective Superintendent. (Government Code 54956, 54957, 54957.6) 


 


The Board may consult with district legal counsel prior to holding a closed session with the 


designated representative(s) to discuss compensation to be paid to the current or prospective 


Superintendent. 


 


295 of 428







 


 


(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Notices) 


(cf. 9321 - Closed Session Purposes and Agendas) 


(cf. 9321.1 - Closed Session Actions and Reports) 


 


Terms of the contract shall remain confidential until the ratification process commences. 


 


(cf. 9011 - Disclosure of Confidential/Privileged Information) 


 


The Board shall take final action on the Superintendent's contract in an open meeting, which 


shall be reflected in the Board's minutes.  Copies of the contract shall be available to the public 


upon request.  (Government Code 53262, 54957.6) 


 


(cf. 1340 - Access to District Records) 


(cf. 3580 - District Records) 


 


Termination of Contract 


 


Prior to the expiration of the contract, the Board may terminate the Superintendent's employment 


contract in accordance with law and applicable contract provisions. 


 


(cf. 4117.5/4217.5/4317.5 - Termination Agreements) 


 


In such an event, any cash settlement that the Superintendent may receive upon termination of 


the contract shall not exceed his/her monthly salary multiplied by the number of months left on 


the contract or, if the unexpired term of the contract is more than 18 months and the contract was 


executed prior to January 1, 2016, no greater than the Superintendent's monthly salary multiplied 


by 18. For any contract executed on or after January 1, 2016, any cash settlement shall not 


exceed the Superintendent's monthly salary multiplied by 12.  (Government Code 53260) 


 


The cash settlement shall not include any noncash items other than health benefits, which may be 


continued for the same duration of time as covered in the settlement or until the Superintendent 


finds other employment, whichever occurs first.  (Government Code 53260, 53261) 


 


However, when the termination of the Superintendent's contract is based upon the Board's belief 


and subsequent confirmation through an independent audit that the Superintendent has engaged 


in fraud, misappropriation of funds, or other illegal fiscal practices, no cash or noncash 


settlement of any amount shall be provided.  (Government Code 53260) 


 


In addition, if the Superintendent is convicted of a crime involving an abuse of his/her office or 


position, he/she shall reimburse the district for payments he/she receives as paid leave salary 


pending investigation or as cash settlement upon his/her termination, and for any funds expended 


by the district in his/her defense against a crime involving his/her office or position.  


(Government Code 53243-53243.4, 53260) 


 


 


 


296 of 428







 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


35031  Term of employment 


41325-41329.3  Conditions of emergency apportionment 


GOVERNMENT CODE 


3511.1-3511.2  Local agency executives 


53243-53243.4  Abuse of office 


53260-53264  Employment contracts 


54954  Time and place of regular meetings 


54956  Special meetings 


54957  Closed session personnel matters 


54957.1  Closed session, public report of action taken 


54957.6  Closed sessions regarding employee matters 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 26 


105 Self-insured medical reimbursement plan; definition of highly compensated individual 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 


300gg-16  Group health plan; nondiscrimination in favor of highly compensated individuals 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS 


1.105-11 Self-insured medical reimbursement plan 


COURT DECISIONS 


San Diego Union v. City Council, (1983) 146 Cal.App.3d 947 


ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS 


57 Ops. Cal. Atty. Gen. 209 (1974) 


 


Management Resources: 


CSBA PUBLICATIONS 


Superintendent Contract Template, 2015 


ATTORNEY GENERAL PUBLICATIONS 


The Brown Act: Open Meetings for Local Legislative Bodies, 2003 


WEB SITES 


CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 


Association of California School Administrators: http://www.acsa.org 


Office of the Attorney General, Department of Justice: http://caag.state.ca.us/ 


 


 


 


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:  February 23, 2011 Soquel, California 


revised:  February 10, 2016 


revised:  August 17, 2016 


297 of 428







 


 


Business and Noninstructional Operations BP 3260(a) 


 


FEES AND CHARGES 


 


 


The Governing Board recognizes its responsibility to ensure that books, materials, equipment, 


supplies, and other resources necessary for students' participation in the district's educational 


program are made available to them at no cost. 


 


No student shall be required to pay a fee, deposit, or other charge for his/her participation in 


an educational activity which constitutes an integral fundamental part of the district's 


educational program, including curricular and extracurricular activities.  (Education Code 


49010, 49011; 5 CCR 350) 


 
(cf. 3100 - Budget) 


(cf. 6145 - Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities) 


 


As necessary, the Board may approve fees, deposits, and other charges which are specifically 


authorized by law. When approving such fees, deposits, or charges, establishing fee schedules, 


or determining whether waivers or exceptions should be granted, the Board shall consider 


relevant data, including the socioeconomic conditions of district students' families and their 


ability to pay. 


 
(cf. 3250 - Transportation Fees) 


(cf. 3515.4 - Recovery for Property Loss or Damage) 


(cf. 3553 - Free and Reduced Price Meals) 


(cf. 5143 - Insurance) 


(cf. 9323.2 - Actions by the Board) 


 


The prohibition against student fees shall not restrict the district from soliciting for donations, 


participating in fundraising activities, or providing prizes or other recognition for participants 


in such activities and events. The Superintendent or designee shall emphasize that participation 


of students, parents/guardians, district employees, volunteers, or educational or civic 


organizations in such activities and events is voluntary.  The district shall not offer or award to 


a student any course credit or privileges related to educational activities in exchange for 


voluntary donations or participation in fundraising activities by or on behalf of the student. It 


also shall not remove or threaten to remove from a student any course credit or privileges 


related to educational activities, or otherwise discriminate against the student, due to a lack of 


voluntary donations or participation in fundraising activities by or on behalf of the student. 


 
(cf. 1321 - Solicitation of Funds from and by Students) 


(cf. 3290 - Gifts, Grants and Bequests) 


 


The Superintendent or designee may provide information or professional development 


opportunities to administrators, teachers, and other personnel regarding permissible fees.  


 
(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 


(cf. 4231 - Staff Development) 


(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 


 


298 of 428







 


 


 BP 3260(b) 


 


FEES AND CHARGES  (continued) 


 


 


Complaints 


 


A complaint alleging district noncompliance with the prohibition against requiring student 


fees, deposits, or other charges shall be filed in accordance with the district's procedures in 


BP/AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures.  (Education Code 49013) 


 
(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures) 


 


If, upon investigation, the district finds merit in the complaint, the Superintendent or designee 


shall recommend and the Board shall adopt an appropriate remedy to be provided to all affected 


students and parents/guardians in accordance with 5 CCR 4600. 


 


Information related to the prohibition against requiring students to pay fees for participation in 


an educational activity shall be included in the district's annual notification of uniform 


complaint procedures to be provided to all students, parents/guardians, employees, and other 


interested parties pursuant to 5 CCR 4622.  (Education Code 49013) 


 
(cf. 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications) 


(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 


 


 


 
Legal Reference:  (see next page) 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


299 of 428







 


 


 BP 3260(c) 


 


 


FEES AND CHARGES  (continued) 


 


 


 
Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


8239  Preschool and wraparound child care services 


8250  Child care and development services for children with disabilities 


8263  Child care eligibility 


8422 21st Century High School After School Safety and Enrichment for Teens programs 


8482.6  After School Education and Safety programs 


8760-8774  Outdoor science and conservation programs 


17453.1  District sale or lease of Internet appliances or personal computers to students or parents 


17551  Property fabricated by students 


19910-19911  Offenses against libraries 


32033  Eye protective devices 


32221  Insurance for athletic team member 


32390  Fingerprinting program 


35330-35332  Excursions and field trips 


35335  School camp programs 


38080-38086.1  Cafeteria establishment and use 


38120  Use of school band equipment on excursions to foreign countries 


39801.5  Transportation for adults 


39807.5  Payment of transportation costs 


39837  Transportation of students to places of summer employment 


48050  Residents of adjoining states 


48052  Tuition for foreign residents 


48904  Liability of parent or guardian 


49010-49013  Student fees 


49065  Charge for copies 


49066  Grades, effect of physical education class apparel 


49091.14  Prospectus of school curriculum 


51810-51815  Community service classes 


52612  Tuition for adult classes 


52613  Nonimmigrant foreign nationals  


56504  School records; students with disabilities 


60410  Students in classes for adults 


GOVERNMENT CODE 


6253  Request for copy; fee 


 


 


 
Legal Reference continued:  (see next page) 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


300 of 428







 


 


 BP 3260(d) 


 


FEES AND CHARGES  (continued) 


 


 


 
Legal Reference: (continued) 


CALIFORNIA CONSTITUTION 


Article 9, Section 5  Common school system 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 


350  Fees not permitted 


4600-4687  Uniform complaint procedures 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 8 


1184  Foreign students 


COURT DECISIONS 


Driving School Assn of CA v. San Mateo Union HSD (1993) 11 Cal. App. 4th 1513 


Arcadia Unified School District v. State Department of Education (1992) 2 Cal 4th 251 


Steffes v. California Interscholastic Federation (1986) 176 Cal. App. 3d 739 


Hartzell v. Connell (1984) 35 Cal. 3d 899 


CTA v. Glendale School District Board of Education (1980) 109 Cal. App. 3d 738 


 
Management Resources: 


CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 


Pupil Fees: Damage to School Property, Fiscal Management Advisory 16-01, September 16, 2016 


Pupil Fees: Parent Service Hours, Fiscal Management Advisory 15-01, January 20, 2015 


Pupil Fees, Deposits, and Other Charges: Cap and Gown for High School Graduation Ceremony, 


Addendum to Fiscal Management Advisory 12-02, October 4, 2013 


Fees, Deposits and Other Charges, Fiscal Management Advisory 12-02, April 24, 2013 


WEB SITES 


CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 


California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:  February 13, 2013 Soquel, California 


revised:  May 21, 2014 


revised:  September 13, 2017 


301 of 428







 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools 


Board Policy 


Fees And Charges 
 


BP 3260  


Business and Noninstructional Operations 
 


 


The Governing Board recognizes its responsibility to ensure that books, materials, equipment, 


supplies, and other resources necessary for students' participation in the district's educational 


program are made available to them at no cost. 


 


No student shall be required to pay a fee, deposit, or other charge for his/her participation in an 


educational activity which constitutes an integral fundamental part of the district's educational 


program, including curricular and extracurricular activities.  (Education Code 49010, 49011; 5 


CCR 350) 


 


(cf. 3100 - Budget) 


(cf. 6145 - Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities) 


 


As necessary, the Board may approve fees, deposits, and other charges which are specifically 


authorized by law. When approving such fees, deposits, or charges, establishing fee schedules, or 


determining whether waivers or exceptions should be granted, the Board shall consider relevant 


data, including the socio-economic conditions of district students' families and their ability to 


pay. 


 


(cf. 3250 - Transportation Fees) 


(cf. 3515.4 - Recovery for Property Loss or Damage) 


(cf. 3553 - Free and Reduced Price Meals) 


(cf. 5143 - Insurance) 


(cf. 9323.2 - Actions by the Board) 


 


The prohibition against student fees shall not restrict the district from soliciting for voluntary 


donations, participating in fundraising activities, and providing prizes or other recognition for 


participants in such activities and events.  However, the district shall not offer or award to a 


student any course credit or privileges related to educational activities in exchange for voluntary 


donations or participation in fundraising activities by or on behalf of the student and shall not 


remove, or threaten to remove, from a student any course credit or privileges related to 


educational activities, or otherwise discriminate against the student, due to a lack of voluntary 


donations or participation in fundraising activities by or on behalf of the student. 


 


(cf. 1321 - Solicitation of Funds from and by Students) 


(cf. 3290 - Gifts, Grants and Bequests) 


 


Whenever district employees, volunteers, students, parents/guardians, or educational or civic 


302 of 428







 


 


organizations participate in such events or activities, the Superintendent or designee shall 


emphasize that participation in the event or activity is voluntary. 


 


A complaint alleging district noncompliance with the prohibition against requiring student fees, 


deposits, or other charges shall be filed in accordance with the district's procedures in BP/AR 


1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures.  (Education Code 49013) 


 


(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures) 


 


If, upon investigation, the district finds merit in the complaint, the Superintendent or designee 


shall recommend and the Board shall adopt an appropriate remedy to be provided to all affected 


students and parents/guardians in accordance with 5 CCR 4600. 


 


Information related to the prohibition against requiring students to pay fees for participation in an 


educational activity shall be included in the district's annual notification required to be provided 


to all students, parents/guardians, employees, and other interested parties pursuant to 5 CCR 


4622.  (Education Code 49013) 


 


(cf. 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications) 


(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 


 


The Superintendent or designee may provide additional information or professional development 


opportunities to administrators, teachers, and other personnel regarding permissible fees. 


 


(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 


(cf. 4231 - Staff Development) 


(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 


 


 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


8239  Preschool and wraparound child care services 


8250  Child care and development services for children with disabilities 


8263  Child care eligibility 


8482.6  After School Education and Safety programs 


8760-8774  Outdoor science and conservation programs 


17453.1  District sale or lease of Internet appliances or personal computers to students or 


parents 


17551  Property fabricated by students 


19910-19911  Offenses against libraries 


32033  Eye protective devices 


32221  Insurance for athletic team member 


32390  Fingerprinting program 


35330-35332  Excursions and field trips 


35335  School camp programs 


303 of 428







 


 


38080-38086  Cafeteria establishment and use 


38120  Use of school band equipment on excursions to foreign countries 


39801.5  Transportation for adults 


39807.5  Payment of transportation costs 


39837  Transportation of students to places of summer employment 


48050  Residents of adjoining states 


48052  Tuition for foreign residents 


48904  Liability of parent or guardian 


49010-49013  Student fees 


49065  Charge for copies 


49066  Grades, effect of physical education class apparel 


49091.14  Prospectus of school curriculum 


51810-51815  Community service classes 


52612  Tuition for adult classes 


52613  Nonimmigrant aliens 


56504  School records; students with disabilities 


60410  Students in classes for adults 


GOVERNMENT CODE 


6253  Request for copy; fee 


CALIFORNIA CONSTITUTION 


Article 9, Section 5  Common school system 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 


350  Fees not permitted 


4600-4687  Uniform complaint procedures 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 8 


1184  Foreign students 


COURT DECISIONS 


Driving School Assn of CA v. San Mateo Union HSD (1993) 11 Cal. App. 4th 1513 


Arcadia Unified School District v. State Department of Education (1992) 2 Cal 4th 251 


Steffes v. California Interscholastic Federation (1986) 176 Cal. App. 3d 739 


Hartzell v. Connell (1984) 35 Cal. 3d 899 


CTA v. Glendale School District Board of Education (1980) 109 Cal. App. 3d 738 


 


Management Resources: 


CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 


Pupil Fees, Deposits, and Other Charges: Cap and Gown for High School Graduation Ceremony, 


Addendum to Fiscal Management Advisory 12-02, October 4, 2013 


Fees, Deposits and Other Charges, Fiscal Management Advisory 12-02, April 24, 2013 


WEB SITES 


CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 


California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 


 


 


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:  February 13, 2013 Soquel, California 


revised:  May 21, 2014 


304 of 428







 


 


All Personnel BP 4127(a) 


 4227 


TEMPORARY ATHLETIC TEAM COACHES 4327 


 


 


The Governing Board desires to employ highly qualified coaches for the district's sports and 


interscholastic athletic programs in order to enhance the knowledge, skills, motivation, and 


safety of student athletes. 


 
(cf. 6142.7 - Physical Education and Activity) 


(cf. 6145.2 - Athletic Competition) 


 


The Superintendent or designee may hire a certificated or noncertificated employee, other than 


a substitute employee, to supervise or instruct interscholastic athletic activities as a temporary 


employee in a limited assignment capacity. (5 CCR 5590) 


 
(cf. 4121 - Temporary/Substitute Personnel) 


 


When hiring a person to fill a position as a temporary athletic team coach, the position shall 


first be made available to qualified certificated teachers currently employed by the district. 


(Education Code 44919) 


 


All coaches shall be subject to Board policies, administrative regulations, and California 


Interscholastic Federation bylaws and codes of ethical conduct. 


 
(cf. 4118 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 


(cf. 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 


(cf. 5131.1 - Bus Conduct) 


(cf. 5131.63 - Steroids) 


(cf. 5141.1 - Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting) 


 


Noncertificated coaches shall have no authority to assign grades to students.  (5 CCR 5591) 


 
(cf. 5121 - Grades/Evaluation of Student Achievement) 


 


Qualifications and Training 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall establish qualification criteria for all athletic coaches in 


accordance with law and district standards. These criteria shall ensure that coaches possess an 


appropriate level of competence, knowledge, and skill. 


 


Any noncertificated employee or volunteer who works with students in a district-sponsored 


interscholastic athletic program shall, prior to beginning his/her duties, submit to the 


Superintendent or designee either an Activity Supervisor Clearance Certificate issued by the 


Commission on Teacher Credentialing or a Department of Justice and Federal Bureau of 


Investigation criminal background clearance. (Education Code 49024) 


 
(cf. 1240 - Volunteer Assistance) 


(cf. 4112.5/4212.5/4312.5 - Criminal Record Check) 


 


305 of 428







 


 


 BP 4127(b) 


  4227 


  4327 


 


TEMPORARY ATHLETIC TEAM COACHES  (continued) 


 


 


Following the selection of a temporary athletic team coach, the Superintendent or designee 


shall certify to the Board, at the next regular Board meeting or within 30 days, whichever is 


sooner, that the coach meets the qualifications and competencies required by 5 CCR 5593.  By 


April 1 of each year, the Board shall certify to the State Board of Education that the provisions 


of 5 CCR 5593 have been met.  (5 CCR 5594) 


 


In addition, the Superintendent or designee shall regularly report to the Board regarding the 


extent to which the district's coaches have completed the trainings required by law, including 


those required pursuant to Education Code 33479.6 and 49032, and by district policy. 


 


 


 
Legal Reference: (see next page) 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


306 of 428







 


 


 BP 4127(c) 


  4227 


  4327 


 


TEMPORARY ATHLETIC TEAM COACHES  (continued) 


 
Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


35179-35179.7  Interscholastic athletics 


33479-33479.9 The Eric Parades Sudden Cardiac Arrest Prevention Act 


44010  Sex offense 


44011  Controlled substance offense 


44332-44332.5  Temporary certificates 


44424  Conviction of a crime 


44808  Liability when students are not on school property 


44916 Written statement indicating employment status 


44919  Classification of temporary employees 


45125.01  Interagency agreements for criminal record information 


45347  Instructional aides subject to requirements for classified staff 


45349  Use of volunteers to supervise or instruct students 


49024  Activity Supervisor Clearance Certificate 


49030-49034  Performance-enhancing substances 


49406  Examination for tuberculosis 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 


5531  Supervision of extracurricular activities 


5590-5596  Duties of temporary athletic team coaches 


COURT DECISIONS 


Neily v. Manhattan Beach Unified School District, (2011) 192 Cal. App. 4th 187 


Kavanaugh v. West Sonoma County Union High School District, (2003) 29 Cal. 4th 911 


CTA v. Rialto Unified School District, (1997) 14 Cal. 4th 627San Jose Teachers Association, CTA, 


NEA v. Barozzi, (1991) 230 Cal.App.3d 1376 


 
Management Resources: 


CSBA PUBLICATIONS 


Steroids and Students: What Boards Need to Know, Policy Brief, July 2005 


CALIFORNIA INTERSCHOLASTIC FEDERATION PUBLICATIONS 


California Interscholastic Federation Constitution and Bylaws 


Pursuing Victory with Honor, 1999 


COMMISSION ON TEACHER CREDENTIALING CODED CORRESPONDENCE 


10-11 Information on Assembly Bill 346 Concerning the Activity Supervisor Clearance Certificate 


(ASCC), July 20, 2010 


WEB SITES 


CSBA:  http://ww.csba.org 


California Athletic Trainers' Association: http://www.ca-at.org 


California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 


California Interscholastic Federation:  http://www.cifstate.org 


Commission on Teacher Credentialing: http://www.ctc.ca.gov 


National Athletic Trainers' Association: http://www.nata.org 


 


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:  February 23, 2011 Soquel, California 


revised:   September 13, 2017 


307 of 428







 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools 


Board Policy 


Temporary Athletic Team Coaches 
 


BP 4127  


Personnel 
 


 


The Governing Board desires to employ highly qualified coaches for the district's sports and 


interscholastic athletic programs in order to enhance the knowledge, skills, motivation, and 


safety of student athletes. 


 


(cf. 6142.7 - Physical Education and Activity) 


(cf. 6145.2 - Athletic Competition) 


 


The Superintendent or designee may employ a certificated or noncertificated employee, other 


than a substitute employee, to supervise or instruct interscholastic athletic activities as a 


temporary employee in a limited assignment capacity. (5 CCR 5590) 


 


(cf. 4121 - Temporary/Substitute Personnel) 


 


When hiring a person to fill a position as a temporary athletic team coach, the position shall first 


be made available to qualified certificated teachers currently employed by the district. 


(Education Code 44919) 


 


All coaches shall be subject to Board policies, administrative regulations, and California 


Interscholastic Federation bylaws and codes of ethical conduct. 


 


(cf. 4118 - Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 


(cf. 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 


(cf. 5131.1 - Bus Conduct) 


(cf. 5131.63 - Steroids) 


 


Noncertificated coaches have no authority to give grades to students.  (5 CCR 5591) 


 


(cf. 5121 - Grades/Evaluation of Student Achievement) 


 


Qualifications 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall establish qualification criteria for all athletic coaches in 


accordance with law and district standards. These criteria shall ensure that coaches possess an 


appropriate level of competence, knowledge, and skill. 


 


Any noncertificated employee or volunteer who works with students in a district-sponsored 


interscholastic athletic program shall, prior to beginning his/her duties, possess an Activity 


308 of 428







 


 


Supervisor Clearance Certificate issued by the Commission on Teacher Credentialing.  Any 


noncertificated employee or volunteer who works with students in a district-sponsored 


interscholastic athletic program shall, prior to beginning his/her duties, obtain a Department of 


Justice and Federal Bureau of Investigation criminal background check through the district. 


(Education Code 49024) 


 


 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


35179-35179.7  Interscholastic athletics 


44010  Sex offense 


44011  Controlled substance offense 


44332-44332.5  Temporary certificates 


44424  Conviction of a crime 


44808  Liability when students are not on school property 


44919  Classification of temporary employees 


45125.01  Interagency agreements for criminal record information 


45347  Instructional aides subject to requirements for classified staff 


45349  Use of volunteers to supervise or instruct students 


49024  Activity Supervisor Clearance Certificate 


49030-49034  Performance-enhancing substances 


49406  Examination for tuberculosis 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 


5531  Supervision of extracurricular activities 


5590-5596  Duties of temporary athletic team coaches 


COURT DECISIONS 


CTA v. Rialto Unified School District, (1997) 14 Cal. 4th 627 


San Jose Teachers Association, CTA, NEA v. Barozzi, (1991) 230 Cal.App.3d 1376 


 


Management Resources: 


CSBA PUBLICATIONS 


Steroids and Students: What Boards Need to Know, Policy Brief, July 2005 


A School Board Member's Guide to CIF and Interscholastic Sports, 1997 


CALIFORNIA INTERSCHOLASTIC FEDERATION PUBLICATIONS 


Pursuing Victory with Honor, 1999 


California Interscholastic Federation Constitution and Bylaws 


COMMISSION ON TEACHER CREDENTIALING CODED CORRESPONDENCE 


10-11 Information on Assembly Bill 346 Concerning the Activity Supervisor Clearance 


Certificate (ASCC), July 20, 2010 


WEB SITES 


CSBA:  http://ww.csba.org 


California Athletic Trainers' Association: http://www.ca-at.org 


California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 


California Interscholastic Federation:  http://www.cifstate.org 


Commission on Teacher Credentialing: http://www.ctc.ca.gov 


309 of 428







 


 


National Athletic Trainers' Association: http://www.nata.org 


 


 


 


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:  February 23, 2011 Soquel, California 


310 of 428







 


 


Administrative and Supervisory Personnel BP 4312.1(a) 


 


CONTRACTS 


 


 


The Governing Board recognizes the importance of employing qualified and competent 


individuals to manage district programs and to assist the Superintendent in coordinating efforts 


to achieve district goals and objectives. To that end, the Board may fill certificated 


administrative and supervisory positions and classified senior management positions on a 


contract basis. 


 
(cf. 0000 - Vision) 


(cf. 2121 - Superintendent's Contract) 


(cf. 4111/4211/4311 - Recruitment and Selection) 


(cf. 4300 - Administrative and Supervisory Personnel) 


(cf. 4313.2 - Demotion/Reassignment) 


(cf. 4314 - Transfers) 


 


The Board may offer a continuing contract of up to four years to any deputy, associate, or 


assistant superintendent; any certificated employee holding a position requiring a supervision 


or administration credential; or any senior manager of the classified service.  (Education Code 


35031, 44929.20) 


 


Prior to entering into any such contract, the Board and Superintendent shall consider the 


financial impact of the contract on the district.  The proposed contract shall also be reviewed 


by legal counsel to ensure that all legally required provisions are included in the contract and 


to address any potentially adverse obligations for the district. 


 
(cf. 3460 - Financial Reports and Accountability) 


 


The Board may deliberate in the closed session of a regular meeting about the terms of an 


employment contract for a deputy, associate, or assistant superintendent; other certificated 


employee holding a position requiring a supervision or administration credential; or a senior 


manager of the classified service. Discussions regarding salary, salary schedule, or other 


compensation may occur in the closed session of a regular meeting only between the Board 


and its designated representative(s), as permitted under Government Code 54957.6 (the "labor 


exception") for the purpose of reviewing the Board's position and/or instructing the designated 


representative(s) prior to or during bona fide negotiations with the employee. Such 


deliberations shall not be held during a special meeting.  (Government Code 54956, 54957, 


54957.6) 


 
(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Notices) 


(cf. 9321 - Closed Session Purposes and Agendas) 


(cf. 9321.1 - Closed Session Actions and Reports) 


 


The Board shall take final action on an employment contract during an open session of a 


regularly scheduled Board meeting, and that action shall be reflected in the Board's minutes. 


At that meeting, prior to taking action, the Board shall orally report a summary of the 


recommendation for the final action on salary or compensation in the form of fringe benefits.  


(Government Code 3511.1, 53262, 54953) 


311 of 428







 


 


 BP 4312.1(b) 
 


 


CONTRACTS  (continued) 


 


Copies of any contract and other public records created or received in the process of developing 


the recommendation related to the salary, benefits, and other compensation shall be available 


to the public upon request.  (Government Code 53262, 54953) 
 


(cf. 1340 - Access to District Records) 


(cf. 9322 - Agenda/Meeting Materials) 


(cf. 9324 - Minutes and Recordings) 


 


Extension of Contract/Reemployment 
 


A contract shall be extended only by Board action and subsequent to a satisfactory evaluation 


of the employee's performance. No employment contract shall include a provision for 


automatic renewal of the contract. 


 
(cf. 4315 - Evaluation/Supervision) 
 


During the term of the contract and with the consent of the employee involved, the Board may 


reelect or reemploy the employee starting on the next succeeding first day of July and based 


on terms and conditions mutually agreed upon by the Board and the employee.  (Education 


Code 35031) 


 


If the Board decides not to reelect or reemploy a deputy, associate, or assistant superintendent 


or a senior manager of the classified service upon the expiration of his/her term, it shall notify 


the employee in writing 45 calendar days prior to the expiration of the term of the contract.  


(Education Code 35031) 
 


(cf. 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications) 


 


Termination of Contract 
 


The Board may terminate an employment contract prior to its expiration date in accordance 


with the conditions and process specified in the contract. 


 


Every employment contract shall include a provision specifying the legal maximum cash 


settlement that the employee may receive in the event that the contract is terminated prior to 


its expiration date.  (Government Code 3511.2, 53260) 


 
(cf. 4117.5/4217.5/4317.5 - Termination Agreements) 


 


In addition, all employment contracts shall include a provision that, if the employee is 


convicted of a crime involving an abuse of his/her office or position, he/she shall fully 


reimburse the district for payments he/she receives as paid leave salary pending investigation 


or as cash settlement upon his/her termination and for any funds expended by the district in 


his/her criminal legal defense.  (Government Code 53243-53243.4, 53260) 


 
Legal Reference:  (see next page) 


312 of 428







 


 


 BP 4312.1(c) 


 


CONTRACTS  (continued) 


 


 


 
Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


35030  Title of deputy, associate or assistant superintendent for certain positions 


35031  Term of employment 


44842  Automatic declining of employment 


44843  Notice of employment to county superintendent 


44929.20  Continuing contract 


44951  Continuation in position unless notified 


GOVERNMENT CODE 


3511.1-3511.2  Local agency executives 


53260-53264  Employment contracts 


54953  Oral summary of recommended salary and benefits of district executive 


54954  Time and place of regular meetings 


54956  Brown Act - Open meeting laws; special meetings 


54957  Closed session, personnel matters 


ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS 


57 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 209 (1974) 


 
Management Resources: 


ATTORNEY GENERAL PUBLICATIONS 


The Brown Act: Open Meetings for Local Legislative Bodies, 2003 


WEB SITES 


CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 


Association of California School Administrators: http://www.acsa.org 


California Office of the Attorney General: https://oag.ca.gov 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:  February 23, 2011 Soquel, California 


revised:   September 13, 2017 


313 of 428







 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools 


Board Policy 


Contracts 
 


BP 4312.1  


Personnel 
 


 


The Governing Board recognizes the importance of attracting and retaining qualified 


administrative and supervisory personnel to help the district achieve its goals for student 


learning.  To that end, the Board may employ certificated administrative and supervisory 


personnel and senior management of the classified staff on a contract basis.  Prior to entering 


into any such contract, the Board and Superintendent shall consider the financial and legal 


implications of the contract in order to protect the district from any potentially adverse 


obligations. 


 


(cf. 0000 - Vision) 


(cf. 2121 - Superintendent's Contract) 


(cf. 3460 - Financial Reports and Accountability) 


(cf. 4111/4211/4311 - Recruitment and Selection) 


(cf. 4300 - Administrative and Supervisory Personnel) 


(cf. 4313.2 - Demotion/Reassignment) 


(cf. 4314 - Transfers) 


 


The Board may offer a deputy, associate, or assistant superintendent, or any other person holding 


a position requiring a supervision or administrative credential, a continuing contract for a period 


longer than one year but not to exceed four years. (Education Code 35031, 44929.20) 


 


All contracts shall be ratified by the Board during an open session of a Board meeting and 


reflected in the Board's minutes.  Copies of the contracts shall be available to the public upon 


request.  (Education Code 35031; Government Code 53262) 


 


(cf. 1340 - Access to District Records) 


(cf. 9322 - Agenda/Meeting Materials) 


(cf. 9324 - Minutes and Recordings) 


 


A contract shall be extended only by Board action and subsequent to a satisfactory evaluation of 


the employee's performance. 


 


(cf. 4315 - Evaluation/Supervision) 


 


During the term of the contract and with the consent of the employee, the Board may reemploy, 


effective on the next succeeding first day of July, a deputy, associate, or assistant superintendent 


and reelect/reemploy him/her on those terms and conditions mutually agreed upon by the Board 


and the employee for a new term to begin on the effective date of the termination of the existing 


314 of 428







 


 


term of employment.  (Education Code 35031) 


 


If the Board decides not to reelect or reemploy a deputy, associate, or assistant superintendent or 


a senior manager of the classified service upon the expiration of his/her term, it shall notify the 


employee in writing 45 days prior to the expiration of the term of the contract.  (Education Code 


35031) 


 


Employee contracts shall include a provision specifying the legal maximum cash settlement that 


the employee may receive upon termination of the contract.  (Government Code 53260) 


 


(cf. 4117.5/4217.5/4317.5 - Termination Agreements) 


 


 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


35030  Title of deputy, associate or assistant superintendent for certain positions 


35031  Term of employment 


44842  Automatic declining of employment 


44843  Notice of employment to county superintendent 


44929.20  Continuing contract 


44951  Continuation in position unless notified 


GOVERNMENT CODE 


53260-53264  Employment contracts 


54954  Time and place of regular meetings 


54957  Closed session, personnel matters 


 


Management Resources: 


CSBA PUBLICATIONS 


Maximizing School Board Governance: The Board's Relationship to District Staff, 2007 


WEB SITES 


CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 


Association of California School Administrators: http://www.acsa.org 


 


 


 


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:  February 23, 2011 Soquel, California 


315 of 428







 


 


Students BP 5111(a) 


 


ADMISSION 


 


 


The Governing Board encourages the enrollment and appropriate placement of all school-aged 


children in school. The Superintendent or designee shall inform parents/guardians of children 


entering a district school at any grade level about admission requirements and shall assist them 


with enrollment procedures. 


 


Before enrolling any child in a district school, the Superintendent or designee shall verify the 


child's age, residency, immunization, and other applicable eligibility criteria specified in law, 


the accompanying administrative regulation, or other applicable Board policy or administrative 


regulation. 


 
(cf. 5111.1 - District Residency) 


(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 


(cf. 5141.3 - Health Examinations) 


(cf. 5141.31 - Immunizations) 


(cf. 5141.32 - Health Screening for School Entry) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the enrollment of a homeless or foster child 


or a child of a military family is not delayed because of outstanding fees or fines owed to the 


child's last school or for his/her inability to produce previous academic, medical, or other 


records normally required for enrollment. 


 
(cf. 6173 - Education for Homeless Children) 


(cf. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth) 


(cf. 6173.2 - Education of Children of Military Families) 


 


In addition, no child shall be denied enrollment in a district school solely on the basis of his/her 


arrest, adjudication by a juvenile court, formal or informal supervision by a probation officer, 


detention in a juvenile facility, enrollment in a juvenile court school, or other contact with the 


juvenile justice system.  (Education Code 48645.5) 


 
(cf. 5119 - Students Expelled from Other Districts) 


(cf. 6173.3 - Education for Juvenile Court School Students) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall not inquire into or request documentation of a student's 


citizenship or immigration status, and shall not deny a student enrollment in a district school 


on the basis of the citizenship or immigration status of the student or his/her parents/guardians. 


Any information obtained about a student's or parent/guardian's citizenship or immigration 


status shall not be shared without parent/guardian consent or a lawful judicial order, in 


accordance with laws pertaining to the confidentiality of student records. 


 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 


(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 


 


 


 


316 of 428







 


 


 BP 5111(b) 


 


ADMISSION  (continued) 


 


 


A student shall not be denied enrollment based on the parent/guardian's refusal to provide the 


student's or parent/guardian's social security number. During the enrollment process, students 


and parents/guardians shall be informed that disclosure of their social security number is 


voluntary. (5 USC 552a Note) 


 


When enrolling in any district school, including a school in their attendance area, children 


whose parents/guardians reside within district boundaries shall be subject to the timelines 


established by the Board for open enrollment. Children whose parents/guardians do not reside 


within the district or who are not otherwise eligible for enrollment in the district may apply for 


interdistrict attendance in accordance with the timelines specified in applicable Board policies 


and administrative regulations. 


 
(cf. 5116.1 - Intradistrict Open Enrollment) 


(cf. 5117 - Interdistrict Attendance) 


(cf. 5118 - Open Enrollment Act Transfers) 


 


The district's enrollment application shall include information about the health care options 


and enrollment assistance available to families within the district. The district shall not 


discriminate against any child for not having health care coverage and shall not use any 


information relating to a child's health care coverage or his/her interest in learning about health 


care coverage in any manner that would harm the child or his/her family.  (Education Code 


49452.9) 


 


 


 
Legal Reference:  (see next page) 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


317 of 428







 


 


 BP 5111(c) 


 


 


ADMISSION  (continued) 


 


 


 
Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


46300  Computation of average daily attendance, inclusion of kindergarten and transitional 


kindergarten 


46600  Agreements for admission of students desiring interdistrict attendance 


48000  Minimum age of admission (kindergarten) 


48002  Evidence of minimum age required to enter kindergarten or first grade 


48010  Minimum age of admission (first grade) 


48011  Admission from kindergarten or other school; minimum age 


48050-48053  Nonresidents 


48200  Children between ages of 6 and 18 years (compulsory full-time education) 


48350-48361  Open Enrollment Act 


48850-48859 Educational placement of homeless and foster youth 


48645.5  Enrollment of former juvenile court school students 


49076  Access to records by persons without written consent or under judicial order 


49408  Information of use in emergencies 


49452.9  Health care coverage options and enrollment assistance 


49700-49704  Education of children of military families 


HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE 


120325-120380  Education and child care facility immunization requirements 


121475-121520  Tuberculosis tests for students 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 


200  Promotion from kindergarten to first grade 


201  Admission to high school 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 17 


6000-6075  School attendance immunization requirements 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 5 


552a Note  Refusal to disclose social security number 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 


11431-11435  McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act 


COURT DECISIONS 


Plyler v. Doe, 457 U.S. 202 (1982) 


 


 


 


Management Resources:  (see next page) 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


318 of 428







 


 


 


 BP 5111(d) 


 


 


ADMISSION  (continued) 


 


 


 
Management Resources: 


CSBA PUBLICATIONS 


Legal Guidance on Providing All Children Equal Access to Education, Regardless of Immigration 


Status, February 2017 


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE CIVIL RIGHTS DIVISION AND U.S. DEPARTMENT OF 


EDUCATION OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS JOINT PUBLICATIONS 


Fact Sheet: Information on the Rights of All Children to Enroll in School 


Dear Colleague Letter: School Enrollment Procedures, May 8, 2014 


WEB SITES 


CSBA: http://www.csba.org 


California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov 


U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights: http://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr 


U.S. Department of Justice: http://www.justice.gov 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:  February 23, 2011 Soquel, California 


revised: September 13, 2017 


 


319 of 428







 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools 


Board Policy 


Admission 
 


BP 5111  


Students 
 


 


The Governing Board believes that all children should have the opportunity to receive 


educational services.  Staff shall encourage parents/guardians to enroll all school-aged children 


in school. 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall maintain procedures which provide for the verification of 


all entrance requirements specified in law and in Board policies and regulations. 


 


(cf. 5111.1 - District Residency) 


(cf. 5111.12 - Residency Based on Parent/Guardian Employment) 


(cf. 5111.13 - Residency for Homeless Children) 


(cf. 5119 - Students Expelled from Other Districts) 


(cf. 5141.22 - Infectious Diseases) 


(cf. 5141.3 - Health Examinations) 


(cf. 5141.31 - Immunizations) 


 


 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


46600  Agreements for admission of pupils desiring interdistrict attendance 


48000  Minimum age of admission (kindergarten) 


48002  Evidence of minimum age required to enter kindergarten or first grade 


48010  Minimum age of admission (first grade) 


48011  Admission from kindergarten or other school;  minimum age 


48050-48053  Nonresidents 


48200  Children between ages of 6 and 18 years (compulsory full-time education) 


49076  Access to records by persons without written consent or under judicial order 


49408  Information of use in emergencies 


HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE 


120325-120380  Education and child care facility immunization requirements 


121475-121520  Tuberculosis tests for pupils 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 


200 Promotion from kindergarten to first grade 


201  Admission to high school 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 17 


6000-6075  School attendance immunization requirements 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 


320 of 428







 


 


11431-11435  McKinney Homeless Assistance Act 


 


Management Resources: 


CDE MANAGEMENT ADVISORIES 


0900.90  Changes in law concerning eligibility for admission to kindergarten 


 


 


 


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:  February 23, 2011 Soquel, California 


321 of 428







 


 


Students BP 5111.1(a) 


 


DISTRICT RESIDENCY 


 


 


The Governing Board desires to admit all students who reside within district boundaries or 


who fulfill the district residency requirements through other means as allowed by law. The 


Superintendent or designee shall develop procedures to facilitate the receipt and verification 


of students' proof of residency. 


 
(cf. 5116 - School Attendance Boundaries) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall annually notify parents/guardians of all existing 


attendance options available in the district, including, but not limited to, all options for meeting 


residency requirements for school attendance.  (Education Code 48980) 


 
(cf. 5116.1 - Intradistrict Open Enrollment) 


(cf. 5117 - Interdistrict Attendance) 


(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall require parents/guardians to provide documentation of 


the student's residency upon admission to a district school. A copy of the document or written 


statement offered as verification of residency shall be maintained in the student's mandatory 


permanent record.  (5 CCR 432) 


 
(cf. 5111 - Admission) 


(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 


 


When establishing a student's residency for enrollment purposes, the Superintendent or 


designee shall not inquire into a student's citizenship or immigration status. 


 


A student's enrollment may be denied when the submitted documentation is insufficient to 


establish district residency. In any such case, the Superintendent or designee shall notify the 


parent/guardian in writing, including specific reasons for the denial. 


 


Investigation of Residency 


 


When the Superintendent or designee reasonably believes that a student's parent/guardian has 


provided false or unreliable evidence of residency, he/she may make reasonable efforts to 


determine that the student meets district residency requirements. An investigation may be 


initiated when the Superintendent or designee is able to identify specific, articulable facts 


supporting the belief that the parent/guardian has provided false or unreliable evidence of 


residency.  (Education Code 48204.1, 48204.2) 


 


The Superintendent or designee may assign a trained district employee to conduct the 


investigation.  The investigation may include the examination of records, including public 


records, and/or interviews of persons who may have knowledge of the student's residency. 


 


 


322 of 428







 


 


 


 BP 5111.1(b) 


 
 


DISTRICT RESIDENCY  (continued) 


 
 


If necessary, the Superintendent or designee may employ the services of a private investigator 


to conduct the investigation. Before hiring a private investigator, the Superintendent or 


designee shall make other reasonable efforts to determine whether the student resides in the 


district.  (Education Code 48204.2) 


 


The investigation shall not include the surreptitious collection of photographic or videographic 


images of persons or places subject to the investigation. However, the use of technology is not 


prohibited if done in open and public view.  (Education Code 48204.2) 
 


Any employee or contractor engaged in the investigation shall truthfully identify 


himself/herself as an investigator to individuals contacted or interviewed during the course of 


the investigation.  (Education Code 48204.2) 


 


Appeal of Enrollment Denial 
 


If the Superintendent or designee, upon investigation, determines that a student does not meet 


district residency requirements and denies the student's enrollment in the district, he/she shall 


provide the student's parent/guardian an opportunity to appeal that determination. (Education 


Code 48204.2) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall send the student's parent/guardian written notice 


specifying the basis for the district's determination. This notice shall also inform the 


parent/guardian that he/she may, within 10 school days, appeal the decision and provide new 


evidence of residency. 
 


The burden shall be on the parent/guardian to show why the district's determination to deny 


enrollment should be overruled.  (Education Code 48204.2) 


 


A student who is currently enrolled in the district shall be allowed to remain in attendance at 


his/her school pending the results of the appeal. A student who is not currently enrolled in the 


district shall not be permitted to attend any district school unless his/her appeal is successful. 
 


In an appeal to the Superintendent of a determination that district residency requirements were 


not met, the Superintendent shall review any evidence provided by the parent/guardian or 


obtained during the district's investigation and shall make a decision within 10 school days of 


receipt of the parent/guardian's request for the appeal. The Superintendent's decision shall be 


final. 


 


 


 


  


 


 


323 of 428







 


 


 BP 5111.1(c) 


 


 


DISTRICT RESIDENCY  (continued) 


 


 


Enrollment Not Requiring District Residency 


 


When approved by the Board and the appropriate agency, the district may enroll students from 


other countries who are in the United States on an F-1 visa or are participating in an 


international exchange program under the sponsorship of a government-approved agency. 


 
(cf. 5111.2 - Nonresident Foreign Students) 


(cf. 6145.6 - International Exchange) 


 


The district may enroll a nonresident student living in an adjoining state or foreign country in 


accordance with Education Code 48050-48052. 


 


District residency is not required for enrollment in a regional occupational center or program 


if there are openings in the program or class.  (Education Code 52317) 


 
(cf. 6178.2 - Regional Occupational Center/Program) 


 


 


 
Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


220  Prohibition of discrimination 


35160.5  Intradistrict open enrollment 


35351  Assignment of students to particular schools 


46600-46611  Interdistrict attendance permits 


48050-48054  Nonresidents 


48200-48208  Compulsory education law, especially: 


48204  Residency requirements 


48204.1-48204.2 Evidence of residency 


48300-48316  Student attendance alternatives, school district of choice program 


48350-48361  Open Enrollment Act transfers 


48852.7  Education of homeless students; immediate enrollment 


48853.5  Education of foster youth; immediate enrollment 


48980  Notifications at beginning of term 


52317  Regional occupational program, admission of persons including nonresidents 


FAMILY CODE 


6550-6552  Caregivers 


GOVERNMENT CODE 


6205-6210  Confidentiality of residence for victims of domestic violence 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 


432  Retention of student records 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 


11431-11435  McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act 


COURT DECISIONS 


Katz v. Los Gatos-Saratoga Joint Union High School District, (2004) 117 Cal.App.4th 47 


 


 


324 of 428







 


 


 BP 5111.1(d) 


 


 


DISTRICT RESIDENCY  (continued) 


 


 


 
Management Resources: 


CSBA PUBLICATIONS 


Legal Guidance on Providing All Children Equal Access to Education, Regardless of Immigration 


Status, February 2017 


Legal Guidance Regarding International Student Exchange Placement Organizations, April 2014 


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE CIVIL RIGHTS DIVISION AND U.S. DEPARTMENT OF 


EDUCATION OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS JOINT PUBLICATIONS 


Fact Sheet: Information on the Rights of All Children to Enroll in School 


Dear Colleague Letter: School Enrollment Procedures, May 8, 2014 


WEB SITES 


CSBA: http://www.csba.org 


California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 


California Secretary of State, Safe at Home Program:  http://www.sos.ca.gov/safeathome 


U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights: http://www2.ed.gov/ocr 


U.S. Department of Justice: http://www.justice.gov 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:  February 10, 2016  Soquel, California 


revised: September 13, 2017 


325 of 428







 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools 


Board Policy 


District Residency 
 


BP 5111.1  


Students 
 


 


The Governing Board desires to admit all students who reside within district boundaries or who 


fulfill the district residency requirements through other means as allowed by law. The 


Superintendent or designee shall develop procedures to facilitate the receipt and verification of 


students' proof of residency. 


 


(cf. 5116 - School Attendance Boundaries) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall annually notify parents/guardians of all existing attendance 


options available in the district, including, but not limited to, all options for meeting residency 


requirements for school attendance.  (Education Code 48980) 


 


(cf. 5116.1 - Intradistrict Open Enrollment) 


(cf. 5117 - Interdistrict Attendance) 


(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall require parents/guardians to provide documentation of the 


student's residency upon admission to a district school. A copy of the document or written 


statement offered as verification of residency shall be maintained in the student's mandatory 


permanent record.  (5 CCR 432) 


 


(cf. 5111 - Admission) 


(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 


 


When establishing a student's residency for enrollment purposes, the Superintendent or designee 


shall not inquire into a student's citizenship or immigration status. 


 


Investigation of Residency 


 


When the Superintendent or designee reasonably believes that a student's parent/guardian has 


provided false or unreliable evidence of residency, he/she may make reasonable efforts to 


determine that the student meets district residency requirements. An investigation may be 


initiated when the Superintendent or designee is able to identify specific, articulable facts 


supporting the belief that the parent/guardian has provided false or unreliable evidence of 


residency.  (Education Code 48204.1, 48204.2) 


 


The Superintendent or designee may assign a trained district employee to conduct the 


investigation. The investigation may include the examination of records, including public 


326 of 428







 


 


records, and/or interviews of persons who may have knowledge of the student's residency. 


 


If necessary, the Superintendent or designee may employ the services of a private investigator to 


conduct the investigation. Before hiring a private investigator, the Superintendent or designee 


shall make other reasonable efforts to determine whether the student resides in the district.  


(Education Code 48204.2) 


 


The investigation shall not include the surreptitious collection of photographic or videographic 


images of persons or places subject to the investigation. However, the use of technology is not 


prohibited if done in open and public view.  (Education Code 48204.2) 


 


Any employee or contractor engaged in the investigation shall truthfully identify himself/herself 


as an investigator to individuals contacted or interviewed during the course of the investigation.  


(Education Code 48204.2) 


 


Appeal of Enrollment Denial 


 


If the Superintendent or designee, upon investigation, determines that a student does not meet 


district residency requirements and denies the student's enrollment in the district, he/she shall 


provide the student's parent/guardian an opportunity to appeal that determination.  (Education 


Code 48204.2) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall send the student's parent/guardian written notice specifying 


the basis for the district's determination. This notice shall also inform the parent/guardian that 


he/she may, within 10 school days, appeal the decision and provide new evidence of residency. 


 


The burden shall be on the parent/guardian to show why the district's determination to deny 


enrollment should be overruled.  (Education Code 48204.2) 


 


A student who is currently enrolled in the district shall be allowed to remain in attendance at 


his/her school pending the results of the appeal. A student who is not currently enrolled in the 


district shall not be permitted to attend any district school unless his/her appeal is successful. 


 


In an appeal to the Superintendent of a determination that district residency requirements were 


not met, the Superintendent shall review any evidence provided by the parent/guardian or 


obtained during the district's investigation and shall make a decision within 10 school days of 


receipt of the parent/guardian's request for the appeal. The Superintendent's decision shall be 


final. 


 


Enrollment Not Requiring District Residency 


 


When approved by the Board and the appropriate agency, the district may enroll students from 


other countries who are in the United States on an F-1 visa or are participating in an international 


exchange program under the sponsorship of a government-approved agency. 


 


(cf. 5111.2 - Nonresident Foreign Students) 


327 of 428







 


 


(cf. 6145.6 - International Exchange) 


 


District residency is not required for enrollment in a regional occupational center or program if 


there are openings in the program or class.  (Education Code 52317) 


 


(cf. 6178.2 - Regional Occupational Center/Program) 


 


 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


220 Prohibition of discrimination 


35160.5 Intradistrict open enrollment 


35351 Assignment of students to particular schools 


46600-46611 Interdistrict attendance permits 


48050-48054 Nonresidents 


48200-48208 Compulsory education law, especially: 


48204 Residency requirements 


48204.1-48204.2 Evidence of residency 


48300-48316 Student attendance alternatives, school district of choice program 


48350-48361 Open Enrollment Act transfers 


48852.7 Education of homeless students; immediate enrollment 


48853.5 Education of foster youth; immediate enrollment 


48980 Notifications at beginning of term 


52317 Regional occupational program, admission of persons including nonresidents 


FAMILY CODE 


6550-6552 Caregivers 


GOVERNMENT CODE 


6205-6210 Confidentiality of residence for victims of domestic violence 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 


432 Retention of student records 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 


11431-11435 McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act 


COURT DECISIONS 


Katz v. Los Gatos-Saratoga Joint Union High School District, (2004) 117 Cal.App.4th 47 


 


Management Resources: 


CSBA PUBLICATIONS 


Legal Guidance Regarding International Student Exchange Placement Organizations, April 2014 


OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS, U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 


Information on the Rights of All Children to Enroll in School: Questions and Answers for States, 


School Districts and Parents, 2012 


WEB SITES 


CSBA: http://www.csba.org 


California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov 


California Secretary of State, Safe at Home Program: http://www.sos.ca.gov/safeathome 


328 of 428







 


 


U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights: http://www2.ed.gov/ocr 


 


 


 


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:  February 10, 2016  Soquel, California 


329 of 428







 


 


Students BP 5113(a) 
 


ABSENCES AND EXCUSES 


 


 


The Governing Board believes that regular attendance plays an important role in student 


achievement. The Board shall work with parents/guardians and students to ensure their 


compliance with all state attendance laws and may use appropriate legal means to correct 


problems of chronic absence or truancy. 


 
(cf. 5112.1 - Exemptions from Attendance) 


(cf. 5112.2 - Exclusions from Attendance) 


(cf. 5113.1 - Chronic Absence and Truancy) 


(cf. 5121 - Grades/Evaluation of Student Achievement) 


(cf. 6154 - Homework/Makeup Work) 


 


Absence from school shall be excused only for health reasons, family emergencies, and 


justifiable personal reasons, as permitted by law, Board policy, and administrative regulation.  


(Education Code 48205) 


 


Student absence for religious instruction or participation in religious exercises away from 


school property may be considered excused subject to law and administrative regulation.  


(Education Code 46014)  


 


Inasmuch as school attendance and class participation are integral to students' learning 


experiences, parents/guardians and students shall be encouraged to schedule medical and other 


appointments during non-school hours. 


 


Students shall not be absent from school without their parents/guardians' knowledge or 


consent, except in cases of medical emergency or, as authorized pursuant to Education Code 


46010.1, for a confidential medical appointment. 


 


The Board shall, by resolution entered into its minutes, approve reasonable methods that may 


be used to verify student absences due to illness or quarantine.  (5 CCR 421) 


 


 


 
Legal Reference: (see next page) 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


330 of 428







 


 


 BP 5113(b) 


 


ABSENCES AND EXCUSES  (continued) 


 


 
Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


1740  Employment of personnel to supervise attendance (county superintendent) 


37201  School month 


37223  Weekend classes 


41601  Reports of average daily attendance 


42238-42250.1 Apportionments 


46000  Records (attendance) 


46010-46014  Absences 


46100-46119  Attendance in kindergarten and elementary schools 


46140-46147  Attendance in junior high and high schools 


48200-48208 Children ages 6-18 (compulsory full-time attendance) 


48210-48216 Exclusions from attendance 


48240-48246  Supervisors of attendance 


48260-48273  Truants 


48292  Filing complaint against parent 


48320-48324  School attendance review boards 


48340-48341 Improvement of student attendance 


48980 Parental notifications 


49067  Unexcused absences as cause of failing grade 


49701  Provisions of the interstate compact on educational opportunities for military children 


ELECTIONS CODE 


12302 Student participation on precinct boards 


FAMILY CODE 


6920-6929 Consent by minor for medical treatment 


VEHICLE CODE 


13202.7  Driving privileges; minors; suspension or delay for habitual truancy 


WELFARE AND INSTITUTIONS CODE 


601-601.4  Habitually truant minors 


11253.5   Compulsory school attendance 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 


306  Explanation of absence 


420-421 Record of verification of absence due to illness and other causes 


ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS 


87 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 168 (2004) 


66 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 244 (1983) 


COURT DECISIONS 


American Academy of Pediatrics et al v. Lungren et al (1997) 16 Cal.4th 307 


 
Management Resources: 


CSBA PUBLICATIONS 


Improving Student Achievement by Addressing Chronic Absence, Policy Brief, December 2010 


WEB SITES 


CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:  February 23, 2011 Soquel, California 


revised: September 13, 2017 


331 of 428







 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools 


Board Policy 


Absences And Excuses 
 


BP 5113  


Students 
 


 


The Governing Board believes that regular attendance plays an important role in student 


achievement. The Board recognizes its responsibility under the law to ensure that students attend 


school regularly. Parents/guardians of children aged 6 to 18 are obligated to send their children 


to school unless otherwise provided by law. The Board shall abide by all state attendance laws 


and may use appropriate legal means to correct the problems of excessive absence or truancy. 


 


(cf. 5112.1 - Exemptions from Attendance) 


(cf. 5112.2 - Exclusions from Attendance) 


(cf. 5113.1 - Truancy) 


 


Excused Absences 


 


Absence from school shall be excused only for health reasons, family emergencies and justifiable 


personal reasons, as permitted by law, Board policy and administration regulations.  (Education 


Code 46010, 48205, 48216) 


 


Inasmuch as class participation is an integral part of students' learning experiences, 


parents/guardians and students shall be encouraged to schedule medical appointments during 


nonschool hours. 


 


At the beginning of each academic year, notifications shall be sent to the parents/guardians of all 


students, and to all students in grades 7 through 12, informing them that school authorities may 


excuse any student from school to obtain confidential medical services without the consent of the 


student's parent/guardian.  (Education Code 46010.1) 


 


(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 


 


Students in grades K-6 shall not be absent from school without their parents/guardians' 


knowledge or consent except in cases of medical emergency. Students in grades 7-12 shall not be 


absent from school without their parents/guardians' knowledge or consent except in cases of 


medical emergency or confidential medical appointment. 


 


Student absence for religious instruction or participation in religious exercises away from school 


property may be considered excused subject to law and administrative regulations.  (Education 


Code 46014) 


 


A student's grades may be affected by excessive unexcused absences in accordance with Board 


332 of 428







 


 


policy. 


 


(cf. 5121 - Grades/Evaluation of Student Achievement) 


(cf. 6154 - Homework/Makeup Work) 


 


 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


1740  Employment of personnel to supervise attendance (county superintendent) 


2550-2558.6 Computation of revenue limits 


37201  School month 


37223  Weekend classes 


41601  Reports of average daily attendance 


42238-42250.1 Apportionments 


46000  Records (attendance) 


46010-46014  Absences 


46100-46119  Attendance in kindergarten and elementary schools 


46140-46147  Attendance in junior high and high schools 


48200-48208 Children ages 6-18 (compulsory full-time attendance) 


48210-48216 Exclusions from attendance 


48240-48246  Supervisors of attendance 


48260-48273  Truants 


48292  Filing complaint against parent 


48320-48324  School attendance review boards 


48340-48341 Improvement of student attendance 


49067  Unexcused absences as cause of failing grade 


ELECTIONS CODE 


12302 Student participation on precinct boards 


FAMILY CODE 


6920-6929 Consent by minor 


VEHICLE CODE 


13202.7  Driving privileges; minors; suspension or delay for habitual truancy 


WELFARE AND INSTITUTIONS CODE 


601-601.4  Habitually truant minors 


11253.5   Compulsory school attendance 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 


306  Explanation of absence 


420-421 Record of verification of absence due to illness and other causes 


ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS 


66 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 245, 249 (1983) 


COURT DECISIONS 


American Academy of Pediatrics et al v. Lungren et al (1997) 16 Cal.4th 307 


 


Management Resources: 


CDE MANAGEMENT ADVISORIES 


333 of 428







 


 


0114.98 School Attendance and CalWORKS, Management Bulletin 98-01 


CSBA ADVISORIES 


0520.97 Welfare Reform and Requirements for School Attendance 


WEB SITES 


CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 


 


 


 


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:  February 23, 2011 Soquel, California 


334 of 428







 


 


Students BP 5148.2(a) 


 


BEFORE/AFTER SCHOOL PROGRAMS 


 
 


The Governing Board desires to provide before-school and/or after-school enrichment 


programs that support the regular education program in a supervised environment. In order to 


increase academic achievement of participating students, the content of such programs shall 


be coordinated with the district's vision and goals for student learning, local control and 


accountability plan, curriculum, and academic standards. 


 
(cf. 0000 - Vision) 


(cf. 0200 - Goals for the School District) 


(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan) 


(cf. 5147 - Dropout Prevention) 


(cf. 5148 - Child Care and Development) 


(cf. 6011 - Academic Standards) 


(cf. 6176 - Weekend/Saturday Classes) 


(cf. 6177 - Summer Learning Programs) 


(cf. 6179 - Supplemental Instruction) 
 


The district's program shall be planned through a collaborative process that includes 


parents/guardians, students, and representatives of participating schools, governmental 


agencies including city and county parks and recreation departments, local law enforcement, 


community organizations, and, if appropriate, the private sector. (Education Code 8422, 


8482.5) 


 


To the extent feasible, the district shall give priority to establishing before-school and/or after-


school programs in low-performing schools and/or programs that serve low-income and other 


at-risk students.  
 


(cf. 1020 - Youth Services) 


(cf. 1400 - Relations Between Other Governmental Agencies and the Schools) 


(cf. 1700 - Relations Between Private Industry and the Schools) 


(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement) 
 


Any program to be established shall be approved by the Board and the principal of each 


participating school.  (Education Code 8421, 8482.3) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all staff who directly supervise students in 


the district's before-school and/or after-school program possess appropriate knowledge and 


experience. As needed, staff and volunteers shall receive ongoing training related to their job 


responsibilities.   


 
(cf. 1240 - Volunteer Assistance) 


(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 


(cf. 4222 - Teacher Aides/Paraprofessionals) 


(cf. 4231 - Staff Development) 


(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 


 


  


 


335 of 428







 


 


 BP 5148.2(b) 


 


BEFORE/AFTER SCHOOL PROGRAMS  (continued) 


 


Each program shall include academic and enrichment elements in accordance with law and 


administrative regulation. In addition, each program may include support services that 


reinforce the educational component and promote student health and well-being. 


 
(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan) 


(cf. 3550 - Food Service/Child Nutrition Program) 


(cf. 5030 - Student Wellness) 


(cf. 5131.6 - Alcohol and Other Drugs) 


(cf. 6142.7 - Physical Education and Activity) 


 


A family fee may be charged to participating families based on the actual cost of services, as 


long as the fee is waived or reduced for families with students who are eligible for free or 


reduced-price meals.  (Education Code 8422, 8482.6) 


 


In regard to the After School Education and Safety program and/or 21st Century Community 


Learning Center program, no fee shall be charged for a student identified as a homeless or 


foster youth.  (Education Code 8482.6)  


 
(cf. 3260 - Fees and Charges) 


(cf. 3553 - Free and Reduced Price Meals) 


(cf. 6173 - Education for Homeless Children) 


(cf. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth) 


 


Eligible students ages 11-12 years shall be placed in a before-school or after-school program, 


if and when available, rather than subsidized child care and development services. During the 


time that the before-school or after-school program does not operate, such students may be 


provided the option of enrolling in child care and development services in accordance with the 


priorities established in AR 5148 - Child Care and Development. (Education Code 8263.4) 


 


The Board and the Superintendent or designee shall monitor student participation rates and 


shall identify multiple measures that shall be used to evaluate program effectiveness. Such 


measures may include, but are not limited to, student outcome data; program self-assessments; 


feedback from staff, participating students, and parents/guardians; and observations of 


program activities. 


 
(cf. 0500 - Accountability) 


 


Every three years, the Superintendent or designee shall review the after-school program plan, 


including, but not limited to, program goals, program content, and outcome measures. 


Documentation of the program plan shall be maintained for a minimum of five years.   


 
(cf. 3580 - District Records) 


 


 


 
Legal Reference:  (see next page) 


336 of 428







 


 


 BP 5148.2(c) 


 


BEFORE/AFTER SCHOOL PROGRAMS  (continued) 


 
Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


8263  Eligibility and priorities for subsidized child development services 


8263.4  Enrollment of students ages 11-12 years 


8273.1  Family fees, exemptions 


8350-8359.1  Programs for CalWORKS recipients 


8360-8370  Personnel qualifications 


8420-8428  21st Century After-School Program for Teens 


8482-8484.65  After School Education and Safety Program 


8484.7-8484.9  21st Century Community Learning Centers 


8490-8490.7  Distinguished After School Health Recognition Program 


17264  New construction; accommodation of before- and after-school programs 


35021.3  After-school physical recreation instructors 


45125  Criminal record check 


45330  Paraprofessionals; instructional aides 


45340-45349  Paraprofessionals; instructional aides 


49024  Criminal background check; Activity Supervisor Clearance Certificate 


49430-49434  Nutrition standards 


49540-49546 Child Care Food Program 


49553  Free or reduced-price meals 


60851.1 Suspension of high school exit examination 


69430-69460  Cal Grant program 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 


6311 State plans 


6314  Title I schoolwide programs 


7171-7176  21st Century Community Learning Centers 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 


1766-1766a  Child and Adult Care Food Program 


11434a Education for homeless children and youths 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 7 


226.17  Child care center nutrition standards 


 


 


 
Management Resources: (see next page) 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


  


 


337 of 428







 


 


 BP 5148.2(d) 


 


BEFORE/AFTER SCHOOL PROGRAMS  (continued) 


 


 


 
Management Resources: 


CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 


Quality Program Improvement Plan for Expanded Learning Programs in California 2016-17, November 


2016 


Request for Application for Programs Proposing to Serve High School Students, September 2016 


21st Century Community Learning Centers (21st CCLC) FAQs Elementary/Middle School Programs, 


September 2016 


A Crosswalk Between the Quality Standards for Expanded Learning and Program Quality Assessment 


Tools, 2014 


Quality Standards for Expanded Learning in California: Creating and Implementing a Shared Vision of 


Quality, 2014 


21st Century High School After School Safety and Enrichment for Teens Program Frequently Asked 


Questions, March 2012 


California After School Physical Activity Guidelines, 2009 


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 


21st Century Community Learning Centers, Nonregulatory Guidance, February 2003 


WEB SITES 


CSBA: http://www.csba.org 


California Department of Education, Before and After School: http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/ba 


California Healthy Kids Survey: http://chks.wested.org 


California School-Age Consortium: http://calsac.org 


Commission on Teacher Credentialing: http://www.ctc.ca.gov 


Partnership for Children and Youth: http://partnerforchildren.org 


U.S. Department of Agriculture: http://www.fns.usda.gov/cnd/care/afterschool.htm 


U.S. Department of Education: http://www.ed.gov 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:   October 14, 2015  Soquel, California 


revised:     September 13, 2017 


 


338 of 428







 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools 


Board Policy 


Before/After School Programs 
 


BP 5148.2  


Students 
 


 


The Governing Board desires to provide before-school and/or after-school enrichment programs 


that support the regular education program and provide safe alternatives for students. In order to 


increase academic achievement of participating students, the content of such programs shall be 


coordinated with the district's vision and goals for student learning, its curriculum, and district 


and state academic standards. 


 


(cf. 0000 - Vision) 


(cf. 0200 - Goals for the School District) 


(cf. 5147 - Dropout Prevention) 


(cf. 5148 - Child Care and Development) 


(cf. 6011 - Academic Standards) 


(cf. 6176 - Weekend/Saturday Classes) 


(cf. 6177 - Summer Learning Programs) 


(cf. 6179 - Supplemental Instruction) 


 


The district's program shall be planned through a collaborative process that includes 


parents/guardians, students, and representatives of participating schools, governmental agencies 


including city and county parks and recreation departments, local law enforcement, community 


organizations, and, if appropriate, the private sector. (Education Code 8422, 8482.5) 


 


(cf. 1020 - Youth Services) 


(cf. 1400 - Relations Between Other Governmental Agencies and the Schools) 


(cf. 1700 - Relations Between Private Industry and the Schools) 


(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement) 


 


The establishment of any program shall be approved by the Board and the principal of each 


participating school.  (Education Code 8421, 8482.3) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all staff who directly supervise students in the 


district's before-school and/or after-school program possess appropriate knowledge and 


experience. As needed, staff and volunteers shall receive ongoing training related to their job 


responsibilities.  (Education Code 8483.4) 


 


(cf. 1240 - Volunteer Assistance) 


(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 


(cf. 4222 - Teacher Aides/Paraprofessionals) 


(cf. 4231 - Staff Development) 


339 of 428







 


 


(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 


 


The program shall include academic and enrichment elements in accordance with law and 


administrative regulation. In addition, the program may include support services that reinforce 


the educational component and promote student health and well-being. 


 


(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan) 


(cf. 3550 - Food Service/Child Nutrition Program) 


(cf. 5030 - Student Wellness) 


(cf. 5131.6 - Alcohol and Other Drugs) 


(cf. 6142.7 - Physical Education and Activity) 


 


No fee shall be charged for participation in the program. 


 


(cf. 3260 - Fees and Charges) 


 


The Board and the Superintendent or designee shall monitor student participation rates and shall 


identify multiple measures that shall be used to evaluate program effectiveness. Such measures 


may include, but are not limited to, student outcome data; program self-assessments; feedback 


from staff, participating students, and parents/guardians; and observations of program activities. 


 


(cf. 0500 - Accountability) 


 


Every three years, the program shall review its after-school program plan, including program 


goals, program content, and outcome measures. Documentation of the program plan shall be 


maintained for a minimum of five years.  (Education Code 8482.3) 


 


(cf. 3580 - District Records) 


 


 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


8263  Eligibility and priorities for subsidized child development services 


8263.4  Enrollment of students ages 11-12 years 


8273.1  Family fees, exemptions 


8350-8359.1  Programs for CalWORKS recipients 


8360-8370  Personnel qualifications 


8420-8428  21st Century After-School Program for Teens 


8482-8484.65  After School Education and Safety Program 


8484.7-8484.9  21st Century Community Learning Centers 


8490-8490.7  Distinguished After School Health Recognition Program 


17264  New construction; accommodation of before- and after-school programs 


35021.3  After-school physical recreation instructors 


45125  Criminal record check 


45330  Paraprofessionals; instructional aides 


340 of 428







 


 


35340-45349  Paraprofessionals; instructional aides 


49024  Criminal background check; Activity Supervisor Clearance Certificate 


49430-49434  Nutrition standards 


49553  Free or reduced-price meals 


69530-69547.9  Cal Grant program 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 


6314  Title I schoolwide programs 


6319  Program improvement 


7171-7176  21st Century Community Learning Centers 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 


1766-1766a  Child and Adult Care Food Program 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 7 


226.17  Nutrition standards 


 


Management Resources: 


CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 


A Crosswalk Between the Quality Standards for Expanded Learning and Program Quality 


Assessment Tools, 2014 


Quality Standards for Expanded Learning in California: Creating and Implementing a Shared 


Vision of Quality, 2014 


California After School Physical Activity Guidelines, 2009 


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 


21st Century Community Learning Centers, Nonregulatory Guidance, February 2003 


WEB SITES 


CSBA: http://www.csba.org 


California Department of Education, Before and After School: http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/ba 


California Healthy Kids Survey: https://chks.wested.org 


California School-Age Consortium: http://calsac.org 


Commission on Teacher Credentialing: http://www.ctc.ca.gov 


Partnership for Children and Youth: http://partnerforchildren.org 


U.S. Department of Agriculture: http://www.fns.usda.gov/cnd/care/afterschool.htm 


U.S. Department of Education: http://www.ed.gov 


 


 


 


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:   October 14, 2015  Soquel, California 


341 of 428







 


 


Instruction BP 6111(a) 


 


SCHOOL CALENDAR 


 


 


For each district school, the Governing Board shall adopt a school calendar that meets the 


requirements of law as well as the needs of the community, students, and the work year as 


negotiated with the district's employee organization(s). As appropriate, the Superintendent or 


designee shall ensure that the proposed calendar is aligned with assessment and accountability 


schedules in order to support the district's goals for student achievement. 


 
(cf. 0200 - Goals for the School District) 


(cf. 4143/4243 - Negotiations/Consultation) 


(cf. 6162.51 - State Academic Achievement Tests) 


(cf. 6162.52 - High School Exit Examination) 


 


Each school calendar shall show the beginning and ending school dates, legal and local 


holidays, staff development days, orientation days, minimum days, vacation periods, and other 


pertinent dates. 


 
(cf. 6112 - School Day) 


(cf. 6115 - Ceremonies and Observances) 


(cf. 6117 - Year-Round Schedules) 


(cf. 6177 - Summer Learning Programs) 


 


The district shall offer a minimum of 175 days of instruction per school year, until it equals or 


exceeds the local control funding formula target established for it pursuant to Education Code 


42238.02, at which time it shall offer 180 days or more of instruction per school year.  


(Education Code 41420, 46208) 


 
(cf. 1431 - Waivers) 


 


 


Staff development days shall not be counted as instructional days. 


 
(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 


(cf. 4231 - Staff Development) 


(cf. 4331- Staff Development) 


 


Notification of the schedule of minimum days and student-free staff development days shall 


be sent to all parents/guardians at the beginning of the school year.  If any minimum days or 


student-free staff development days are added to the schedule, the Superintendent or designee 


shall notify parents/guardians of the affected students as soon as possible and at least one 


month before the scheduled minimum day.  (Education Code 48980) 


 
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 


 


 


 


  


342 of 428







 


 


 BP 6111(b) 


 


 


SCHOOL CALENDAR  (continued) 


 


 


If a school will be used as a polling place on an election day, the Board shall determine whether 


to continue school in session, designate the day for staff training and development, or close the 


school to students and nonclassified staff.  (Elections Code 12283) 


 
(cf. 1400 - Relations Between Governmental Agencies and the Schools) 


(cf. 5113 - Absences and Excuses) 


 


 


 
Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


37200-37202  School calendar 


37220-37223  Holidays 


37600-37672  Continuous school programs: year-round schools, especially: 


37618  School calendar 


37700-37712  Four-day week 


41420 Apportionment withholding, schools not maintained for 175 days 


41422  Schools not maintained for 175 days 


42238.02  Local control funding formula 


46200-46208  Incentives for longer instructional day and year 


46300  Method of computing ADA 


48980  Notice at beginning of term 


ELECTIONS CODE 


12283  School closures, election days 


COURT DECISIONS 


Butt v. State of California, (1992) 4 Cal 4th 668 


PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT RELATIONS BOARD DECISIONS 


Davis Joint Unified School District, (1984) PERB Decision No. 474 
 


Management Resources: 


WEB SITES 


CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 


California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 


California Public Employment Relations Board:  http://www.perb.ca.gov 


Secretary of State's Office:  http://www.sos.ca.gov 


 


 


 


 


 


Regulation:                                                              Santa Cruz City Schools, Soquel, CA 


Adopted:                                                                  September 13, 2017  


 


343 of 428







 


 


Instruction BP 6144(a) 


 


CONTROVERSIAL ISSUES 


 


The Governing Board recognizes that the district's educational program may sometimes 


include instruction related to controversial issues that may arouse strong reactions based on 


personal values and beliefs, political philosophy, culture, religion, or other influences. 


Instruction concerning such topics shall be relevant to the adopted course of study and 


curricular goals and should be designed to develop students' critical thinking skills, ability to 


discriminate between fact and opinion, respect for others, and understanding and tolerance of 


diverse points of view. 


 
(cf. 6141.2 - Recognition of Religious Beliefs and Customs) 


(cf. 6142.1 - Sexual Health and HIV/AIDS Prevention Instruction) 


(cf. 6142.3 - Civic Education) 


(cf. 6142.8 - Comprehensive Health Education) 


(cf. 6142.94 - History-Social Science Instruction) 


(cf. 6143 - Courses of Study) 


 


The Board expects administrators and teachers to exercise professional judgment when 


deciding whether or not a particular issue is suitable for study or discussion. They shall consult 


with the Superintendent or designee as necessary to determine the appropriateness of the 


subject matter, guest speakers, and/or related instructional materials or resources. 


 
(cf. 6141 - Curriculum Development and Evaluation) 


(cf. 6161.1 - Selection and Evaluation of Instructional Materials) 


(cf. 6161.11 - Supplementary Instructional Materials) 


 


When providing instruction related to a controversial issue, the following guidelines shall 


apply: 


 


1. The topic shall be suitable to the age and maturity of the students. 


 


2. Instruction shall be presented in a balanced manner, addressing all sides of the issue 


without bias or prejudice and without promoting any particular point of view. 
 


3. In the classroom, teachers act on behalf of the district and are expected to follow the 


adopted curriculum. In leading or guiding class discussions about issues that may be 


controversial, a teacher may not advocate his/her personal opinion or viewpoint. When 


necessary, the Superintendent or designee may instruct teachers to refrain from sharing 


personal views in the classroom on controversial topics. 


 


4. Students shall be assured of their right to form and express an opinion without 


jeopardizing their grades or being subject to discrimination, retaliation, or discipline, 


provided the viewpoint does not constitute harassment, threats, intimidation, or 


bullying or is otherwise unlawful. 
 


(cf. 5022 - Student and Family Privacy Rights) 


(cf. 5121 - Grades/Evaluation of Student Achievement) 


(cf. 5145.2 - Freedom of Speech/Expression) 


(cf. 6145.5 - Student Organizations and Equal Access) 


344 of 428







 


 


 BP 6144(b) 


 


 


CONTROVERSIAL ISSUES  (continued) 


 


 


5. Students shall be informed of conduct expected during such instruction and the 


importance of being courteous and respectful of the opinions of others. 


 
(cf. 5131 - Conduct) 


(cf. 5131.2 - Bullying) 


(cf. 5137 - Positive School Climate) 


 


6. Adequate factual information shall be provided to help students objectively analyze 


and evaluate the issue and draw their own conclusions. 


 


7. The instruction shall not reflect adversely upon persons because of their race, ethnicity, 


national origin, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, disability, 


religion, or any other basis prohibited by law. 


 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 


(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 


(cf. 5145.9 - Hate-Motivated Behavior) 


 


8. The subject matter of the instruction shall not otherwise be prohibited by state or federal 


law. 


 


When a guest speaker is invited to make a presentation related to a controversial issue, the 


Superintendent or designee shall notify him/her of this policy and the expectations and goals 


regarding the instruction.  If the guest speaker is presenting only one point of view on an issue, 


the teacher shall be responsible for ensuring that students also receive information on opposing 


viewpoints. 


 
(cf. 6145.8 - Assemblies and Special Events) 


 


When required by law, such as in regards to comprehensive sexual health and HIV prevention 


education, parents/guardians shall be notified prior to instruction that they may request in 


writing that their child be excused from the instruction. Students whose parents/guardians 


decline such instruction may be offered an alternative activity of similar educational value. 


 


A student or parent/guardian with concerns regarding instruction about controversial issues 


may communicate directly with the teacher or principal and/or use appropriate district 


complaint procedures. 


 
(cf. 1312.1 - Complaints Concerning District Employees) 


(cf. 1312.2 - Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials) 


 


 
Legal Reference:  (see next page) 


 


345 of 428







 


 


 BP 6144(c) 


CONTROVERSIAL ISSUES  (continued) 


 


 


 
Legal Reference:  


EDUCATION CODE 


220  Prohibition of discrimination 


48950  Freedom of speech 


51240  Excuse from health instruction due to religious beliefs 


51500  Prohibited instruction or activity 


51510  Prohibited study or supplemental materials 


51511  Religious matters properly included in courses of study 


51513  Materials containing questions about beliefs or practices 


51530  Prohibition and definition regarding advocating or teaching communism with intent to 


indoctrinate 


51930-51939  California Healthy Youth Act; comprehensive sexual health and HIV prevention 


education 


60040  Portrayal of cultural and racial diversity 


60044  Prohibited instructional materials 


60045  Criteria for instructional materials 


COURT DECISIONS 


Johnson v. Poway Unified School District, (2011) 658 F.3d 954 (9th Cir.) 


Mayer v. Monroe County Community School Corporation, (2007) 474 F.3d 477 (7th Cir.) 


Garcetti v. Ceballos, (2006) 547 U.S. 410  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:  February 23, 2011 Soquel, California 


revised:  September 25, 2013 


revised:  September 13, 2017 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


346 of 428







 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools 


Board Policy 


Controversial Issues 
 


BP 6144  


Instruction 
 


 


The Governing Board recognizes that the district's educational program may sometimes include 


instruction related to controversial issues that may arouse strong reactions based on personal 


values and beliefs, political philosophy, culture, religion, or other influences. Instruction 


concerning such topics shall be relevant to the adopted course of study and curricular goals and 


should be designed to develop students' critical thinking skills, ability to discriminate between 


fact and opinion, respect for others, and understanding and tolerance of diverse points of view. 


 


(cf. 6141.2 - Recognition of Religious Beliefs and Customs) 


(cf. 6142.1 - Sexual Health and HIV/AIDS Prevention Instruction) 


(cf. 6142.3 - Civic Education) 


(cf. 6142.8 - Comprehensive Health Education) 


(cf. 6142.94 - History-Social Science Instruction) 


(cf. 6143 - Courses of Study) 


 


The Board expects administrators and teachers to exercise professional judgment when deciding 


whether or not a particular issue is suitable for study or discussion. They shall consult with the 


Superintendent or designee as necessary to determine the appropriateness of the subject matter, 


guest speakers, and/or related instructional materials or resources. 


 


(cf. 6141 - Curriculum Development and Evaluation) 


(cf. 6161.1 - Selection and Evaluation of Instructional Materials) 


(cf. 6161.11 - Supplementary Instructional Materials) 


 


When providing instruction related to a controversial issue, the following guidelines shall apply: 


 


1. The topic shall be suitable to the age and maturity of the students. 


 


2. Instruction shall be presented in a balanced manner, addressing all sides of the issue 


without bias or prejudice and without promoting any particular point of view. 


 


3. The teacher may express a personal opinion provided he/she identifies it as a personal 


opinion and clarifies that he/she is not speaking on behalf of the school or district. The teacher 


shall not express an opinion for the purpose of persuading students to his/her point of view. 


 


4. No student's viewpoint shall be suppressed, provided such expression is not malicious or 


abusive toward others.  Students shall be assured of their right to form and express an opinion 


without jeopardizing their relationship with the teacher or school. 


347 of 428







 


 


 


(cf. 5022 - Student and Family Privacy Rights) 


(cf. 5145.2 - Freedom of Speech/Expression) 


(cf. 6145.5 - Student Organizations and Equal Access) 


 


5. Students shall be informed of conduct expected during such instruction and the 


importance of being courteous and respectful of the opinions of others. 


 


(cf. 5131 - Conduct) 


(cf. 5131.2 - Bullying) 


(cf. 5137 - Positive School Climate) 


 


6. Adequate factual information shall be provided to help students objectively analyze and 


evaluate the issue and draw their own conclusions. 


 


7. The instruction shall not reflect adversely upon persons because of their race, ethnicity, 


national origin, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, disability, religion, or any 


other basis prohibited by law. 


 


(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 


(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 


(cf. 5145.9 - Hate-Motivated Behavior) 


 


8. The subject matter of the instruction shall not otherwise be prohibited by state or federal 


law. 


 


When a guest speaker is invited to make a presentation related to a controversial issue, the Board 


requires that he/she be notified of this policy and the expectations and goals regarding the 


instruction.  If the guest speaker is presenting only one point of view on an issue, the teacher 


shall be responsible for ensuring that students also receive information on opposing viewpoints. 


 


(cf. 6145.8 - Assemblies and Special Events) 


 


When required by law or otherwise deemed appropriate by the teacher or administrator, 


parents/guardians shall be notified prior to instruction related to any controversial issue and 


parent/guardian consent shall be obtained for student participation. Students whose 


parents/guardians decline such instruction may be offered the option to participate in an 


alternative activity of similar value. 


 


A student or parent/guardian with concerns regarding instruction about controversial issues shall 


be directed to appropriate district complaint procedures. 


 


(cf. 1312.1 - Complaints Concerning District Employees) 


(cf. 1312.2 - Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials) 


 


 


348 of 428







 


 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


220  Prohibition of discrimination 


51500  Prohibited instruction or activity 


51510  Prohibited study or supplemental materials 


51511  Religious matters properly included in courses of study 


51530  Prohibition and definition regarding advocating or teaching communism with intent to 


indoctrinate 


51933  Sex education courses 


51938  Right of parent/guardian to excuse child from sexual health instruction 


60040  Portrayal of cultural and racial diversity 


60044  Prohibited instructional materials 


60045  Criteria for instructional materials 


 


 


 


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:  February 23, 2011 Soquel, California 


revised:  September 25, 2013 


349 of 428







 


 


Instruction BP 6145(a) 


 


EXTRACURRICULAR AND COCURRICULAR ACTIVITIES 


 


 


The Governing Board recognizes that extracurricular and cocurricular activities enrich the 


educational and social development of students and enhance students' feelings of 


connectedness with the schools. The district shall encourage and support student participation 


in extracurricular and cocurricular activities without compromising the integrity and purpose 


of the educational program. 


 
(cf. 1330 - Use of School Facilities) 


(cf. 5137 - Positive School Climate) 


(cf. 6145.2 - Athletic Competition) 


(cf. 5148.2 - Before/After School Programs) 


 


Prerequisites for student participation in extracurricular and cocurricular activities shall be 


limited to those that have been demonstrated to be essential to the success of the activity. No 


extracurricular or cocurricular program or activity shall be provided or conducted separately 


on the basis of any actual or perceived characteristic listed as a prohibited category of 


discrimination in state or federal law, nor shall any student's participation in an extracurricular 


or cocurricular activity be required or refused on those bases.  (5 CCR 4925) 


 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 


(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 


(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment) 


(cf. 6145.5 - Student Organizations and Equal Access) 


 


Any complaint alleging unlawful discrimination in the district's extracurricular or cocurricular 


programs or activities shall be filed in accordance with BP/AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint 


Procedures. 


 
(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures) 


 


Unless specifically authorized by law, no student shall be charged a fee for his/her participation 


in educational activities, including extracurricular and cocurricular activities and materials or 


equipment related to such activities. (Education Code 49010, 49011) 


 
(cf. 3260 - Fees and Charges) 


(cf. 3452 - Student Activity Funds) 


 


Eligibility Requirements 


 


To be eligible to participate in extracurricular and cocurricular activities, students in grades 7-


12 must demonstrate satisfactory educational progress in the previous grading period, 


including, but not limited to:  (Education Code 35160.5) 


 


1. Maintenance of a minimum of 2.0 grade point average on a 4.0 scale in all enrolled 


classes 


 


350 of 428







 


 


 


 BP 6145(b) 


 


 


EXTRACURRICULAR AND COCURRICULAR ACTIVITIES  (continued) 


 


 


2. Maintenance of minimum progress toward meeting high school graduation 


requirements 


 
(cf. 5121 - Grades/Evaluation of Student Achievement) 


(cf. 6146.1 - High School Graduation Requirements) 


 


The Superintendent or designee may grant ineligible students a probationary period not to 


exceed one semester. Students granted probationary eligibility must meet the required 


standards by the end of the probationary period in order to remain eligible for participation. 


(Education Code 35160.5) 


 


Any decision regarding the eligibility of a homeless student, foster youth, or child of an active 


duty military family for extracurricular or cocurricular activities shall be made by the 


Superintendent or designee in accordance with Education Code 48850 and 49701. 


 
(cf. 6173 - Education for Homeless Children) 


(cf. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth) 


(cf. 6173.2 - Education of Children of Military Families) 


 


The Superintendent or designee may revoke a student's eligibility for participation in 


extracurricular and cocurricular activities when the student's poor citizenship is serious enough 


to warrant loss of this privilege. 


 


Student Conduct at Extracurricular/Cocurricular Events 


 


When attending or participating in extracurricular and cocurricular activities on or off campus, 


district students are subject to district policies and regulations relating to student conduct. 


Students who violate district policies and regulations may be subject to discipline including, 


but not limited to, suspension, expulsion, transfer to alternative programs, or denial of 


participation in extracurricular or cocurricular activities in accordance with Board policy and 


administrative regulation. When appropriate, the Superintendent or designee shall notify local 


law enforcement. 


 
(cf. 5131 - Conduct) 


(cf. 5131.1 - Bus Conduct) 


(cf. 5144 - Discipline) 


(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process) 


(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities)) 


 
 


Legal Reference: (see next page) 


  


 


351 of 428







 


 


 BP 6145(c) 


 


 


EXTRACURRICULAR AND COCURRICULAR ACTIVITIES  (continued) 


 


 


 
Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


35145  Public meetings 


35160.5  District policy rules and regulations; requirements; matters subject to regulation 


35179  Interscholastic athletics; associations or consortia 


35181  Students' responsibilities 


48850  Participation of homeless students and foster youth in extracurricular activities and 


interscholastic sports 


48930-48938  Student organizations 


49010-49013  Student fees 


49024  Activity Supervisor Clearance Certificate 


49700-49704  Education of children of military families 


CALIFORNIA CONSTITUTION 


Article 9, Section 5 Common school system 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 


350  Fees not permitted 


4900-4965  Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary education programs receiving state 


financial assistance 


5531  Supervision of extracurricular activities of pupils 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 


2000h-2-2000h-6  Title IX, 1972 Education Act Amendments 


COURT DECISIONS 


Hartzell v. Connell, (1984) 35 Cal. 3d 899 


 


Management Resources: 


CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 


Pupil Fees, Deposits, and Other Charges, Fiscal Management Advisory 12-02, April 24, 2013 


CALIFORNIA TASK FORCE REPORT TO THE LEGISLATURE 


Compact on Educational Opportunity for Military Children:  Preliminary Final Report, March 2009 


COMMISSION ON TEACHER CREDENTIALING PUBLICATIONS 


Information on Assembly Bill 346 Concerning the Activity Supervisor Clearance Certificate (ASCC), 


Coded Correspondence 10-11, July 20, 2010 


WEB SITES 


CSBA: http://www.csba.org 


California Association of Directors of Activities:  http://www.cadal.org 


California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 


California Interscholastic Federation:  http://www.cifstate.org 


Commission on Teacher Credentialing: http://www.ctc.ca.gov 


 


 


 


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:  April 21, 2010 Soquel, California 


revised:   September 13, 2017 


 


352 of 428







 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools 


Board Policy 


Extracurricular And Co-Curricular Activities 
 


BP 6145  


Instruction 
 


 


The Governing Board recognizes that extracurricular and co-curricular activities enrich the 


educational and social development and experiences of students.  The district shall encourage 


and support student participation in extracurricular and co-curricular activities without 


compromising the integrity and purpose of the educational program. 


 


No extracurricular or co-curricular program or activity shall be provided or conducted separately 


and no district student's participation in extracurricular and co-curricular activities shall be 


required or refused based on the student's gender, sexual orientation, ethnic group identification, 


race, ancestry, national origin, religion, color, or mental or physical disability.  Requirements for 


participation in extracurricular and co-curricular activities shall be limited to those that are 


essential to the success of the activity.  (5 CCR 4925) 


 


Any complaint regarding the district's extracurricular and co-curricular programs or activities 


shall be filed in accordance with BP/AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures. 


 


(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 


(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures) 


(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 


(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment) 


 


No student shall be prohibited from participating in extracurricular and co-curricular activities 


related to the educational program because of inability to pay fees associated with the activity. 


 


(cf. 3260 - Fees and Charges) 


 


Eligibility Requirements 


 


To be eligible to participate in extracurricular and co-curricular activities, students in grades 7 


through 12 must demonstrate satisfactory educational progress in the previous grading period 


including but not limited to:  (Education Code 35160.5) 


 


1. Maintenance of a minimum of 2.0 grade point average on a 4.0 scale 


 


2. Maintenance of minimum progress toward meeting high school graduation requirements 


 


(cf. 6146.1 - High School Graduation Requirements) 


(cf. 6162.52 - High School Exit Examination) 


353 of 428







 


 


 


The Superintendent will develop Administrative Regulations which outline additional eligibility 


requirements and processes for participation in interscholastic athletics. 


 


The Superintendent or designee may grant ineligible students a probationary period of not more 


than one semester.  Students granted probationary eligibility must meet the required standards 


by the end of the probationary period in order to remain eligible for participation. 


 


(cf. 6164.5 - Student Success Teams) 


(cf. 6176 - Weekend/Saturday Classes) 


(cf. 6177 - Summer School) 


(cf. 6179 - Supplemental Instruction) 


 


The Superintendent or designee may revoke a student's eligibility for participation in 


extracurricular and co-curricular activities when the student's poor citizenship is serious enough 


to warrant loss of this privilege. 


 


(cf. 5144 - Discipline) 


 


 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


35145  Public meetings 


35160.5  District policy rules and regulations; requirements; matters subject to regulation 


35179  Interscholastic athletics; associations or consortia 


48930-48938  Student organizations 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 


350  Fees not permitted 


4900-4965  Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary education programs receiving state 


financial assistance 


5531  Supervision of extracurricular activities of pupils 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 


  2000h-2-2000h-6  Title IX, 1972 Education Act Amendments 


COURT DECISIONS 


Hartzell v. Connell,  (1984) 35 Cal. 3d  899 


 


Management Resources: 


CDE LEGAL ADVISORIES 


001.90  Access to School-Related Activities and Events by Disabled Students, LO: 3-0 


409.87  Requirements for Pupil Participation in Extracurricular and Cocurricular activities, AB 


2613, CIL: 86/87-11 


WEB SITES 


California Association of Directors of Activities:  http://www.cada1.org 


 


 


354 of 428







 


 


 


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:  April 21, 2010 Soquel, California 


355 of 428







 


 


Instruction BP 6145.2(a) 


 


ATHLETIC COMPETITION 


 


 


The Governing Board recognizes that the district's athletic program constitutes an integral 


component of the educational program and helps to build a positive school climate.  The 


athletic program also promotes the physical, social, and emotional well-being and character 


development of participating students. The district's athletic program shall be designed to meet 


students' interests and abilities and shall be varied in scope to attract wide participation. 


 
(cf. 3541.1 - Transportation for School-Related Trips) 


(cf. 5030 - Student Wellness) 


(cf. 5137 - Positive School Climate) 


(cf. 6142.7 - Physical Education and Activity) 


(cf. 7110 - Facilities Master Plan) 


 


All athletic teams shall be supervised by qualified coaches to ensure that student athletes 


receive appropriate instruction and guidance related to safety, health, sports skills, and 


sportsmanship.  Athletic events shall be officiated by qualified personnel. 


 
(cf. 4127/4227/4327 - Temporary Athletic Team Coaches) 


 


The Board encourages business and community support for district athletic programs, subject 


to applicable district policies and regulations governing advertisements and donations. 


 
(cf. 1260 - Educational Foundation) 


(cf. 1321 - Solicitation of Funds from and by Students) 


(cf. 1325 - Advertising and Promotion) 


(cf. 1700 - Relations Between Private Industry and the Schools) 


(cf. 3290 - Gifts, Grants and Bequests) 


 


Nondiscrimination and Equivalent Opportunities in the Athletic Program 


 


The district's athletic program shall be free from discrimination and discriminatory practices 


prohibited by state and federal law, including, but not limited to, the use of any racially 


derogatory or discriminatory school or athletic team name, mascot, or nickname. The 


Superintendent or designee shall ensure that equivalent athletic opportunities are provided for 


males and females, and that students are permitted to participate in athletic activities consistent 


with their gender identity. 


 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 


(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 


(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment) 


 


Any complaint regarding the district's athletic program shall be filed in accordance with the 


district's uniform complaint procedures. 


 
(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures) 


 


 


356 of 428







 


 


 BP 6145.2(b) 


 


ATHLETIC COMPETITION  (continued) 


 


 


California Interscholastic Federation 


 


Any district school that participates in the California Interscholastic Federation (CIF) shall 


conduct its athletic activities in accordance with CIF bylaws and rules and any applicable 


district policy and regulation. The Superintendent or designee shall have responsibility for the 


district's interscholastic athletic program, while the principal or designee at each participating 


school shall be responsible for site-level decisions, as appropriate. 


 


The Board shall annually designate a representative to the local CIF league from each school 


that participates in CIF sports. The Superintendent or designee shall recommend a candidate 


for the position who demonstrates an understanding of the district's goals for student learning 


and interscholastic activities, knowledge of the athletic programs, awareness of the 


implications of league decisions for the school and the district, and interpersonal 


communication and leadership skills. 


 


The designated representative(s) shall vote on issues that impact interscholastic athletics at the 


league and section levels, perform any other duties required by the CIF league, and report 


regularly to the Board on league, section, and statewide issues related to athletic programs. 


 
(cf. 0500 - Accountability) 


 


Student Eligibility 


 


Eligibility requirements for student participation in the district's interscholastic athletic 


program, including requirements pertaining to academic achievement, shall be the same as 


those set by the district for participation in extracurricular and cocurricular activities. 
 


(cf. 3530 - Risk Management/Insurance) 


(cf. 5111.1 - District Residency) 


(cf. 5121 - Grades/Evaluation of Student Achievement) 


(cf. 6145 - Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities) 


(cf. 6146.1 - High School Graduation Requirements) 


(cf. 6173 - Education for Homeless Children) 


(cf. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth) 


(cf. 6173.2 - Education of Children of Military Families) 


 


In addition, the Superintendent or designee shall ensure that students participating in 


interscholastic athletics governed by CIF satisfy CIF eligibility requirements. 


 


Students shall not be charged a fee to participate in an athletic program, including, but not 


limited to, a fee to cover the cost of uniforms, locks, lockers, or athletic equipment. 
 


(cf. 3260 - Fees and Charges) 


(cf. 5143 - Insurance) 


 


357 of 428







 


 


 BP 6145.2(c) 


 


 


ATHLETIC COMPETITION  (continued) 


 


 


Sportsmanship 


 


The Board values the quality and integrity of the athletic program and the character 


development of student athletes. Student athletes, coaches, parents/guardians, spectators, and 


others are expected to demonstrate good sportsmanship, ethical conduct, and fair play during 


all athletic competitions. They shall also abide by the core principles of trustworthiness, 


respect, responsibility, fairness, caring, and good citizenship, and the Code of Ethics adopted 


by CIF. 


 


Students and staff shall be subject to disciplinary action for improper conduct. 


 
(cf. 3515.2 - Disruptions) 


(cf. 4118 - Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 


(cf. 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 


(cf. 5131 - Conduct) 


(cf. 5131.1 - Bus Conduct) 


(cf. 5131.4 - Student Disturbances) 


(cf. 5144 - Discipline) 


(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process) 


(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Individuals with Disabilities)) 


 


Health and Safety 


 


The Board desires to give student health and safety the highest consideration in planning and 


conducting athletic activities. 


 


Students shall have a medical clearance before participating in interscholastic athletic 


programs.  Care shall be taken to ensure that all athletic trainings and competitions are 


conducted in a manner that will not overtax the physical capabilities of the participants. When 


appropriate, protective equipment shall be used to prevent or minimize injuries. 


 
(cf. 5131.61 - Drug Testing) 


(cf. 5131.63 - Steroids) 


(cf. 5141.3 - Health Examinations) 


(cf. 5141.6 - School Health Services) 


(cf. 5141.7 - Sun Safety) 


(cf. 5143 - Insurance) 


 


Coaches and appropriate district employees shall take every possible precaution to ensure that 


athletic equipment is kept in safe and serviceable condition.  The Superintendent or designee 


shall ensure that all athletic equipment is cleaned and inspected for safety before the beginning 


of each school year. 


 
(cf. 5142 - Safety) 


 


358 of 428







 


 


 


 BP 6145.2(d) 


 


 


ATHLETIC COMPETITION  (continued) 


 


 


In the event of an injury or a perceived imminent risk to a student's health, such as a concussion 


or passing out, fainting, or other sign of sudden cardiac arrest, during or immediately after an 


athletic activity, the coach or any other district employee who is present shall remove the 


student athlete from the activity, observe universal precautions in handling blood or other 


bodily fluid, and/or seek medical treatment for the student as appropriate. 


 
(cf. 4119.42/4219.42/4319.42 - Exposure Control Plan for Bloodborne Pathogens) 


(cf. 4119.43/4219.43/4319.43 - Universal Precautions) 


(cf. 5141 - Health Care and Emergencies) 


(cf. 5141.21 - Administering Medication and Monitoring Health Conditions) 


(cf. 5141.22 - Infectious Diseases) 


 


Whenever an injury is suffered by a student, the Superintendent or designee shall notify the 


student's parent/guardian of the date, time, and extent of any injury suffered by the student and 


any actions taken to treat the student. 


 


 


 
Legal Reference: (see next page) 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


359 of 428







 


 


 


BP 6145.2(e) 


 


ATHLETIC COMPETITION  (continued) 


 


 
Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


200-262.4  Prohibition of discrimination 


17578  Cleaning and sterilizing of football equipment 


17580-17581  Football equipment 


32220-32224 Insurance for athletic teams, especially: 


32221.5  Required insurance for athletic activities 


33353-33353.5  California Interscholastic Federation; implementation of policies, insurance program 


33354  California Department of Education authority over interscholastic athletics 


33479-33479.9 The Eric Parades Sudden Cardiac Arrest Prevention Act 


35160.5  District policies; rules and regulations 


35179  Interscholastic athletics 


35179.1 California High School Coaching Education and Training Program 


35179.5  Interscholastic athletics; limitation on full-contact practices 


48850  Interscholastic athletics; students in foster care and homeless students 


48900  Grounds for suspension and expulsion 


48930-48938  Student organizations 


49010-49013 Student fees 


49020-49023  Athletic programs; legislative intent, equal opportunity 


49030-49034  Performance-enhancing substances 


49458  Health examinations, interscholastic athletic program 


49475  Health and safety, concussions and head injuries 


49700-49701  Education of children of military families 


51242  Exemption from physical education for high school students in interscholastic athletic program 


PENAL CODE 


245.6  Hazing 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 


4900-4965  Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary education programs, especially: 


4920-4922 Nondiscrimination in intramural, interscholastic, and club activities 


5531  Supervision of extracurricular activities of students 


5590-5596  Employment of noncertificated coaches 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 


1681-1688 Discrimination based on sex or blindness, Title IX 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 


106.31  Nondiscrimination on the basis of sex in education programs or activities 


106.33  Comparable facilities 


106.41 Nondiscrimination in athletic programs 


COURT DECISIONS 


Mansourian v. Regents of University of California, (2010) 602 F. 3d 957 


McCormick v. School District of Mamaroneck, (2004) 370 F.3d 275 


Kahn v. East Side Union High School District, (2003) 31 Cal. 4th 990 


Hartzell v. Connell, (1984) 35 Cal. 3d 899 


 
Management Resources: 


CSBA PUBLICATIONS 


Updated Legal Guidance: Protecting Transgender and Gender Nonconforming Students Against 


Discrimination, March 2017 


 


 
Management Resources continued: (see next page) 


360 of 428







 


 


BP 6145.2(f) 


 


 


ATHLETIC COMPETITION  (continued) 


 


 


 
Management Resources: (continued) 


CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 


Pupil Fees, Deposits, and Other Charges, Fiscal Management Advisory 12-02, April 24, 2013 


CALIFORNIA INTERSCHOLASTIC FEDERATION PUBLICATIONS 


California Interscholastic Federation Constitution and Bylaws 


A Guide to Equity in Athletics 


Guidelines for Gender Identity Participation 


Keep Their Heart in the Game: A Sudden Cardiac Arrest Information Sheet for Athletes and 


Parents/Guardians 


Pursuing Victory with Honor, 1999 


CENTERS FOR DISEASE CONTROL AND PREVENTION PUBLICATIONS 


Heads Up: Concussion in High School Sports, Tool Kit, June 2010 


Heads Up: Concussion in Youth Sports, Tool Kit, July 2007 


Acute Concussion Evaluation (ACE) Care Plan, 2006 


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS 


Withdrawal of Dear Colleague Letter on Transgender Students, Dear Colleague Letter, February 22, 


2017 


Intercollegiate Athletics Policy Clarification: The Three-Part Test - Part Three, Dear Colleague 


Letter, April 20, 2010 


WEB SITES 


CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 


California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov 


California Interscholastic Federation:  http://www.cifstate.org 


Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, Concussion Resources: http://www.cdc.gov/concussion 


National Federation of State High School Associations: http://www.nfhs.org 


National Operating Committee on Standards for Athletic Equipment:  http://www.nocsae.org 


U.S. Anti-Doping Agency: http://www.usada.org 


U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights: http://www2.ed.gov/ocr 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:  March 14, 2012 Soquel, California 


revised:    September 13, 2017 


361 of 428







 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools 


Board Policy 


Athletic Competition 
 


BP 6145.2  


Instruction 
 


 


The Governing Board recognizes that the district's athletic program constitutes an integral 


component of the educational program and helps to build a positive school climate.  The athletic 


program also promotes the physical, social, and emotional well-being and character development 


of participating students.  The athletic program shall be designed to meet students' interests and 


abilities and shall be varied in scope to attract wide participation. 


 


(cf. 3541.1 - Transportation for School-Related Trips) 


(cf. 5030 - Student Wellness) 


(cf. 5137 - Positive School Climate) 


(cf. 6142.7 - Physical Education and Activity) 


(cf. 7110 - Facilities Master Plan) 


 


All athletic teams shall be supervised by qualified coaches to ensure that student athletes receive 


appropriate instruction and guidance related to safety, health, sports skills, and sportsmanship.  


Athletic events shall be officiated by qualified personnel. 


 


(cf. 4127/4227/4327 - Temporary Athletic Team Coaches) 


 


The Board encourages business and community support for district athletic programs, subject to 


applicable district policies and regulations governing advertisements and donations. 


 


(cf. 1260 - Educational Foundation) 


(cf. 1321 - Solicitation of Funds from and by Students) 


(cf. 1325 - Advertising and Promotion) 


(cf. 1700 - Relations Between Private Industry and the Schools) 


(cf. 3290 - Gifts, Grants and Bequests) 


 


Nondiscrimination and Equivalent Opportunities in the Athletic Program 


 


The district's athletic program shall be free from discrimination and discriminatory practices 


prohibited by state and federal law.  The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that equivalent 


athletic opportunities are provided for males and females. 


 


(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 


(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 


(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment) 


 


362 of 428







 


 


Any complaint regarding the district's athletic program shall be filed in accordance with the 


district's uniform complaint procedures. 


 


(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures) 


 


California Interscholastic Federation 


 


The Board maintains membership in the California Interscholastic Federation (CIF) and requires 


that interscholastic athletic activities be conducted in accordance with Board policy, 


administrative regulations, and CIF bylaws and rules.  The Superintendent or designee shall 


have responsibility for the district's interscholastic athletic program, while the principal or 


designee at each participating school shall be responsible for site-level decisions, as appropriate. 


 


Upon recommendation of the Superintendent, the Board shall annually designate an employee 


from each high school to serve as a representative to the local CIF league.  Appointees shall 


represent the district in performing all duties required by the CIF league.  In making this 


selection, the Board shall consider the employee's understanding of the district's goals for student 


learning and interscholastic and extracurricular activities, knowledge of the athletic programs, 


awareness of the implications of league decisions for the school and the district, and individual 


interpersonal communication and leadership skills. 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the district representatives to CIF report 


regularly to the Board on league, section, and statewide issues, as well as activities and 


prospective actions related to athletic programs. 


 


(cf. 0500 - Accountability) 


 


Student Eligibility 


 


Eligibility requirements for participation in the district's interscholastic athletic program, 


including requirements pertaining to academic achievement and residency, shall be the same as 


those set by the district for participation in extracurricular and cocurricular activities. 


 


(cf. 3530 - Risk Management/Insurance) 


(cf. 5111.1 - District Residency) 


(cf. 5121 - Grades/Evaluation of Student Achievement) 


(cf. 6145 - Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities) 


(cf. 6146.1 - High School Graduation Requirements) 


(cf. 6162.52 - High School Exit Examination) 


(cf. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth) 


(cf. 6173.2 - Education of Children of Military Families) 


 


In addition, the Superintendent or designee shall ensure that students participating in 


interscholastic athletics governed by CIF satisfy CIF eligibility requirements. 


 


Students shall not be charged a fee to participate in an athletic program. 


363 of 428







 


 


 


(cf. 3260 - Fees and Charges) 


 


Sportsmanship 


 


The Board values the quality and integrity of the athletic program and the character development 


of student athletes.  Student athletes, coaches, parents/guardians, spectators, and others are 


expected to demonstrate good sportsmanship, ethical conduct, and fair play during all athletic 


competitions.  They shall also abide by the core principles of trustworthiness, respect, 


responsibility, fairness, caring, and good citizenship and the Codes of Conduct adopted by CIF. 


 


Students and staff may be subject to disciplinary action for improper conduct. 


 


(cf. 3515.2 - Disruptions) 


(cf. 4118 - Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 


(cf. 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 


(cf. 5131 - Conduct) 


(cf. 5131.1 - Bus Conduct) 


(cf. 5131.4 - Student Disturbances) 


(cf. 5144 - Discipline) 


(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process) 


(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Individuals with Disabilities)) 


 


Health and Safety 


 


The Board desires to give student health and safety the highest consideration in planning and 


conducting athletic activities. 


 


Students shall have a medical clearance before participating in interscholastic athletic programs.  


Care shall be taken to ensure that all athletic trainings and competitions are conducted in a 


manner that will not overtax the physical capabilities of the participants.  When appropriate, 


protective equipment shall be used to prevent or minimize injuries. 


 


(cf. 5131.61 - Drug Testing) 


(cf. 5131.63 - Steroids) 


(cf. 5141.3 - Health Examinations) 


(cf. 5141.6 - School Health Services) 


(cf. 5141.7 - Sun Safety) 


(cf. 5143 - Insurance) 


 


Coaches and appropriate district employees shall take every possible precaution to ensure that 


athletic equipment is kept in safe and serviceable condition.  The Superintendent or designee 


shall ensure that all athletic equipment is cleaned and inspected for safety before the beginning 


of each school year. 


 


(cf. 5142 - Safety) 


364 of 428







 


 


 


In the event that an injury occurs, the coach or other appropriate district employee shall observe 


universal precautions and shall remove the student athlete from the activity and/or seek medical 


treatment for the student as appropriate. 


 


(cf. 4119.42/4219.42/4319.42 - Exposure Control Plan for Bloodborne Pathogens) 


(cf. 4119.43/4219.43/4319.43 - Universal Precautions) 


(cf. 5141 - Health Care and Emergencies) 


(cf. 5141.21 - Administering Medication and Monitoring Health Conditions) 


(cf. 5141.22 - Infectious Diseases) 


 


 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


200-262.4  Prohibition of discrimination 


270-271  Athletes' Bill of Rights 


17578  Cleaning and sterilizing of football equipment 


17580-17581  Football equipment 


32221.5  Required insurance for athletic activities 


33353-33353.5  California Interscholastic Federation; implementation of policies, insurance 


program 


33354  California Department of Education authority over interscholastic athletics 


35160.5  District policies; rules and regulations 


35179  Interscholastic athletics 


48850  Interscholastic athletics; students in foster care 


48900  Grounds for suspension and expulsion 


48930-48938  Student organizations 


49020-49023  Athletic programs; legislative intent, equal opportunity 


49030-49034  Performance-enhancing substances 


49458  Health examinations, interscholastic athletic program 


49475  Health and safety, concussions and head injuries 


49700-49701  Education of children of military families 


51242  Exemption from physical education for high school students in interscholastic athletic 


program 


PENAL CODE 


245.6  Hazing 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 


4900-4965  Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary education programs, especially: 


4920-4922 Nondiscrimination in intramural, interscholastic, and club activities 


5531  Supervision of extracurricular activities of students 


5590-5596  Employment of noncertificated coaches 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 


1681-1688 Discrimination based on sex or blindness, Title IX 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 


106.31  Nondiscrimination on the basis of sex in education programs or activities 


365 of 428







 


 


106.33  Comparable facilities 


106.41 Nondiscrimination in athletic programs 


COURT DECISIONS 


Mansourian v. Regents of University of California, (2010) 594 F. 3d 1095 


Kahn v. East Side Union High School District, (2004) 31 Cal. 4th 990t 


McCormick v. School District of Mamaroneck, (2004) 370 F.3d 275 


Hartzell v. Connell, (1984) 35 Cal. 3d 899 


 


Management Resources: 


CSBA PUBLICATIONS 


Student Fees Litigation Update, Education Legal Alliance Advisory, May 20, 2011 


A School Board Member's Guide to CIF and Interscholastic Sports, 1997 


CALIFORNIA INTERSCHOLASTIC FEDERATION PUBLICATIONS 


California Interscholastic Federation Constitution and Bylaws 


A Guide to Equity in Athletics 


Acute Concussion Evaluation (ACE) Care Plan, 2006 


Pursuing Victory with Honor, 1999 


CENTERS FOR DISEASE CONTROL AND PREVENTION PUBLICATIONS 


Heads Up: Concussion in High School Sports, Tool Kit, June 2010 


Heads Up: Concussion in Youth Sports, Tool Kit, July 2007 


OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS, U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 


Intercollegiate Athletics Policy Clarification: The Three-Part Test - Part Three, Dear Colleague 


letter, April 20, 2010 


WEB SITES 


CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 


California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov 


California Interscholastic Federation:  http://www.cifstate.org 


Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, Concussion Resources: 


http://www.cdc.gov/concussion 


National Federation of State High School Associations: http://www.nfhs.org 


National Operating Committee on Standards for Athletic Equipment:  http://www.nocsae.org 


U.S. Anti-Doping Agency: http://www.usada.org 


U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights: http://www2.ed.gov/ocr 


 


 


 


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:  March 14, 2012 Soquel, California 


366 of 428







 


 


Instruction BP 6174(a) 


 


EDUCATION FOR ENGLISH LEARNERS 


 


 


The Governing Board intends to provide English learners with challenging curriculum and 


instruction that develop proficiency in English while facilitating student achievement in the 


district's regular course of study.  


 


The district shall identify in its local control and accountability plan (LCAP) goals and specific 


actions and services to enhance student engagement, academic achievement, and other 


outcomes for English learners.  


 
(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan) 


(cf. 3100 - Budget) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall encourage parent/guardian and community involvement 


in the development and evaluation of programs for English learners.  
 


(cf. 0420 - School Plans/Site Councils) 


(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees) 


(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement) 


 


English learners shall be provided English language development instruction targeted to their 


English proficiency level and aligned with the state content standards and curriculum 


framework. The district's program shall be based on sound instructional theory, use standards-


aligned instructional materials, and assist students in accessing the full educational program. 
 


(cf. 6011 - Academic Standards) 


(cf. 6141 - Curriculum Development and Evaluation) 


(cf. 6161.1 - Selection and Evaluation of Instructional Materials) 


(cf. 6161.11 - Supplementary Instructional Materials) 


(cf. 6171 - Title I Programs) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all staff employed to teach English learners 


possess the appropriate authorization from the Commission on Teacher Credentialing. 


 
(cf. 4112.22 - Staff Teaching English Learners) 


 


The district shall provide effective professional development to teachers (including teachers in 


classroom settings that are not the settings of language instruction educational programs), 


administrators, and other school or community-based organization personnel to improve the 


instruction and assessment of English learners and enhance staff's ability to understand and use 


curricula, assessment, and instructional strategies for English learners. Such professional 


development shall be of sufficient intensity and duration to produce a positive and lasting 


impact on teachers' performance in the classroom. (20 USC 6825) 


 
(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 


(cf. 4231 - Staff Development) 


(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 


 


367 of 428







 


 


 BP 6174(b) 


 


EDUCATION FOR ENGLISH LEARNERS  (continued) 


 


To support students' English language development, the Superintendent or designee may 


provide an adult literacy training program that leads to English fluency for parents/guardians 


and community members. 


 


Identification and Assessment 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall maintain procedures for the accurate identification of 


English learners and an assessment of their proficiency and needs in the areas of listening, 


speaking, reading, and writing in English.  


 


Once identified as an English learner, a student shall be annually assessed for language 


proficiency until he/she is reclassified based on criteria specified in the accompanying 


administrative regulation. 


 


English learners' academic achievement in English language arts, mathematics, science, and 


any additional subject required by law shall be assessed using the California Assessment of 


Student Performance and Progress. As necessary, the test shall be administered with testing 


variations in accordance with 5 CCR 853.5 and 853.7.  English learners who are in their first 


12 months of attending a school in the United States shall be exempted from taking the English 


language arts assessment to the extent allowed by federal law. (Education Code 60603, 60640; 


5 CCR 853.5, 853.7) 


 
(cf. 6152.51 - State Academic Achievement Tests) 


 


Language Acquisition Programs 


 


In establishing the district's language acquisition programs, the Superintendent or designee 


shall consult with parents/guardians and the community during the LCAP development 


process. He/she shall also consult with administrators, teachers, and other personnel with 


appropriate authorizations and experience in establishing a language acquisition program. 


(Education Code 305) 


 


Language acquisition programs are educational programs that are designed to ensure English 


acquisition as rapidly and as effectively as possible and that provide instruction to students on 


the state-adopted academic content standards, including the English language development 


standards. The language acquisition programs provided to students shall be informed by 


research and shall lead to grade-level proficiency and academic achievement in both English 


and another language. (Education Code 306) 


 


The district shall offer English learners a structured English immersion program to ensure that 


English learners have access to the core academic content standards, including the English 


language development standards, and become proficient in English. In the structured  


 


  


368 of 428







 


 


 BP 6174(c) 


 


 


EDUCATION FOR ENGLISH LEARNERS  (continued) 


 


 


English immersion program, nearly all of the classroom instruction shall be provided in 


English, but with the curriculum and presentation designed for students who are learning 


English.  (Education Code 305-306) 


 


For the purpose of determining the amount of instruction to be conducted in English in the 


structured English immersion program, "nearly all" means that all classroom instruction shall 


be conducted in English except for clarification, explanation, and support as needed. 


 


In addition, language acquisition programs offered by the district may include, but are not 


limited to, the following:  (Education Code 305-306) 


 


1. The district may offer a dual-language immersion program that provides integrated 


language learning and academic instruction for native speakers of English and native 


speakers of another language, with the goals of high academic achievement, first and 


second language proficiency, and cross-cultural understanding. 


 
(cf. 6142.2 - World/Foreign Language Instruction) 


 


2. The district may offer a transitional or developmental program for English learners that 


provides literacy and academic instruction in English and a student's native language 


and that enables an English learner to achieve English proficiency and academic 


mastery of subject matter content and higher order thinking skills, including critical 


thinking, in order to meet state academic content standards. 


 


Parents/guardians of English learners may choose a language acquisition program that best 


suits their child. To the extent possible, any language acquisition program requested by the 


parents/guardians of 30 or more students at the school or by the parents/guardians of 20 or 


more students at any grade level shall be offered by the school. (Education Code 310) 


 


The district's language acquisition programs for grades K-3 shall comply with class size 


requirements specified in Education Code 42238.02.  (Education Code 310) 


 
(cf. 6151 - Class Size) 


 


At the beginning of each school year or upon a student's enrollment, parents/guardians shall 


be provided information on the types of language acquisition programs available to students 


enrolled in the district, including, but not limited to, a description of each program.  (Education 


Code 310) 


 
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 


 


 


 


369 of 428







 


 


 


 BP 6174(d) 


 


 


EDUCATION FOR ENGLISH LEARNERS  (continued) 


 


 


When an English learner is determined pursuant to state and district reclassification criteria to 


have acquired a reasonable level of English proficiency pursuant to Education Code 313 and 


52164.6, or upon request by the student's parent/guardian, the student shall be transferred from 


a language acquisition program into an English language mainstream classroom.  


 


Program Evaluation 


 


To evaluate the effectiveness of the district's educational program for English learners, the 


Superintendent or designee shall report to the Board, at least annually, regarding: 


 


1. Progress of English learners towards proficiency in English 


 


2. The number and percentage of English learners reclassified as fluent English proficient 


 


3. The number and percentage of English learners who are or are at risk of being classified 


as long-term English learners in accordance with Education Code 313.1 


 


4. The achievement of English learners on standards-based tests in core curricular areas 


 


5. Progress toward any other goals for English learners identified in the district's LCAP 


 


6. A comparison of current data with data from at least the previous year  


 


The Superintendent or designee also shall provide the Board with regular reports from any 


district or schoolwide English learner advisory committees. 


 


 


 
Legal Reference: (see next page) 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


370 of 428







 


 


 BP 6174(e) 


 


EDUCATION FOR ENGLISH LEARNERS  (continued) 


 
Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


300-340  English language education, especially: 


305-310  Language acquisition programs 


313-313.5 Assessment of English proficiency 


430-446  English Learner and Immigrant Pupil Federal Conformity Act 


33050  State Board of Education waiver authority 


42238.02-42238.03  Local control funding formula 


44253.1-44253.11  Qualifications for teaching English learners 


48980  Parental notifications 


48985  Notices to parents in language other than English 


52052  Numerically significant student subgroups 


52060-52077  Local control and accountability plan 


52130-52135  Impacted Languages Act of 1984 


52160-52178  Bilingual Bicultural Act 


56305  CDE manual on English learners with disabilities 


60603  Definition, recently arrived English learner 


60605.87  Supplemental instructional materials, English language development 


60640  California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress 


60810-60812  Assessment of language development 


62005.5  Continuation of advisory committee after program sunsets 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 


853.5-853.7 Test administration; universal tools, designated supports, and accommodations 


11300-11316  English learner education 


11510-11517  California English Language Development Test 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 


1412  Individuals with Disabilities Education Act; state eligibility 


1701-1705  Equal Educational Opportunities Act 


6311  Title I state plan 


6312  Title I local education agency plans 


6801-7014  Title III, language instruction for English learners and immigrant students 


7801  Definitions 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 


100.3  Discrimination prohibited 


200.16  Assessment of English learners 


COURT DECISIONS 


Valeria G. v. Wilson, (2002) 307 F.3d 1036 


California Teachers Association v. State Board of Education et al., (9th Circuit, 2001) 271 F.3d 1141 


McLaughlin v. State Board of Education, (1999) 75 Cal.App.4th 196 


Teresa P. et al v. Berkeley Unified School District et al, (1989) 724  F.Supp. 698 


ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS 


83 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 40 (2000) 


 


Management Resources: 


CSBA PUBLICATIONS 


English Learners in Focus, Issue 1: Updated Demographic and Achievement Profile of California's 


English Learners, Governance Brief, rev. September 2016 


 


 
Management Resources continued: (see next page) 


  


 


371 of 428







 


 


 BP 6174(f) 


 


EDUCATION FOR ENGLISH LEARNERS  (continued) 


 


 
Management Resources: (continued) 


CSBA PUBLICATIONS (continued) 


English Learners in Focus, Issue 3: Ensuring High-Quality Staff for English Learners, Governance 


Brief, July 2016 


English Learners in Focus, Issue 2: The Promise of Two-Way Immersion Programs, Governance Brief, 


September 2014 


CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 


Integrating the CA ELD Standards into K-12 Mathematics and Science Teaching and 


Learning, December 2015 


Academic Criterion for Reclassification, CDE Correspondence, August 11, 2014 


English Language Arts/English Language Development Framework for California Public Schools: 


Transitional Kindergarten Through Grade Twelve, 2014 


Common Core State Standards for Mathematics, rev. 2013 


Next Generation Science Standards for California Public Schools, Kindergarten through Grade 


Twelve, 2013 


English Language Development Standards for California Public Schools: Kindergarten Through 


Grade Twelve, 2012 


Matrix of Test Variations, Accommodations, and Modifications for Administration of California 


Statewide Assessments 


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 


Accountability for English Learners Under the ESEA, Non-Regulatory Guidance, January 2017 


English Learner Tool Kit for State and Local Educational Agencies (SEAs and LEAs), rev. November 


2016 


English Learners and Title III of the Elementary and Secondary Education Act (ESEA), as Amended by 


the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA), Non-Regulatory Guidance, September 23, 2016 


Dear Colleague Letter: English Learner Students and Limited English Proficient Parents, January 7, 


2015 


Assessment and Accountability for Recently Arrived and Former Limited English Proficient (LEP) 


Students, May 2007 


WEB SITES 


CSBA: http://www.csba.org 


California Association for Bilingual Education: http://www.gocabe.org 


California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/el 


National Clearinghouse for English Language Acquisition: http://www.ncela.us 


U.S. Department of Education: http://www.ed.gov 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:  April 17, 2013 Soquel, California 


revised:   September 13, 2017 


372 of 428







 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools 


Board Policy 


Education For English Language Learners 
 


BP 6174  


Instruction 
 


 


The Governing Board intends to provide English learners with challenging curriculum and 


instruction that develop proficiency in English as rapidly and effectively as possible while 


facilitating student achievement in the district's regular course of study. 


 


English learners shall be provided English language development instruction targeted to their 


English proficiency level and aligned with state content standards. The district's program shall be 


based on sound instructional theory and adequately supported in order to assist students in 


accessing the full educational program. 


 


(cf. 6011 - Academic Standards) 


(cf. 6141 - Curriculum Development and Evaluation) 


(cf. 6161.1 - Selection and Evaluation of Instructional Materials) 


(cf. 6161.11 - Supplementary Instructional Materials) 


(cf. 6171 - Title I Programs) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all staff employed to teach English learners 


possess the appropriate authorization from the Commission on Teacher Credentialing. 


 


(cf. 4112.22 - Staff Teaching English Language Learners) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall encourage parent involvement in the development, 


implementation, and evaluation of English language development programs. 


 


(cf. 0420 - School Plans/Site Councils) 


(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees) 


(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement) 


 


Identification and Assessment 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall maintain procedures which provide for the accurate 


identification of English learners and an assessment of their proficiency and needs in the areas of 


listening, speaking, reading, and writing in English. 


 


Once identified as an English learner, a student shall be annually assessed for language 


proficiency until he/she is reclassified based on criteria specified in administrative regulation. 


 


Placement of English Learners 


373 of 428







 


 


 


Students who are English learners shall be educated through "sheltered English immersion" or 


"structured English immersion," as defined in law and administrative regulation, during a 


temporary transition period not normally intended to exceed one year.  Nearly all of the 


classroom instruction in the district's structured English immersion program shall be in English, 


but with the curriculum and presentation designed for students who are learning the language.  


(Education Code 305-306) 


 


For purposes of determining the amount of instruction conducted in English in the structured 


English immersion classroom, "nearly all" shall be defined as follows: 


 


English shall be the language of instruction except to support, modify, clarify, or explain as 


necessary. 


 


When an English learner has acquired a reasonable level of English proficiency as measured by 


any of the state-designated assessments approved by the California Department of Education, 


any district assessments, and/or other criteria adopted by the Board, he/she shall be transferred 


from a structured English immersion classroom to an English language mainstream classroom in 


which the instruction is overwhelmingly in English.  (Education Code 305-306; 5 CCR 11301) 


 


(cf. 6162.5 - Student Assessment) 


 


An English learner has acquired a "reasonable level of English proficiency" when he/she has 


achieved the following: 


 


1. CELDT overall performance level of 4 or 5. 


 


2. CELDT performance level of 3 or above for:  Listening; Speaking; Reading; Writing 


 


3. Annual Assessment of Basic Skills: Grades 3-12 CST-ELA Performance Level: Mid 


Basic (> 325) 


 


4. English Language Arts grade on Report Card: 


 


 a. Grades 1-3 - "Satisfactory" or above 


 


 b. Grades 4-12 - "C" or better 


 


5. English Learner Progress Profile: Level 3 or above as evaluated by teachers & LRT Chair 


 


At any time during the school year, the parent/guardian of an English learner may have his/her 


child moved into an English language mainstream program.  (5 CCR 11301) 


 


Parental Exception Waivers 


 


When allowed by law, the parent/guardian of an English learner may submit a request that 


374 of 428







 


 


his/her child be exempted from placement in a structured English immersion program and 


instead be placed in a class where he/she is taught English and other subjects through 


 


bilingual education techniques or other generally recognized educational methodologies 


permitted by law.  (Education Code 310-311) 


 


Each waiver request shall be considered on its individual merits with deference given to parental 


preference for student placement. 


 


A waiver request shall be granted in accordance with law unless the principal and educational 


staff have determined that an alternative program would not be better suited to the student's 


overall educational development. (5 CCR 11309) 


 


If the Superintendent or designee denies the waiver request, he/she shall provide a written 


justification to the parent/guardian describing the reasons for the denial if requested by the 


parent/guardian.  A parent/guardian may appeal the decision in writing to the Board.  The 


Board may consider the matter at its next regular Board meeting.  The Board may decide not to 


hear the appeal, in which case the Superintendent's decision shall be final.  If the Board hears 


the appeal, the Superintendent shall send the Board's decision to the parent/guardian within 


seven working days. 


 


Program Evaluation 


 


To evaluate the effectiveness of the district's educational program for English learners, the 


Superintendent or designee shall report to the Board, at least annually, regarding the progress of 


English learners towards proficiency in English, the number and percentage of English learners 


reclassified as fluent English proficient, the number and percentage of English learners who are 


or are at risk of being classified as long-term English learners, the achievement of English 


learners on standards-based tests in core curricular areas, and a comparison of current data with 


data from at least the previous year. The Superintendent or designee also shall provide the Board 


with regular reports from any district or schoolwide English learner advisory committees. 


 


 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


300-340  English language education 


430-446  English Learner and Immigrant Pupil Federal Conformity Act 


33050  State Board of Education waiver authority 


44253.1-44253.11  Qualifications for teaching English learners 


48985  Notices to parents in language other than English 


51101-51101.1  Rights of parents 


52130-52135  Impacted Languages Act of 1984 


52160-52178  Bilingual Bicultural Act 


52180-52186  Bilingual teacher training assistance program 


54000-54028  Programs for disadvantaged children 


375 of 428







 


 


60200.7  Suspension of state instructional materials adoptions 


60605.87  Supplemental instructional materials, English language development 


60810-60812  Assessment of language development 


62005.5  Continuation of advisory committee after program sunsets 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 


11300-11316  English learner education 


11510-11517  California English Language Development Test 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 


1701-1705  Equal Educational Opportunities Act 


6312  Local education agency plans 


6801-6871  Title III, Language instruction for limited English proficient and immigrant students 


7012  Parental notification 


COURT DECISIONS 


Valeria G. v. Wilson, (2002) 307 F.3d 1036 


California Teachers Association v. State Board of Education et al., (9th Circuit, 2001) 271 F.3d 


1141 


McLaughlin v. State Board of Education, (1999) 75 Cal.App.4th 196 


Teresa P. et al v. Berkeley Unified School District et al, (1989) 724  F.Supp. 698 


ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS 


83 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 40 (2000) 


 


Management Resources: 


CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 


California English Language Development Test (CELDT): 2012-13 CELDT Information Guide, 


2012 


English Language Development Standards for California Public Schools: Kindergarten Through 


Grade Twelve, 2012 


Matrix of Test Variations, Accommodations, and Modifications for Administration of California 


Statewide Assessments 


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION NONREGULATORY GUIDANCE 


Assessment and Accountability for Recently Arrived and Former Limited English Proficient 


(LEP) Students, May 2007 


WEB SITES 


California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/el 


U.S. Department of Education: http://www.ed.gov 


 


 


 


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:  April 17, 2013 Soquel, California 


376 of 428







 


 


Instruction BP 6176(a) 


 


WEEKEND/SATURDAY CLASSES 


 


 


The Governing Board desires to increase educational opportunities outside the regular school 


week in order to meet student needs and promote academic achievement. When staffing, 


facilities, and other resources are available, the Board may approve the provision of classes on 


Saturday and/or Sunday that support and are integrated with other learning opportunities. 


 
(cf. 5148.2 - Before/After School Programs) 


(cf. 6111 - School Calendar) 


 


Weekend classes may include, but are not limited to: 


 


1. Continuation classes  (Education Code 37223) 


 
(cf. 6184 - Continuation Education) 


 


2. Special day classes for mentally gifted minors  (Education Code 37223) 


 
(cf. 6172 - Gifted and Talented Student Program) 


 


3. Makeup classes for absences occurring during the week  (Education Code 37223) 


 
(cf. 5113 - Absences and Excuses) 


(cf. 5113.1 - Chronic Absence and Truancy) 


(cf. 6154 - Homework/Makeup Work) 


 


4. The programs of a regional occupational center or program (ROC/P)  (Education Code 


37223) 


 
(cf. 6178 - Career Technical Education) 


(cf. 6178.2 - Regional Occupational Center/Program) 


 


5. Supplemental instruction for students who need additional assistance to meet academic 


standards or requirements 


 
(cf. 5123 - Promotion/Acceleration/Retention) 


(cf. 6146.1 - High School Graduation Requirements) 


(cf. 6179 - Supplemental Instruction) 


 


6. Enrichment classes in core academic subjects 


 
(cf. 6142.91 - Reading/Language Arts Instruction) 


(cf. 6142.92 - Mathematics Instruction) 


 


Except in ROC/Ps and as otherwise provided by law, any class offered on a Saturday or Sunday 


pursuant to Education Code 37223, shall be one offered during the regular Monday through 


Friday school week.  (Education Code 37223) 


 


377 of 428







 


 


 BP 6176(b) 


 


WEEKEND/SATURDAY CLASSES  (continued) 


 


 


Except in ROC/Ps, weekend attendance shall not result in crediting any student with more than 


five days of attendance per week.  (Education Code 37223) 
 


Attendance at weekend classes offered pursuant to Education Code 37223 shall be voluntary, 


except that truants, as defined in Education Code 48260, may be required to attend classes on 


one day of a weekend in order to make up lost instructional time.  (Education Code 37223) 


 


A student shall be excused from a weekend class if the student's parent/guardian notifies the 


school in writing that such attendance would be in conflict with his/her religious beliefs. Such 


students shall be given priority for enrollment in any other available supplemental instruction 


offered at a time other than during the weekend. 


 
(cf. 6141.2 - Recognition of Religious Beliefs and Customs) 


 


A teacher shall not be assigned to work on a Saturday or Sunday if he/she objects in writing 


that the assignment would conflict with his/her religious beliefs or practices. In addition, a full-


time teacher employed by the district prior to the implementation of weekend classes shall not 


be required, without his/her consent, to teach for more than 180 full days during a school year 


or for more than the number of full days that district schools were maintained during the year 


preceding implementation of weekend classes, whichever is greater.  (Education Code 44824) 


 
(cf. 4113 - Assignment) 


 


Unless the requirement is waived by the California Department of Education, the district shall 


provide at least one nutritionally adequate meal during the weekend session in accordance with 


Education Code 49550. 


 
(cf. 3550 - Food Service/Child Nutrition Program) 


(cf. 3553 - Free and Reduced-Price Meals) 


(cf. 5030 - Student Wellness) 


 


 


 
Legal Reference:  (see next page) 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


  


 


378 of 428







 


 


 BP 6176(c) 


 


 


WEEKEND/SATURDAY CLASSES  (continued) 


 


 


 
Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


37223  Weekend classes 


41601  Reports of average daily attendance 


44824  Weekend classes, assignment of certificated employees 


48070-48070.5  Promotion and retention, supplemental instruction 


48205  Excused absence for personal reasons 


48260  Truants, definition 


49550  Meals for needy students 


52060-52077  Local control and accountability plan 


 
Management Resources: 


CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 


Requesting a Summer School Meal Waiver and/or a Saturday School Meal Waiver, Nutrition Services 


Division Management Bulletin NSD-SNP-03-2013, February 2013 


WEB SITES 


California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:  February 23, 2011  Soquel, California 


revised:  March 12, 2014 


revised:  September 13, 2017 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
379 of 428







 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools 


Board Policy 


Weekend/Saturday Classes 
 


BP 6176  


Instruction 
 


 


The Governing Board desires to increase educational opportunities outside the regular school 


week in order to meet student needs and promote academic achievement. When staffing, 


facilities, and other resources are available, the Board may approve the provision of classes on 


Saturday and/or Sunday that support and are integrated with other learning opportunities. 


 


(cf. 4113 - Assignment) 


(cf. 5148.2 - Before/After School Programs) 


(cf. 6111 - School Calendar) 


 


Any class offered on a Saturday or Sunday pursuant to Education Code 37223, except in regional 


occupational centers or programs (ROC/Ps), shall be one offered Monday through Friday during 


the regular school week.  (Education Code 37223) 


 


Weekend classes may include, but are not limited to: 


 


1. Continuation classes  (Education Code 37223) 


 


(cf. 6184 - Continuation Education) 


 


2. Special day classes for mentally gifted minors  (Education Code 37223) 


 


(cf. 6172 - Gifted and Talented Student Program) 


 


3. Makeup classes for unexcused absences occurring during the week  (Education Code 


37223) 


 


(cf. 5113 - Absences and Excuses) 


(cf. 5113.1 - Chronic Absence and Truancy) 


(cf. 6154 - Homework/Makeup Work) 


 


4. The programs of an ROC/P  (Education Code 37223) 


 


(cf. 6178 - Career Technical Education) 


(cf. 6178.2 - Regional Occupational Center/Program) 


 


5. Supplemental instruction for students who need additional assistance to meet academic 


standards or requirements 


380 of 428







 


 


 


(cf. 5123 - Promotion/Acceleration/Retention) 


(cf. 6146.1 - High School Graduation Requirements) 


(cf. 6179 - Supplemental Instruction) 


 


6. Enrichment classes in core academic subjects 


 


(cf. 6142.91 - Reading/Language Arts Instruction) 


(cf. 6142.92 - Mathematics Instruction) 


 


Except in ROC/Ps, weekend attendance shall not result in crediting any student with more than 


five days of attendance per week.  (Education Code 37223) 


 


Attendance at weekend classes offered pursuant to Education Code 37223 shall be voluntary, 


except that truants, as defined in Education Code 48260, may be required to attend classes on 


one day of a weekend in order to make up lost instructional time.  (Education Code 37223) 


 


A student shall be excused from a weekend class if such attendance would be in conflict with 


his/her religious beliefs.  Such students shall be given priority for enrollment in any other 


available supplemental instruction offered at a time other than during the weekend. 


 


(cf. 6141.2 - Recognition of Religious Beliefs and Customs) 


 


Unless the requirement is waived by the California Department of Education, the district shall 


provide at least one nutritionally adequate meal during the weekend session in accordance with 


Education Code 49550. 


 


(cf. 3550 - Food Service/Child Nutrition Program) 


(cf. 3553 - Free and Reduced-Price Meals) 


(cf. 5030 - Student Wellness) 


 


 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


37223  Weekend classes 


37252-37253  Supplemental instruction 


41505-41508  Pupil Retention Block Grant 


41601  Reports of average daily attendance 


42239  Summer school attendance computation 


44824  Weekend classes, assignment of certificated employees 


48070-48070.5  Promotion and retention, supplemental instruction 


48205  Excused absence for personal reasons 


48260  Truants, definition 


49550  Meals for needy students 


52060-52077  Local control and accountability plan 


381 of 428







 


 


 


Management Resources: 


CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 


Requesting a Summer School Meal Waiver and/or a Saturday School Meal Waiver, Nutrition 


Services Division Management Bulletin NSD-SNP-03-2013, February 2013 


WEB SITES 


California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov 


 


 


 


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:  February 23, 2011  Soquel, California 


revised:  March 12, 2014 


382 of 428







 


 


Facilities BP 7214(a) 


 


GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 


 


The Governing Board recognizes that school facilities are an essential component of the 


educational program and that the Board has a responsibility to ensure that the district's facilities 


needs are met in the most cost-effective manner possible. When the Board determines that it 


is in the best interest of district students, it may order an election on the question of whether 


bonds shall be issued to pay for school facilities. 


 
(cf. 1160 - Political Processes) 


(cf. 7110 - Facilities Master Plan) 


(cf. 7210 - Facilities Financing) 
 


The Board's decision to order a bond election, as well as its determinations regarding the 


appropriate amount, timing, and structure of the bond issuance, shall be consistent with law 


and the district's debt management policy. 


 
(cf. 3470 - Debt Issuance and Management) 


 


Before ordering a bond election, the Board shall obtain reasonable and informed projections 


of assessed valuations that take into consideration projections of assessed property valuations 


made by the county assessor.  (Education Code 15100) 


 


When any project to be funded by bonds will require state matching funds for any phase of the 


project, the ballot for the bond measure shall include a statement as specified in Education 


Code 15122.5, advising voters that, because the project is subject to approval of state matching 


funds, passage of the bond measure is not a guarantee that the project will be completed.  


(Education Code 15122.5) 


 


Bonds Requiring 55 Percent Approval by Local Voters 


 


The Board may decide to pursue the authorization and issuance of bonds by approval of 55 


percent majority of the voters pursuant to Article 13A, Section 1(b)(3) and Article 16, Section 


18(b) of the California Constitution.  If two-thirds of the Board agrees to such an election, the 


Board shall vote to adopt a resolution to incur bonded indebtedness if approved by a 55 percent 


majority of the voters.  (Education Code 15266) 


 
(cf. 9323.2 - Actions by the Board) 


 


The bond election may only be ordered at a primary or general election, a statewide special 


election, or a regularly scheduled local election at which all of the electors of the district are 


entitled to vote.  (Education Code 15266) 


 


Bonded indebtedness incurred by the district shall be used only for the following purposes: 


(California Constitution Article 13A, Section 1(b)(3) and 1(b)(3)(A)) 


 


1. The construction, reconstruction, rehabilitation, or replacement of school facilities, 


including the furnishing and equipping of school facilities 


383 of 428







 


 


 BP 7214(b) 


 


 


GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS  (continued) 


 


 


2. The acquisition or lease of real property for school facilities 


 


3. The refunding of any outstanding debt issuance used for the purposes specified in items 


#1-2 above 


 


The proposition approved by the voters shall include the following accountability 


requirements:  (California Constitution Article 13A, Section 1(b)(3)) 


 


1. Certification that proceeds from the sale of the bonds will be used only for the purposes 


specified in items #1-2 above, and not for any other purposes including teacher and 


administrative salaries and other school operating expenses 


 


2. A list of specific school facilities projects to be funded and certification that the Board 


has evaluated safety, class size reduction, and information technology needs in 


developing that list 


 
(cf. 0440 - District Technology Plan) 


(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan) 


(cf. 6151 - Class Size) 


 


3. A requirement that the Board conduct an annual, independent performance audit to 


ensure that the funds have been expended only on the specific projects listed 


 


4. A requirement that the Board conduct an annual, independent financial audit of the 


proceeds from the sale of the bonds until all of those proceeds have been expended for 


the school facilities projects 


 


If a district general obligation bond requiring a 55 percent majority is approved by the voters, 


the Board shall appoint an independent citizens' oversight committee to inform the public 


concerning the expenditure of bond revenues as specified in Education Code 15278 and the 


accompanying administrative regulation. This committee shall be appointed within 60 days of 


the date that the Board enters the election results in its minutes pursuant to Education Code 


15274.  (Education Code 15278) 


 
(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees) 


(cf. 9324 - Minutes and Recordings) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the annual, independent performance and 


financial audits required pursuant to items #3-4 above are issued in accordance with the U.S. 


Comptroller General's Government Auditing Standards and submitted to the citizens' oversight 


committee at the same time they are submitted to him/her and no later than March 31 of each 


year. (Education Code 15286) 


 


384 of 428







 


 


 


 BP 7214(c) 


 


 


GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS  (continued) 


 


 


The Board shall provide the citizens' oversight committee with responses to all findings, 


recommendations, and concerns addressed in the performance and financial audits within three 


months of receiving the audits.  (Education Code 15280) 


 


The Board may disband the citizens' oversight committee when the committee has completed 


its review of the final performance and financial audits. 


 


Bonds Requiring 66.67 Percent Approval by Local Voters 


 


The Board may decide to pursue the authorization and issuance of bonds by approval of 66.67 


percent majority of the voters pursuant to Education Code 15100 and Article 13A, Section 


1(b)(2) of the California Constitution.  If a majority of the Board agrees to such an election, or 


upon a petition of the majority of the qualified electors residing in the district, the Board shall 


adopt a resolution ordering an election on the question of whether to incur bonded indebtedness 


if approved by a 66.67 percent majority of the voters.  (Education Code 15100) 


 


The bond election may be ordered to occur on any Tuesday, except a Tuesday that is a state 


holiday or the day before or after a state holiday, is within 45 days before or after a statewide 


election unless conducted at the same time as the statewide election, or is an established 


election date pursuant to Elections Code 1000 or 1500.  (Education Code 15101) 


 


Subject to limits specified in Article 13A, Section 1 of the California Constitution, bonds shall 


be sold to raise money for any of the following purposes:  (Education Code 15100) 


 


1. Purchasing school lots 


 


2. Building or purchasing school buildings 


 


3. Making alterations or additions to school building(s) other than as may be necessary 


for current maintenance, operation, or repairs 


 


4. Repairing, restoring, or rebuilding any school building damaged, injured, or destroyed 


by fire or other public calamity 


 


5. Supplying school buildings and grounds with furniture, equipment, or necessary 


apparatus of a permanent nature 


 


6. Permanently improving school grounds 


 


7. Refunding any outstanding valid indebtedness of the district, evidenced by bonds or 


state school building aid loans 


385 of 428







 


 


 BP 7214(d) 


 


GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS  (continued) 


 


 


8. Carrying out sewer or drain projects or purposes authorized in Education Code 17577 


 


9. Purchasing school buses with a useful life of at least 20 years 


 


10. Demolishing or razing any school building with the intent to replace it with another 


school building, whether in the same location or in any other location 


 


Except for refunding any outstanding indebtedness, any of the purposes listed above may be 


united and voted upon as a single proposition by an order of the Board entered into the minutes.  


(Education Code 15100) 


 


The Board may appoint a citizens' oversight committee to review and report to the Board and 


the public as to whether the expenditure of bond revenues complies with the intended purposes 


of the bond. 


 


Certificate of Results 


 


If the certificate of election results received by the Board shows that the appropriate majority 


of the voters is in favor of issuing the bonds, the Board shall record that fact in its minutes.  


The Board shall then certify to the County Board of Supervisors all proceedings it had in 


connection with the election results.  (Education Code 15124, 15274) 


 


Resolutions Regarding Sale of Bonds 


 


Following passage of the bond measure by the appropriate majority of voters, the Board shall 


pass a resolution directing the issuance and sale of bonds. In accordance with law, the 


resolution shall prescribe the total amount of bonds to be sold and may also prescribe the 


maximum acceptable interest rate, not to exceed eight percent, and the time(s) when the whole 


or any part of the principal of the bonds shall be payable.  (Education Code 15140; Government 


Code 53508.6) 


 


In passing the resolution, the Board shall consider each available funding instrument, 


including, but not limited to, the costs associated with each and their relative suitability for the 


project to be financed. 


 


Prior to the sale of bonds, the Board shall place an agenda item at a public meeting and adopt 


as part of the bond issuance resolution, or in a separate resolution, disclosures of the available 


funding instruments, the costs and sustainability of each, and all of the following information: 


(Education Code 15146; Government Code 53508.9) 


 


1. Express approval of the method of sale (i.e., competitive, negotiated, or hybrid) 


 


2. Statement of the reasons for the method of sale selected 


386 of 428







 


 


 BP 7214(e) 


 


 


GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS  (continued) 


 


 


3. Disclosure of the identity of the bond counsel, and the identities of the bond underwriter 


and the financial adviser if either or both are utilized for the sale, unless these 


individuals have not been selected at the time the resolution is adopted, in which case 


the Board shall disclose their identities at the public meeting occurring after they have 


been selected 
 


4. Estimates of the costs associated with the bond issuance, including, but not limited to, 


bond counsel and financial advisor fees, printing costs, rating agency fees, underwriting 


fees, and other miscellaneous costs and expenses of issuing the bonds 


 


When the sale involves bonds that allow for the compounding of interest, such as a capital 


appreciation bond (CAB), the resolution to be adopted by the Board shall include items #1-4 


above as well as the financing term and time of maturity, repayment ratio, and the estimated 


change in the assessed value of taxable property within the district over the term of the bonds.  


The resolution shall be publicly noticed on at least two consecutive meeting agendas, first as 


an information item and second as an action item. The agendas shall identify that bonds that 


allow for the compounding of interest are proposed.  (Education Code 15146) 


 


Prior to adopting a resolution for the sale of bonds that allow for the compounding of interest, 


the Board shall be presented with the following:  (Education Code 15146) 


 


1. An analysis containing the total overall cost of the bonds that allow for the 


compounding of interest 


 


2. A comparison to the overall cost of current interest bonds 


 


3. The reason bonds that allow for the compounding of interest are being recommended 


 


4. A copy of the disclosure made by the underwriter in compliance with Rule G-17 


adopted by the federal Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board 


 


At least 30 days prior to the sale of any debt issue, the Superintendent or designee shall submit 


a report of the proposed issuance to the California Debt and Investment Advisory Commission 


(CDIAC).  (Government Code 8855) 


 


After the sale, the Board shall be presented with the actual issuance cost information and shall 


disclose that information at the Board's next scheduled meeting. The Board shall ensure that 


an itemized summary of the costs of the bond sale and all necessary information and reports 


regarding the sale are submitted to the CDAIC.  (Education Code 15146; Government Code 


53509.5) 


 


 


387 of 428







 


 


 


 BP 7214(f) 


 


 


GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS  (continued) 


 


 


Bond Anticipation Notes 


 


Whenever the Board determines that it is in the best interest of the district, it may, by resolution, 


issue a bond anticipation note, on a negotiated or competitive-bid basis, to raise funds that shall 


be used only for a purpose authorized by a bond that has been approved by the voters of the 


district in accordance with law.  (Education Code 15150) 


 


Payment of principal and interest on any bond anticipation note shall be made at note maturity, 


not to exceed five years, from the proceeds derived from the sale of the bond in anticipation of 


which that note was originally issued or from any other source lawfully available for that 


purpose, including state grants. Interest payments may also be made from such sources. 


However, interest payments may be made periodically and prior to note maturity from an 


increased property tax if the following conditions are met:  (Education Code 15150) 


 


1. A resolution of the Board authorizes the property tax for that purpose. 


 


2. The principal amount of the bond anticipation note does not exceed the remaining 


principal amount of the authorized but unissued bonds. 


 


A bond anticipation note may be issued only if the tax rate levied to pay interest on the note 


would not cause the district to exceed the tax rate limitation set forth in Education Code 15268 


or 15270, as applicable. 


 


Deposit of Bond Proceeds 


 


With regard to general obligation bonds, the district shall invest new money bond proceeds in 


the county treasury pool as required by law.  (Education Code 15146) 


 


 


 
Legal Reference: (see next page) 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


388 of 428







 


 


 BP 7214(g) 


 


GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS  (continued) 


 


 


 
Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


7054  Use of district property, campaign purposes 


15100-15254  Bonds for school districts and community college districts 


15264-15288  Strict Accountability in Local School Construction Bonds Act of 2000 


17577  Sewers and drains 


47614  Charter school facilities 


ELECTIONS CODE 


324  General election 


328  Local election 


341  Primary election 


348  Regular election 


356  Special election 


357 Statewide election 


1302  Local election 


15372  Elections official certificate 


1090-1099  Prohibitions applicable to specified officers 


1125-1129  Incompatible activities 


8855  California Debt and Investment Advisory Commission 


53506-53509.5  General obligation bonds 


53580-53595.5  Bonds 


54952  Definition of legislative body, Brown Act 


CALIFORNIA CONSTITUTION 


Article 13A, Section 1 Tax limitation 


Article 16, Section 18 Debt limit 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 17 


240.10b-5  Prohibition against fraud or deceit 


240.15c2-12  Municipal securities disclosure 


COURT DECISIONS 


San Lorenzo Valley Community Advocates for Responsible Education v. San Lorenzo Valley Unified 


School District (2006) 139 Cal.App.4th 1356 


ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS 


99 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 18 (2016) 


88 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 46 (2005) 


87 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 157 (2004) 


 


Management Resources: 


CSBA PUBLICATIONS 


California's Challenge:  Adequately Funding Education in the 21st Century, December 2015 


Bond Sales - Questions and Considerations for Districts, Governance Brief, December 2012 


Legal Guidelines: Use of Public Resources for Ballot Measures and Candidates, Fact Sheet, February 


2011 


GOVERNMENT FINANCE OFFICERS ASSOCIATION PUBLICATIONS 


An Elected Official's Guide to Debt Issuance, 2nd Ed., 2016 


Understanding Your Continuing Disclosure Responsibilities, Best Practice, September 2015 


Investment of Bond Proceeds, Best Practice, September 2014 


Selecting and Managing Municipal Advisors, Best Practice, February 2014 


Debt Management Policy, Best Practice, October 2012 


Analyzing and Issuing Refunding Bonds, Best Practice, February 2011 


 


Management Resources continued: (see next page) 


389 of 428







 


 


 BP 7214(h) 


 


 


GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS  (continued) 
 


 


 


Management Resources: (continued) 


WEB SITES 


CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 


California Debt and Investment Advisory Commission: http://www.treasurer.ca.gov/cdiac 


California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 


California Office of Public School Construction:  http://www.opsc.dgs.ca.gov 


Government Finance Officers Association: http://www.gfoa.org 


Municipal Security Rulemaking Board, Electronic Municipal Market Access (EMMA): 


http://www.emma.msrb.org 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:  February 13, 2011  Soquel, California 


revised:  March 12, 2014 


revised:   September 13, 2017 


390 of 428



http://www.gfoa.org/

http://www.emma.msrb.org/





 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools 


Board Policy 


General Obligation Bonds 
 


BP 7214  


Facilities 
 


 


The Governing Board recognizes that school facilities are an essential component of the 


educational program and that the Board has a responsibility to ensure that the district's facilities 


needs are met in the most cost-effective manner possible. When the Board determines that it is in 


the best interest of district students, it may order an election on the question of whether bonds 


shall be issued to pay for school facilities. 


 


(cf. 1160 - Political Processes) 


(cf. 7110 - Facilities Master Plan) 


(cf. 7210 - Facilities Financing) 


 


The Board shall determine the appropriate amount of the bonds in accordance with law. 


 


When any project to be funded by bonds will require state matching funds for any phase of the 


project, the ballot for the bond measure shall include a statement as specified in Education Code 


15122.5, advising voters that, because the project is subject to approval of state matching funds, 


passage of the bond measure is not a guarantee that the project will be completed.  (Education 


Code 15122.5) 


 


Bonds Requiring 55 Percent Approval by Local Voters 


 


The Board may decide to pursue the authorization and issuance of bonds by approval of 55 


percent majority of the voters pursuant to Article 13A, Section 1(b)(3) and Article 16, Section 


18(b) of the California Constitution.  If two-thirds of the Board agrees to such an election, the 


Board shall vote to adopt a resolution to incur bonded indebtedness if approved by a 55 percent 


majority of the voters.  (Education Code 15266) 


 


(cf. 9323.2 - Actions by the Board) 


 


The bond election may only be ordered at a primary or general election, a statewide special 


election, or a regularly scheduled local election at which all of the electors of the district are 


entitled to vote.  (Education Code 15266) 


 


Bonded indebtedness incurred by the district shall be used only for the following purposes: 


(California Constitution Article 13A, Section 1(b)(3) and 1(b)(3)(A)) 


 


1. The construction, reconstruction, rehabilitation, or replacement of school facilities, 


including the furnishing and equipping of school facilities 


391 of 428







 


 


 


2. The acquisition or lease of real property for school facilities 


 


3. The refunding of any outstanding debt issuance used for the purposes specified in items 


#1-2 above 


 


The proposition approved by the voters shall include the following accountability requirements:  


(California Constitution Article 13A, Section 1(b)(3)) 


 


1. A requirement that proceeds from the sale of the bonds be used only for the purposes 


specified in items #1-2 above, and not for any other purposes including teacher and 


administrative salaries and other school operating expenses 


 


2. A list of specific school facilities projects to be funded and certification that the Board 


has evaluated safety, class size reduction, and information technology needs in developing that 


list 


 


(cf. 0440 - District Technology Plan) 


(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan) 


(cf. 6151 - Class Size) 


 


3. A requirement that the Board conduct an annual, independent performance audit to 


ensure that the funds have been expended only on the specific projects listed 


 


4. A requirement that the Board conduct an annual, independent financial audit of the 


proceeds from the sale of the bonds until all of those proceeds have been expended for the school 


facilities projects 


 


If a district general obligation bond requiring a 55 percent majority is approved by the voters, the 


Board shall appoint an independent citizens' oversight committee to inform the public 


concerning the expenditure of bond revenues as specified in Education Code 15278 and the 


accompanying administrative regulation. This committee shall be appointed within 60 days of 


the date that the Board enters the election results in its minutes pursuant to Education Code 


15274.  (Education Code 15278) 


 


(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees) 


(cf. 9324 - Minutes and Recordings) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the annual, independent performance and 


financial audits required pursuant to items #3-4 above are issued in accordance with the U.S. 


Comptroller General's Government Auditing Standards and submitted to the citizens' oversight 


committee at the same time they are submitted to him/her and no later than March 31 of each 


year. (Education Code 15286) 


 


The Board shall provide the citizens' oversight committee with responses to all findings, 


recommendations, and concerns addressed in the performance and financial audits within three 


392 of 428







 


 


months of receiving the audits.  (Education Code 15280) 


 


The Board may disband the citizens' oversight committee when the committee has completed its 


review of the final performance and financial audits. 


 


Bonds Requiring 66.67 Percent Approval by Local Voters 


 


The Board may decide to pursue the authorization and issuance of bonds by approval of 66.67 


percent majority of the voters pursuant to Education Code 15100 and Article 13A, Section 


1(b)(2) of the California Constitution.  If a majority of the Board agrees to such an election, or 


upon a petition of the majority of the qualified electors residing in the district, the Board shall 


adopt a resolution ordering an election on the question of whether to incur bonded indebtedness 


if approved by a 66.67 percent majority of the voters.  (Education Code 15100) 


 


The bond election may be ordered to occur on any Tuesday, except a Tuesday that is a state 


holiday or the day before or after a state holiday, is within 45 days before or after a statewide 


election unless conducted at the same time as the statewide election, or is an established election 


date pursuant to Elections Code 1000 or 1500.  (Education Code 15101) 


 


Bonds shall be sold to raise money for any of the following purposes:  (Education Code 15100) 


 


1. Purchasing school lots 


 


2. Building or purchasing school buildings 


 


3. Making alterations or additions to school building(s) other than as may be necessary for 


current maintenance, operation, or repairs 


 


4. Repairing, restoring, or rebuilding any school building damaged, injured, or destroyed by 


fire or other public calamity 


 


5. Supplying school buildings and grounds with furniture, equipment, or necessary 


apparatus of a permanent nature 


 


6. Permanently improving school grounds 


 


7. Refunding any outstanding valid indebtedness of the district, evidenced by bonds or state 


school building aid loans 


 


8. Carrying out sewer or drain projects or purposes authorized in Education Code 17577 


 


9. Purchasing school buses with a useful life of at least 20 years 


 


10. Demolishing or razing any school building with the intent to replace it with another 


school building, whether in the same location or in any other location 


 


393 of 428







 


 


Except for refunding any outstanding indebtedness, any of the purposes listed above may be 


united and voted upon as a single proposition by order of the Board and entered into the minutes.  


(Education Code 15100) 


 


The Board may appoint a citizens' oversight committee to review and report to the Board and the 


public as to whether the expenditure of bond revenues complies with the intended purposes of 


the bond. 


 


Certificate of Results 


 


If the certificate of election results received by the Board shows that the appropriate majority of 


the voters is in favor of issuing the bonds, the Board shall record that fact in its minutes.  The 


Board shall then certify to the County Board of Supervisors all proceedings it had in connection 


with the election results.  (Education Code 15124, 15274) 


 


Resolutions Regarding Sale of Bonds 


 


Following passage of the bond measure by the appropriate majority of voters, the Board shall 


pass a resolution directing the issuance and sale of bonds.  In accordance with law, the 


resolution shall prescribe the total amount of bonds to be sold and may also prescribe the 


maximum acceptable interest rate, not to exceed eight percent, and the time(s) when the whole or 


any part of the principal of the bonds shall be payable.  (Education Code 15140; Government 


Code 53508.6) 


 


In passing the resolution, the Board shall consider each available funding instrument, including, 


but not limited to, the costs associated with each and their relative suitability for the project to be 


financed. 


 


Prior to the sale of bonds, the Board shall disclose, as an agenda item at a public meeting, either 


in the bond issuance resolution or a separate resolution, available funding instruments, the costs 


and suitability of each, and all of the following information:  (Education Code 15146; 


Government Code 53508.9) 


 


1. Express approval of the method of sale (i.e., competitive, negotiated, or hybrid) 


 


2. Statement of the reasons for the method of sale selected 


 


3. Disclosure of the identity of the bond counsel, and the identities of the bond underwriter 


and the financial adviser if either or both are utilized for the sale, unless these individuals have 


not been selected at the time the resolution is adopted, in which case the Board shall disclose 


their identities at the public meeting occurring after they have been selected 


 


4. Estimates of the costs associated with the bond issuance, including, but not limited to, 


bond counsel and financial advisor fees, printing costs, rating agency fees, underwriting fees, and 


other miscellaneous costs and expenses of issuing the bonds 


 


394 of 428







 


 


When the sale involves bonds that allow for the compounding of interest, such as a capital 


appreciation bond (CAB), items #1-4 above and the financing term and time of maturity, 


repayment ratio, and the estimated change in the assessed value of taxable property within the 


district over the term of the bonds shall be included in the resolution to be adopted by the Board.  


The resolution shall be publicly noticed on at least two consecutive meeting agendas, first as an 


information item and second as an action item.  The agendas shall identify that bonds that allow 


for the compounding of interest are proposed.  (Education Code 15146) 


 


Prior to adopting a resolution for the sale of bonds that allow for the compounding of interest, the 


Board shall be presented with the following:  (Education Code 15146) 


 


1.  An analysis containing the total overall cost of the bonds that allow for the compounding 


of interest 


 


2.  A comparison to the overall cost of current interest bonds 


 


3.  The reason bonds that allow for the compounding of interest are being recommended 


 


4.  A copy of the disclosure made by the underwriter in compliance with Rule G-17 adopted 


by the federal Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board 


 


After the sale, the Board shall be presented with the actual issuance cost information and shall 


disclose that information at the Board's next scheduled meeting.  The Board shall ensure that an 


itemized summary of the costs of the bond sale and all necessary information and reports 


regarding the sale are submitted to the California Debt and Investment Advisory Commission.  


(Education Code 15146; Government Code 53509.5) 


 


Bond Anticipation Notes 


 


Whenever the Board determines that it is in the best interest of the district, it may, by resolution, 


issue a bond anticipation note, on a negotiated or competitive-bid basis, to raise funds that shall 


be used only for a purpose authorized by a bond that has been approved by the voters of the 


district in accordance with law.  (Education Code 15150) 


 


Payment of principal and interest on any bond anticipation note shall be made at note maturity, 


not to exceed five years, from the proceeds derived from the sale of the bond in anticipation of 


which that note was originally issued or from any other source lawfully 


 


available for that purpose, including state grants.  Interest payments may also be made from 


such sources. However, interest payments may be made periodically and prior to note maturity 


from an increased property tax if the following conditions are met:  (Education Code 15150) 


 


1. A resolution of the Board authorizes the property tax for that purpose. 


 


2. The principal amount of the bond anticipation note does not exceed the remaining 


principal amount of the authorized but unissued bonds. 


395 of 428







 


 


 


A bond anticipation note may be issued only if the tax rate levied to pay interest on the note 


would not cause the district to exceed the tax rate limitation set forth in Education Code 15268 or 


15270, as applicable. 


 


 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


7054  Use of district property, campaign purposes 


15100-15254  Bonds for school districts and community college districts 


15264-15288  Strict Accountability in Local School Construction Bonds Act of 2000 


17577  Sewers and drains 


47614  Charter school facilities 


ELECTIONS CODE 


324  General election 


328  Local election 


341  Primary election 


348  Regular election 


356  Special election 


357 Statewide election 


1302  School district election 


15372  Elections official certificate 


GOVERNMENT CODE 


1090-1099  Prohibitions applicable to specified officers 


1125-1129  Incompatible activities 


8855  California Debt and Investment Advisory Commission 


53506-53509.5  General obligation bonds 


53580-53595.5  Bonds 


54952  Definition of legislative body, Brown Act 


CALIFORNIA CONSTITUTION 


Article 13A, Section 1 Tax limitation 


Article 16, Section 18 Debt limit 


COURT DECISIONS 


San Lorenzo Valley Community Advocates for Responsible Education v. San Lorenzo Valley 


Unified School District (2006) 139 Cal.App.4th 1356 


ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS 


88 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 46 (2005) 


87 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 157 (2004) 


 


Management Resources: 


CSBA PUBLICATIONS 


Bond Sales - Questions and Considerations for Districts, Governance Brief, December 2012 


Legal Guidelines: Use of Public Resources for Ballot Measures and Candidates, Fact Sheet, 


February 2011 


WEB SITES 


396 of 428







 


 


CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 


California Debt and Investment Advisory Commission: http://www.treasurer.ca.gov/cdiac 


California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 


California Office of Public School Construction:  http://www.opsc.dgs.ca.gov 


 


 


 


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:  February 13, 2011  Soquel, California 


revised:  March 12, 2014 


397 of 428







Lease-Leaseback Agrmts cover 


 AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.6 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT 


 


AGENDA ITEM: Lease-Leaseback Contracts for Harbor High Track and Fields Project and 
for Harbor and Soquel High Pools Project 


MEETING DATE: August 23, 2017 


FROM:   Patrick Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 


THROUGH:  Kris Munro, Superintendent 


RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve lease-leaseback contracts with XL Construction Corporation for preconstruction 
services regarding the Harbor High Track and Fields Project and for the Harbor and Soquel High 
Pools Project.  Authorize staff to pursue lease-leaseback contracts with XL Construction 
Corporation for construction services regarding these projects. These will be brought back to 
the Board in the future for approval. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Per AB 566 (lease-leaseback) criteria guidelines provided by legal counsel, staff used a three 
phase vetting process to select XL Construction Corporation for preconstruction services 
regarding two projects: 


1. The Harbor High Track and Fields Project 
2. The Harbor and Soquel High Pools Project 


Included with this agenda item are the two lease-leaseback contracts. 
  
The Board is asked to approve the two contracts, and to authorize staff to move forward with 
pursuing scope and pricing for the future lease-leaseback contracts for construction services 
with XL Construction. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Preconstruction services for the Harbor High Track and Field’s Project: $34,936.00 
Preconstruction services for the Harbor and Soquel High Pools Project: $77,363.00 
These projects are funded by Measure A Bond Funds. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 


398 of 428







 
 
 LEASE-LEASEBACK AGREEMENT  


 
Dated as of 8-23-2017 


 
Between 


 
Santa Cruz City School District 


  
 


and 
 


XL Construction Corporation 
 
 
 
 
 


Soquel and Harbor High Pools Project 
 


Harbor High School 
300 La Fonda Ave 


Santa Cruz 
Soquel High School 
401 Old San Jose Rd 


Soquel 
 
 
 


399 of 428







 


 


LEASE-LEASEBACK AGREEMENT 
 


Soquel and Harbor High Pools Project 
 


THIS LEASE-LEASEBACK AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is entered into as of 8-23- 2017 
between the Santa Cruz City Schools, a California public school district (the “Owner”), and XL 
Construction Corporation a California Corporation and licensed general contractor (the 
“Contractor”).  Owner and Contractor are each a “Party” and together are the “Parties” to this 
Agreement. 
 
The Owner intends to make certain tenant improvements (the “Project”) to its Pools on the campus 
of its Soquel and Harbor High School, located at 401 Old San Jose Rd, Soquel and 300 La Fonda 
Ave, Santa Cruz, CA the scope of which is generally described in Section 1, below. 


 
This Agreement is entered into by the Parties pursuant to California Education Code section 17406, 
which permits the governing board of school district, without advertising for bids, to lease to any 
person, firm, or corporation any real property owned by the school district if the instrument by 
which such property is leased requires the lessee to construct on the leased premises, or provides 
for the construction thereon, of a building for the use of the school district during the term of the 
lease, and provides that title to that building shall vest in the school district at the expiration of the 
lease. 
 
In connection with the approval of this Agreement, the Owner will enter into a site lease with 
Contractor (the “Site Lease”), under which it will lease the Project site described and depicted in 
Exhibit A of the Site Lease (the “Site”) to Contractor in order for Contractor to finance and 
construct the Project as described in the Scope of Work set forth in Section 1, below (the “Scope of 
Work”). 
 
Contractor will lease the Site and the Project back to the Owner pursuant to a Sublease Agreement 
(the “Sublease”), under which the Owner will be required to make sublease payments to Contractor 
for the use and occupancy of the Site, including the Project. 
 
Contractor is experienced in the construction of the type of project and type of work desired by the 
Owner and is willing to perform said construction work for the Owner, all as more fully set forth in 
this Agreement. 
 
The Owner and Contractor therefore agree as follows: 
 
1.  Scope of Work.  The Contractor agrees to finance construction of the Project and to furnish all 
labor, equipment and materials, including tools, implements, and appliances required, and to 
perform all of the Work, as that term is defined in Article 1.1.3 of the General Conditions, in a good 
and workmanlike manner, free from any and all liens and claims from mechanics, material 
suppliers, subcontractors, artisans, machinists, teamsters, freight carriers, and laborers required for: 
 
 


Soquel and Harbor High Pools 
SANTA CRUZ COUNTY, CALIFORNIA, 


 


400 of 428







 


 


all in strict compliance with the plans, drawings and specifications (“Plans and Specifications”) for 
the Project submitted to the Division of State Architect (“DSA”) for approval and prepared by: 
 


Belli Architectural Group 
 


and other contract documents relating to the Project. 
 
The Scope of Work shall include any revisions to the Plans and Specifications that are made as a 
result of DSA review or at the direction of DSA.  
 
The Scope of Work does not include Contractor’s performance of the pre-construction services as 
set forth in Section 2, below.  
 
Until DSA approval of the plans, drawings and specifications for the Project has been received by 
Owner, Contractor may not commence any work on the Project for which a contractor’s license is 
required and DSA approval is required.  


 
In accordance with California Public Contract Code section 3300, Contractor has a Class “A or B” 
license that Contractor shall maintain in good standing for the duration of Contractor’s work on the 
Project. 
 
2.  Pre-Construction Services.  Contractor shall perform the following pre-construction services 
to be completed by December 30th, 2017: 
 
a. Site Evaluation.  Contractor shall perform an evaluation of the Site for the Project and make 


recommendations relating to scope, constructability, and schedule of the Project.  Contractor 
shall also review the scope of necessary demolition work, if any, to develop a hazardous 
materials removal plan.  The purpose of this evaluation is to improve the Project’s design and 
minimize unforeseen conditions.  At Owner’s request, Contractor shall provide the results of its 
evaluation in written form to the Owner.  


 
b. Constructability Review.  Contractor shall provide at least 2 constructability reviews of the 


Plans and Specifications before or at each of the following intervals of preconstruction: (i) one 
upon the completion of design development; and (ii) one immediately prior to the submittal of 
the Plans and Specifications to DSA. 
 
Contractor shall review the Plans and Specifications and related construction documents for 
errors and omissions, clarity, consistency, and coordination.  Contractor’s review shall 
emphasize ensuring that the Project can be completed within the Owner’s available budget to 
the level of quality and educational goals desired, and can be completed within the established 
schedule.  Contractor shall specifically provide recommendations on construction feasibility, 
energy conservation, availability of materials and labor, time requirements for installation and 
construction, and factors related to cost, including costs of alternative designs of materials, 
preliminary budgets, and possible economies of scale.  Contractor shall provide written reports, 
identifying by page and detail the issues to be discussed and resolved.  As part of the 
constructability review, Contractor shall identify areas where value engineering principles 
could be applied (including potential cost savings and the schedule impact of such savings), 
and identify items requiring a long lead time before construction.  Contractor shall assist the 


401 of 428







 


 


District in considering operating or maintenance costs with respect to selecting systems and 
products for the Project.  


 
c. Design/Coordination Meetings.  Contractor shall be responsible for facilitating all 


design/coordination meetings as needed.  Such meetings shall include participation of design 
professionals and specialty subcontractors.   
 


d. Schedule.  Contractor shall develop a master critical path method (“CPM”) project schedule for 
the Project that shall include all milestone dates for the Project, including submittal of 
Contractor’s GMP proposal for each Project phase, completion of design development, 
submittal of all estimates contemplated by the Contract, re-submission of the Plans and 
Specifications to DSA (if necessary), anticipated re-approval by DSA (if any), finalization of 
Contract Documents, construction sequencing and durations, preparation and processing of 
shop drawings and samples, delivery of materials or equipment requiring long-lead time 
procurements, phasing, and Owner move-in.  Contractor’s schedule shall be submitted to the 
Owner for approval within 30 days’ of execution of this Agreement; the Owner shall have the 
right to request reasonable changes and updates in the schedule.  Contractor shall provide 
schedule updates with each estimate, or more often if reasonably requested by the Owner or if 
required in Contractor’s judgment to communicate changes in market conditions.  
 


e. Estimates.  Contractor shall provide an estimate of total Project cost, as well as necessary 
updates to that estimate.  Contractor’s initial estimate shall be due to the District within two 
weeks of completion of its first constructability review.  Updated cost estimates shall be given 
in accordance with the approved CPM project schedule for the Project.  Contractor shall also 
provide an updated estimate upon the submission of the Plans and Specifications to DSA (and 
at any other time required or reasonably necessary pursuant to this Agreement).  Contractor’s 
cost estimate shall identify all trades and unit costs and shall also identify all allowable general 
condition costs and fees.  If any cost estimate submitted to the Owner exceeds a previously 
approved estimate, the Contractor shall make appropriate recommendations to the Owner for 
reducing the estimated cost of the Project.  All estimates shall assume that construction of the 
Project is subject to the payment of prevailing wages under the California Labor Code and 
applicable regulations, and that the Project will be subject to compliance monitoring and 
enforcement by the California Department of Industrial Relations. 
 


f. Construction Planning.  Contractor shall provide assistance to Owner in construction planning, 
including phasing, staging, site logistics, sequencing, fencing, office locations and means and 
methods of construction.  The Contractor shall (1) provide a preliminary evaluation of the 
Owner’s schedule, cost and design requirements for the Project; (2) develop an anticipated 
construction schedule pursuant to Subsection d. above; (3) develop a preliminary cost estimate 
for each type of work contemplated by the Project pursuant to Subsection e. above; (4) clarify 
and delineate the Architect’s, the Contractor’s, and the Owner’s respective duties and 
responsibilities; and (5) set forth a plan for the administration and coordination of all Work on 
the Project, including pre-construction meetings.  The Architect and Owner shall review the 
above for acceptance.  Contractor will also ensure that all Work complies with the guidelines 
established by the State of California Office of Public School Construction and any other 
Federal or State agencies having jurisdiction over the Project.  The objective of this step will be 
to develop an overall program strategy as relates to timing, budgets, construction materials, 
means and methods and the program interface during construction. 


402 of 428







 


 


 
3.  Contract Documents.  The Contractor and the Owner agree that this Agreement, and all of the 
documents listed in Article 1.1.1 of the General Conditions, together form the “Contract 
Documents,” which form the “Contract.” 
 
4.  Time to Complete and Liquidated Damages.  Time is of the essence in this Contract.  The 
time for completion of the Project shall be September 30th 2017Soquel and September 30th, 2018 
for Harbor High. Approval of the Total Sublease Amount (as set forth in Section 5 of this 
Agreement), pursuant to California Education Code section 17406(a)(3).   
 
Failure to complete the Project within the date(s) and in the manner provided for by the Contract 
Documents, shall subject the Contractor to liquidated damages for each calendar day by which 
such completion is delayed beyond the Date for Completion.  For purposes of liquidated damages, 
the concept of substantial completion shall not constitute completion and is not part of the Contract 
Documents.  The actual occurrence of damages and the actual amount of the damages which the 
Owner would suffer if the Project were not completed by the Date for Completion are dependent 
upon many circumstances and conditions which could prevail in various combinations and, from 
the nature of the case, it is impracticable and extremely difficult to fix the actual damages.  
Damages that the Owner would suffer if completion is delayed include, but are not limited to, loss 
of the use of the Project, disruption of activities, costs of administration, supervision and the 
incalculable inconvenience and loss suffered by the public. 
 
Accordingly, the Parties agree that the following dollar figure shall be the amount of damages 
which the Owner shall directly incur upon failure of the Contractor to complete the Project within 
the time specified:  $250.00 for each calendar day by which completion of the Project is delayed 
beyond the Date for Completion, which may be adjusted in accordance with the Contract 
Documents. 
 
If the Contractor becomes liable under this Section, the Owner, in addition to all other remedies 
provided by law, shall have the right to withhold sublease payments, and to collect the interest 
thereon, which would otherwise be or become due the Contractor until the liability of the 
Contractor under this Section has been finally determined.  If the withheld sublease payments are 
not sufficient to discharge all liabilities of the Contractor incurred under this Section, then the 
Contractor and its sureties shall continue to remain liable to the Owner for such liabilities until all 
such liabilities are satisfied in full. 
 
If the Owner accepts any work or makes any payment under this Agreement after a default by 
reason of delays, the payment or payments shall in no respect constitute a waiver or modification 
of any Agreement provisions regarding time of completion and liquidated damages. 
 
5.  Total Sublease Amount.  Owner shall pay Contractor a total amount for the Scope of Work 
(“Total Sublease Amount”) which will be calculated following: (i) Contractor’s completion of the 
preconstruction services set forth in Section 2; (2) the selection of all subcontractors in accordance 
with Education Code section 17406(a)(4) and the Request for Sealed Proposals; and (iii) any 
required DSA approval of the Plans and Specifications for the Work. 
 
Following the occurrence of all of the events set forth in the paragraph above, Contractor shall 
provide Owner with objectively verifiable information of its costs to perform the Work and a 


403 of 428







 


 


written rationale for the proposed Total Sublease Amount, including documentation sufficient to 
support the calculation.  Contractor’s written rationale shall detail the “base construction cost” for 
the Project, consisting of (a) all subcontracts to be awarded by Contractor for the Project, plus (b) 
any separately awarded contracts for materials and supplies for the Project.  The product of the 
base construction cost, multiplied by the Percentage offered by the Contractor in its response to the 
Request for Sealed Proposals, shall be the “Contractor Fee”, which shall also be set forth in 
Contractor’s written rationale.  The Total Sublease Amount shall be the sum total of the base 
construction cost and the Contractor Fee.  
 
The proposed Total Sublease Amount shall be approved or rejected by the Owner at a public 
meeting before Contractor may proceed with any further Work under the Contract Documents.  
Once approved, the Parties shall execute Exhibit A of the Sublease, setting forth the Total Sublease 
Amount and Sublease Payments, whereupon Exhibit A shall be incorporated into, and become part 
of the Contract Documents.  Contractor shall immediately commence the Work after approval of 
the Total Sublease Amounts by the Owner, and the time for completion of the Work shall 
commence to run upon such approval by the Owner.  If the Owner rejects the Total Sublease 
Amount and requests another calculation from Contractor, then Contractor shall submit another 
calculation complying with this Section’s procedures.  If the Owner rejects the Total Sublease 
Amount and does not request another calculation from Contractor, then such rejection will act as a 
Termination for Convenience pursuant to Article 14.3.2 of the General Conditions and the Owner 
may award a lease-leaseback contract for the Project to the next highest best value contractor from 
the selection process used for the Project. 
 
Except as otherwise provided in the General Conditions, the Contractor shall assume the risk of all 
costs in excess of the Total Sublease Amount in the performance of such work and shall not be 
entitled to additional payments because of such excess costs.  Should the Contractor believe that it 
is entitled to an increase in the Total Sublease Amount or a time extension for completion, it must 
request it pursuant to the procedures in the General Conditions for change orders and claims.  
Contractor shall finance the cost of construction of the Work.  Contractor shall pay all 
subcontractors and suppliers as they perform Work or furnish supplies.  The Owner shall pay 
Contractor sublease payments pursuant to the terms and conditions of Section 6 of the Sublease 
(the “Sublease Payments”).  The sum of the Sublease Payments shall not exceed the Total Sublease 
Amount established under this Section 5. 
 
6.  Changes.  Should the Contractor believe that it is entitled to an increase in the Total Sublease 
Amount or a time extension for completion, it must request such change pursuant to the procedures 
in the General Conditions for change orders and claims.  
  
7.  Term and Termination.  The term of the Contract (the “Lease Term”) automatically ends on 
December 31st, 2018 (“Termination Date”).  The Owner or Contractor may terminate the Contract 
prior to the Termination Date, but only as provided in the General Conditions.  All of the 
covenants, representations and warranties set forth in the Contract, including indemnification 
obligations, that are intended to bind the Parties after the completion of the Project or termination 
of the Contract will survive such completion or termination for the periods provided for in the 
Contract or otherwise allowed by law.  The Site Lease and the Sublease each shall automatically 
end at the same time as the Contract, with the Parties’ respective leasehold interests thereunder 
automatically ended and released, and title to the Site and Project automatically and fully vested in 
the Owner. 


404 of 428







 


 


 
8.  Prequalification of Contractor and Certain Contractors. 
Owner has determined that the Project is subject to prequalification pursuant to Education Code 
section 17406 subsection (a)(2)(C) and Public Contract Code section 20111.6 subsections (b) 
through (m). Accordingly, the Owner’s Request for Proposals for the Project required that all 
entities proposing for this Contract, including Contractor, must be prequalified as well as all 
electrical, mechanical, and plumbing subcontractors to be utilized on the Project.  
 
Any subcontractors that Contractor may select after award pursuant to Section 9, below, must be 
prequalified by Owner pursuant to Education Code section 17406 subsection (a)(2)(C) and Public 
Contract Code section 20111.6 subsections (b) through (m) if bidding or proposing for work 
requiring C-4, C-7, C-10, C-16, C-20, C-34, C-36, C-38, C-42, C-43, or C-46 licenses or other ‘C’ 
licenses specified by Owner in the Request for Proposals.  Contractor may not accept a bid or 
proposal and may not award a subcontract to a bidding or proposing subcontractor that has not met 
the requirements of this Section.  When soliciting bids or proposals from subcontractors, the 
Contractor shall provide notice to all subcontractors of which subcontractors must be prequalified 
to submit bids or proposals, and Contractor shall state where the prequalification applications may 
be obtained and where and when they must be submitted.  The prequalification questionnaires and 
financial statements are not public records and are not open to public inspection. 


 
9.  Selection of Subcontractors; DVBE Goals.  For any subcontractors not listed in Contractor’s 
proposal who will perform more than 0.5% of the Work, Contractor shall provide public notice of 
availability of work to be subcontracted in accordance with the publication date applicable to the 
District’s competitive bidding process (including but not limited to Public Contract Code section 
20112), including a fixed date and time on which qualifications statements, bids, or proposals will 
be due.  Contractor shall establish reasonable qualification criteria and standards and shall award 
each subcontract either on best value basis as described in Education Code section 17406(a)(4) or 
to the lowest responsible bidder.  All subcontractors shall be afforded the protections of the 
Subletting and Subcontracting Fair Practices Act (commencing with Public Contract Code section 
4100).  Contractor’s subcontractor selection process shall be subject to review by, and approval of 
Owner. 
 
Compliance with Disabled Veteran Business Enterprise (“DVBE”) contracting goals is required for 
this Project.  In accordance with Education Code section 17076.11 the Owner has a DVBE 
participation goal of 3% per year of the overall dollar amount of state funds allocated to the Owner 
pursuant to the Leroy F. Greene School Facilities Act of 1998, and expended each year by the 
Owner for this Project.  The Owner is seeking DVBE participation under this Agreement.   
 
The Contractor must make a good faith effort to contact and utilize DVBE subcontractors and 
suppliers in securing bids, in the manner set forth in this Section for performance of the Project.  
Information regarding certified DVBE firms can be obtained from the State’s Office of Small 
Business and DVBE Services (OSDS) at (916) 375-4940 as well as the OSDS website at 
www.bidsync.com/DPXBisCASB. Verification of DVBE status must be obtained from the OSDS 
by receiving an approved certification letter and reference number from that office.  Contractor is 
required, as a material condition of this Agreement, to retain documentation of its good faith efforts 
in utilizing DVBEs for this Project, for submission to the Owner or to the applicable state agency 
in the event such documentation is requested.  
 


405 of 428







 


 


Good faith efforts are demonstrated by evidence of the following: (a) contact was made with the 
Owner regarding the identification of DVBEs; (b) contact was made with other state agencies and 
with local DVBE organizations to identify DVBEs; (c) advertising was published in trade papers 
and other papers focusing on DVBEs; (d) invitations to bid or proposal solicitations were submitted 
to potential DVBE contractors; and (e) available DVBEs were considered.  Contractor shall certify, 
under penalty of perjury, that a good faith effort was made to include DVBE subcontractors and 
suppliers in the Project. 
 
Prior to, and as a condition precedent for the final Sublease payment made to Contractor by the 
Owner pursuant to Section 6 of the Sublease, the Contractor shall provide the Owner with written 
documentation identifying the amount paid to certified DVBE subcontractors and suppliers in 
performance of the Project.  The Contractor shall also provide the Owner with a copy of the DVBE 
Certification Letter issued by OSDS for each DVBE that has participated in the Project.  This 
documentation will be used by the Owner to evaluate its success in meeting its DVBE participation 
goal. 
 
10.  Prevailing Wages.  The Project is a public work, the Work shall be performed as a public 
work, and under California Labor Code section 1770 et seq., the Director of the California 
Department of Industrial Relations (“DIR”) has determined the general prevailing rate of per diem 
wages and the general prevailing rate for holiday and overtime work in the locality in which the 
Work is to be performed, for each craft, classification or type of worker needed to execute this 
Contract.  Per diem wages shall be deemed to include employer payments for health and welfare, 
pension, vacation, apprenticeship or other training programs, and similar purposes.  Copies of the 
rates are on file at the Owner’s principal office.  The rate of prevailing wage for any craft, 
classification or type of workmanship to be employed on this Project is the rate established by the 
applicable collective bargaining agreement which rate so provided is hereby adopted by reference 
and shall be effective for the life of this Agreement or until the Director of the DIR determines that 
another rate be adopted.  It shall be mandatory upon the Contractor and on any subcontractor to pay 
not less than the said specified rates to all workers employed in the execution of this Agreement. 
 
The Contractor and any subcontractor under the Contractor as a penalty to the Owner shall forfeit 
not more than Two Hundred Dollars ($200.00) for each calendar day or portion thereof for each 
worker paid less than the stipulated prevailing rates for such work or craft in which such worker is 
employed.  The difference between such stipulated prevailing wage rates and the amount paid to 
each worker for each calendar day or portion thereof for which each worker was paid less than the 
stipulated prevailing wage rate shall be paid to each worker by the Contractor. 
 
The Contractor and each Subcontractor shall keep or cause to be kept an accurate record for work 
on this Project showing the names, addresses, social security numbers, work classification, straight 
time and overtime hours worked and occupations of all laborers, workers and mechanics employed 
by them in connection with the performance of this Contract or any subcontract thereunder, and 
showing also the actual per diem wage paid to each of such workers, which records shall be open at 
all reasonable hours to inspection by the Owner, its officers and agents and to the representatives of 
the Division of Labor Standards Enforcement of the DIR.  Contractor and all subcontractors shall 
comply with Labor Code section 1776.  In accordance with Labor Code section 1771.4(a)(1), the 
Project is subject to compliance monitoring and enforcement by the DIR.  The Contractor and each 
subcontractor shall furnish a certified copy of all payroll records directly to the Labor 


406 of 428







 


 


Commissioner on a monthly basis, unless directed by the Owner to furnish such records more 
often, and in the format prescribed by the Labor Commissioner. 
 
As a public work, the Project is subject to compliance monitoring and enforcement by the 
Department of Industrial Relations.  In order to be qualified to submit a bid or to be listed in a bid 
proposal subject to the requirements of Public Contract Code section 4104, or enter into, or engage 
in the performance of any contract of public work (as defined by Division 2, Part 7, Chapter 1 
(§§1720 et seq.) of the Labor Code), a contractor or subcontractor must be currently registered and 
qualified under Labor Code section 1725.5 to perform public work as defined by Division 2, Part 7, 
Chapter 1 (§§1720 et seq.) of the Labor Code.  
 
11.  Working Hours.  Under California Labor Code sections 1810 to 1815, the time of service of 
any worker employed by the Contractor or a Subcontractor doing or contracting to do any part of 
the Work contemplated by this Agreement is limited and restricted to 8 hours during any one 
calendar day and 40 hours during any one calendar week, provided, that work may be performed 
by such employee in excess of said 8 hours per day or 40 hours per week provided that 
compensation for all hours worked in excess of 8 hours per day, and 40 hours per week, is paid at a 
rate not less than 1½ times the basic rate of pay.  The Contractor and every Subcontractor shall 
keep an accurate record showing the name of and the actual hours worked each calendar day and 
each calendar week by each worker employed by them in connection with the Work.  The 
Contractor and every Subcontractor shall keep the records open at all reasonable hours to 
inspection by representatives of the Owner and the Division of Labor Standards Enforcement.  The 
Contractor shall as a penalty to the Owner forfeit $25.00 for each worker employed in the 
execution of this Agreement by the Contractor or by any subcontractor for each calendar day 
during which such worker is required or permitted to work more than 8 hours in any one calendar 
day, and 40 hours in any one calendar week, except as herein provided. 
 
12.  Apprentices.  The Contractor shall comply with California Labor Code sections 1777.5 and 
1777.6. These sections require that contractors and subcontractors employ apprentices in 
apprenticeable occupations in a ratio of not less than 1 hour of apprentice’s work for each 5 hours 
of work performed by a journeyman (unless an exemption is granted in accordance with Labor 
Code section 1777.5) and that contractors and subcontractors shall not discriminate among 
otherwise qualified employees as indentured apprentices on any public works solely on the ground 
of sex, race, religious creed, national origin, ancestry or color.  Only apprentices as defined in 
Labor Code section 3077, who are in training under apprenticeship standards and who have signed 
written apprentice agreements, will be employed on public works in apprenticeable occupations.  
The responsibility for compliance with these provisions is fixed with the Contractor for all 
apprenticeable occupations. 
 
13.  Skilled and Trained Workforce.  The Contractor and its subcontractors at every tier shall 
comply with Education Code section 17407.5 and Public Contract Code sections 2600-2602, which 
require the Contractor and its subcontractors at every tier to employ a skilled and trained 
workforce, as defined herein, to perform all work on the Project that falls within an apprenticeable 
occupation in the building and construction trades. 
 
For the purpose of this Section 13, the following definitions apply: 
 


407 of 428







 


 


A. “Apprenticeable occupation” means an occupation for which the Division of 
Apprenticeship Standards of the DIR had approved an apprenticeship program before 
January 1, 2014. 


 
B. “Graduate of an apprenticeship program” means either (a) an individual that has been 


issued a certificate of completion under the authority of the California Apprenticeship 
Council for completing an apprenticeship program approved by the DIR pursuant to 
Section 3075 of the Labor Code, or (b) an individual that has completed an 
apprenticeship program located outside California and approved for federal purposes 
pursuant to apprenticeship regulations adopted by the federal Secretary of Labor.  


 
C. “Skilled and trained workforce” means that all of the workers are either apprentices 


registered in an apprenticeship program approved by the DIR, or skilled 
journeypersons, with, for work performed on or after January 1, 2017 and before 
January 1, 2108, at least 30 percent of the skilled journeypersons employed on the 
Project in an apprenticeable occupation by Contractor or any of its subcontractors at 
every tier being graduates of an apprenticeship program for the applicable occupation.  
Pursuant to Sections 2600-2602 of the Public Contract Code, the percentage 
requirement may be partially met in some apprenticeable occupations by skilled 
journeypersons who commenced working before an apprenticeship program existed, 
may be met by the hours performed by the skilled journeypersons, need not be met if 
less than ten (10) hours of work were performed, and need not be met by some 
subcontractors. 


  
D. “Skilled journeyperson” means any of the following:  (i) a person who has graduated 


from an apprenticeship program for the applicable occupation that was approved by the 
DIR, (ii) a person who has graduated from an apprenticeship program for the applicable 
occupation that was located outside of California and approved for federal purposes in 
accordance with regulations adopted by the federal Secretary of Labor, or (iii) a person 
who has at least as many hours of on-the-job experience in the applicable occupation as 
would be required to graduate from an apprenticeship program approved by the DIR. 


 
For each calendar month during the Work, Contractor shall provide a compliance report to the 
Owner for each contractor or subcontractor before the fifth day of each month, using the format 
agreed to by the District, demonstrating compliance with this Section 13.  Such monthly 
compliance reports shall be subject to the California Public Records Act (commencing with 
Government Code section 6250), and shall be open to public inspection. 
 
If Contractor fails to comply with this Section 13 then Owner, at its sole discretion, may terminate 
the Agreement pursuant to Article 14 of the General Conditions, in addition to any other rights or 
remedies provided to Owner in the Contract Documents.  Notwithstanding any other provision of 
the Agreement or the General Conditions: (a) if Contractor fails to provide any required monthly 
compliance report pursuant to this Section 13 on or before the fifth day of the following month, or 
provides an incomplete report, Owner shall withhold further payments to Contractor that would 
otherwise be due and payable under the terms of this Agreement, until Contractor provides a 
complete report; and (b) if a monthly report does not demonstrate compliance with these skilled 
and trained workforce requirements, Owner shall withhold further payments to Contractor that 
would otherwise be due and payable under the terms of this Agreement, until Contractor provides a 


408 of 428







 


 


plan to achieve substantial compliance with these requirements for the relevant apprenticeable 
occupation prior to completion of the Contract. 
 
14.  DSA Oversight Process.  The Contractor must comply with the applicable requirements of the 
Division of State Architect (“DSA”) Construction Oversight Process (“DSA Oversight Process”), 
including but not limited to (a) notifying the Inspector of Record (“IOR”) upon commencement 
and completion of each aspect of the work as required under DSA Form 156; (b) coordinating the 
Work with the IOR’s inspection duties and requirements; (c) submitting verified reports under DSA 
Form 6-C; and (d) coordinating with the Owner, Owner’s Architect, any Construction Manager, 
any laboratories, and the IOR to meet the DSA Oversight Process requirements without delay or 
added costs to the Project.  
 
Contractor shall be responsible for any additional DSA fees related to review of proposed changes 
to the DSA-approved construction documents, to the extent the proposed changes were caused by 
Contractor’s wrongful actions or omissions.  If inspected Work is found to be in non-compliance 
with the DSA-approved construction documents or the DSA-approved testing and inspection 
program, then it must be removed and corrected.  Any construction that covers unapproved or 
uninspected Work is subject to removal and correction, at Contractor’s expense, in order to permit 
inspection and approval of the covered Work in accordance with the DSA Oversight Process. 
 
15.  Indemnification, Insurance, and Bonds.  The Contractor will defend, indemnify and hold 
harmless the Owner, its governing board, officers, agents, trustees, employees and others as 
provided in the General Conditions. 
 
By this statement the Contractor represents that it has secured the payment of Workers’ 
Compensation in compliance with the provisions of the California Labor Code and during the 
performance of the work contemplated herein will continue so to comply with said provisions of 
said Code.  The Contractor shall supply the Owner with certificates of insurance evidencing that 
Workers’ Compensation Insurance is in effect and providing that the Owner will receive 30 days’ 
notice of cancellation. 
 
Contractor shall provide the insurance set forth in the General Conditions.  The amount of general 
liability insurance shall be $1,000,000.00per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury, and 
property damage, and the amount of automobile liability insurance shall be $1,000,000.00 per 
accident for bodily injury and property damage combined single limit. 
 
Contractor shall provide the bonds set forth in the General Conditions, including performance and 
payments bonds. 
 
16.  Entire Agreement.  The Contract constitutes the entire agreement between the Parties, and 
supersedes any prior or contemporaneous agreement between the Parties, oral or written, unless 
such agreement is expressly incorporated herein.  The Owner makes no representations or 
warranties, express or implied, not specified in the Contract.  The Contract is intended as the 
complete and exclusive statement of the Parties’ agreement pursuant to California Code of Civil 
Procedure section 1856. 
17.  Execution of Other Documents.  The Parties to this Agreement shall cooperate fully in the 
execution of any and all other documents and in the completion of any additional actions that may 
be necessary or appropriate to give full force and effect to the terms and intent of the Contract. 


409 of 428







 


 


 
18.  Execution in Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in counterparts such that the 
signatures may appear on separate signature pages.  A copy, or an original, with all signatures 
appended together, shall be deemed a fully executed Agreement. 
 
19.  Binding Effect.  Contractor, by execution of this Agreement, acknowledges that Contractor 
has read this Agreement and the other Contract Documents, understands them, and agrees to be 
bound by their terms and conditions.  The Contract shall inure to the benefit of and shall be binding 
upon the Contractor and the Owner and their respective successors and assigns. 
 
20.  Severability; Governing Law; Venue.  If a court of competent jurisdiction shall hold any 
provision of the Contract invalid or unenforceable, then such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision hereof.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the 
Contract.  Any action or proceeding seeking any relief under or with respect to this Agreement 
shall be brought solely in the Superior Court of the State of California for the County of Santa 
Cruz, subject to transfer of venue under applicable State law, provided that nothing in this 
Agreement shall constitute a waiver of immunity to suit by Owner. 
 
21.  Amendments.  The terms of the Contract shall not be waived, altered, modified, 
supplemented, or amended in any manner whatsoever except by written agreement signed by the 
Parties and approved or ratified by the Owner’s Governing Board. 
 
22.  Assignment of Contract.  The Contractor shall not assign or transfer by operation of law or 
otherwise any of its rights, burdens, duties or obligations without the prior written consent of the 
surety on the payment bond, the surety on the performance bond, and the Owner. 
 
23.  Written Notice.  Written notice shall be deemed to have been duly served if delivered in 
person to the individual or member of the firm or to an officer of the corporation for whom it was 
intended, or if delivered at or sent by registered or certified or overnight mail to the last business 
address known to the person who gives the notice. 
 
24.  Terms Not Defined.  Capitalized terms used in this Agreement that are not otherwise defined 
have the same meaning as in the General Conditions or other Contract Documents. 
 
25.  Parties Bound by Agreement.  Each person signing this Agreement below warrants and 
guarantees that he or she is legally authorized to execute this Agreement on behalf of the listed 
Party and that such execution binds that Party to the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
  


410 of 428







 


 


* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 
 
CONTRACTOR:      OWNER: 
 
_________________,      Santa Cruz City School District 
a California ___________ 
 
BY: _________________________________  BY: ____________________________ 
_____________________________________  ________________________________ 
TITLE: President     TITLE: Assistant Superintendent Business 
 
BY:  ________________________________ 
TITLE: Corporate Secretary 
 
___________________________  
CALIFORNIA CONTRACTOR'S  
LICENSE NO. 
 
___________________________  
LICENSE EXPIRATION DATE 
 
NOTE: Contractor must give the full business address of the Contractor and sign with 
Contractor’s usual signature.  Partnerships must furnish the full name of all partners and the 
Agreement must be signed in the partnership name by a general partner with authority to bind the 
partnership in such matters, followed by the signature and designation of the person signing.  The 
name of the person signing shall also be typed or printed below the signature.  Corporations must 
sign with the legal name of the corporation, followed by the name of the state of incorporation and 
by the signature and designation of the chairman of the board, president or any vice president, and 
then followed by a second signature by the secretary, assistant secretary, the chief financial officer 
or assistant treasurer.  All persons signing must be authorized to bind the corporation in the matter.  
The name of each person signing shall also be typed or printed below the signature.  Satisfactory 
evidence of the authority of the officer signing on behalf of a corporation shall be furnished. 
  


411 of 428







 


 


EXHIBIT A – Lease-Leaseback Agreement 
 


SKILLED AND TRAINED WORKFORCE COMPLIANCE REPORT  
FOR WORK PERFORMED  


ON OR AFTER JANUARY 1, 2017 AND BEFORE JANUARY 1, 2018 
(Education Code §17407.5 and Public Contract Code §§2600-2602) 


 
Owner:   Santa Cruz City School District 
 
Contract:    ______________ Project 


    _______________ School 
         _______________ [city], ____________ County, California 
  
The undersigned declares: 
 
I am the ______________ of _______________, the “Contractor” on the Project identified above.  
I hereby certify that during the month of __________ , 20__,  there were a total of ______ workers 
employed by _________________ in the apprenticeable occupation of ___________  and these 
workers performed a total of ______ hours of work within this apprenticeable occupation.  I certify 
that all of these workers in this apprenticeable occupation are either skilled journeypersons or 
apprentices registered in an apprenticeship program approved by the Department of Industrial 
Relations (DIR), and that all of these hours performed in this apprenticeable occupation were 
performed by such skilled journeypersons and apprentices.  
 
I also certify as to either Section A, B, or C for this apprenticeable occupation [check applicable 
box]: 
 


    A. Exemption from Percentage Compliance 
 
Of the above total number of hours of work performed by workers employed by _____________in 
this apprenticeable occupation this month, ______ (___) were performed by skilled 
journeypersons, which is less than the statutory threshold of ten (10) hours.  
 


    B. Percentage Compliance by Number of Workers  
1. Of the above total number of workers employed by _________________ in this 
 apprenticeable occupation this month, _____ (____) were apprentices registered in an 
 apprenticeship program approved by the DIR. 


 
2. Of the above total number of workers employed by _________________ in this 
 apprenticeable occupation in this month, _____ were skilled journeypersons.  Included 
 in these skilled journeypersons are the following: 


 
 a. ______who are graduates of an apprenticeship program for the applicable  
  occupation (as defined in Section 13 of the Agreement); and  


 
 b. ______ who are not graduates of an approved apprenticeship program for this 
  apprenticeable occupation, but (a) no apprenticeship program had been approved 
  by the DIR before January 1, 1995, for this apprenticeable occupation; and (b) 


412 of 428







 


 


  these workers commenced working in this apprenticeable occupation before 
  DIR approval of an apprenticeship program for that occupation in the county in 
  which the Project is located.  
  


The combined number of skilled journeypersons listed in Section B.1 and Section B.2 is 30% or 
more of the total number of skilled journeypersons identified above, with no more than half of this 
percentage requirement being satisfied by the number of skilled journeypersons listed in Section 
B.2.b.  
 


    C. Percentage Compliance by Number of Hours   
 


1. Of the above total number of hours of work performed by workers employed by 
 _____________ in this apprenticeable occupation this month, _____ hours were 
 performed by  apprentices registered in an apprenticeship program approved by the 
 DIR. 


 
2. Of the above total number of hours of work performed by workers employed by  
 _________________ in this apprenticeable occupation in this month, _____ hours were 
 performed by  skilled journeypersons.  Included in these hours are the following: 
 


a. ______ hours performed by graduates of an apprenticeship program for the 
applicable occupation; and  


 
b. ______ hours performed by skilled journeypersons who are not graduates of an 


approved apprenticeship program for this apprenticeable occupation, but (a) no 
apprenticeship program had been approved by the DIR before January 1, 1995, for 
this apprenticeable occupation; (b) these workers commenced working in this 
apprenticeable occupation before DIR approval of an apprenticeship program for 
that occupation in the county in which the Project is located. 


 
The combined hours of work performed by skilled journeypersons listed in Section C.1 and Section 
C.2 is 30% or more of the total number of hours of work performed by skilled journeypersons 
identified above, with no more than half of this percentage requirement being satisfied by the hours 
performed by skilled journeypersons listed in Section C.2.b. 
 
I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true 
and correct and that this declaration is executed on _____________, 20__, at _________ [city], 
California. 
      __________________________________  
       [Name] 
 
I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true 
and correct and that this declaration is executed on _____________, 20__, at _________ [city], 
California. 
      __________________________________  
       [Name] 
J:\wdocs\90005\008\agt\00481668.DOCX 


413 of 428







 
 
 LEASE-LEASEBACK AGREEMENT  


 
Dated as of 8-23-2017 


 
Between 


 
Santa Cruz City School District 


  
 


and 
 


XL Construction Corporation 
 
 
 
 
 


Harbor High Track and Field Project 
 


Harbor High School 
300 La Fonda Ave 


Santa Cruz 
 
 


414 of 428







 


 


LEASE-LEASEBACK AGREEMENT 
 


Harbor High Track and Field Project 
 


THIS LEASE-LEASEBACK AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is entered into as of 8-23- 2017 
between the Santa Cruz City Schools, a California public school district (the “Owner”), and XL 
Construction Corporation a California Corporation and licensed general contractor (the 
“Contractor”).  Owner and Contractor are each a “Party” and together are the “Parties” to this 
Agreement. 
 
The Owner intends to make certain tenant improvements (the “Project”) to its Track and Fields on 
the campus of its Harbor High School, located at 300 La Fonda Ave, Santa Cruz, CA the scope of 
which is generally described in Section 1, below. 


 
This Agreement is entered into by the Parties pursuant to California Education Code section 17406, 
which permits the governing board of school district, without advertising for bids, to lease to any 
person, firm, or corporation any real property owned by the school district if the instrument by 
which such property is leased requires the lessee to construct on the leased premises, or provides 
for the construction thereon, of a building for the use of the school district during the term of the 
lease, and provides that title to that building shall vest in the school district at the expiration of the 
lease. 
 
In connection with the approval of this Agreement, the Owner will enter into a site lease with 
Contractor (the “Site Lease”), under which it will lease the Project site described and depicted in 
Exhibit A of the Site Lease (the “Site”) to Contractor in order for Contractor to finance and 
construct the Project as described in the Scope of Work set forth in Section 1, below (the “Scope of 
Work”). 
 
Contractor will lease the Site and the Project back to the Owner pursuant to a Sublease Agreement 
(the “Sublease”), under which the Owner will be required to make sublease payments to Contractor 
for the use and occupancy of the Site, including the Project. 
 
Contractor is experienced in the construction of the type of project and type of work desired by the 
Owner and is willing to perform said construction work for the Owner, all as more fully set forth in 
this Agreement. 
 
The Owner and Contractor therefore agree as follows: 
 
1.  Scope of Work.  The Contractor agrees to finance construction of the Project and to furnish all 
labor, equipment and materials, including tools, implements, and appliances required, and to 
perform all of the Work, as that term is defined in Article 1.1.3 of the General Conditions, in a good 
and workmanlike manner, free from any and all liens and claims from mechanics, material 
suppliers, subcontractors, artisans, machinists, teamsters, freight carriers, and laborers required for: 
 
 


Harbor High Track and Field PROJECT 
AT Harbor High School 


SANTA CRUZ COUNTY, CALIFORNIA, 


415 of 428







 


 


 
all in strict compliance with the plans, drawings and specifications (“Plans and Specifications”) for 
the Project submitted to the Division of State Architect (“DSA”) for approval and prepared by: 
 


Belli Architectural Group 
 


and other contract documents relating to the Project. 
 
The Scope of Work shall include any revisions to the Plans and Specifications that are made as a 
result of DSA review or at the direction of DSA.  
 
The Scope of Work does not include Contractor’s performance of the pre-construction services as 
set forth in Section 2, below.  
 
Until DSA approval of the plans, drawings and specifications for the Project has been received by 
Owner, Contractor may not commence any work on the Project for which a contractor’s license is 
required and DSA approval is required.  


 
In accordance with California Public Contract Code section 3300, Contractor has a Class “A or B” 
license that Contractor shall maintain in good standing for the duration of Contractor’s work on the 
Project. 
 
2.  Pre-Construction Services.  Contractor shall perform the following pre-construction services 
to be completed by December 30th, 2017: 
 
a. Site Evaluation.  Contractor shall perform an evaluation of the Site for the Project and make 


recommendations relating to scope, constructability, and schedule of the Project.  Contractor 
shall also review the scope of necessary demolition work, if any, to develop a hazardous 
materials removal plan.  The purpose of this evaluation is to improve the Project’s design and 
minimize unforeseen conditions.  At Owner’s request, Contractor shall provide the results of its 
evaluation in written form to the Owner.  


 
b. Constructability Review.  Contractor shall provide at least 2 constructability reviews of the 


Plans and Specifications before or at each of the following intervals of preconstruction: (i) one 
upon the completion of design development; and (ii) one immediately prior to the submittal of 
the Plans and Specifications to DSA. 
 
Contractor shall review the Plans and Specifications and related construction documents for 
errors and omissions, clarity, consistency, and coordination.  Contractor’s review shall 
emphasize ensuring that the Project can be completed within the Owner’s available budget to 
the level of quality and educational goals desired, and can be completed within the established 
schedule.  Contractor shall specifically provide recommendations on construction feasibility, 
energy conservation, availability of materials and labor, time requirements for installation and 
construction, and factors related to cost, including costs of alternative designs of materials, 
preliminary budgets, and possible economies of scale.  Contractor shall provide written reports, 
identifying by page and detail the issues to be discussed and resolved.  As part of the 
constructability review, Contractor shall identify areas where value engineering principles 
could be applied (including potential cost savings and the schedule impact of such savings), 


416 of 428







 


 


and identify items requiring a long lead time before construction.  Contractor shall assist the 
District in considering operating or maintenance costs with respect to selecting systems and 
products for the Project.  


 
c. Design/Coordination Meetings.  Contractor shall be responsible for facilitating all 


design/coordination meetings as needed.  Such meetings shall include participation of design 
professionals and specialty subcontractors.   
 


d. Schedule.  Contractor shall develop a master critical path method (“CPM”) project schedule for 
the Project that shall include all milestone dates for the Project, including submittal of 
Contractor’s GMP proposal for each Project phase, completion of design development, 
submittal of all estimates contemplated by the Contract, re-submission of the Plans and 
Specifications to DSA (if necessary), anticipated re-approval by DSA (if any), finalization of 
Contract Documents, construction sequencing and durations, preparation and processing of 
shop drawings and samples, delivery of materials or equipment requiring long-lead time 
procurements, phasing, and Owner move-in.  Contractor’s schedule shall be submitted to the 
Owner for approval within 30 days’ of execution of this Agreement; the Owner shall have the 
right to request reasonable changes and updates in the schedule.  Contractor shall provide 
schedule updates with each estimate, or more often if reasonably requested by the Owner or if 
required in Contractor’s judgment to communicate changes in market conditions.  
 


e. Estimates.  Contractor shall provide an estimate of total Project cost, as well as necessary 
updates to that estimate.  Contractor’s initial estimate shall be due to the District within two 
weeks of completion of its first constructability review.  Updated cost estimates shall be given 
in accordance with the approved CPM project schedule for the Project.  Contractor shall also 
provide an updated estimate upon the submission of the Plans and Specifications to DSA (and 
at any other time required or reasonably necessary pursuant to this Agreement).  Contractor’s 
cost estimate shall identify all trades and unit costs and shall also identify all allowable general 
condition costs and fees.  If any cost estimate submitted to the Owner exceeds a previously 
approved estimate, the Contractor shall make appropriate recommendations to the Owner for 
reducing the estimated cost of the Project.  All estimates shall assume that construction of the 
Project is subject to the payment of prevailing wages under the California Labor Code and 
applicable regulations, and that the Project will be subject to compliance monitoring and 
enforcement by the California Department of Industrial Relations. 
 


f. Construction Planning.  Contractor shall provide assistance to Owner in construction planning, 
including phasing, staging, site logistics, sequencing, fencing, office locations and means and 
methods of construction.  The Contractor shall (1) provide a preliminary evaluation of the 
Owner’s schedule, cost and design requirements for the Project; (2) develop an anticipated 
construction schedule pursuant to Subsection d. above; (3) develop a preliminary cost estimate 
for each type of work contemplated by the Project pursuant to Subsection e. above; (4) clarify 
and delineate the Architect’s, the Contractor’s, and the Owner’s respective duties and 
responsibilities; and (5) set forth a plan for the administration and coordination of all Work on 
the Project, including pre-construction meetings.  The Architect and Owner shall review the 
above for acceptance.  Contractor will also ensure that all Work complies with the guidelines 
established by the State of California Office of Public School Construction and any other 
Federal or State agencies having jurisdiction over the Project.  The objective of this step will be 


417 of 428







 


 


to develop an overall program strategy as relates to timing, budgets, construction materials, 
means and methods and the program interface during construction. 


 
3.  Contract Documents.  The Contractor and the Owner agree that this Agreement, and all of the 
documents listed in Article 1.1.1 of the General Conditions, together form the “Contract 
Documents,” which form the “Contract.” 
 
4.  Time to Complete and Liquidated Damages.  Time is of the essence in this Contract.  The 
time for completion of the Project shall be August 31st 2017. Approval of the Total Sublease 
Amount (as set forth in Section 5 of this Agreement), pursuant to California Education Code 
section 17406(a)(3).   
 
Failure to complete the Project within the date(s) and in the manner provided for by the Contract 
Documents, shall subject the Contractor to liquidated damages for each calendar day by which 
such completion is delayed beyond the Date for Completion.  For purposes of liquidated damages, 
the concept of substantial completion shall not constitute completion and is not part of the Contract 
Documents.  The actual occurrence of damages and the actual amount of the damages which the 
Owner would suffer if the Project were not completed by the Date for Completion are dependent 
upon many circumstances and conditions which could prevail in various combinations and, from 
the nature of the case, it is impracticable and extremely difficult to fix the actual damages.  
Damages that the Owner would suffer if completion is delayed include, but are not limited to, loss 
of the use of the Project, disruption of activities, costs of administration, supervision and the 
incalculable inconvenience and loss suffered by the public. 
 
Accordingly, the Parties agree that the following dollar figure shall be the amount of damages 
which the Owner shall directly incur upon failure of the Contractor to complete the Project within 
the time specified:  $1,000.00 for each calendar day by which completion of the Project is delayed 
beyond the Date for Completion, which may be adjusted in accordance with the Contract 
Documents. 
 
If the Contractor becomes liable under this Section, the Owner, in addition to all other remedies 
provided by law, shall have the right to withhold sublease payments, and to collect the interest 
thereon, which would otherwise be or become due the Contractor until the liability of the 
Contractor under this Section has been finally determined.  If the withheld sublease payments are 
not sufficient to discharge all liabilities of the Contractor incurred under this Section, then the 
Contractor and its sureties shall continue to remain liable to the Owner for such liabilities until all 
such liabilities are satisfied in full. 
 
If the Owner accepts any work or makes any payment under this Agreement after a default by 
reason of delays, the payment or payments shall in no respect constitute a waiver or modification 
of any Agreement provisions regarding time of completion and liquidated damages. 
 
5.  Total Sublease Amount.  Owner shall pay Contractor a total amount for the Scope of Work 
(“Total Sublease Amount”) which will be calculated following: (i) Contractor’s completion of the 
preconstruction services set forth in Section 2; (2) the selection of all subcontractors in accordance 
with Education Code section 17406(a)(4) and the Request for Sealed Proposals; and (iii) any 
required DSA approval of the Plans and Specifications for the Work. 
 


418 of 428







 


 


Following the occurrence of all of the events set forth in the paragraph above, Contractor shall 
provide Owner with objectively verifiable information of its costs to perform the Work and a 
written rationale for the proposed Total Sublease Amount, including documentation sufficient to 
support the calculation.  Contractor’s written rationale shall detail the “base construction cost” for 
the Project, consisting of (a) all subcontracts to be awarded by Contractor for the Project, plus (b) 
any separately awarded contracts for materials and supplies for the Project.  The product of the 
base construction cost, multiplied by the Percentage offered by the Contractor in its response to the 
Request for Sealed Proposals, shall be the “Contractor Fee”, which shall also be set forth in 
Contractor’s written rationale.  The Total Sublease Amount shall be the sum total of the base 
construction cost and the Contractor Fee.  
 
The proposed Total Sublease Amount shall be approved or rejected by the Owner at a public 
meeting before Contractor may proceed with any further Work under the Contract Documents.  
Once approved, the Parties shall execute Exhibit A of the Sublease, setting forth the Total Sublease 
Amount and Sublease Payments, whereupon Exhibit A shall be incorporated into, and become part 
of the Contract Documents.  Contractor shall immediately commence the Work after approval of 
the Total Sublease Amounts by the Owner, and the time for completion of the Work shall 
commence to run upon such approval by the Owner.  If the Owner rejects the Total Sublease 
Amount and requests another calculation from Contractor, then Contractor shall submit another 
calculation complying with this Section’s procedures.  If the Owner rejects the Total Sublease 
Amount and does not request another calculation from Contractor, then such rejection will act as a 
Termination for Convenience pursuant to Article 14.3.2 of the General Conditions and the Owner 
may award a lease-leaseback contract for the Project to the next highest best value contractor from 
the selection process used for the Project. 
 
Except as otherwise provided in the General Conditions, the Contractor shall assume the risk of all 
costs in excess of the Total Sublease Amount in the performance of such work and shall not be 
entitled to additional payments because of such excess costs.  Should the Contractor believe that it 
is entitled to an increase in the Total Sublease Amount or a time extension for completion, it must 
request it pursuant to the procedures in the General Conditions for change orders and claims.  
Contractor shall finance the cost of construction of the Work.  Contractor shall pay all 
subcontractors and suppliers as they perform Work or furnish supplies.  The Owner shall pay 
Contractor sublease payments pursuant to the terms and conditions of Section 6 of the Sublease 
(the “Sublease Payments”).  The sum of the Sublease Payments shall not exceed the Total Sublease 
Amount established under this Section 5. 
 
6.  Changes.  Should the Contractor believe that it is entitled to an increase in the Total Sublease 
Amount or a time extension for completion, it must request such change pursuant to the procedures 
in the General Conditions for change orders and claims.  
  
7.  Term and Termination.  The term of the Contract (the “Lease Term”) automatically ends on 
December 31st, 2018 (“Termination Date”).  The Owner or Contractor may terminate the Contract 
prior to the Termination Date, but only as provided in the General Conditions.  All of the 
covenants, representations and warranties set forth in the Contract, including indemnification 
obligations, that are intended to bind the Parties after the completion of the Project or termination 
of the Contract will survive such completion or termination for the periods provided for in the 
Contract or otherwise allowed by law.  The Site Lease and the Sublease each shall automatically 
end at the same time as the Contract, with the Parties’ respective leasehold interests thereunder 


419 of 428







 


 


automatically ended and released, and title to the Site and Project automatically and fully vested in 
the Owner. 
 
8.  Prequalification of Contractor and Certain Contractors. 
Owner has determined that the Project is subject to prequalification pursuant to Education Code 
section 17406 subsection (a)(2)(C) and Public Contract Code section 20111.6 subsections (b) 
through (m). Accordingly, the Owner’s Request for Proposals for the Project required that all 
entities proposing for this Contract, including Contractor, must be prequalified as well as all 
electrical, mechanical, and plumbing subcontractors to be utilized on the Project.  
 
Any subcontractors that Contractor may select after award pursuant to Section 9, below, must be 
prequalified by Owner pursuant to Education Code section 17406 subsection (a)(2)(C) and Public 
Contract Code section 20111.6 subsections (b) through (m) if bidding or proposing for work 
requiring C-4, C-7, C-10, C-16, C-20, C-34, C-36, C-38, C-42, C-43, or C-46 licenses or other ‘C’ 
licenses specified by Owner in the Request for Proposals.  Contractor may not accept a bid or 
proposal and may not award a subcontract to a bidding or proposing subcontractor that has not met 
the requirements of this Section.  When soliciting bids or proposals from subcontractors, the 
Contractor shall provide notice to all subcontractors of which subcontractors must be prequalified 
to submit bids or proposals, and Contractor shall state where the prequalification applications may 
be obtained and where and when they must be submitted.  The prequalification questionnaires and 
financial statements are not public records and are not open to public inspection. 


 
9.  Selection of Subcontractors; DVBE Goals.  For any subcontractors not listed in Contractor’s 
proposal who will perform more than 0.5% of the Work, Contractor shall provide public notice of 
availability of work to be subcontracted in accordance with the publication date applicable to the 
District’s competitive bidding process (including but not limited to Public Contract Code section 
20112), including a fixed date and time on which qualifications statements, bids, or proposals will 
be due.  Contractor shall establish reasonable qualification criteria and standards and shall award 
each subcontract either on best value basis as described in Education Code section 17406(a)(4) or 
to the lowest responsible bidder.  All subcontractors shall be afforded the protections of the 
Subletting and Subcontracting Fair Practices Act (commencing with Public Contract Code section 
4100).  Contractor’s subcontractor selection process shall be subject to review by, and approval of 
Owner. 
 
Compliance with Disabled Veteran Business Enterprise (“DVBE”) contracting goals is required for 
this Project.  In accordance with Education Code section 17076.11 the Owner has a DVBE 
participation goal of 3% per year of the overall dollar amount of state funds allocated to the Owner 
pursuant to the Leroy F. Greene School Facilities Act of 1998, and expended each year by the 
Owner for this Project.  The Owner is seeking DVBE participation under this Agreement.   
 
The Contractor must make a good faith effort to contact and utilize DVBE subcontractors and 
suppliers in securing bids, in the manner set forth in this Section for performance of the Project.  
Information regarding certified DVBE firms can be obtained from the State’s Office of Small 
Business and DVBE Services (OSDS) at (916) 375-4940 as well as the OSDS website at 
www.bidsync.com/DPXBisCASB. Verification of DVBE status must be obtained from the OSDS 
by receiving an approved certification letter and reference number from that office.  Contractor is 
required, as a material condition of this Agreement, to retain documentation of its good faith efforts 


420 of 428







 


 


in utilizing DVBEs for this Project, for submission to the Owner or to the applicable state agency 
in the event such documentation is requested.  
 
Good faith efforts are demonstrated by evidence of the following: (a) contact was made with the 
Owner regarding the identification of DVBEs; (b) contact was made with other state agencies and 
with local DVBE organizations to identify DVBEs; (c) advertising was published in trade papers 
and other papers focusing on DVBEs; (d) invitations to bid or proposal solicitations were submitted 
to potential DVBE contractors; and (e) available DVBEs were considered.  Contractor shall certify, 
under penalty of perjury, that a good faith effort was made to include DVBE subcontractors and 
suppliers in the Project. 
 
Prior to, and as a condition precedent for the final Sublease payment made to Contractor by the 
Owner pursuant to Section 6 of the Sublease, the Contractor shall provide the Owner with written 
documentation identifying the amount paid to certified DVBE subcontractors and suppliers in 
performance of the Project.  The Contractor shall also provide the Owner with a copy of the DVBE 
Certification Letter issued by OSDS for each DVBE that has participated in the Project.  This 
documentation will be used by the Owner to evaluate its success in meeting its DVBE participation 
goal. 
 
10.  Prevailing Wages.  The Project is a public work, the Work shall be performed as a public 
work, and under California Labor Code section 1770 et seq., the Director of the California 
Department of Industrial Relations (“DIR”) has determined the general prevailing rate of per diem 
wages and the general prevailing rate for holiday and overtime work in the locality in which the 
Work is to be performed, for each craft, classification or type of worker needed to execute this 
Contract.  Per diem wages shall be deemed to include employer payments for health and welfare, 
pension, vacation, apprenticeship or other training programs, and similar purposes.  Copies of the 
rates are on file at the Owner’s principal office.  The rate of prevailing wage for any craft, 
classification or type of workmanship to be employed on this Project is the rate established by the 
applicable collective bargaining agreement which rate so provided is hereby adopted by reference 
and shall be effective for the life of this Agreement or until the Director of the DIR determines that 
another rate be adopted.  It shall be mandatory upon the Contractor and on any subcontractor to pay 
not less than the said specified rates to all workers employed in the execution of this Agreement. 
 
The Contractor and any subcontractor under the Contractor as a penalty to the Owner shall forfeit 
not more than Two Hundred Dollars ($200.00) for each calendar day or portion thereof for each 
worker paid less than the stipulated prevailing rates for such work or craft in which such worker is 
employed.  The difference between such stipulated prevailing wage rates and the amount paid to 
each worker for each calendar day or portion thereof for which each worker was paid less than the 
stipulated prevailing wage rate shall be paid to each worker by the Contractor. 
 
The Contractor and each Subcontractor shall keep or cause to be kept an accurate record for work 
on this Project showing the names, addresses, social security numbers, work classification, straight 
time and overtime hours worked and occupations of all laborers, workers and mechanics employed 
by them in connection with the performance of this Contract or any subcontract thereunder, and 
showing also the actual per diem wage paid to each of such workers, which records shall be open at 
all reasonable hours to inspection by the Owner, its officers and agents and to the representatives of 
the Division of Labor Standards Enforcement of the DIR.  Contractor and all subcontractors shall 
comply with Labor Code section 1776.  In accordance with Labor Code section 1771.4(a)(1), the 


421 of 428







 


 


Project is subject to compliance monitoring and enforcement by the DIR.  The Contractor and each 
subcontractor shall furnish a certified copy of all payroll records directly to the Labor 
Commissioner on a monthly basis, unless directed by the Owner to furnish such records more 
often, and in the format prescribed by the Labor Commissioner. 
 
As a public work, the Project is subject to compliance monitoring and enforcement by the 
Department of Industrial Relations.  In order to be qualified to submit a bid or to be listed in a bid 
proposal subject to the requirements of Public Contract Code section 4104, or enter into, or engage 
in the performance of any contract of public work (as defined by Division 2, Part 7, Chapter 1 
(§§1720 et seq.) of the Labor Code), a contractor or subcontractor must be currently registered and 
qualified under Labor Code section 1725.5 to perform public work as defined by Division 2, Part 7, 
Chapter 1 (§§1720 et seq.) of the Labor Code.  
 
11.  Working Hours.  Under California Labor Code sections 1810 to 1815, the time of service of 
any worker employed by the Contractor or a Subcontractor doing or contracting to do any part of 
the Work contemplated by this Agreement is limited and restricted to 8 hours during any one 
calendar day and 40 hours during any one calendar week, provided, that work may be performed 
by such employee in excess of said 8 hours per day or 40 hours per week provided that 
compensation for all hours worked in excess of 8 hours per day, and 40 hours per week, is paid at a 
rate not less than 1½ times the basic rate of pay.  The Contractor and every Subcontractor shall 
keep an accurate record showing the name of and the actual hours worked each calendar day and 
each calendar week by each worker employed by them in connection with the Work.  The 
Contractor and every Subcontractor shall keep the records open at all reasonable hours to 
inspection by representatives of the Owner and the Division of Labor Standards Enforcement.  The 
Contractor shall as a penalty to the Owner forfeit $25.00 for each worker employed in the 
execution of this Agreement by the Contractor or by any subcontractor for each calendar day 
during which such worker is required or permitted to work more than 8 hours in any one calendar 
day, and 40 hours in any one calendar week, except as herein provided. 
 
12.  Apprentices.  The Contractor shall comply with California Labor Code sections 1777.5 and 
1777.6. These sections require that contractors and subcontractors employ apprentices in 
apprenticeable occupations in a ratio of not less than 1 hour of apprentice’s work for each 5 hours 
of work performed by a journeyman (unless an exemption is granted in accordance with Labor 
Code section 1777.5) and that contractors and subcontractors shall not discriminate among 
otherwise qualified employees as indentured apprentices on any public works solely on the ground 
of sex, race, religious creed, national origin, ancestry or color.  Only apprentices as defined in 
Labor Code section 3077, who are in training under apprenticeship standards and who have signed 
written apprentice agreements, will be employed on public works in apprenticeable occupations.  
The responsibility for compliance with these provisions is fixed with the Contractor for all 
apprenticeable occupations. 
 
13.  Skilled and Trained Workforce.  The Contractor and its subcontractors at every tier shall 
comply with Education Code section 17407.5 and Public Contract Code sections 2600-2602, which 
require the Contractor and its subcontractors at every tier to employ a skilled and trained 
workforce, as defined herein, to perform all work on the Project that falls within an apprenticeable 
occupation in the building and construction trades. 
 
For the purpose of this Section 13, the following definitions apply: 


422 of 428







 


 


 
A. “Apprenticeable occupation” means an occupation for which the Division of 


Apprenticeship Standards of the DIR had approved an apprenticeship program before 
January 1, 2014. 


 
B. “Graduate of an apprenticeship program” means either (a) an individual that has been 


issued a certificate of completion under the authority of the California Apprenticeship 
Council for completing an apprenticeship program approved by the DIR pursuant to 
Section 3075 of the Labor Code, or (b) an individual that has completed an 
apprenticeship program located outside California and approved for federal purposes 
pursuant to apprenticeship regulations adopted by the federal Secretary of Labor.  


 
C. “Skilled and trained workforce” means that all of the workers are either apprentices 


registered in an apprenticeship program approved by the DIR, or skilled 
journeypersons, with, for work performed on or after January 1, 2017 and before 
January 1, 2108, at least 30 percent of the skilled journeypersons employed on the 
Project in an apprenticeable occupation by Contractor or any of its subcontractors at 
every tier being graduates of an apprenticeship program for the applicable occupation.  
Pursuant to Sections 2600-2602 of the Public Contract Code, the percentage 
requirement may be partially met in some apprenticeable occupations by skilled 
journeypersons who commenced working before an apprenticeship program existed, 
may be met by the hours performed by the skilled journeypersons, need not be met if 
less than ten (10) hours of work were performed, and need not be met by some 
subcontractors. 


  
D. “Skilled journeyperson” means any of the following:  (i) a person who has graduated 


from an apprenticeship program for the applicable occupation that was approved by the 
DIR, (ii) a person who has graduated from an apprenticeship program for the applicable 
occupation that was located outside of California and approved for federal purposes in 
accordance with regulations adopted by the federal Secretary of Labor, or (iii) a person 
who has at least as many hours of on-the-job experience in the applicable occupation as 
would be required to graduate from an apprenticeship program approved by the DIR. 


 
For each calendar month during the Work, Contractor shall provide a compliance report to the 
Owner for each contractor or subcontractor before the fifth day of each month, using a format 
approved by the District, demonstrating compliance with this Section 13.  Such monthly 
compliance reports shall be subject to the California Public Records Act (commencing with 
Government Code section 6250), and shall be open to public inspection. 
 
If Contractor fails to comply with this Section 13 then Owner, at its sole discretion, may terminate 
the Agreement pursuant to Article 14 of the General Conditions, in addition to any other rights or 
remedies provided to Owner in the Contract Documents.  Notwithstanding any other provision of 
the Agreement or the General Conditions: (a) if Contractor fails to provide any required monthly 
compliance report pursuant to this Section 13 on or before the fifth day of the following month, or 
provides an incomplete report, Owner shall withhold further payments to Contractor that would 
otherwise be due and payable under the terms of this Agreement, until Contractor provides a 
complete report; and (b) if a monthly report does not demonstrate compliance with these skilled 
and trained workforce requirements, Owner shall withhold further payments to Contractor that 


423 of 428







 


 


would otherwise be due and payable under the terms of this Agreement, until Contractor provides a 
plan to achieve substantial compliance with these requirements for the relevant apprenticeable 
occupation prior to completion of the Contract. 
 
14.  DSA Oversight Process.  The Contractor must comply with the applicable requirements of the 
Division of State Architect (“DSA”) Construction Oversight Process (“DSA Oversight Process”), 
including but not limited to (a) notifying the Inspector of Record (“IOR”) upon commencement 
and completion of each aspect of the work as required under DSA Form 156; (b) coordinating the 
Work with the IOR’s inspection duties and requirements; (c) submitting verified reports under DSA 
Form 6-C; and (d) coordinating with the Owner, Owner’s Architect, any Construction Manager, 
any laboratories, and the IOR to meet the DSA Oversight Process requirements without delay or 
added costs to the Project.  
 
Contractor shall be responsible for any additional DSA fees related to review of proposed changes 
to the DSA-approved construction documents, to the extent the proposed changes were caused by 
Contractor’s wrongful actions or omissions.  If inspected Work is found to be in non-compliance 
with the DSA-approved construction documents or the DSA-approved testing and inspection 
program, then it must be removed and corrected.  Any construction that covers unapproved or 
uninspected Work is subject to removal and correction, at Contractor’s expense, in order to permit 
inspection and approval of the covered Work in accordance with the DSA Oversight Process. 
 
15.  Indemnification, Insurance, and Bonds.  The Contractor will defend, indemnify and hold 
harmless the Owner, its governing board, officers, agents, trustees, employees and others as 
provided in the General Conditions. 
 
By this statement the Contractor represents that it has secured the payment of Workers’ 
Compensation in compliance with the provisions of the California Labor Code and during the 
performance of the work contemplated herein will continue so to comply with said provisions of 
said Code.  The Contractor shall supply the Owner with certificates of insurance evidencing that 
Workers’ Compensation Insurance is in effect and providing that the Owner will receive 30 days’ 
notice of cancellation. 
 
Contractor shall provide the insurance set forth in the General Conditions.  The amount of general 
liability insurance shall be $1,000,000.00per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury, and 
property damage, and the amount of automobile liability insurance shall be $1,000,000.00 per 
accident for bodily injury and property damage combined single limit. 
 
Contractor shall provide the bonds set forth in the General Conditions, including performance and 
payments bonds. 
 
16.  Entire Agreement.  The Contract constitutes the entire agreement between the Parties, and 
supersedes any prior or contemporaneous agreement between the Parties, oral or written, unless 
such agreement is expressly incorporated herein.  The Owner makes no representations or 
warranties, express or implied, not specified in the Contract.  The Contract is intended as the 
complete and exclusive statement of the Parties’ agreement pursuant to California Code of Civil 
Procedure section 1856. 


424 of 428







 


 


17.  Execution of Other Documents.  The Parties to this Agreement shall cooperate fully in the 
execution of any and all other documents and in the completion of any additional actions that may 
be necessary or appropriate to give full force and effect to the terms and intent of the Contract. 
 
18.  Execution in Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in counterparts such that the 
signatures may appear on separate signature pages.  A copy, or an original, with all signatures 
appended together, shall be deemed a fully executed Agreement. 
 
19.  Binding Effect.  Contractor, by execution of this Agreement, acknowledges that Contractor 
has read this Agreement and the other Contract Documents, understands them, and agrees to be 
bound by their terms and conditions.  The Contract shall inure to the benefit of and shall be binding 
upon the Contractor and the Owner and their respective successors and assigns. 
 
20.  Severability; Governing Law; Venue.  If a court of competent jurisdiction shall hold any 
provision of the Contract invalid or unenforceable, then such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision hereof.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the 
Contract.  Any action or proceeding seeking any relief under or with respect to this Agreement 
shall be brought solely in the Superior Court of the State of California for the County of Santa 
Cruz, subject to transfer of venue under applicable State law, provided that nothing in this 
Agreement shall constitute a waiver of immunity to suit by Owner. 
 
21.  Amendments.  The terms of the Contract shall not be waived, altered, modified, 
supplemented, or amended in any manner whatsoever except by written agreement signed by the 
Parties and approved or ratified by the Owner’s Governing Board. 
 
22.  Assignment of Contract.  The Contractor shall not assign or transfer by operation of law or 
otherwise any of its rights, burdens, duties or obligations without the prior written consent of the 
surety on the payment bond, the surety on the performance bond, and the Owner. 
 
23.  Written Notice.  Written notice shall be deemed to have been duly served if delivered in 
person to the individual or member of the firm or to an officer of the corporation for whom it was 
intended, or if delivered at or sent by registered or certified or overnight mail to the last business 
address known to the person who gives the notice. 
 
24.  Terms Not Defined.  Capitalized terms used in this Agreement that are not otherwise defined 
have the same meaning as in the General Conditions or other Contract Documents. 
 
25.  Parties Bound by Agreement.  Each person signing this Agreement below warrants and 
guarantees that he or she is legally authorized to execute this Agreement on behalf of the listed 
Party and that such execution binds that Party to the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
  


425 of 428







 


 


* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 
 
CONTRACTOR:      OWNER: 
 
_________________,      Santa Cruz City School District 
a California ___________ 
 
BY: _________________________________  BY: ____________________________ 
_____________________________________  ________________________________ 
TITLE: President     TITLE: Assistant Superintendent Business 
 
BY:  ________________________________ 
TITLE: Corporate Secretary 
 
___________________________  
CALIFORNIA CONTRACTOR'S  
LICENSE NO. 
 
___________________________  
LICENSE EXPIRATION DATE 
 
NOTE: Contractor must give the full business address of the Contractor and sign with 
Contractor’s usual signature.  Partnerships must furnish the full name of all partners and the 
Agreement must be signed in the partnership name by a general partner with authority to bind the 
partnership in such matters, followed by the signature and designation of the person signing.  The 
name of the person signing shall also be typed or printed below the signature.  Corporations must 
sign with the legal name of the corporation, followed by the name of the state of incorporation and 
by the signature and designation of the chairman of the board, president or any vice president, and 
then followed by a second signature by the secretary, assistant secretary, the chief financial officer 
or assistant treasurer.  All persons signing must be authorized to bind the corporation in the matter.  
The name of each person signing shall also be typed or printed below the signature.  Satisfactory 
evidence of the authority of the officer signing on behalf of a corporation shall be furnished. 
  


426 of 428







 


 


EXHIBIT A – Lease-Leaseback Agreement 
 


SKILLED AND TRAINED WORKFORCE COMPLIANCE REPORT  
FOR WORK PERFORMED  


ON OR AFTER JANUARY 1, 2017 AND BEFORE JANUARY 1, 2018 
(Education Code §17407.5 and Public Contract Code §§2600-2602) 


 
Owner:   Santa Cruz City School District 
 
Contract:    ______________ Project 


    _______________ School 
         _______________ [city], ____________ County, California 
  
The undersigned declares: 
 
I am the ______________ of _______________, the “Contractor” on the Project identified above.  
I hereby certify that during the month of __________ , 20__,  there were a total of ______ workers 
employed by _________________ in the apprenticeable occupation of ___________  and these 
workers performed a total of ______ hours of work within this apprenticeable occupation.  I certify 
that all of these workers in this apprenticeable occupation are either skilled journeypersons or 
apprentices registered in an apprenticeship program approved by the Department of Industrial 
Relations (DIR), and that all of these hours performed in this apprenticeable occupation were 
performed by such skilled journeypersons and apprentices.  
 
I also certify as to either Section A, B, or C for this apprenticeable occupation [check applicable 
box]: 
 


    A. Exemption from Percentage Compliance 
 
Of the above total number of hours of work performed by workers employed by _____________in 
this apprenticeable occupation this month, ______ (___) were performed by skilled 
journeypersons, which is less than the statutory threshold of ten (10) hours.  
 


    B. Percentage Compliance by Number of Workers  
1. Of the above total number of workers employed by _________________ in this 
 apprenticeable occupation this month, _____ (____) were apprentices registered in an 
 apprenticeship program approved by the DIR. 


 
2. Of the above total number of workers employed by _________________ in this 
 apprenticeable occupation in this month, _____ were skilled journeypersons.  Included 
 in these skilled journeypersons are the following: 


 
 a. ______who are graduates of an apprenticeship program for the applicable  
  occupation (as defined in Section 13 of the Agreement); and  


 
 b. ______ who are not graduates of an approved apprenticeship program for this 
  apprenticeable occupation, but (a) no apprenticeship program had been approved 
  by the DIR before January 1, 1995, for this apprenticeable occupation; and (b) 


427 of 428







 


 


  these workers commenced working in this apprenticeable occupation before 
  DIR approval of an apprenticeship program for that occupation in the county in 
  which the Project is located.  
  


The combined number of skilled journeypersons listed in Section B.1 and Section B.2 is 30% or 
more of the total number of skilled journeypersons identified above, with no more than half of this 
percentage requirement being satisfied by the number of skilled journeypersons listed in Section 
B.2.b.  
 


    C. Percentage Compliance by Number of Hours   
 


1. Of the above total number of hours of work performed by workers employed by 
 _____________ in this apprenticeable occupation this month, _____ hours were 
 performed by  apprentices registered in an apprenticeship program approved by the 
 DIR. 


 
2. Of the above total number of hours of work performed by workers employed by  
 _________________ in this apprenticeable occupation in this month, _____ hours were 
 performed by  skilled journeypersons.  Included in these hours are the following: 
 


a. ______ hours performed by graduates of an apprenticeship program for the 
applicable occupation; and  


 
b. ______ hours performed by skilled journeypersons who are not graduates of an 


approved apprenticeship program for this apprenticeable occupation, but (a) no 
apprenticeship program had been approved by the DIR before January 1, 1995, for 
this apprenticeable occupation; (b) these workers commenced working in this 
apprenticeable occupation before DIR approval of an apprenticeship program for 
that occupation in the county in which the Project is located. 


 
The combined hours of work performed by skilled journeypersons listed in Section C.1 and Section 
C.2 is 30% or more of the total number of hours of work performed by skilled journeypersons 
identified above, with no more than half of this percentage requirement being satisfied by the hours 
performed by skilled journeypersons listed in Section C.2.b. 
 
I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true 
and correct and that this declaration is executed on _____________, 20__, at _________ [city], 
California. 
      __________________________________  
       [Name] 
 
I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true 
and correct and that this declaration is executed on _____________, 20__, at _________ [city], 
California. 
      __________________________________  
       [Name] 
J:\wdocs\90005\008\agt\00481668.DOCX 


428 of 428





		Agenda 8-23-17 Final Draft

		Minutes 6-28-17 Reviewed KM

		Cover - Item 8.1.1 - Certificated Personnel Actions

		Attachment - Item 8.1.1 - Certificated Personnel Actions

		Cover Item 8.1.2 - Classified Personnel Actions

		Attachment- Item 8.1.2 - Classified Personnel Actions

		POs over $2500 cover

		POs over $2500 list

		PO/REQ

		POs over $2500 list addendum

		PO/REQ

		Bid BV re-roofing

		warrants cover

		Vendor Warrants list

		Budget Transfers cover

		Budget Transfers July 2017 List

		Williams 4th Quarterly cover

		Williams Report 4th Quarter

		surplus cover

		SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS

		AGENDA ITEM:  Disposition of Surplus Property

		FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services

		THROUGH:     Kris Munro, Superintendent

		RECOMMENDATION:

		BACKGROUND:

		Surplus SHS computers

		SITE:   SOQUEL HIGH SCHOOL/INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

		change order 1 Stronger Building Svces cover

		Stronger Building CO Request

		17.18 Licensed Professionals 3 Add'l Days 7.7.17

		17-18 eff 7.1.17

		contracts cover

		COE - Property Agrmt - 2 portables Swift St

		Wenger Associates proposal

		Blackboard contract school community messaging

		Bartos Arch. Agrmt Amndmt SCHS

		AccountAbility software proposal

		Crowe Horwath agrnt Measure A bond audit

		Jerene Lacey CSA

		Contract MBS Gas system analysis all sites

		Bowman & Williams proposal topographic map Harbor High

		Macro extension 2017

		Senderos - Facilities Use Agreement ext

		Hearing Conservation West CSA audiology services

		Margaret Lacey CSA hearing & vision testing

		ABRITE Nonpublic Agency contract cover

		ABRITE Nonpublic Agency contract

		Bay School Nonpublic school contract cover

		Bay School Nonpublic school contract

		Bridge School  Nonpublic School contract cover

		Bridge School  Nonpublic School contract

		Heritage Schools Nonpublic School contract cover

		Heritage Schools Nonpublic School contract

		May Institute Nonpublic Agency contract cover

		May Institute Nonpublic Agency contract

		Pediatric Therapy Center nonpublic agency contract

		Pediatric Therapy Center nonpublic agency contract cover

		RCS-Phoenix Nonpublic School contract cover

		RCS-Phoenix Nonpublic School contract

		Trumpet Nonpublic Agency contract cover

		Trumpet Nonpublic Agency contract

		Maria Ballard Agrmt for Prof Svces cover

		Maria Ballard Agrmt

		SpeechRighter Agrmt Prof Svc cover

		SpeechRighter Agrmt Prof Svc

		Medical Billing Technologies contract cover

		Medical Billing Technologies contract

		Cvr Student Centered Master Scheduling Item 8.3.1.

		Student Centered Scheduling2

		Bond Projects Update cover

		Bond Projects Update presentation

		Transportation Update cover

		Transportation update presentation

		Transportation

		Overview of Services

		Slide Number 3

		Slide Number 4

		Slide Number 5

		Recommended Action

		Thank you!

		PTOC Bylaws Revision cover

		PTOC Bylaws SCCS  - Rev 082317

		1.0 Preamble

		2.0 Name, Purpose, and Duties

		2.1 Name

		2.2 Purpose

		2.3 Duties

		A. Receive and review expenditure reports produced by the District to ensure that parcel tax revenue was expended in accordance with the purposes set forth in the ballot language of each parcel tax measure as approved by the voters.

		C. Prepare and present to the Board, in open session, an annual written report (“Annual Report”) which will include:

		 A statement indicating whether the District’s parcel tax revenue expenditures for the preceding year were made in accordance with the stated purposes of each parcel tax measure.

		 A summary of the Committee’s proceedings for the preceding year.





		3.0 Committee Composition

		The Committee shall consist of a minimum of five members (and a maximum of seven), including the following community representation:

		A. One member shall, at the time of appointment, be active in a business organization representing the business community of the District;

		B. One member shall, at the time of appointment, be a member of the community at large; active in a senior citizens organization;

		C. One member shall, at the time of the appointment, be a member of a Senior Citizen’s Organization,

		D. One member shall, at the time of appointment, be a parent or guardian of a child enrolled in the District;

		E. One member shall, at the time of appointment, be a parent or guardian of a child enrolled in the District and active in a parent-teacher organization, such as the Home & School Club, Parent Teacher School Organization or school site council.

		A single individual may be appointed as a representative of more than one of the above categories, if applicable.

		3.1 Eligibility

		The Committee shall be comprised of individuals who are at least 18 years of age and who either live or work within the boundaries of the District.

		A. The Committee shall be comprised of individuals who are at least 18 years of age and who either live or work within the boundaries of the District.

		B. No employee, official, vendor, contractor, or consultant of the District shall be appointed to the Committee.

		C. Committee members shall be subject to prohibitions regarding incompatibility of office pursuant to Government Code sections 1125-1129 and financial interest in contracts pursuant to Government Code sections 1090-1099.





		3.2 Term of Service

		A. Committee members serve without compensation and for no more than two consecutive terms.

		B. Appointed Committee members shall be seated for a 4 year term in July of each year, except those appointed to replace vacancies.



		3.3 Replacing a Committee Member

		A. If a Committee position becomes vacant, the Committee Chair shall request that the Board appoint a replacement in accordance with the process set forth in these Bylaws at Section 3.

		B. Unless failure to act results in the inability to meet a Committee quorum, if six months or less remain of the unexpired four-year term, the Board may choose to leave that position vacant for the remainder of the term.

		C. A replacement Committee member may be appointed by the Board if one or more of the following events occur:

		The Committee member submits a written resignation to the Board, with a copy to the Committee Chair;

		The Committee approves a motion to remove a member for cause, including non-attendance at meetings (ref: Section 5.8 below), violating these Bylaws, and/or violating the District’s adopted norms. A motion to remove a member shall be approved by an aff...



		D. Committee members appointed to fill vacant, unexpired terms may apply and shall be eligible for reappointment to a succeeding full four-year term.





		4.0 Committee Officers

		4.1 Elections

		4.2 Term of Office

		4.3 Duties of the Chair

		A. The Chair shall call Committee meetings (ref: Section 5.0 below).

		B. The Chair shall, in consultation with District staff and with input from the Committee, establish the agenda for each Committee meeting. (ref: Section 5.1 below)

		C. The Chair shall preside over each Committee meeting, following the adopted Rules of Procedure (ref: Section 5.4 below).

		D. The Chair or his/her Committee-approved designee shall serve as spokesperson for the Committee in all representations of the Committee to the public, the Board, and the media (ref: Section 6.0.A and 6.0.B below).

		E. The Chair may appoint a Parliamentarian to assist in complying with Robert’s Rules of Order during Committee meetings (ref: Section 5.4 below).



		4.4 Duties of the Vice-Chair

		4.5 Duties of the District-Designated Secretary

		A. Subject to review by the Chair before publishing, the District-designated Secretary shall provide oversight in the preparation, recording, and distribution by District-provided support of the following documents in accordance with the Brown Act:

		Committee meeting agendas;

		All reports, materials, and meeting packets as required by or addressed to the Committee;

		The minutes of Committee meetings (ref: Section 5.8 below);

		All written material submitted by the public during Committee meetings;

		All official correspondence addressed to the Committee;

		Reports adopted by the Committee;

		Committee attendance records (ref: Section 5.8, below).



		B. The District-designated Secretary shall take and record roll at the beginning of each Committee meeting to determine the existence of a quorum. If a quorum ceases to exist during a meeting, the District-designated Secretary shall immediately inform...



		4.6 Succession



		5.0 Meetings

		A. All Committee meetings subject to the Brown Act will be held in a fully-accessible District facility.

		B. The Committee shall meet at least quarterly.

		C. Committee members shall be available to attend Board of Education meetings when reports relating to parcel tax measures are presented.

		5.1 Agendas

		A. The Committee will take public comment at the beginning of each meeting.

		B. Agendas for regular Committee meetings will be prepared by its Chair, in consultation with District staff and with input from the committee (ref: Section 4.3.B above).  All documents applicable to agenda items shall be distributed in advance of mee...

		C. Any member of the Committee may submit a request for placing an item on a future agenda.

		D. Agendas may include a consent calendar for routine, non-controversial items. These items must be clearly identified on published agendas. Any member of the Committee or public may request at the meeting that an item be added to the consent calendar...

		E. After roll-call and the establishment of a quorum, meetings will begin with a consent calendar if appropriate.



		5.2 Quorum

		5.3 Committee Voting

		5.4 Rules of Procedure

		5.5 California's Open Meeting Law

		5.6 Public Participation

		5.7 Minutes

		5.8 Attendance

		A. Members anticipating an absence must call or email the Committee Chair or District-designated Secretary no later than 24 hours before the scheduled meeting.

		B. Committee attendance reports will be distributed annually and upon request by the Chair.





		6.0 Committee Reports

		A. The Committee shall prepare regular reports on its activities. A report shall be issued at least once each year.

		B. Any such reports, written and/or oral, that represent the Committee’s position must proceed from Committee review, be duly approved as to substance by an affirmative vote of not less than two-thirds of the members present at a Committee meeting, a ...

		C. Reports of minority viewpoints will be allowed. All such reports, written and/or oral, that represent the minority’s position must be reviewed, be duly approved as to substance without prejudice by a vote of the Committee, and be faithfully articul...

		D. Any member of the Committee may speak as an individual on parcel tax issues but must clearly state for the record that such statements are their own personal views which do not necessarily represent those of the Committee or the District.



		Cvr Board Policy Updates Item 8.3.5.

		May 2017 Policy Guidesheet for Trustees.docx

		March 2017 Policy Guidesheet for Trustees

		BB 9012 Board Member Electronic Communications

		BB 9012 Current

		BP 0460 Local Control and Accountability Plan

		BP 0460 current

		BP 1340 Access to District Records

		BP 1340 current

		BP 2121 Superintendent's Contract

		BP 2121 Current

		BP 3260 Fees and Charges

		BP 3260 current

		BP 4127 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

		BP 4127 current

		BP 4312.1 Contracts

		BP 4312.1 Current

		BP 5111 Admission

		BP 5111 current

		BP 5111.1 District Residency

		BP 5111.1 current

		BP 5113 Absences and Excuses

		BP 5113 current

		BP 5148.2 Before.After School Programs

		BP 5148.2 current

		BP 6111 School Calendar

		BP 6144 Controversial Issues

		BP 6144 current

		BP 6145 Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities

		BP 6145 Current

		BP 6145.2 Athletic Competition

		BP 6145.2 Current

		BP 6174 Education for English Learners

		BP 6174 current

		BP 6176 Weekend.Saturday Classes

		BP 6176 current

		BP 7214 General Obligation Bonds

		BP 7214 Current

		Lease-Leaseback Agrmts cover

		Lease-Leaseback Agrmt Percentage Fee XL Constr HH SHS Pools

		LEASE-LEASEBACK AGREEMENT

		Dated as of 8-23-2017

		Santa Cruz City School District



		Harbor High School

		Soquel High School

		LEASE-LEASEBACK AGREEMENT

		_______________ School

		_______________ [city], ____________ County, California

		Lease-Leaseback Agrmt Percentage Fee XL Constr HH Track & Fields

		LEASE-LEASEBACK AGREEMENT

		Dated as of 8-23-2017

		Santa Cruz City School District



		Harbor High School

		LEASE-LEASEBACK AGREEMENT

		_______________ School

		_______________ [city], ____________ County, California



				2017-08-08T15:46:01-0700

		Joel Ricca










